COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE

The City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2009

Made 23 February 2009

Coming into force 15 April 2009

V A Dodds
Head of Legal Services
Civic Centre
Barras Bridge
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE99 2BN

Contents

	Part 1: General
1. 2. 3. 4.	Commencement and Citation Revocation of Existing Orders Construction Interpretation
	Part 2: Designated Parking Places
	Free Parking
5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10.	Parking Places with Limited Waiting Parking Places for Disabled Badge Holders Parking Places for Buses Parking Places Solo Motor Cycles Only Parking Places for Cycles Parking Places for Police Vehicles Parking Places for Taxis
	Loading
12.	Parking Places for Loading Only
	Parking Meter Parking
13.	Parking Places with Parking Meters
	Permit Parking
14. 15. 16.	Permit Parking Places Permit Parking Places with Parking Meters Permit Parking Places with Limited Waiting
	Part 3: Exemptions
17. 18.	Exemptions Further Provisions as to Exemptions
	Part 4: General Provisions Parking Places
	Works
19.	Works etc. at Parking Places
	Manner of Use of Parking Places
20.	Maximum Period of Stay
21.	Manner of Standing in Parking Places
	Restriction on Use of Parking Places
22.	Restriction on Sale of Goods or Services

23.	Restriction on Construction and Repair to Vehicles		
	Removal and Custody of Vehicles		
24.	Removal of Vehicles from Parking Places		
	Suspension of Vehicles		
25. 26.	Power to Suspend the Use of a Parking Place Applications to Suspend the Use of a Parking Place		
	Part 5: Permits and Season Tickets		
	Resident Permits		
27. 28. 29. 30. 31. 32. 33.	Resident Permit Application Resident Permit Offer Maximum Number of Resident Permits Calculation of the Resident Permit Fee Acceptance of the Resident Permit Offer Issue of Resident Permits Resident Permit Renewals		
	Visitor Permits		
34. 35. 36.	Visitor Permit Application Issue of Visitor Permits Visitor Permit Renewals		
	Business Permits		
37. 38. 39. 40. 41. 42.	Business Permit Application Business Permit Offer Calculation of the Business Permit Fee Acceptance of the Business Permit Offer Issue of Business Permit Business Permit Renewals		
	Charity Permits		
43. 44. 45. 46. 47. 48.	Charity Permit Application Charity Permit Offer Calculation of the Charity Permit Fee Acceptance of the Charity Permit Offer Issue of Charity Permit Charity Permit Renewals		
	Supplementary Permits		
49. 50. 51. 52. 53. 54. 55. 56. 57.	Category 1 Supplementary Permit Applications Category 2 Supplementary Permit Applications Category 3 Supplementary Permit Applications Category 4 Supplementary Permit Applications Category 5 Supplementary Permit Applications Supplementary Permit Offer Maximum Number of Supplementary Permits Calculation of the Supplementary Permit Fee Acceptance of the Supplementary Permit Offer Issue of Supplementary Permits		

Public Authority Permits

59. 60. 61. 62.	Public Authority Permit Applications Public Authority Permit Offer Acceptance of Public Authority Offer Issue of Public Authority Permit
	Interim Permits
63. 64. 65. 66. 67.	Interim Permit Offer Interim Permit Fee Acceptance of Interim Permit Offer Issue of Interim Permit Interim Permit Renewals Reservation Permits
00	
68. 69. 70. 71. 72.	Reservation Permits Application Reservation Permit Offer Calculation of the Reservation Permit Fee Acceptance of the Reservation Permit Offer Issue of Reservation Permit
	Season Tickets
73. 74. 75. 76. 77. 78. 79.	Season Ticket Application Season Ticket Offer Maximum Number of Season Tickets Calculation of the Season Ticket Fee Acceptance of the Season Ticket Offer Issue of Season Ticket Season Ticket Renewals
	Interim Season Tickets
80. 81. 82. 83. 84.	Interim Season Ticket Offer Interim Season Ticket Fee Acceptance of Interim Season Ticket Offer Issue of Interim Season Ticket Interim Season Ticket Renewals
	General
85. 86. 87. 88. 89. 90. 91. 92.	Aggregation of Business Permits and Charity Permits Low Emissions Discount Change of Vehicle Refunds Lost or Stolen Permits and Season Tickets Mutilated or Defaced Permits and Season Tickets Cancellation of Permits and Season Tickets Misuse of Permits Savings/Transitional Provisions

Part 6: Contraventions

Penalty Charges

94.	Penalty Charge
95.	Penalty Charge Notice

Evidence

96. Parking Meters, Tickets and Season Tickets

97. Permits

Schedules

Schedule 1 Revoked Orders

Part I: Orders Wholly Revoked Part 2: Orders Revoked in Part

Schedule 2. Parking Places with Limited Waiting

Part 1 General

Part 2 Shopmobility Scheme

Schedule 3. Parking Places for Disabled Badge Holders

Schedule 4. Parking Places for Buses

Schedule 5. Parking Places Solo Motor Cycles Only

Schedule 6. Parking Places for Cycles

Schedule 7. Parking Places for Police Vehicles

Schedule 8. Parking Places for Taxis

Schedule 9. Parking Places for Loading Only Schedule 10. Parking Places with Parking Meters

Schedule 11. Permit Parking Places

Schedule 12. Permit Parking Places with Parking Meters
Schedule 13. Permit Parking Places with Limited Waiting
Schedule 14 Properties Eligible for Parking Permits

Schedule 15 Parking Places Contained in Each Parking Zone

Schedule 16 Business and Charity Permit Fee Areas

Part I: Area A Eligible Properties
Part 2: Area B Eligible Properties
Part 3: Area C Eligible Properties

Schedule 17 City Centre Zones

Part I: City Centre Zone A
Part 2: City Centre Zone B

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984

The City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2009

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE in exercise of its powers under sections 32, 35, 45, 46, 49, 53, 63 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and of all other powers enabling it in that behalf and after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police and in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the 1984 Act, hereby makes the following Order:-

PART 1

General

1. Commencement and Citation

- (1) This Order may be cited as the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2009 and shall come into force on 15th April 2009.
- (2) This Order together with the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Off Street Parking Places Order) 2001 (or any replacement thereof) may be cited as the City of Newcastle upon Tyne Parking Places Order

2. Revocation of Existing Orders

- (1) The orders set out in Part I of Schedule 1 to this Order are hereby revoked.
- (2) The orders set out in Column 1 of Part 2 of Schedule 1 to this Order are hereby revoked to the extent indicated in Column 2 thereof.

3. Construction

- (1) Subject to paragraph (2) of Article 4, the 1978 Act shall apply to the interpretation of this Order as it applies for the interpretation of an Act of Parliament.
- (2) The prohibitions and restrictions imposed by this Order shall be in addition to, and not in derogation from, any restriction or requirement imposed by any regulation or order made or having effect as if made under the 1984 Act.
- (3) Except where it is expressly provided to the contrary, reference to any numbered Article, paragraph, sub-paragraph, Schedule or Part is a reference to an article, paragraph, sub-paragraph, Schedule or Part bearing that number in this Order.
- (4) References to a statute regulation or order shall:
 - (a) Be constructed as a reference to that statute regulation or order as amended by any subsequent enactment.
 - (b) Include reference to any statute regulation or order re-enacting or made pursuant to the same; and
- (5) Article Schedule and Part headings shall not affect the construction of this Order and for the avoidance of doubt the Title Page and Contents Pages shall not form part of this Order.

- (6) Where a part of a road is authorised for use as a Parking Place or a Parking Place is designated on a highway by an article of this Order by reference to a list of parking places set out in a Schedule, reference to a Parking Place in that Article shall be deemed to be a reference to a Parking Place in that Schedule.
- (7) Where a power is given to the Council pursuant to this Order then that power shall be exercisable by a person duly authorised by the Council to exercise that power on its behalf.

4. Interpretation

(1) In this Order, except where the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the meanings hereby respectively assigned to them:

1972 Act	The Local Government Act 1972		
1978 Act	The Interpretation Act 1978		
1984 Act	The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984		
1988 Act	The Local Government Finance Act 1988		
1991 Act	The New Roads and Street Works Act 1991		
1993 Act	The Charities Act 1993		
1994 Act	The Vehicle Excise and Registration Act 1994		
1998 Regulations	The Local Authorities (Transport Charges) Regulations 1998		
2000 Act	The Postal Services Act 2000		
2002 Regulations	The Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2002		
2004 Act	The Traffic Management Act 2004		
2004 Order	The City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Electoral Changes) Order 2004.		
2006 Act	The Charities Act 2006		
Amended Parking Permit	An amended Parking Permit, issued pursuant to and in accordance Article 87		
Amended Season Ticket	An amended Season Ticket issued pursuant to and in accordance with Article 87		
Area A Eligible	Eligible Properties falling within the Parking Zones		

Area A Eligible Properties

Eligible Properties falling within the Parking Zones specified in Part I of Schedule 16. An Eligible Property falls within a Parking Zone specified in Part I of Schedule 16 where the following conditions are met:

- (i) That Eligible Property is specified in Column (2) of Schedule 14;
- (ii) That Eligible Property appears in the same row as a Parking Zone specified in Column (3) of Schedule 14; and
- (iii) The Parking Zone referred to in paragraph (ii) is also a Parking Zone specified in Part I of Schedule 16.

Area B Eligible Properties

Eligible Properties falling within the Parking Zones specified in Part 2 of Schedule 16. An Eligible Property falls within a Parking Zone specified in Part 2 of Schedule 16 where the following conditions are met:

- (i) That Eligible Property is specified in Column (2) of Schedule 14;
- (ii) That Eligible Property appears in the same row as a Parking Zone specified in Column (3) of Schedule 14; and
- (iii) The Parking Zone referred to in paragraph (ii) is also a Parking Zone specified in Part 2 of Schedule 16.

Area C Eligible Properties

Eligible Properties falling within the Parking Zones specified in Part 3 of Schedule 16. An Eligible Property falls within a Parking Zone specified in Part 3 of Schedule 16 where the following conditions are met:

- (i) That Eligible Property is specified in Column (2) of Schedule 14:
- (ii) That Eligible Property appears in the same row as a Parking Zone specified in Column (3) of Schedule 14; and
- (iii) The Parking Zone referred to in paragraph (ii) is also a Parking Zone specified in Part 3 of Schedule 16.

Application to Suspend

An application to the Council under Article 26, asking that it exercises its powers pursuant to Article 25 to suspend the use of a Parking Place or part of a Parking Place

Article 17 Parking Device

A Parking Device issued under sub-paragraph (4)(k) of Article 17

Badges Regulations

The Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) (England) Regulations 2000

Book of Category 1 Supplementary Permits

Either:

- (i) A Book of Full Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits; or
- (ii) A Book of Half Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits

Book of Category 2 Supplementary Permits

A book of 10 Category 2 Supplementary Permits

Book of Category 3 Supplementary Permits

A book of 10 Category 3 Supplementary Permits

Book of Category 5 Supplementary Permits

Either:

- (i) A Book of Full Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits; or
- (ii) A Book of Half Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits

Book of Full Day A book of 5 Full Day Category 1 Supplementary Category 1 **Permits Supplementary Permit Book of Full Day** A book of 20 Full Day Category 5 Supplementary Category 5 Permits **Supplementary Permit Book of Half Day** A book of 5 Half Day Category 1 Supplementary Category 1 Permits **Supplementary Permit Book of Half Day** A book of 20 Half Day Category 5 Supplementary Category 5 **Permits Supplementary Permit Book of Supplementary** Either: **Permits** (i) A Book of Category 1 Supplementary Permits; or (ii) A Book of Category 2 Supplementary Permits; (iii) A Book of Category 3 Supplementary Permits; or A Book of Category 4 Supplementary Permits. (iv) **Bus** A "bus" as defined in regulation 22 of the 2002 Regulations **Business** A sole trader, partnership or body corporate (including a limited liability partnership) or an unincorporated association which occupies an Eligible Property which is a Business Property **Business Permit** A permit issued pursuant to and in accordance with Article 41 or Article 42, evidencing the payment of the **Business Permit Fee Business Permit** An application for a Business Permit made pursuant to and in accordance with Article 37 **Application Business Permit Fee** The charge for a Business Permit, calculated in accordance with Article 39 **Business Permit Offer** An offer of a Business Permit made pursuant to Article 38, or contained in a Business Permit Renewal Notice **Business Permit Renewal** A notice containing a Business Permit Offer issued **Notice** pursuant to Article 42 **Business Property** An Eligible Property which is shown in a Local Non-Domestic Rating List from time to time in force (including, for the avoidance of doubt, a composite property shown on that list) Carriageway That part of a highway which is set aside for the passage of vehicles (excluding for the avoidance of doubt any footway or highway verge)

A category of Supplementary Permit specified in the

name of that Supplementary Permit in the format "Category X Supplementary Permit" where "X" is the

Category

numerical identifier of the Category

Category 1
Supplementary Permit

A permit issued to a Resident pursuant to and in accordance with Article 58, evidencing the payment of the Supplementary Permit Fee.

Category 1
Supplementary Permit
Application

An Application for

- (i) A Book of Full Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits; or
- (ii) A Book of Half Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits

Category 2 Supplementary Permit A permit issued to a Landlord or a Management Agent pursuant to and in accordance with Article 58, evidencing the payment of the Supplementary Permit Fee.

Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application An Application for a Book of Category 2 Supplementary Permits.

Category 3
Supplementary Permit

A permit issued to a Business pursuant to and in accordance with Article 58, evidencing the payment of the Supplementary Permit Fee.

Category 3
Supplementary Permit
Application

An Application for a Book of Category 3 Supplementary Permit.

Category 4
Supplementary Permit

A permit issued to a Tradesman pursuant to and in accordance with Article 58, evidencing the payment of the Supplementary Permit Fee.

Category 4
Supplementary Permit
Application

An Application for:

- (i) A Day Category 4 Supplementary Permit; or
- (ii) A Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit

Category 5
Supplementary Permit

A permit issued to a Ward Member pursuant to and in accordance with Article 58, evidencing the payment of the Supplementary Permit Fee

Category 5
Supplementary Permit
Application

An Application for:

- (i) A Book Category 5 Supplementary Permits; or
- (ii) A Book Half Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits

Change of Vehicle Application An application for an Amended Parking Permit or an Amended Season Ticket made pursuant to and in accordance with Article 87

Charge Period

The days and times specified in Column 3 of Schedules 10, 11, 12 and 13 as applying to the Parking Place appearing in the same row in Column 2 of Schedules 10, 11, 12 and 13, and during which a charge applies at a Parking Place.

Charity

A "charity" as defined in section 1 of the 2006 Act, including, for the avoidance of doubt, a Registered Charity, an Exempted Charity and an Excepted

Charity.

Charity Permit A permit issued pursuant to and in accordance with

Article 47 or Article 48, evidencing the payment of the

Charity Permit Fee

Charity Permit Application

An application for a Charity Permit made pursuant to

and in accordance with Article 43

Charity Permit Fee The charge for a Charity Permit, calculated in

accordance with Article 45

Charity Permit Offer An offer of a Charity Permit made pursuant to Article

44, or contained in a Charity Permit Renewal Notice

Charity Permit Renewal

Notice

A notice containing a Charity Permit Offer issued

pursuant to Article 48

Charitable Purposes Any "charitable purpose" as defined in section 2 of the

2006 Act

City Centre The area shown on the City Centre inset map on the

proposals map, forming part of the Newcastle upon Tyne Unitary Development Plan adopted by the

Council in January 1998.

City Centre Property A property which is a Valuation List Property on a

street which falls within the City Centre.

City Centre Zone A The streets listed in Part 1 of Schedule 17

City Centre Zone B The streets listed in Part 2 of Schedule 17

Civil Enforcement Officer A person authorised by the Council to act as a "civil

enforcement officer" as defined in section 76 of the

2004 Act

Council The Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne

Day Category 4

Supplementary Permit

A Category 4 Supplementary Permit which is issued to

be valid throughout a whole day

Disabled Person's Badge A "disabled person's badge" as defined in the

Exemption Regulations

Eligible Property Any property, being a Valuation List Property, as is

specified in Column 2 of Schedule 14 within a street specified in Column 1 of Schedule 14 **PROVIDED**

THAT:

(i) Where the numbers of Eligible Properties are given in the format "X-Y" in Column 2 of Schedule 14 ("X" and "Y" being the numbers of Eligible Properties):

- (A) "X" signifies the first Eligible Property in the sequence and "Y" signifies the last Eligible Property in the sequence;
- (B) For the avoidance of doubt both "X" and "Y" shall be Eligible Properties;
- (C) All properties falling numerically between "X" and "Y" in the street specified in Column 1 of Schedule 14 shall be Eligible

Properties;

- (D) Where the sequence "X-Y" is qualified by the word "Odd", only those properties falling numerically between "X" and "Y" which are numerically odd shall be Eligible Properties; and
- (E) Where the sequence "X-Y" is qualified by the word "Even", only those properties falling numerically between "X" and "Y" which are numerically even shall be Eligible Properties; and
- (ii) Where the word "All" appears in Column 2 of Schedule 14, all properties being a Valuation List Property falling in the corresponding street specified in Column 1 of Schedule 14 shall be Eligible Properties

Event Day

The day on which is to be held any sporting event or other activity held at either the Newcastle Falcon's Rugby Club or the Bullocksteads Playing Fields, and either:

- (i) Likely to give rise to more than 2,000 spectators; or
- (ii) Which, in the opinion of the Chief Officer of Police, would give rise to such a level of attendance as would compromise road safety and/or cause access problems in the area.

Excepted Charity

A Charity excepted from the need to register with the Charity Commission pursuant to Part II of the 1993 Act A Charity which is:

Exempt Charity

- (i) Listed in Schedule 2 of the 1993 Act; or
- (ii) Any:

(iii)

- (A) Common investment fund established by a scheme under section 24 of the 1993
 Act: or
- (B) Common deposit fund established by a scheme under section 25 of the 1993

 Act

where the said scheme permits only exempt charities to participate; or

Declared by other legislation to be exempt

Exemption Regulations

The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England) Regulations 2000

Full Day Category 1 Supplementary Permit

Full Day Category 5
Supplementary Permit

A Category 1 Supplementary Permit which is issued to be valid throughout a whole day

A Category 5 Supplementary Permit which is issued to be valid throughout a whole day

Goods Vehicle	A "goods vehicle" as defined in regulation 4 of the 2002 Regulations			
Half Day Category 1 Supplementary Permit		ategory 1 Supplementary Permit which is issued to alid for half a day, either:		
	(i)	<pre>ante meridiem (before noon, expressed as "AM"); or</pre>		
	(ii)	post meridiem (after noon, expressed as "PM")		
Half Day Category 5 Supplementary Permit	A Category 5 Supplementary Permit which is issued to be valid for half a day, either:			
	(i)	<pre>ante meridiem (before noon, expressed as "AM"); or</pre>		
	(ii)	post meridiem (after noon, expressed as "PM")		
Health Body	A bo	A body:		
	(i)	Established under, or continued in existence by, the National Health Service Act 2006; and		
	(ii)	Directly involved in the provision of healthcare to Patients		
Higher Business Rate	The	higher rate of the Business Permit Fee, being:		
	(i)	For Area A Eligible Properties: £246		
	(ii)	For Area B Eligible Properties: £495		
	(iii)	For Area C Eligible Properties: £1,734		
Higher Charity Rate	The higher rate of the Charity Permit Fee, being:			
	(i)	For Area A Eligible Properties: £165		
	(ii)	For Area B Eligible Properties: £330		
	(iii)	For Area C Eligible Properties: £1,156		
Interim Permit	A permit issued pursuant to and in accordance with Article 66 or Article 67, evidencing the payment of the Interim Permit Fee			
Interim Permit Fee		The charge for an Interim Permit, calculated in accordance with Article 64		
Interim Permit Offer		An offer of a Interim Permit made pursuant to Article 63 or Article 67		
Interim Season Ticket	A ticket issued pursuant to and in accordance with Article 83 or Article 84, evidencing the payment of the Interim Season Ticket Fee			
Interim Season Ticket Fee	The charge for an Interim Season Ticket calculated in accordance with Article 81			
Interim Season Ticket Offer		An offer of a Interim Season Ticket made pursuant to Article 80 or Article 84		
In Use	(i)	In the case of a Visitor Permit, or a Category 1 Supplementary Permit, in use for the purposes of a Visitor to an Eligible Property;		

(ii)

In the case of a Business Permit or an Interim

Permit issued pursuant to a Business Permit Application, in use for the purposes of a Business or a visitor to the Business:

- (iii) In the case of a Charity Permit or an Interim
 Permit issued pursuant to a Charity Permit
 Application, in use for the purposes of a Charity
 or a visitor to the Charity;
- (iv) In the case of a Category 2 Supplementary
 Permit, in use for the purposes of a Landlord of
 an Eligible Property or a Management Agent
 appointed by that Landlord to manage that
 Eligible Property;
- In the case of a Category 3 Supplementary Permit, in use for the purposes of a Business or a visitor to that Business;
- (vi) In the case of a Category 4 Supplementary Permit, in use for the purposes of a Tradesman;
- (vii) In the case of a Category 5 Supplementary Permit, in use for the purposes of the public duties of a Ward Member;
- (viii) In the case of a Public Authority Permit, in use for the purposes of a Public Authority,

and for the avoidance of doubt, a vehicle can be In Use notwithstanding the fact that it has been left unattended in a Parking Place

Invalid Carriage

An "invalid carriage" as defined in section 136 of the 1984 Act

Landlord

A sole trader, partnership or body corporate (including a limited liability partnership) which is in receipt of rent paid by, or on behalf of, a Resident of an Eligible Property

Light Passenger Vehicle

A "light passenger vehicle" as defined by paragraph 1A(2) of Schedule 1 of the 1994 Act

List of City Centre Streets

The list of City Centre streets kept by the Council in accordance with Article 75

List of Streets

The list of streets kept by the Council in accordance with Article 29

Local Authority

A "local authority" as defined in section 45(7) of the 1984 Act. For the purposes of Part 5 only it shall include a "local authority", "joint authority", "joint waste authority" or "public body" as defined in section 320 of the 1972 Act (including, for the avoidance of doubt, Your Homes Newcastle and the Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive).

Local Non-Domestic Rating List

The local non-domestic rating list compiled and maintained by the Council pursuant to section 41 of the 1988 Act

Low Emissions Discount

Discount to Resident Permits, Business Permits, Charity Permits and Season Tickets, calculated in accordance with Article 86

Low Emissions Discount Criteria

The Low Emissions Discount Criteria are that the vehicle:

- (i) Is a Light Passenger Vehicle;
- (ii) Qualifies for the reduced rate of vehicle excise duty pursuant to paragraph 1C of Schedule 1 of the 1994 Act; and
- Either: (iii)
 - Has an applicable CO² emissions figure (A) falling within the band specified in the first entry on the table in paragraph 1B of Schedule 1 of the 1994 Act; or
 - (B) Is exempt from the payment of vehicle excise duty by virtue of section 5 and paragraph 25 of Schedule 2 of the 1994 Act.

Lower Business Rate

The lower rate of the Business Permit Fee, being:

(i) For Area A Eligible Properties: £82

(ii) For Area B Eligible Properties: £165

For Area C Eligible Properties: £578 (iii)

Lower Charity Rate

The lower rate of the Charity Permit Fee, being:

For Area A Eligible Properties: £0 (i)

For Area B Eligible Properties: £0 (ii)

For Area C Eligible Properties: £0 (iii)

Management Agent

An agent appointed by a Landlord to let or to carry out its rights and duties under a tenancy agreement in respect of an Eligible Property.

Medium Business Rate

The medium rate of the Business Permit Fee, being:

For Area A Eligible Properties: £165 (i)

(ii) For Area B Eligible Properties: £330

For Area C Eligible Properties: £1,156 (iii)

Medium Charity Rate

The medium rate of the Business Permit Fee, being:

(i) For Area A Eligible Properties: £82

(ii) For Area B Eligible Properties: £165

For Area C Eligible Properties: £578 (iii)

Motor Car

A "motor car" as defined in section 136 of the 1984 Act

Motor Cycle

A "motor cycle" as defined in section 136 of the 1984

Act

Non-Residential Permit

A Business Permit or a Charity Permit

Order

The City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking

Places) Order 2009

Parking Bay The area of a Parking Place which is provided for the

> leaving of a vehicle and within which vehicles may park as indicated by a Road Marking authorised by the

2002 Regulations or pursuant to the 1984 Act

Parking Device A "parking device" as defined in section 51(4) of the

1984 Act.

Parking Meter A "parking meter" as defined in regulation 46(2)(a) of

the 1984 Act

Parking Permit Any of the following:

> (i) A Resident Permit; or

(ii) A Visitor Permit; or

(iii) A Business Permit; or

(iv) A Charity Permit; or

A Supplementary Permit; (v)

A Public Authority Permit; or (vi)

An Interim Permit. (vii)

A: **Parking Permit Offer**

> (i) Resident Permit Offer; or

(ii) **Business Permit Offer or**

Charity Permit Offer; or (iii)

(iv) Supplementary Permit Offer relating to a Week

Category 4 Supplementary Permit

Parking Permit Fee Any of the following:

> (i) A Resident Permit Fee; or

(ii) A Visitor Permit Fee; or

(iii) A Business Permit Fee; or

A Charity Permit Fee; or (iv)

A Supplementary Permit Fee; (v)

(vi) A Public Authority Permit Fee; or

An Interim Permit Fee. (vii)

Parking Place A part of a highway designated by this Order as a

> place where vehicles, or vehicles of such class or classes as may be specified in this Order, may be left

pursuant to section 45(1) of the 1984 Act

Parking Space A part of a Parking Bay containing a Road Marking

which provides the space in which a single vehicle

may be left

Parking Zone A Parking Zone specified in Column 1 of Schedule 15

which shall be comprised of the Parking Places

specified as relating to that Parking Zone in Column 2

of Schedule 15

Patients Any "patient", as defined in section 275 of the National

Health Act 2006

Pedal Cycle A "pedal cycle" as defined in regulation 4 of the 2002

Regulations

Penalty Charge A charge set by the Council pursuant to the provisions

of section 77 and Schedule 9 of the Traffic

Management Act 2004 and any regulations made thereunder and in accordance with any guidance given by the Secretary of State, as set out in paragraph (2)

of Article 94.

Penalty Charge Notice A notice issued by a Civil Enforcement Officer

pursuant to the provisions of section 78 of the 2004

Act and any regulations made thereunder

Permit A Parking Permit or a Reservation Permit

Permit Number A unique reference number on a Permit, allocated at

the discretion of the Council

Police Vehicle A vehicle being used for police purposes or operating

under the instructions of a chief officer of police

Postal Packet A "postal packet" as defined in section 125 of the 2000

Act

Public Authority A:

(i) Local Authority, or

(ii) Health Body; or

(iii) Statutory Undertaker,

or their agents.

Public Authority Permit A permit issued to a Public Authority pursuant to and in

accordance with Article 62, evidencing the payment of

the Public Authority Permit Fee.

Public Authority Permit

Application

An Application for a Public Authority Permit made pursuant to and in accordance with Article 59

Public Authority Permit

⊢e∈

The charge for a Public Authority Permit, being £82.

Public Authority Permit

Offer

An offer of a Public Authority Permit made pursuant to

Article 60.

Register of Charities

The "register" as defined in section 97 of the 1993 Act

Registered Charity

A Charity registered in the Register of Charities

Registered Charity

Number

The unique registration number allocated to a Charity

in the Register of Charities

Registered Keeper The person named in the Registration Certificate as

being the Registered Keeper of a particular vehicle.

Registration Certificate A V5C Registration Certificate issued pursuant to

regulation 10 of the Road Vehicles (Registration and

Licensing) Regulations 2002

Registration Mark A mark indicating the registered number of the vehicle

assigned to the vehicle by the Secretary of State

pursuant to section 23 of the 1994 Act upon its registration under section 21 of the 1994 Act

Relevant Information

- (i) In the case of a Resident Permit:
 - (A) The Registration Mark of the vehicle in respect of which the Resident Permit has been issued;
 - (B) The expiry date of the Resident Permit;
 - (C) The Parking Zone for which the Resident Permit has been issued and in which it shall constitute a Valid Resident Permit;
 - (D) An authentication that the Resident Permit has been issued by the Council; and
 - (E) A Permit Number.
- (ii) In the case of a Visitor Permit:
 - (A) The expiry date of the Visitor Permit
 - (B) The Parking Zone for which the Visitor Permit has been issued and in which it shall constitute a Valid Visitor Permit;
 - (C) An authentication that the Visitor Permit has been issued by the Council; and
 - (D) A Permit Number.
- (iii) In the case of a Business Permit:
 - (A) Where the Business Permit relates to a specific vehicle, the Registration Mark of the vehicle in respect of which the Business Permit has been issued:
 - (B) The expiry date of the Business Permit;
 - (C) The Parking Zone for which the Business Permit has been issued and in which it shall constitute a Valid Business Permit;
 - (D) An authentication that the Business Permit has been issued by the Council; and
 - (E) A Permit Number
- (iv) In the case of a Charity Permit:
 - (A) Where the Charity Permit relates to a specific vehicle, the Registration Mark of the vehicle in respect of which the Charity Permit has been issued;
 - (B) The expiry date of the Charity Permit;
 - (C) The Parking Zone for which the Charity Permit has been issued and in which it shall constitute a Valid Charity Permit;
 - (D) An authentication that the Charity Permit has been issued by the Council; and
 - (E) A Permit Number.
- (v) In the case of a Supplementary Permit:
 - (A) The Registration Mark of the vehicle on which the Supplementary Permit is displayed;
 - (B) Except in the case of a Week Category 4

Supplementary Permit, the:

- (I) Month;
- (II) Day of the week;
- (III) Day of the month; and
- (IV) Year,

for which the Supplementary Permit is valid:

- (C) Where the Supplementary Permit is a Half Day Category 1 Supplementary permit, reference to the half of the day when the said permit is valid, namely:
 - (I) Ante meridiem (before noon, expressed as "AM"); or
 - (ii) Post meridiem (after noon, expressed as "PM");
- (D) Where the Supplementary Permit is a Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit the day of the week and the day of the month and the year on which the Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit commences;
- (E) The street in which the Eligible Property, in respect of which the Supplementary Permit has been issued, is situate;
- (F) The Parking Zone for which the Supplementary Permit has been issued, and in which it shall constitute a Valid Supplementary Permit;
- (G) An authentication that the Supplementary Permit has been issued by the Council; and
- (H) A Permit Number.
- (vi) In the case of a Public Authority Permit:
 - (A) The Registration Mark of the vehicle on which the Public Authority Permit is displayed;
 - (B) The:
 - (I) Month:
 - (II) Day of the week;
 - (III) Day of the month; and
 - (IV) Year,

for which the Public Authority Permit is valid:

- (C) The Parking Zone for which the Public Authority Permit has been issued, and in which it shall constitute a Valid Public Authority Permit; and
- (D) An authentication that the Public Authority Permit has been issued by the Council.
- (E) A Permit Number.
- (vii) In the case of an Interim Permit:
 - (A) Issued in respect of a Resident Permit

- Application, the Relevant Information described in paragraph (i); or
- (B) Issued in respect of a Business Permit Application, the Relevant Information described in paragraph (iii); or
- (C) Issued in respect of a Charity Permit Application, the Relevant Information described in paragraph (iv): or
- (D) Issued in respect of a Supplementary Permit Application, the Relevant Information described in paragraph (v).
- (viii) In the case of a Reservation Permit:
 - (A) Where the Reservation Permit relates to a specific vehicle, the Registration Mark of the vehicle in respect of which the Reservation Permit has been issued;
 - (B) The expiry date of the Reservation Permit:
 - (C) A description of the Suspended Parking Place for which the Reservation Permit has been issued; and
 - (D) An authentication that the Reservation Permit has been issued by the Council.
 - (E) A Permit Number.
- (ix) In the case of a Ticket:
 - (A) The
 - (I) Time;
 - (II) Month; and
 - (III) Day of the month of issue of the Ticket;
 - (B) The Parking Place for which the Ticket has been issued;
 - (D) The:
 - (I) Time;
 - (II) Month;
 - (III) Day of the week;
 - (IV) Day of the month; and
 - (V) Year,

of expiry of the period for which the Ticket was issued; and

- (E) An authentication that the Season Ticket has been issued by the Council;
- (F) The Serial Number of the Ticket; and
- (G) The serial number of the Ticket Machine which issued the Ticket.
- (x) In the case of a Season Ticket:
 - (A) The Registration Mark of the vehicle in respect of which the Season Ticket has been issued;
 - (B) The expiry date of the Season Ticket;
 - (C) The days on which the Season Ticket may be used.
 - (D) The Season Ticket Period, during which

- the Season Ticket may be used on the days referred to in paragraph (C).
- (E) The streets in which, in Parking Places with Parking Meters, the Season Ticket may be used:
- (F) An authentication that the Season Ticket has been issued by the Council; and
- (G) The Serial Number of the Season Ticket.
- (xi) In the case of an Interim Season Ticket, the Relevant Information described in paragraph (x).

Relevant Position The "relevant position" as defined in regulation 4 of the

Exemption Regulations

Reservation Permit

A permit issued pursuant to and in accordance with

Article 72 in respect of a Suspended Parking Place
evidencing the payment of the Reservation Permit Fee

Reservation Permit An application for a Reservation Permit made pursuant to and in accordance with Article 68

Reservation Permit Fee The charge for a Reservation Permit, calculated in accordance with Article 70

Reservation Permit Offer An offer of a Reservation Permit made pursuant to Article 69

Resident

A person, aged sixteen years or over, whose sole or principal place of residence is:

- (i) In the case of a Season Ticket Application, a City Centre Property; or
- (ii) In all other cases, an Eligible Property

Resident Permit

A permit issued pursuant to and in accordance with

Article 32 or Article 33, evidencing the payment of the

Resident Permit Fee

Resident Permit An application for a Resident Permit made pursuant to and in accordance with Article 27

Resident Permit FeeThe charge for a Resident Permit, calculated in accordance with Article 30

Resident Permit Offer

An offer of a Resident Permit made pursuant to Article
28 or contained in a Resident Permit Renewal Notice

Resident Permit Renewal A notice containing a Resident Permit Offer issued pursuant to Article 33

Road Marking A "road marking" as defined in regulation 4 of the 2002 Regulations

Season Ticket

A ticket issued pursuant to and in accordance with
Article 78 or Article 79, evidencing the payment of the
Season Ticket Fee

Season Ticket An application for a Season Ticket made pursuant to and in accordance with Article 73

Season Ticket Fee

The charge for a Season Ticket calculated in accordance with Article 76

Season Ticket Offer

An offer of a Season Ticket made pursuant to Article 74 or contained in a Season Ticket Renewal Notice

Season Ticket Period

The following periods of time, insofar as they fall within the Charge Period relating to a Parking Place:

- (i) Between Monday and Friday:
 - (A) 8.00 am to 9.30 am; and
 - (B) 4.30 pm to 6.30 pm; and
- (ii) On Saturday, Sunday and Bank Holidays, at any time

Season Ticket Renewal Notice

A notice containing a Season Ticket Offer issued pursuant to Article 79

Serial Number

A unique reference number on a Ticket or a Season Ticket, allocated at the discretion of the Council

Shopmobility Scheme

A scheme based in the Eldon Garden Shopping Centre which makes available for loan battery powered wheelchairs and scooters to people with mobility difficulties

Solo Motor Cycle

A "solo motor cycle" as defined in regulation 4 of the 2002 Regulations

Specified Position

A prominent and conspicuous position at the front of the inside of the vehicle so that the Relevant Information is clearly visible from outside the vehicle

Statutory Undertaker

An "undertaker" as defined in section 48 of the 1991 Act. For the purposes of Part 5 of this Order only, it shall also include the suppliers of services through the apparatus maintained by Statutory Undertakers, including, for the avoidance of doubt, in the case of a metered supply, persons engaged to read such meters

Supplementary Permit

A permit, being:

- (i) A Category 1 Supplementary Permit; or
- (ii) A Category 2 Supplementary Permit; or
- (iii) A Category 3 Supplementary Permit; or
- (iv) A Category 4 Supplementary Permit; or
- (v) A Category 5 Supplementary Permit; or

issued pursuant to and in accordance with Article 58 evidencing the payment of the Supplementary Permit Fee.

Supplementary Permit Application

Any of the following:

- (i) A Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application; or
- (ii) A Category 2 Supplementary Permit

Application; or

(iii) A Category 3 Supplementary Permit Application; or

(iv) A Category 4 Supplementary Permit Application; or

(v) A Category 5 Supplementary Permit Application,

made pursuant to Articles 49, 50, 51, 52 or 53.

Supplementary Permit Fee

The charge for a Supplementary Permit, calculated in accordance with Article 56

Supplementary Permit Offer

An offer of a Supplementary Permit (or, as the case may be, a Book of Supplementary Permits) made pursuant to Article 54

Suspended Parking Place

A Parking Place, or part of a Parking Place, the use of which has been suspended pursuant to Article 25

Taxi

A "taxi" as defined in Regulation 4 of the 2002

Regulations

Ticket

A ticket issued by a Ticket Machine

Ticket Machine

A type of Parking Meter as defined in regulation 46(2)(a)(ii) of the 1984 Act

Tradesman

A sole trader, partnership or body corporate (including a limited liability partnership) which has been engaged by the Resident, Landlord or Management Agent of an Eligible Property to carry out works, or provide services, at the Eligible Property

Traffic Sign

A "traffic sign" as defined in section 142 of the 1984 Act

Trustees

"Charity trustees" as defined in section 97(1) of the 1993 Act.

Valid Parking Permit

Any of the following:

- (i) A Valid Resident Permit; or
- (ii) A Valid Visitor Permit; or
- (iii) A Valid Business Permit; or
- (iv) A Valid Charity Permit; or
- (v) A Valid Supplementary Permit;
- (vi) A Valid Public Authority Permit; or
- (vii) A Valid Interim Permit

Valid Business Permit

A Business Permit, in circumstances where:

- (i) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Business Permit:
 - (A) Reference to the Parking Zone in which the vehicle has been left, by virtue of Column 2 of Schedule 15; and

- (B) Where the Business Permit relates to a specific vehicle, the Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is displayed;
- (ii) It is displayed on a vehicle which is In Use by the Business to which it was issued:
- (iii) It is displayed on, or on a date prior to, the expiry date of the Business Permit as specified in the Relevant Information on that Business Permit; and
- (iv) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended.

Valid Charity Permit

A Charity Permit, in circumstances where:

- (i) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Charity Permit:
 - (A) Reference to the Parking Zone in which the vehicle has been left, by virtue of Column 2 of Schedule 15;
 - (B) Where the Charity Permit relates to a specific vehicle, the Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is displayed;
- (ii) It is displayed on a vehicle which is In Use by the Charity to which it was issued;
- (iii) It is displayed on, or on a date prior to, the expiry date of the Charity Permit as specified in the Relevant Information on that Charity Permit; and
- (iv) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended.

Valid Interim Permit

An Interim Permit in Circumstances where:

- (i) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Interim Permit:
 - (A) Reference to the Parking Zone in which the vehicle has been left, by virtue of Column 2 of Schedule 15; and
 - (B) Where the Interim Permit relates to a specific vehicle, the Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is displayed;
- (ii) It is displayed on a vehicle which is:
 - (A) In the case of an Interim Permit issued pursuant to a Business Permit Application, In Use by the Business to which it was issued; or
 - (B) In the case of an Interim Permit issued pursuant to a Charity Permit Application, In Use by the Charity to which it was issued:
- (iii) It is displayed on, or on a date prior to, the

expiry date of the Interim Permit as specified in the Relevant Information on that Interim Permit; and

(iv) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended.

Valid Interim Season Ticket

An Interim Season Ticket, in circumstances where:

- (i) It is displayed during the Season Ticket Period;
- (ii) It is displayed on one of the days specified in the Relevant Information on that Interim Season Ticket:
- (iii) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Interim Season Ticket:
 - (A) Reference to the street in which is situated the Parking Place, described in Column 2 of Schedule 10, in which the vehicle has been left; and
 - (B) The Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is displayed;
- (iv) It is displayed on, or on a date prior to, the expiry date of the Interim Season Ticket as specified in the Relevant Information on that Interim Season Ticket; and
- (v) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended.

Valid Public Authority Permit

A Public Authority Permit, in circumstances where:

- (i) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Public Authority Permit:
 - (A) Reference to the Parking Zone in which the vehicle has been left, by virtue of Column 2 of Schedule 15:
 - (B) The Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is being displayed; and
 - (C) The:
 - (I) Month;
 - (II) Day of the week;
 - (III) Day of the month; and
 - (IV) Year,

on which the Public Authority Permit is being displayed;

- (ii) It is displayed on a vehicle which is In Use by the Public Authority to which it was issued; and
- (iii) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended

Valid Resident Permit

A Resident Permit, in circumstances where:

(i) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Resident Permit:

- (A) Reference to the Parking Zone in which the vehicle has been left, by virtue of Column 2 of Schedule 15; and
- (B) The Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is displayed; and
- It is displayed on, or on a date prior to, the (ii) expiry date of the Resident Permit as specified in the Relevant Information on that Resident Permit: and
- (iii) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended.

Valid Reservation Permit

A Reservation Permit in circumstances where:

- (i) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Reservation Permit:
 - (A) Reference to the Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left: and
 - (B) Where the Reservation Permit relates to a specific vehicle, the Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is displayed;
- (ii) It is displayed on, or on a date prior to, the expiry date of the Reservation Permit as specified in the Relevant Information on that Reservation Permit; and
- The Parking Place in which the vehicle has (iii) been left is a Suspended Parking Place.

Valid Season Ticket

A Season Ticket, or a Season Ticket issued under the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2009, in circumstances where:

- (i) It is displayed during the Season Ticket Period;
- (ii) It is displayed on one of the days specified in the Relevant Information on that Season Ticket:
- (iii) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Season Ticket:
 - (A) Reference to the street in which is situated the Parking Place, described in Column 2 of Schedule 10, in which the vehicle has been left: and
 - (B) The Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is displayed;
- It is displayed on, or on a date prior to, the (iv) expiry date of the Season Ticket as specified in the Relevant Information on that Season Ticket: and
- (v) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended.

Valid Supplementary Permit

A Supplementary Permit, in circumstances where:

- (i) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Supplementary Permit:
 - (A) Reference to the Parking Zone in which the vehicle has been left, by virtue of Column 2 of Schedule 15;
 - (B) The Registration Mark of the vehicle on which it is being displayed; and
 - (C) Except in the case of a Half Day
 Category 1 Supplementary Permit, or a
 Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit,
 the:
 - (I) Month;
 - (II) Day of the week;
 - (III) Day of the month; and
 - (IV) Year, on which the Supplementary Authority Permit is being displayed;
 - (C) Where the Supplementary Permit is a Half Day Category 1 Supplementary permit, the half of the day, namely:
 - (I) Ante meridiem (before noon, expressed as "AM"); or
 - (II) Post meridiem (after noon, expressed as "PM"), on which the Supplementary Authority

Permit is being displayed;

- (ii) Where the Supplementary Permit is a Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit, it is displayed between the start date and expiry date (inclusive of those dates) of the Supplementary Permit as specified in the Relevant Information on that Supplementary Permit;
- (iii) It is displayed on a vehicle which:
 - (A) In the case of a Category 1
 Supplementary Permit, is In Use by a
 visitor to the Eligible Property in respect
 of which the Category 1 Supplementary
 Permit was issued; or
 - (B) In the case of a Category 2
 Supplementary Permit, is In Use by the
 Landlord or Management Agent to whom
 the Category 2 Supplementary Permit
 was issued; or
 - (C) In the case of a Category 3
 Supplementary Permit, is In Use by the
 Business to whom the Category 3
 Supplementary Permit was issued or a
 Visitor to that Business; or

- (D) In the case of a Category 4
 Supplementary Permit, is In Use by the
 Tradesman to whom the Category 4
 Supplementary Permit was issued; or
- (E) In the case of a Category 5
 Supplementary Permit, is In Use by the
 Ward Member to whom the Category 5
 Supplementary Permit was issued; and
- (iv) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended

Valid Visitor Permit

A Visitor Permit, in circumstances where:

- (i) There is included in the Relevant Information on that Visitor Permit reference to the Parking Zone in which the vehicle has been left, by virtue of Column 2 of Schedule 15;
- (ii) It is displayed on a vehicle which is In Use by a Visitor to the Eligible Property in respect of which the Visitor Permit was issued;
- (iii) It is displayed on, or on a date prior to, the expiry date of the Visitor Permit as specified in the Relevant Information on that Visitor Permit; and
- (iv) The Parking Place in which the vehicle has been left has not been suspended.

Valuation List Property

Either a dwelling identified in the Valuation List as compiled and maintained by the District Valuation Officer or a property identified in the Local Non-Domestic Rating List compiled and maintained by the District Valuation Officer.

Visitor

A person making a visit of a social nature to an Eligible Property

Visitor Permit

A permit issued pursuant to and in accordance with Article 35, in respect of vehicles of bona fide visitors to an Eligible Property, evidencing the payment of a charge, that charge being the Visitor Permit Fee.

Visitor Permit Application

An application for a Visitor Permit made pursuant to and in accordance with Article 34

Visitor Permit Fee

The charge for a Visitor Permit, being £10 per annum subject to any variations specified in Article 34.

Visitor Permit Renewal Notice

A notice issued pursuant to Article 36 requesting the payment of the Visitor Permit Fee

Ward

A Ward established under the 2004 Order

Ward Member

An elected member of the Council representing the Ward in which the Eligible Property is situate

Week Category 4
Supplementary Permit

A Category 4 Supplementary Permit which is issued to be valid for a period of one week

Work Vehicle

A vehicle owned by, leased to, or registered to, the employer of a Resident making a Resident Permit Application or Season Ticket Application (or a *bona fide* business run by the Resident) and either:

- Is used principally for the purposes of the employer of the Resident (or a bona fide business run by the Resident); or
- (II) Is used principally for the private use of the Resident, as part of a commercial arrangement (including, for the avoidance of doubt, a contract of employment) between the Resident and the employer of the Resident (or a *bona fide* business run by the Resident).
- (2) Section 8 of the 1978 Act shall not apply to the descriptions contained in Column 2 of Schedules 2 to 13 which, except where the context does not permit, shall be interpreted in accordance with the following sub-paragraphs:
 - (a) Where a Parking Place is expressed as commencing or terminating on a named highway by reference to a junction:
 - Measurements of distance shall be construed as being taken from (or as the case may be to) the centre-point of the junction (being the point of intersection of the projected centre-lines of the confluent highways);
 - (ii) The measurement given shall be construed as a measurement along the centre-line of the named highway; and
 - (iii) Where a Parking Place commences or terminates at a point on a highway which is not a junction, the physical location of the commencement (or as the case may be the termination) of the Parking Place shall be determined by considering where a line drawn at right angles to the centre-line of the highway at the point specified pursuant to sub-paragraph (b) would intersect with the edge of the carriageway;
 - (b) Where a Parking Place is designated on one side of a named highway, the Parking Place shall be construed as applying between the centre-point of that highway and the edge of the highway.
- (3) Subject to sub-paragraph (4) the part of a Parking Place which is available for use shall be indicated by a Parking Bay.
- (4) Where a Parking Bay is situated at the edge of a Carriageway, the part of the Parking Place which is available for use for parking under this Order shall only be that part of the Carriageway falling within the Parking Bay up to the edge of the Carriageway.

PART 2

Designated Parking Places

Free Parking

5. Parking Places with Time Limited Waiting

(1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Parts 1 and 2 of Schedule 2 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of all vehicles at any time.

- (2) No person shall, during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 2, cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 2 for a longer period of time than is specified in Column 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 2 as relating to that Parking Place.
- (3) With effect from the expiration of the period of time specified in Column 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 2 as relating to a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 2 no person shall, during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 2, cause or permit a vehicle which has left that Parking Place to be left again in that Parking Place within the period of time referred to in Column 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 2.
- (4) No person shall at any time cause or permit a vehicle to stop in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Part 2 of Schedule 2 for a longer period than is reasonably required for the purpose of dropping off or picking up any person who is a registered member of the Shopmobility Scheme so as to enable such person to use that scheme.

6. Parking Places for Disabled Badge Holders

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 3 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Motor Cars, Invalid Carriages or Motor Cycles during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 3.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Motor Car, an Invalid Carriage or a Motor Cycle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 3 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 3.
- (3) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 3 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 3:
 - (a) Unless there is displayed on that vehicle in the Relevant Position a Disabled Person's Badge; and
 - (b) The vehicle is being used in accordance with the conditions applying to the Disabled Person's Badge and the vehicle has been driven to, or is about to be driven from, the Parking Place by the person to whom the Disabled Person's Badge has been issued or by another person for the purpose of carrying that disabled person as a passenger.

7. Parking Places for Buses

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 4 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Buses during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 4. At other times each part of a highway so described is hereby designated for the parking of any vehicle subject to any other specific designation or restrictions imposed by this Order.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Bus to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 4 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 4.
- (3) No person shall, during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 4, cause or permit a Bus to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 4 for a longer period of time than is specified in Column 4 of Schedule 4 as relating to that Parking Place.

8. Parking Places for Solo Motorcycles Only

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 5 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Solo Motor Cycles during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 5.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Solo Motor Cycle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 5 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 5.

9. Parking Places for Pedal Cycles

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 6 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Pedal Cycles during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 6.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Pedal Cycle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 6 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 6.

10. Parking Places for Police Vehicles

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 7 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Police Vehicles during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 7.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Police Vehicle to stop for any purpose in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 7 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 7.

11. Parking Places for Taxis

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 8 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Taxis during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 8.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Taxi to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 8 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 8.
- (3) No person shall cause or permit a Taxi to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 5 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 8 unless:
 - (a) it is done so only for the purposes of plying for hire within the Parking Place and the driver of the Taxi remains with it throughout its period of stay in the Parking Place; and
 - (b) the driver of the Taxi shall stop the engine of the vehicle as soon as it is in position in the Parking Place and shall not start the engine again except for the purpose of changing the position of the Taxi in, or departing from, the Parking Place; and
- (4) No person shall, except upon the direction or with the permission of a uniformed police officer, cause any vehicle to wait in any Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 8 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 8 for the purposes of enabling goods to be loaded onto or unloaded from the vehicle.

Loading

12. Parking Places for Loading only

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 9 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Goods Vehicles during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 9 for the purpose of them being loaded or unloaded. At other times each part of a highway so described is hereby designated for the parking of any vehicle subject to any other specific designation or restrictions imposed by this Order.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Goods Vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Part 2 of Schedule 9 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place specified in Column 3 of Schedule 9.
- (3) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 9 during the days and hours relating to that Parking Place as are specified in Column 3 of Schedule 9 unless that vehicle is being loaded or unloaded.

Parking Meter Parking

13. Parking Places with Parking Meters

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Motor Cars, Invalid Carriages or Motor Cycles at any time.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Motor Car, an Invalid Carriage or a Motor Cycle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10.
- (3) A charge shall be paid for leaving a vehicle in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 as follows:
 - (a) During the Season Ticket Period the charge shall be either:
 - (i) As specified in Column 4 of Schedule 10 as relating to that Parking Place; or
 - (ii) The Season Ticket Fee; or
 - (b) During that part of the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place which falls outside the Season Ticket Period, the charge shall be as specified in Column 4 of Schedule 10 as relating to that Parking Place.
- (4) Subject to paragraph (5), a person leaving a vehicle at a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, where there is a Parking Meter which is not a Ticket Machine, shall either:
 - (a) Take the following action:
 - (i) Immediately after entering the Parking Place, insert the appropriate coins into the Parking Meter, which shall be used as a means of collecting the charge imposed by this Order; and
 - (ii) Remove the vehicle from the Parking Place before the period for which the charge has been paid pursuant to sub-paragraph (a)(i) (or any further period for which the charge has been paid) is shown, by indication of the time shown on the Parking Meter, to have elapsed; or

- (b) Display a Valid Season Ticket in the Specified Position and cause a Valid Season Ticket to be so displayed at all times when the vehicle is left in the Parking Place.
- (5) A Person leaving a vehicle at a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, where there is a Parking Meter which is a Ticket Machine shall either:
 - (a) Take the following action:
 - (i) Immediately after entering the Parking Place, insert the appropriate coins into the Ticket Machine, which shall be used as a means of collecting the charge imposed by this Order and take such further steps as may be necessary to cause the Ticket Machine to issue a Ticket (such as pressing a button to confirm that they have paid the charge for the period they wish to park);
 - (ii) Display the Ticket obtained pursuant to sub-paragraph (a)(i) in the Specified Position and cause the said Ticket to be so displayed at all times when the vehicle is left in the Parking Place; and
 - (iii) Remove the vehicle from the Parking Place before the period for which the charge has been paid pursuant to sub-paragraph (a)(i) (as indicated on the Ticket) is shown, by indication of the time shown on the Ticket Machine, to have elapsed.
 - (b) Display a Valid Season Ticket in the Specified Position and cause a Valid Season Ticket to be so displayed at all times when the vehicle is left in the Parking Place.
- (6) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10:
 - (a) During the Season Ticket Period, unless:
 - (i) There has been paid in respect of that vehicle, in accordance with either sub-paragraph (4)(a) or (5)(a), such charge as is specified in relation to that Parking Place in Column 4 of Schedule 10; or
 - (ii) There has been paid in respect of that vehicle the Season Ticket Fee calculated in accordance with Article 76.
 - (b) During that part of the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place which falls outside the Season Ticket Period, unless there has been paid in respect of that vehicle, in accordance with either sub-paragraph (4)(a) or (5)(a), such charge as is specified in relation to that Parking Place in Column 4 of Schedule 10.
- (7) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, after the period for which:
 - (a) The charge specified in relation to that Parking Place in Column 4 of Schedule 10 has been paid; or
 - (b) The Season Ticket Fee has been paid, has elapsed.
- (8) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place where there is a Parking Meter which is a Ticket Machine:
 - (a) During the Season Ticket Period unless at all times either:

- (i) A Ticket is displayed on the vehicle in the manner described in subparagraph (5)(a)(ii); or
- (ii) A Valid Season Ticket is displayed on the vehicle in the manner described in sub-paragraph (5)(b); or
- (b) During that part of the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place which falls outside the Season Ticket Period, unless at all times a Ticket is displayed on the vehicle in the manner described in sub-paragraph (5)(b).
- (9) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place where there is a Parking Meter which is not a Ticket Machine:
 - (a) During the Season Ticket Period unless at all times either:
 - (i) The indication of the time shown on the Parking Meter indicates that the period for which the charge has been paid has not elapsed; or
 - (ii) A Valid Season Ticket is displayed on the vehicle in the manner described in sub-paragraph (5)(b); or
 - (b) During that part of the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place which falls outside the Season Ticket Period, unless at all times the indication of the time shown on the Parking Meter indicates that the period for which the charge has been paid has not elapsed.

Permit Parking

14. Permit Parking Places

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 11 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Motor Cars, Invalid Carriages or Motor Cycles at any time.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Motor Car, an Invalid Carriage or a Motor Cycle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 11.
- (3) A charge shall be paid for leaving a vehicle in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 11, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, such charge being a Parking Permit Fee.
- (4) A person leaving a vehicle at a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 11, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, shall display, in the Specified Position, a Valid Parking Permit issued by the Council in respect of that vehicle.
- (5) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 11, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, unless a Valid Parking Permit issued by the Council in respect of that vehicle is displayed in the Specified Position.

15. Permit Parking Places with Parking Meters

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 12 is hereby designated as a Parking Place for the leaving of Motor Cars, Invalid Carriages or Motor Cycles at any time.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Motor Car, an Invalid Carriage or a Motor Cycle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 12.
- (3) A charge shall be paid for leaving a vehicle in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 12, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, being either:

- (a) A Parking Permit Fee; or
- (b) As specified in Column 4 of Schedule 12 as relating to that Parking Place, being the charge applicable if payment is made via a Parking Meter.
- (4) Subject to paragraph (5), a person leaving a vehicle at a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 12, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, where there is a Parking Meter which is not a Ticket Machine shall either:
 - (a) Display in the Specified Position a Valid Parking Permit issued by the Council in respect of that vehicle; or
 - (b) (i) Immediately after entering the Parking Place, insert the appropriate coins into the Parking Meter, which shall be used as a means of collecting the charge imposed by this Order; and
 - (ii) Remove the vehicle from the Parking Place before the period for which the charge has been paid pursuant to sub-paragraph (3)(b) (or any further period for which the charge has been paid) is shown, by indication of the time shown on the Parking Meter, to have elapsed.
- (5) A person leaving a vehicle at a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 12, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, where there is a Parking Meter which is a Ticket Machine shall either:
 - (a) Display in the Specified Position a Valid Parking Permit issued by the Council in respect of that vehicle; or
 - (b) (i) Immediately after entering the Parking Place, insert the appropriate coins into the Ticket Machine, which shall be used as a means of collecting the charge imposed by this Order and take such further steps as may be necessary to cause the Ticket Machine to issue a Ticket (such as pressing a button to confirm that they have paid the charge for the period they wish to park);
 - (ii) Exhibit the Ticket in the Specified Position and cause the said ticket to be so exhibited at all times when the vehicle is left in the Parking Place; and
 - (iii) Remove the vehicle from the Parking Place before the period for which the charge has been paid pursuant to sub-paragraph (3)(b) (as indicated on the Ticket) is shown, by indication of the time shown on the Ticket Machine, to have elapsed.
- (6) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 12, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, unless either:
 - (a) A Valid Parking Permit issued by the Council in respect of that vehicle is displayed in the Specified Position; or
 - (b) There has been paid in respect of that vehicle, in accordance with subparagraph (3)(b) and either sub-paragraph (4)(b) or (5)(b), such charge as is specified in relation to that Parking Place in Column 4 of Schedule 12.
- (7) Subject to paragraph (9), no person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 12, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, after the period for which the charge specified in relation to that Parking Place in Column 4 of Schedule 12 has been paid has elapsed.
- (8) Subject to paragraph (9), no person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place where there is a Ticket Machine, during the Charge Period relating to

- that Parking Place, unless at all times a Ticket is exhibited on the vehicle in the manner described in sub-paragraph (5)(b).
- (9) Paragraphs (7) and (8) shall not apply to a vehicle on which there is displayed in the Specified Position a Valid Parking Permit issued by the Council in respect of that vehicle.

16. Permit Parking Places with Limited Waiting

- (1) Each part of a highway described in Column 2 of Schedule 13 is hereby designated and authorised for use as a Parking Place for the leaving of Motor Vehicles, Invalid Carriages or Motor Cycles at any time.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which is not a Motor Car, an Invalid Carriage or a Motor Cycle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 13.
- (3) Except where a vehicle is left in a Parking Place in accordance with paragraph (4)(a) a charge shall be paid for leaving a vehicle in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 13, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, such charge being a Parking Permit Fee.
- (4) A person leaving a vehicle at a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 13, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, shall either:
 - (a) Leave the vehicle in the Parking Place for a period of time not exceeding the period specified in Column 4 of Schedule 13 as relating to that Parking Place; or
 - (b) Display in the Specified Position, a Valid Parking Permit issued by the Council in respect of that vehicle.
- (5) During the Charge Period relating to a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 13, with effect from the expiration of the period of time specified in Column 4 of Schedule 13 as relating to that Parking Place a Person who left a vehicle at a Parking Place pursuant to paragraph (4)(a) shall not leave the vehicle again in that Parking Place within the period of time referred to in Column 5 of Schedule 13.
- (6) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 13, during the Charge Period relating to that Parking Place, unless:
 - (a) Either:
 - The Vehicle is removed from the Parking Place within the period of time specified in Column 4 of Schedule 13 as relating to that Parking Place; or
 - (ii) A valid Parking Permit issued by the Council in the in respect of that vehicle is displayed in the Specified Position; and
 - (b) If the vehicle has previously been left in the said Parking Place, the period of time specified in Column 5 of Schedule 13 has elapsed since the vehicle was last removed from the Parking Place.

PART 3

Exemptions

17. Exemptions

- (1) Without prejudice to the provisions of this Order relating to vehicles which are left in a Parking Place in accordance with those provisions no charge shall be payable in respect of any vehicle which is waiting in a Parking Place in the circumstances specified in paragraph (4).
- (2) No provision of this Order restricting the type of vehicle which is entitled to use a Parking Place shall apply to a vehicle which is waiting in the circumstances specified in sub-paragraphs (b) to (g) of paragraph (4) EXCEPT THAT this exemption shall not apply in the circumstances specified in sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (4) in respect of any Parking Place designated under Article 6 (Disabled Badge Holders) or Article 10 (Police Vehicles) or Article 12 (Loading).
- (3) No provision of this Order restricting:
 - (a) The length of time for which a vehicle may be left in a Parking Place; or
 - (b) The length of time before a vehicle which has been taken away from a Parking Place may be left again in that Parking Place,

shall apply to a vehicle which is waiting in the circumstances specified in subparagraph (g) of paragraph (4).

- (4) The circumstances referred to in paragraphs (1) to (3) are that:
 - (a) The vehicle is waiting only for so long as is necessary to enable a person to board or alight from the vehicle;
 - (b) The vehicle is waiting only for so long as is necessary to enable goods to be:
 - (i) Loaded onto the vehicle from premises adjacent to the Parking Place; or
 - (ii) Unloaded from the vehicle to premises adjacent to the Parking Place;
 - (c) The vehicle is at that time engaged in the collection or delivery of Postal Packets to or from premises or posting boxes adjacent to the Parking Place and the vehicle is waiting only for so long as is necessary to enable the delivery or collection of those Postal Packets;
 - (d) The vehicle is at that time engaged in connection with the servicing of a telephone kiosk adjacent to the Parking Place, and the vehicle is waiting only for so long as is necessary to enable the telephone kiosk to be serviced;
 - (e) The vehicle is used for fire brigade purposes or is an ambulance or is a vehicle in the service of a Local Authority or police force, and is in any such case being used in pursuance of statutory powers and duties;
 - (f) The vehicle is waiting only for so long as may be necessary to enable it to be used in connection with the removal of any obstruction to traffic;
 - (g) The vehicle is waiting because the driver is being prevented from proceeding by circumstances beyond his control or the vehicle is waiting because it is necessary to do so in order to avoid accident;
 - (h) There is displayed on the vehicle, in the Relevant Position, a Disabled Person's Badge, in circumstances where the vehicle is being used in accordance with the conditions applying to the Disabled Person's Badge and the vehicle has been driven to, or is about to be driven from, the Parking Place

by the person to whom the Disabled Person's Badge has been issued or by another person for the purpose of carrying that disabled person as a passenger;

- (i) The vehicle is left in a Parking Place specified in Column 2 of Schedules 10 or 12:
 - (i) In a Parking Space where there is a Parking Meter which is not a Ticket Machine, and either:
 - (A) There has been placed by the Council on that Parking Meter, or in or adjacent to that Parking Space in which the vehicle is left, a sign or notice placed by the Council indicating that the Parking Meter is out of order; or
 - (B) The Parking Space has been vacated by another vehicle, and is so left before the expiry of the period for which a charge has been paid in respect of that previous vehicle **PROVIDED THAT** this exemption shall apply to the second and subsequent vehicles to use the space after it has been vacated, but shall only apply until the expiry of the period for which a charge has been paid in respect of the previous vehicle.
 - (ii) Where there is a Parking Meter which is a Ticket Machine and there is, on every Ticket Machine relating to that Parking Place, or in or adjacent to the Parking Space in which the vehicle is left, a sign or notice placed by the Council indicating that the Parking Meter is out of order
- (j) Goods are being offered for sale from the vehicle by a person licensed by the Council to sell goods from a stationary pitch situated in the Parking Place; or
- (k) The vehicle is being used for attendance at planned religious services on a Sunday and is displaying a valid parking device as approved by the Council for the purposes of this paragraph.

18. Further Provisions as to Exemptions

- (1) Subject to such exceptions as may be contained therein, Articles 20 and 21 shall apply to any vehicle which is left in a Parking Place pursuant to Article 17.
- (2) Nothing in this Part shall be taken as authorising anything which would be a contravention of any regulations made or having effect as if made under section 25 of the 1984 Act.

PART 4

General Provisions

Works

19. Works etc. at Parking Places

- (1) The limits of each Parking Bay and Parking Space in a Parking Place shall be indicated by the Council by appropriate Traffic Signs.
- (2) Subject to paragraph (1) the number and dimensions of Parking Bays and Parking Spaces in each Parking Place shall be determined by the Council.
- (3) The Council shall install and maintain in proper working order at least one Parking Meter in such a position as it thinks fit in the vicinity of each Parking Place specified in Column 2 of Schedules 10 and 12.

- (4) The Council may illuminate a Parking Place and erect notices and signs in the vicinity of a Parking Place in such manner and to such extent as it thinks fit.
- (5) The Council may carry out such other work as is reasonably necessary for the purposes of the satisfactory operation of the Parking Place.

Manner of Use of Parking Places

20. Maximum Period of Stay

- (1) Without prejudice to paragraph (6)(a)(i) of Article 16, no person shall cause or permit a vehicle to wait in a Parking Place described in:
 - (a) Column 2 of Schedule 4 for a period of time in excess of the period relating to that Parking Place as specified in Column 4 of Schedule 4;
 - (b) Column 2 of Schedule 10 for a period of time in excess of the period relating to that Parking Place as specified in Column 5 of Schedule 10;
 - (c) Column 2 of Schedule 12 for a period of time in excess of the period relating to that Parking Place as specified in Column 5 of Schedule 12; and
- (2) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle which has been taken away from a Parking Place after a charge has been incurred to be left again in that Parking Place until the expiration of one hour from the time when the vehicle was taken away.
- (3) Nothing in this Article shall apply to:
 - (a) Any vehicle which is left in a Parking Place in any of the circumstances specified in sub-paragraphs (e) to (h) of paragraph (4) of Article 17; or
 - (b) Any vehicle which is left in a Parking Place specified in Column 2 of Schedules 11, 12 or 13 whilst there is displayed on that vehicle in the Specified Position a Valid Parking Permit.
 - (c) Any vehicle which is left in a Suspended Parking Place whilst there is displayed on that vehicle in the Specified Position a Valid Reservation Permit.

21. Manner of Standing in Parking Places

- (1) Subject to paragraphs (2), (3) and (4) a vehicle left in a Parking Place shall stand so that every part of the vehicle is wholly within the limits of any Parking Bay or Parking Space.
- (2) In respect of Parking Places described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 or Schedule 12, **PROVIDED THAT**:
 - (a) A separate charge is paid in respect of each of the Parking Spaces in which a vehicle is left:
 - (b) The provisions of Article 13, or, as the case may be, Article 15, are complied with in respect of each Parking Space,
 - a vehicle which exceeds the length of a single Parking Space shall stand so that every part of the vehicle is wholly within the limits of two adjacent Parking Spaces.
- (3) A vehicle left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 6 shall stand so that:
 - (a) It is parallel with such stand, rack or such other device for securing cycles as may be provided at that Parking Place; and
 - (b) It does not obstruct access to or egress from any other stand, rack or such other device for securing cycles as may be provided at that Parking Place,

and the remaining paragraphs of this Article shall not apply to such Parking Places.

- (4) Nothing in this Article shall apply to any vehicle which is left in a Parking Place in any of the circumstances specified in sub-paragraphs (a) to (g) of paragraph (4) of Article 17.
- (5) Where a vehicle is left in a Parking Place where there is no Parking Bay or Parking Space marked on the Carriageway, the vehicle shall be left as near as may be reasonably possible to the edge of the Carriageway.
- (6) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Parking Place except in accordance with this Article.

Restriction on Use of Parking Places

22. Restriction on Sale of Goods or Services

- (1) Subject to paragraphs (2) and (3) no person shall cause or permit any vehicle, while it is in a Parking Place, to be used in connection with the sale or offering for sale of any goods or services in any capacity.
- (2) A person shall not be prevented under the provisions of paragraph (1) from selling goods from a vehicle:
 - (a) If:
 - (i) The vehicle is of a type authorised to use the Parking Place in Part 2; and
 - (ii) The goods are immediately delivered at or taken into the premises adjacent to the vehicle from which the sale is effected.
 - (b) The vehicle is waiting for the purposes of delivering or collecting goods or loading or unloading the vehicle at premises adjacent to the parking place and the vehicle does not wait for more than ten minutes.
- (3) Paragraph (1) shall not prevent the driver of a Taxi using that vehicle for the purpose of plying for hire whilst it is within any Parking Place designated under Article 11.

23. Restriction on Construction and Repair to Vehicles

No person shall carry out or permit the carrying out of any work of construction or repair to any vehicle, while it is in a Parking Place, except such work as may be necessary to enable the vehicle to be moved from the Parking Place.

Removal and Custody of Vehicles

24. Removal of Vehicles from Parking Places

- (1) Subject to paragraph (4), where, in relation to a vehicle left in a Parking Place, one of the conditions specified in paragraph (2) has been satisfied, the Council may take one of the steps specified in paragraph (3).
- (2) The conditions referred to in paragraph (1) are that either:
 - (a) There has been a contravention of this Order; or
 - (b) A provision of this Order has not been complied with.
- (3) The steps referred to in paragraph (1) are either:
 - (a) Alter the position of the vehicle, or cause the position of the vehicle to be altered; or
 - (b) Remove the vehicle, or cause the vehicle to be removed, from the Parking Place.

- (4) In the case of a vehicle removed pursuant to paragraph (3)(b), the Council shall provide for its safe custody.
- (5) Where it appears to the Council or the Chief Officer of Police that there is an emergency, it, or, as the case may be, he, may move or provide for the removal of any vehicle left in a Parking Place.

Suspension of Parking Places

25. Power to Suspend the Use of a Parking Place

- (1) The Council may suspend the use of a Parking Place, or any part of a Parking Place, whenever it considers such suspension to be reasonably necessary:
 - (a) To secure the expeditious, convenient or safe movement of traffic;
 - (b) For the purposes of any Statutory Undertaker or Local Authority carrying out its duties in the highway;
 - (c) On any occasion on which it is likely by reason of some special attraction that the Street will be thronged or obstructed;
 - (d) For the convenience of occupiers of premises adjacent to the Parking Place, or of occupiers of premises where the principal access to those premises is in the immediate vicinity of the Parking Place, at times of weddings or funerals, or on other special occasions; or
 - (e) For such other purpose as the Council may consider to be reasonable, and may vary or revoke such suspension.
- (2) Subject to paragraph (3), where the use of a Parking Place, or any part of a Parking Place, has been suspended pursuant to sub-paragraph (1) the Council shall:
 - (a) Subject to paragraph (4), place or cause to be placed over any Parking Meter relating to the Suspended Parking Place a red hood, indicating that the use of the Parking Place, or part of the Parking Place, is suspended and that leaving vehicles in, and loading or unloading goods from, the Suspended Parking Place to adjacent premises, is prohibited; or
 - (b) Place or cause to be placed in or adjacent to the Suspended Parking Place, a Traffic Sign indicating that leaving vehicles in, and loading or unloading goods from, the Suspended Parking Place, to adjacent premises, is prohibited.
 - and the Council may, if they consider it reasonably necessary to do so, take both of the steps specified in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b).
- (3) Where the use of a Parking Place, or any part of a Parking Place, has been suspended pursuant to sub-paragraph (1) and the Council has issued one or more Reservation Permits, the Council shall:
 - (a) Subject to paragraph (4), place or cause to be placed over any Parking Meter relating to the Suspended Parking Place a green hood, indicating that the use of the Parking Place, or part of the Parking Place, is suspended and that leaving vehicles in, and loading or unloading goods from, the Suspended Parking Place, to adjacent premises, is prohibited; or
 - (b) Place or cause to be placed in or adjacent to the Suspended Parking Place, a traffic sign indicating that leaving vehicles in, and loading or unloading goods from, the Suspended Parking Place, to adjacent premises, is prohibited,

unless there is displayed on the vehicle in the Specified Position a Valid Reservation Permit for that Suspended Parking Place, and the Council may, if they consider it reasonably necessary to do so, take both of the steps specified in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b).

- (4) Where:
 - (a) The use of only part of a Parking Place is suspended pursuant to paragraph (1); and
 - (b) A Parking Meter which is a Ticket Machine is provided at that Parking Place; and
 - (c) The Ticket Machine has been provided to issue tickets in relation to parts of the Parking Place which have not been suspended as well as the Suspended Parking Place,

paragraphs (2)(a) and (3)(a) shall not apply and the Council shall instead take the steps specified in paragraph (2)(b) or as the case may be (3)(b).

- (5) The Council may temporarily remove any Parking Meter relating to a Suspended Parking Place and any post bracket or other support on which the Parking Meter is fitted, and where, and for so long as, the Council have removed the Parking Meter pursuant to this paragraph, and the use of the Parking Place, or part of the Parking Place, is suspended:
 - (a) Paragraphs (2)(a) and (3)(a) cease to apply; and
 - (b) The Council shall instead take the steps specified in paragraph (2)(b) or, as the case may be, (3)(b).
- (6) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Suspended Parking Place during such period as:
 - (a) There is over any Parking Meter relating to that Parking Place a red hood indicating that the use of the Parking Place or any part of the Parking Place, is suspended pursuant to paragraph (2)(a); or
 - (b) There is in or adjacent to that Parking Place a Traffic Sign placed pursuant to paragraph (2)(b).
- (7) No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to be left in a Suspended Parking Place during such period as:
 - (a) There is over any Parking Meter relating to that Parking Place a green hood indicating that the use of the Parking Place, or any part of the Parking Place, is suspended pursuant to paragraph (3)(a); or
 - (b) There is in or adjacent to that Parking Place a Traffic Sign placed pursuant to paragraph (3)(b),

unless there is displayed on the vehicle in the Specified Position a Valid Reservation Permit for that Suspended Parking Place.

- (8) For the avoidance of doubt, but without prejudice to its continued validity in the remainder of the Parking Zone for which it was issued, a Parking Permit shall not be a Valid Parking Permit in respect of a Suspended Parking Place during the period specified in paragraph (6).
- (9) Nothing in this Article shall prejudice the power of a police constable, or a person acting under the instructions of the chief officer of police, to suspend a Parking Place pursuant to section 49(4A) of the 1984 Act.

26. Applications to Suspend the Use of a Parking Place

- (1) The Council may consider an Application to Suspend.
- (2) An Application to Suspend shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing, on a form issued by the Council and returned to the Council completed in every material respect, not less than three working days in advance of the first day when it is requested that the use of the Parking Place, or part of the Parking Place, be suspended,;
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) an Application to Suspend shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the person making the Application to Suspend;
 - (ii) The location of the Parking Place to be suspended and, where the application relates only to part of the Parking Place, identify (by reference to a plan if reasonably necessary) the part of the Parking Place to which the application relates;
 - (iii) The date or dates during which it is requested that the suspension should operate;
 - (iv) By reference to paragraph (1) of Article 25, the reason why the use of the Parking Place or any part of a Parking Place should be suspended and, in the case of sub-paragraph (e) thereof, provide a details of the reason and why the Council should consider it to be reasonable; and
 - (v) The address to which an invoice for any charge made pursuant to the 1998 Regulations should be forwarded; and
 - (c) Be signed by an authorised employee of the company or organisation making the application or, in the case of an individual, that person; and
- (3) Following the receipt, by the Council, of an Application to Suspend, the decision as to whether or not to suspend the use of the Parking Place, or part of the Parking Place, shall be at the discretion of the Council, acting in accordance with Article 25.

PART 5

Permits and Season Tickets

Resident Permits

27. Resident Permit Application

- (1) A Resident may at any time make a Resident Permit Application in respect of a Motor Car, Invalid Carriage or Motor Cycle.
- (2) A Resident Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the Resident;
 - (ii) The Eligible Property which is his sole or principal place of residence;
 - (iii) The make, model, colour and Registration Mark of the vehicle in respect of which the Resident Permit is being requested; or
 - (iv) Where the Resident knows the date on which he will, or is reasonably likely to, cease to be a Resident, that date.

- (3) A Resident making a Resident Permit Application shall produce to the Council a copy of:
 - (a) A valid Registration Certificate in respect of the vehicle in respect of which the Resident Permit is being requested; and
 - (b) At least one of the following documents:
 - (i) A Tenancy Agreement naming the Resident as lessee or tenant of the Eligible Property for an unexpired term including the whole of the period for which the Resident Permit is sought;
 - (ii) A Council Tax Statement addressed to the Resident at the Eligible Property;
 - (iii) A Bank Statement addressed to the Resident at the Eligible Property;
 - (iv) A Utility Bill addressed to the Resident at the Eligible Property; or
 - (v) Such other document as the Council may, at its absolute discretion, approve.
- (4) Where the vehicle in respect of which a Resident Permit Application has been made is a Work Vehicle, the Resident making the Resident Permit Application shall produce to the Council evidence that the Resident is precluded from registering the vehicle named in the Resident Permit Application in his name because the vehicle is a Work Vehicle.
- (5) Without prejudice to paragraphs (3) or (4), the Council may at any time require a Resident who has made a Resident Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Resident Permit Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in or with the Resident Permit Application, including, for the avoidance of doubt, the original of any document specified in paragraph (3).

28. Resident Permit Offer

- (1) In the event that the conditions set out in paragraph (2) are satisfied the Council may make a Resident Permit Offer.
- (2) The conditions referred to in paragraph (1) are that the Council is satisfied that:
 - (a) The person making the Resident Permit Application is:
 - (i) A Resident of the Eligible Property specified in the Resident Permit Application who uses that Eligible Property as his sole or principal place of residence; and
 - (ii) Either:
 - (A) Both:
 - (I) The Registered Keeper of the vehicle named in the Resident Permit Application; and
 - (II) Specified on the Registration Certificate of that vehicle as residing at the Eligible Property specified in the Resident Permit Application; or
 - (B) Precluded from registering the vehicle named in the Resident Permit Application in his name because the vehicle is a Work Vehicle.

- (b) The vehicle in respect of which the Resident Permit Application is made is of a type which may use the Parking Places within the Parking Zone specified in Column 3 of Schedule 14 as relating to the Eligible Property; and
- (c) The maximum number of Resident Permits which may be issued in relation to that Eligible Property, calculated in accordance with Article 29, would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Resident Permit as a result of the acceptance by the Resident of the Resident Permit Offer.

(3) A Resident Permit Offer shall:

- (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which a Resident Permit is being offered to the Resident;
- (b) Specify the Parking Zone in which the Resident Permit would be a Valid Parking Permit; and
- (c) Subject to Article 30, request the relevant Resident Permit Fee from the Resident.

29. Maximum Number of Resident Permits

- (1) Subject to paragraph (4) the maximum number of Resident Permits which the Council will issue in respect of an Eligible Property shall be two.
- (2) The Council shall keep a List of Streets.
- (3) The Council may, after consultation with the Councillors representing the Ward in which that street lies, include or remove a street specified in Column 1 of Schedule14 from the List of Streets.
- (4) Where a street specified in Column 1 of Schedule 14 appears on the List of Streets:
 - (a) Paragraph (1) shall not apply to that street; and
 - (b) The maximum number of Resident Permits which the Council may issue in respect of an Eligible Property in that street shall be three.

30. Calculation of the Resident Permit Fee

- (1) The Resident Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) Subject to paragraphs (3),(9) and (10), the Resident Permit Fee in respect of:
 - (a) The first Resident Permit issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be £20 per annum;
 - (b) The second Resident Permit issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be **£40** per annum; and
 - (c) The third Resident Permit issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be **£70** per annum.
- (3) Where the Council considers that the Low Emissions Discount Criteria apply to a vehicle in respect of which a Resident Permit Application has been made, the Resident Permit Fee specified in paragraph (2) shall be reduced by the Low Emissions Discount calculated in accordance with Article 86.
- (4) The Resident Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with the situation in existence when a Resident Permit Application is made, and shall take into account any Resident Permits previously issued and any discount previously applied.
- (5) Without prejudice to paragraph (3), where a Resident Permit is issued for a period of less than 12 months the full Resident Permit Fee shall be payable.

- (6) Paragraph (7) applies where an Interim Permit Fee has been paid to the Council pursuant to Article 65.
- (7) Where this paragraph applies:
 - (a) In the event that the Interim Permit Fee exceeds the Resident Permit Fee, the Council shall refund the difference to the Resident who made payment and the balance of the Interim Permit Fee shall be deemed also to be the Resident Permit Fee;
 - (b) In the event that the Interim Permit Fee is equal to the Resident Permit Fee, the Interim Permit Fee shall be deemed also to be the Resident Permit Fee:
 - (c) In the event that the Resident Permit Fee exceeds Interim Permit Fee, the Resident shall pay to the Council the difference between those two sums and, upon such payment, the Resident shall be deemed to have paid the whole of the Resident Permit Fee.
- (8) Nothing in paragraph (7) shall require the Council to refund to a Resident the Interim Permit Fee in the event that it refuses a Resident Permit Application.
- (9) The Resident Permit Fee for the issue or renewal of a Resident Permit for use in the Parking Zone referred to as KP1 in Column 1 of Schedule 15 shall be $\underline{\mathbf{f0}}$.
- (10) From 12 November 2007 for a period of 10 years, the Resident Permit Fee for the issue or renewal of a Resident Permit for use in the Parking Zone referred to as E1 in Column 1 of Schedule 15 shall be £0.

31. Acceptance of a Resident Permit Offer

- (1) A Resident may accept a Resident Permit Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (1) are that the Resident:
 - (a) Signs a copy of the Resident Permit Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the signed Resident Permit Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Resident Permit Fee as specified in the Resident Permit Offer.

32. Issue of Resident Permit

- (1) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Resident Permit Offer and the Resident Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 31 it may issue a Resident Permit to the Resident who made the Resident Permit Application.
- (2) A Resident Permit shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Resident Permit Offer and shall contain the Relevant Information.
- (3) Where an Interim Permit was issued in relation to the Resident Permit Application pursuant to which the Resident Permit was issued:
 - (a) The Resident Permit shall be treated as if it was issued on; and
 - (b) Unless issued for a period of less than 12 months, shall cease to be valid 12 months after,
 - the date when the Interim Permit or, if more than one Interim Permit was issued, the first Interim Permit was issued.
- (4) Notwithstanding sub-paragraph (3)(b), where an Interim Permit was issued in relation to the Resident Permit Application pursuant to which a Resident Permit was issued for less than 12 months, the Resident Permit shall be treated as having been issued on the date when the Interim Permit (or, if more than one Interim Permit was issued, the first Interim Permit) was issued.

33. Resident Permit Renewals

- (1) Subject to paragraph (3), where the Council has previously issued a Resident Permit to a Resident, the Council may issue a Resident Permit Renewal Notice to the Resident.
- (2) The Council will not issue Resident Permit Renewal Notice where either:
 - (a) The Resident has notified the Council in writing that he:
 - (i) Has ceased to be a Resident of the Eligible Property; or
 - (ii) Has ceased to be the Registered Keeper of the vehicle, to which the Resident Permit relates, or
 - (b) It is not satisfied that the conditions in paragraph (2) of Article 28 are satisfied.
- (3) Where sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) applies, the Council may require a person who has previously been issued with a Resident Permit to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the conditions in paragraph (2) of Article 28 as they may reasonably require to verify that those conditions are satisfied.
- (4) A Resident Permit Renewal Notice shall constitute a Resident Permit Offer and shall contain the information specified in paragraph (3) of Article 28.
- (5) Subject to paragraph (6) the Resident Permit Fee specified in a Resident Permit Renewal Notice shall be calculated in accordance with Article 30.
- (6) Where the Resident Permit Renewal Notice:
 - (a) Has been issued in respect of a Resident Permit which was issued for a period of less than 12 months; and
 - (b) Makes a Resident Permit Offer for a Resident Permit which is also to be valid for a period of less than 12 months,
 - then, provided that the aggregate of the two periods referred to in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) is not more than 12 months, then the Resident Permit Fee shall be $\underline{\textbf{£0}}$.
- (7) A Resident Permit Offer made by Resident Permit Renewal Notice pursuant to paragraph (4) shall be subject to the same provisions regarding its acceptance as are specified in Article 31.
- (8) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Resident Permit Offer made in the Resident Permit Renewal Notice, and the Resident Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (5), it may issue a Resident Permit to the Resident.
- (9) A Resident Permit issued pursuant to paragraph (8) shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Resident Permit Offer contained in the Resident Permit Renewal Notice, and shall contain the Relevant Information.
- (10) Nothing in this Article shall prevent a Resident from making a Resident Permit Application pursuant to Article 27, whether to renew a Resident Permit or otherwise.

Visitor Permits

34. Visitor Permit Application

- (1) A Resident may at any time make a Visitor Permit Application.
- (2) A Visitor Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect;

- (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the Resident;
 - (ii) The Eligible Property which is their sole or principal place of residence;
 - (iii) The expiry date of any Parking Permit which the Visitor Permit would replace; or
 - (iv) Where the Resident knows the date on which he will, or is reasonably likely to, cease to be a Resident, that date; and
- (3) A Resident making a Visitor Permit Application shall produce to the Council at least one of the following documents:
 - (a) A Tenancy Agreement naming the Resident as lessee or tenant of the Eligible Property for an unexpired term including the whole of the period for which they are asking that the Visitor Permit be issued;
 - (b) A Council Tax Statement addressed to the Resident at the Eligible Property;
 - (c) A Bank Statement addressed to the Resident at the Eligible Property;
 - (d) A Utility Bill addressed to the Resident at the Eligible Property; or
 - (e) Such other document as the Council may at its absolute discretion approve.
- (4) Without prejudice to paragraph (3) the Council may at any time require a Resident who has made a Visitor Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Visitor Permit Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Visitor Permit Application.
- (5) In the event that the conditions set out in paragraph (6) are satisfied the Council may issue a Visitor Permit to the Resident who made the Visitor Permit Application.
- (6) The conditions referred to in paragraph (5) are that:
 - (a) The Resident has signed a copy of the Visitor Permit Offer and returned it to the Council together with the Visitor Permit Fee; and
 - (b) The Council is satisfied that:
 - (i) The person making the Visitor Permit Application is a Resident of the Eligible Property specified in the Visitor Permit Application who uses that Eligible Property as his sole or principal place of residence; and
 - (ii) The maximum number of Visitor Permits which may be issued in relation to that Eligible Property, calculated in accordance with paragraph (3) of Article 35 would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Visitor Permit as a result of the Visitor Permit Application.
- (7) A Visitor Permit Offer shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which a Visitor Permit is being offered to the Resident:
 - (b) Specify the Parking Zone in which the Visitor Permit would be a Valid Parking Permit; and
 - (c) Subject to paragraphs (8) and (9), request the relevant Visitor Permit Fee from the Resident.
- (8) The Visitor Permit Fee for the issue or renewal of a Visitor Permit for use in the Parking Zone referred to as KP1 in Column 1 of Schedule 15 shall be £0.

(9) From 12 November 2007 for a period of 10 years, the Visitor Permit Fee for the issue or renewal of a Visitor Permit for use in the Parking Zone referred to as E1 in Column 1 of Schedule 15 shall be £0.

35. Issue of Visitor Permits

- (1) A Resident may accept a Visitor Permit Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (1) are that the Resident:
 - (a) Signs a copy of the Visitor Permit Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the Visitor Permit Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Visitor Permit Fee as specified in the Visitor Permit Offer.
- (3) The maximum number of Visitor Permits which the Council may issue in respect of an Eligible Property shall be one.
- (4) A Visitor Permit shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Visitor Permit Application and shall contain the Relevant Information.

36. Visitor Permit Renewals

- (1) Subject to paragraph (3), where the Council has previously issued a Visitor Permit to a Resident, the Council may issue a Visitor Permit Renewal Notice to the Resident.
- (2) The Council will not issue Visitor Permit Renewal Notice where either:
 - (a) The Resident has notified the Council in writing that he has ceased to be a Resident of the Eligible Property; or
 - (b) It is not satisfied that the conditions in paragraph (6)(b) of Article 34 are satisfied.
- (3) Where sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) applies, the Council may require a person who has previously been issued with a Visitor Permit to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the conditions in paragraph (6)(b) of Article 34 as they may reasonably require to verify that those conditions are satisfied.
- (4) A Visitor Permit Renewal Notice shall constitute a Visitor Permit Offer and shall specify the Visitor Permit Fee payable by the Resident for the renewal of the Visitor Permit.
- (5) Subject to the payment of the Visitor Permit Fee, the Council may issue a Visitor Permit to a Resident.
- (6) A Visitor Permit Offer made by Visitor Permit Renewal Notice pursuant to paragraph (4) shall be subject to the same provisions regarding its acceptance as are specified in paragraph (2) of Article 35.
- (7) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Visitor Permit Offer made in the Visitor Permit Renewal Notice, and the Visitor Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (5), it may issue a Visitor Permit to the Resident.
- (6) A Visitor Permit issued pursuant to paragraph (7) shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Visitor Permit Offer contained in the Visitor Permit Renewal Notice, and shall contain the Relevant Information.
- (7) Nothing in this Article shall prevent a Resident from making a Visitor Permit Application pursuant to Article 34, whether to renew a Visitor Permit or otherwise.

Business Permits

37. Business Permit Application

- (1) A Business may at any time make a Business Permit Application.
- (2) A Business Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the Business;
 - (ii) The Eligible Property which is used by the Business as a Business Property;
 - (iii) Where the Business Permit is to relate to a specific vehicle, the make, model, colour and Registration Mark of that vehicle;
 - (iv) The expiry date of any Parking Permit which the Business Permit would replace; and
 - (v) Where the Business knows the date on which it will, or is reasonably likely to, cease to occupy the Eligible Property for the purposes of its business, that date.
- (3) A Business making a Business Permit Application shall produce to the Council:
 - (a) Where the Business Permit is to relate to a specific vehicle, a valid Registration Certificate in respect of that vehicle;
 - (b) At least one of the following documents:
 - (i) A Tenancy Agreement naming the Business as lessee or tenant of the Eligible Property for an unexpired term including the whole of the period for which the Business Permit is sought;
 - (ii) A Bank Statement addressed to the Business at the Eligible Property;
 - (iv) A Utility Bill addressed to the Business at the Eligible Property; or
 - (v) Such other document as the Council may at its absolute discretion approve.
 - (c) The letterhead used by the Business; and
 - (d) Evidence that the Eligible Property is a Business Property
- (4) Without prejudice to paragraph (3) the Council may at any time require a Business which has made a Business Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Business Permit Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Business Permit Application.

38. Business Permit Offer

- (1) In the event that the conditions set out in paragraph (2) are satisfied the Council may make a Business Permit Offer.
- (2) The conditions referred to in paragraph (1) are that the Council is satisfied that:
 - (a) The Eligible Property is:
 - (i) A Business Property; and
 - (ii) Used by the Business for the purposes of its business;

- (b) Where the Business Permit is to relate to a specific vehicle:
 - (i) The Business making the Business Permit Application is the Registered Keeper of the vehicle named in the Business Permit Application; and
 - (ii) That vehicle is of a type which may use the Parking Places within the Parking Zone specified in Column 3 of Schedule 14 as relating to the Eligible Property;
- (c) The maximum number of Non-Residential Permits which may be issued in relation to that Eligible Property, calculated in accordance with Article 85, would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Business Permit as a result of the Business Permit Application; and
- (d) Taking into account:
 - (i) The number of Business Permits previously issued in respect of an Eligible Property; and
 - (ii) The number of Parking Permits issued for use within the Parking Zone for which the Business Permit would be a Valid Business Permit,

the issue of the Business Permit would not have an unacceptably detrimental effect on the availability of parking space for the holders of Resident Permits and Visitor Permits and any other Non-Residential Permits during the Charge Period.

- (3) A Business Permit Offer shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which a Business Permit is being offered to the Business;
 - (b) Specify the Parking Zone in which the Business Permit would be a Valid Parking Permit; and
 - (c) Subject to Article 39, request the relevant Business Permit Fee from the Business.
- (4) For the avoidance of doubt, without prejudice to its discretion not to make a Business Permit Offer pursuant to paragraph (1), and notwithstanding Article 85, the Council may refuse to make a Business Permit Offer where it is satisfied that the issue of a Business Permit would have an unacceptably detrimental effect on the availability of parking space for the holders of Resident Permits and Visitor Permits and any other Non-Residential Permits during the Charge Period.

39. Calculation of the Business Permit Fee

- (1) The Business Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) Subject to paragraph (3) the Business Permit Fee in respect of:
 - (a) The first and second Business Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be the Lower Business Rate applicable to that Eligible Property;
 - (b) The third, fourth and fifth Business Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be the Medium Business Rate applicable to that Eligible Property;
 - (c) The sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth and tenth Business Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be the Higher Business Rate applicable to that Eligible Property.
- (3) Where the Council considers that both of the conditions specified in paragraph (4) have been satisfied, the Business Permit Fee specified in paragraph (2) shall be reduced by the Low Emissions Discount calculated in accordance with Article 86.

- (4) The conditions referred to in paragraph (3) are that:
 - (a) The Business Permit Application has been made in relation to a specific vehicle; and
 - (b) The Low Emissions Discount Criteria apply to that vehicle.
- (5) The Business Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with the situation in existence when a Business Permit Application is made, and shall take into account any Business Permits previously issued and any discount previously applied.
- (6) Without prejudice to paragraph (3), where a Business Permit is issued for a period of less than 12 months, the full Business Permit Fee shall be payable.
- (7) Paragraph (8) applies where an Interim Permit Fee has been paid to the Council pursuant to Article 65.
- (8) Where this paragraph applies:
 - (a) In the event that the Interim Permit Fee exceeds the Business Permit Fee, the Council shall refund the difference to the Business who made payment and the balance of the Interim Permit Fee shall be deemed also to be the Business Permit Fee;
 - (b) In the event that the Interim Permit Fee is equal to the Business Permit Fee, the Interim Permit Fee shall be deemed also to be the Business Permit Fee;
 - (c) In the event that the Business Permit Fee exceeds the Interim Permit Fee, the Business shall pay to the Council the difference between those two sums and, upon such payment, the Business shall be deemed to have paid the whole of the Business Permit Fee.
- (9) Nothing in paragraph (8) shall require the Council to refund to a Business the Interim Permit Fee in the event that it refuses a Business Permit Application.

40. Acceptance of the Business Permit Offer

- (1) A Business may accept a Business Permit Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (1) are that the Business:
 - (a) Acting by a duly authorised officer, signs a copy of the Business Permit Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the signed Business Permit Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Business Permit Fee as specified in the Business Permit Offer.

41. Issue of Business Permit

- (1) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Business Permit Offer and the Business Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 40 it may issue a Business Permit to the Business which made the Business Permit Application.
- (2) A Business Permit shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Business Permit Offer and shall contain the Relevant Information.
- (3) Where an Interim Permit was issued in relation to the Business Permit Application pursuant to which the Business Permit was issued:
 - (a) The Business Permit shall be treated as if it was issued on; and
 - (b) Unless issued for a period of less than 12 months, shall cease to be valid 12 months after,

the date when the Interim Permit or, if more than one Interim Permit was issued, the first Interim Permit was issued.

(4) Notwithstanding sub-paragraph (3)(b), where an Interim Permit was issued in relation to the Business Permit Application pursuant to which a Business Permit was issued for less than 12 months, the Business Permit shall be treated as having been issued on the date when the Interim Permit (or, if more than one Interim Permit was issued, the first Interim Permit) was issued.

42. Business Permit Renewals

- (1) Subject to paragraph (3), where the Council has previously issued a Business Permit to a Business, the Council may issue a Business Permit Renewal Notice to the Business.
- (2) The Council will not issue Business Permit Renewal Notice where either:
 - (a) The Business has notified the Council in writing that:
 - (i) The Eligible Property has ceased to be a Business Property; or
 - (ii) The Business has ceased to use the Eligible Property for the purposes of its business; or
 - (iii) Where the Business Permit relates to a specific vehicle, it has ceased to be the Registered Keeper of the vehicle to which the Business Permit relates; or
 - (b) It is not satisfied that the conditions in paragraph (2) of Article 38 are satisfied.
- (3) Where sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) applies, the Council may require a person who has previously been issued with a Business Permit to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the conditions in paragraph (2) of Article 38 as they may reasonably require to verify that those conditions are satisfied.
- (4) A Business Permit Renewal Notice shall constitute a Business Permit Offer and shall contain the information specified in paragraph (3) or Article 38.
- (5) Subject to paragraph (6) the Business Permit Fee specified in a Business Permit Renewal Notice shall be calculated in accordance with Article 39.
- (6) Where the Business Permit Renewal Notice:
 - (a) Has been issued in respect of a Business Permit which was issued for a period of less than 12 months; and
 - (b) Makes a Business Permit Offer for a Business Permit which is also to be valid for a period of less than 12 months,

then, provided that the aggregate of the two periods referred to in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) is not more than 12 months, then the Business Permit Fee shall be £0.

- (7) A Business Permit Offer made by a Business Permit Renewal Notice pursuant to paragraph (4) shall be subject to the same provisions regarding its acceptance as are specified in Article 40.
- (8) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Business Permit Offer made in the Business Permit Renewal Notice, and the Business Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (5), it may issue a Business Permit to the Business.
- (9) A Business Permit issued pursuant to paragraph (8) shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Business Permit Offer contained in the Business Permit Renewal Notice, and shall contain the Relevant Information.

(10) Nothing in this Article shall prevent a Business from making a Business Permit Application pursuant to Article 37, whether to renew a Business Permit or otherwise.

Charity Permits

43. Charity Permit Application

- (1) A Charity may at any time make a Charity Permit Application.
- (2) A Charity Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the Charity;
 - (ii) The Eligible Property which is used by the Charity for Charitable Purposes;
 - (iii) Where the Charity Permit is to relate to a specific vehicle, the make, model, colour and Registration Mark of that vehicle;
 - (iv) The expiry date of any Parking Permit which the Charity Permit would replace; and
 - (v) Where the Charity knows the date on which it will, or is reasonably likely to, cease to use the Eligible Property for Charitable Purposes, that date.
- (3) A Charity making a Charity Permit Application shall produce to the Council:
 - (a) Where the Charity Permit is to relate to a specific vehicle, a valid Registration Certificate in respect of that vehicle;
 - (b) The letterhead used by the Charity;
 - (c) At least one of the following:
 - (i) The Registered Charity Number;
 - (ii) A number provided by Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs in connection with Gift Aid recoveries; or
 - (iii) Confirmation from the Charity Commission that the Charity is an Excepted Charity or an Exempt Charity, or is otherwise exempt or excepted from registration; and
 - (d) At least one of the following documents:
 - (i) A Tenancy Agreement naming the Charity as lessee or tenant of the Eligible Property for an unexpired term including the whole of the period for which the Charity Permit is sought;
 - (ii) A Bank Statement addressed to the Charity at the Eligible Property;
 - (iv) A Utility Bill addressed to the Charity at the Eligible Property; or
 - (v) Such other document as the Council may at its absolute discretion approve.
- (4) Without prejudice to paragraph (3) the Council may at any time require a Charity which has made a Charity Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Charity Permit Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Charity Permit Application.

44. Charity Permit Offer

- (1) In the event that the conditions set out in paragraph (2) are satisfied the Council may make a Charity Permit Offer.
- (2) The conditions referred to in paragraph (1) are that the Council is satisfied that:
 - (a) The Eligible Property is used by the Charity for Charitable Purposes;
 - (b) Where the Charity Permit is to relate to a specific vehicle:
 - (i) The Charity making the Charity Permit Application is the Registered Keeper of the vehicle named in the Charity Permit Application; and
 - (ii) That vehicle is of a type which may use the Parking Places within the Parking Zone specified in Column 3 of Schedule 14 as relating to the Eligible Property;
 - (c) The maximum number of Non-Residential Permits which may be issued in relation to that Eligible Property, calculated in accordance with Article 85 would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Charity Permit as a result of the Charity Permit Application; and
 - (d) Taking into account:
 - (i) The number of Charity Permits previously issued in respect of an Eligible Property; and
 - (ii) The number of Parking Permits issued for use within the Parking Zone for which the Charity Permit would be a Valid Charity Permit,

the issue of the Charity Permit would not have an unacceptably detrimental effect on the availability of parking space for the holders of Resident Permits and Visitor Permits and any other Non-Residential Permits during the Charge Period.

- (3) A Charity Permit Offer shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which a Charity Permit is being offered to the Charity;
 - (b) Specify the Parking Zone in which the Charity Permit would be a Valid Parking Permit; and
 - (c) Subject to Article 45, request the relevant Charity Permit Fee from the Charity.
- (4) For the avoidance of doubt, without prejudice to its discretion not to make a Charity Permit Offer pursuant to paragraph (1), and notwithstanding Article 85, the Council may refuse to make a Charity Permit Offer where it is satisfied that the issue of a Charity Permit would have an unacceptably detrimental effect on the availability of parking space for the holders of Resident Permits and Visitor Permits and any other Non-Residential Permits during the Charge Period.

45. Calculation of the Charity Permit Fee

- (1) The Charity Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) Subject to paragraph (3) the Charity Permit Fee in respect of:
 - (a) The first and second Charity Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be the Lower Charity Rate applicable to that Eligible Property;
 - (b) The third, fourth and fifth Charity Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be the Medium Charity Rate applicable to that Eligible Property;

- (c) The sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth and tenth Charity Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property shall be the Higher Charity Rate applicable to that Eligible Property.
- (3) Where the Council considers that both of the conditions specified in paragraph (4) have been satisfied, the Charity Permit Fee specified in paragraph (2) shall be reduced by the Low Emissions Discount calculated in accordance with Article 86.
- (4) The conditions referred to in paragraph (3) are that:
 - (a) The Charity Permit Application has been made in relation to a specific vehicle; and
 - (b) The Low Emissions Discount Criteria apply to that vehicle.
- (5) The Charity Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with the situation in existence when the Charity Permit Application is made, and shall take into account any Charity Permits previously issued and any discount previously applied.
- (6) Without prejudice to paragraph (3), where a Charity Permit is issued for a period of less than 12 months, the full Charity Permit Fee shall be payable.
- (7) Paragraph (8) applies where an Interim Permit Fee has been paid to the Council pursuant to Article 65.
- (8) Where this paragraph applies:
 - (a) In the event that the Interim Permit Fee exceeds the Charity Permit Fee, the Council shall refund the difference to the Charity who made payment and the balance of the Interim Permit Fee shall be deemed also to be the Charity Permit Fee:
 - (b) In the event that the Interim Permit Fee is equal to the Charity Permit Fee, the Interim Permit Fee shall be deemed also to be the Charity Permit Fee;
 - (c) In the event that the Charity Permit Fee exceeds Interim Permit Fee, the Charity shall pay to the Council the difference between those two sums and, upon such payment, the Charity shall be deemed to have paid the whole of the Charity Permit Fee.
- (9) Nothing in paragraph (8) shall require the Council to refund to a Charity the Interim Permit Fee in the event that it refuses a Charity Permit Application.

46. Acceptance of the Charity Permit Offer

- (1) A Charity may accept a Charity Permit Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (1) are that the Charity:
 - (a) Acting by its Trustees or through some other person duly authorised to do so on their behalf, signs a copy of the Charity Permit Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the signed Charity Permit Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Charity Permit Fee as specified in the Charity Permit Offer.

47. Issue of Charity Permit

- (1) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Charity Permit Offer and the Charity Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 46 it may issue a Charity Permit to the Charity which made the Charity Permit Application.
- (2) A Charity Permit shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Charity Permit Offer and shall contain the Relevant Information.

- (3) Where an Interim Permit was issued in relation to the Charity Permit Application pursuant to which the Charity Permit was issued:
 - (a) The Charity Permit shall be treated as if it was issued on; and
 - (b) Unless issued for a period of less than 12 months, shall cease to be valid 12 months after,

the date when the Interim Permit or, if more than one Interim Permit was issued, the first Interim Permit was issued.

(4) Notwithstanding sub-paragraph (3)(b), where an Interim Permit was issued in relation to the Charity Permit Application pursuant to which a Charity Permit was issued for less than 12 months, the Charity Permit shall be treated as having been issued on the date when the Interim Permit (or, if more than one Interim Permit was issued, the first Interim Permit) was issued.

48. Charity Permit Renewals

- (1) Subject to paragraph (3), where the Council has previously issued a Charity Permit to a Charity, the Council may issue a Charity Permit Renewal Notice to the Charity.
- (2) The Council will not issue Charity Permit Renewal Notice where either:
 - (a) The Charity has notified the Council in writing that:
 - (i) The Charity has ceased to be a Charity; or
 - (ii) The Charity has ceased to use the Eligible Property for Charitable Purposes; or
 - (iii) Where the Charity Permit relates to a specific vehicle, the Charity has ceased to be the Registered Keeper of the vehicle to which the Charity Permit relates; or
 - (b) It is not satisfied that the conditions in paragraph (2) of Article 44 are satisfied.
- (3) Where sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) applies, the Council may require a person who has previously been issued with a Charity Permit to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the conditions in paragraph (2) of Article 44 as they may reasonably require to verify that those conditions are satisfied.
- (4) A Charity Permit Renewal Notice shall constitute a Charity Permit Offer and shall contain the information specified in paragraph (3) of Article 44.
- (5) Subject to paragraph (6) the Charity Permit Fee specified in a Charity Permit Renewal Notice shall be calculated in accordance with Article 45.
- (6) Where the Charity Permit Renewal Notice:
 - (a) Has been issued in respect of a Charity Permit which was issued for a period of less than 12 months; and
 - (b) Makes a Charity Permit Offer for a Charity Permit which is also to be valid for a period of less than 12 months.

then, provided that the aggregate of the two periods referred to in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) is not more than 12 months, then the Charity Permit Fee shall be £0.

- (7) A Charity Permit Offer made by Charity Permit Renewal Notice pursuant to paragraph (4) shall be subject to the same provisions regarding its acceptance as are specified in Article 46.
- (8) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Charity Permit Offer made in the Charity Permit Renewal Notice, and the Charity Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (5), it may issue a Charity Permit to the Charity.

- (9) A Charity Permit issued pursuant to paragraph (8) shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Charity Permit Offer contained in the Charity Permit Renewal Notice, and shall contain the Relevant Information.
- (10) Nothing in this Article shall prevent a Charity from making a Charity Permit Application pursuant to Article 43, whether to renew a Charity Permit or otherwise.

Supplementary Permits

49. Category 1 Supplementary Permit Applications

- (1) A Resident may at any time make a Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application in respect of an Eligible Property.
- (2) A Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the Resident;
 - (ii) The Eligible Property which is their sole or principal place of residence; and
 - (iii) Whether the Application is for:
 - (A) A Book of Full Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits; or
 - (B) A Book of Half Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits
- (3) A Resident making a Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application shall produce to the Council at least one of the documents specified in Article 27(3)(b).
- (4) Without prejudice to paragraph (3) the Council may at any time require the a Resident who has made a Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Application.

50. Category 2 Supplementary Permit Applications

- (1) A Landlord or a Management Agent may make a Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application in respect of an Eligible Property.
- (2) A Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of:
 - (A) The Landlord of the Eligible Property; and
 - (B) Any Management Agent which is legally responsible for the Eligible Property; and
 - (ii) The address of the Eligible Property.
- (3) A Landlord making a Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application shall produce to the Council either:
 - (a) A tenancy agreement, naming the Landlord as landlord of the Eligible Property for an unexpired term; or

- (b) Evidence that the Eligible Property is being actively marketed with a view to entering an agreement of the kind specified in sub-paragraph (a).
- (4) A Management Agent making a Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application shall produce to the Council the following:
 - (i) Either:
 - (A) A tenancy agreement, naming the Landlord as landlord of the Eligible Property for an unexpired term; or
 - (B) Evidence that the Eligible Property is being, or will soon be, actively marketed with a view to entering an agreement of the kind specified in sub-paragraph (A); and
 - (ii) The agreement appointing the Management Agent to let or to carry out its rights and duties under a tenancy agreement in respect of an Eligible Property.
- (5) Where the Landlord is unable to produce the information specified in paragraph (3), or where a Management Agent is unable to produce the information specified in paragraph (4) the Landlord or (as the case may be) the Management Agent shall produce to the Council such other document as the Council may, at its absolute discretion, approve.
- (6) Without prejudice to paragraphs (3) (4) and (5) the Council may at any time require the Landlord or (as the case may be) the Management Agent who has made a Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Application.

51. Category 3 Supplementary Permit Applications

- (1) A Business may make a Category 3 Supplementary Permit Application in respect of an Eligible Property.
- (2) A Category 3 Supplementary Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the Business; and
 - (ii) The address of the Eligible Property which is used by the Business as a Business Property;
- (3) A Business making a Category 3 Supplementary Permit Application shall produce to the Council:
 - (a) At least one of the following documents:
 - (i) A Tenancy Agreement naming the Business as lessee or tenant of the Eligible Property for an unexpired term including the whole of the period for which they are asking that the Business Permit be issued;
 - (ii) A Bank Statement addressed to the Business at the Eligible Property;
 - (iv) A Utility Bill addressed to the Business at the Eligible Property; or
 - (v) Such other document as the Council may at its absolute discretion approve.
 - (b) The letterhead used by the Business; and
 - (c) Evidence that the Eligible Property is a Business Property.

(4) Without prejudice to paragraph (3) the Council may at any time require the Business which has made a Category 3 Supplementary Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Application.

52. Category 4 Supplementary Permit Applications

- (1) A Tradesman may make a Category 4 Supplementary Permit Application in respect of an Eligible Property.
- (2) A Category 4 Supplementary Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of:
 - (A) The Resident, Landlord or Management Agent of the Eligible Property who has asked the Tradesman to carry out works, or provide services, at that Eligible Property; and
 - (B) The Tradesman;
 - (ii) The nature of the business of the Tradesman and the address of the Tradesman:
 - (iii) The address of the Eligible Property;
 - (iv) The nature of the works which the Tradesman is to carry out at the Eligible Property; and
 - (v) In the case of an application for a Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit, the date upon which the Tradesman believes the week will commence.
- (3) A Tradesman making a Category 4 Supplementary Permit Application shall produce to the Council either:
 - (a) A written contract with the Resident, Landlord or Management Agent for the Tradesman to carry out works at the Eligible Property; or
 - (b) Supporting evidence from the Resident, Landlord or Management Agent that the Tradesman has been engaged to carry out works at the Eligible Property; or
 - (c) Such other document as the Council may at its absolute discretion approve.
- (4) Without prejudice to paragraph (3) the Council may at any time require the Tradesman who has made a Category 4 Supplementary Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Application.

53. Category 5 Supplementary Permit Applications

- (1) A Ward Member may make a Category 5 Supplementary Permit Application.
- (2) A Category 5 Supplementary Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:

- (i) The name of the Ward which the Ward Member represents; and
- (ii) Whether the Application is for:
 - (A) A Book of Full Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits; or
 - (B) A Book of Half Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits.
- (3) The Council may at any time require the Ward Member who has made a Category 5 Supplementary Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Application.

54. Supplementary Permit Offer

- (1) In the event that the conditions set out in paragraph (2) are satisfied the Council may make a Supplementary Permit Offer.
- (2) The conditions referred to in paragraph (1) are that:
 - (a) Either:
 - (i) In respect of a Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application the Council is satisfied that:
 - (A) The person making the Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application:
 - (I) Is a Resident of the Eligible Property specified in the Application; and
 - (II) Uses the Eligible Property as his sole or principal place of residence; and
 - (B) The maximum number of Category 1 Supplementary Permits which may be issued in relation to that Eligible Property, calculated in accordance with Article 55, would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Book of Category 1 Supplementary Permits as a result of the acceptance by the Resident of the Category 1 Supplementary Permit Offer; or
 - (ii) In respect of a Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application the Council is satisfied that:
 - (A) The person making the Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application is either:
 - (I) The Landlord; or
 - (II) A Management Agent appointed by the Landlord, of the Eligible Property specified in the Application; and
 - (B) The Eligible Property is either:
 - (I) Let to a third party for an unexpired term; or
 - (II) Being, or soon to be, actively marketed with a view to entering an agreement of the kind specified in subparagraph (I); and
 - (C) The maximum number of Category 2 Supplementary Permits which may be issued in relation to that Eligible Property, calculated in accordance with Article 55, would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Book of Category 2 Supplementary

Permits as a result of the acceptance by the Landlord or, as the case may be, the Management Agent, of the Category 2 Supplementary Permit Offer; or

- (iii) In respect of a Category 3 Supplementary Permit Application the Council is satisfied that:
 - (A) The person making the Category 3 Supplementary Permit Application is a Business;
 - (B) The Eligible Property in respect of which the Application has been made is:
 - (I) A Business Property; and
 - (II) Used by the Business for Business purposes; and
 - (C) The maximum number of Category 3 Supplementary Permits which may be issued in relation to that Eligible Property, calculated in accordance with Article 55, would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Book of Category 3 Supplementary Permits as a result of the acceptance by the Business of the Category 3 Supplementary Permit Offer; or
- (iv) In respect of a Category 4 Supplementary Permit Application the Council is satisfied that:
 - (A) The person making the Application is a Tradesman who has been asked by the Resident, Landlord or Management Agent of an Eligible Property to carry out works, or provide services, at that Eligible Property; and
 - (B) In the case of an application for a Week Category 4
 Supplementary Permit, that the works or services to be carried out at the Eligible Property are of such a nature that it would be reasonable to issue a permit which is valid for a week; or
- (v) In respect of a Category 5 Supplementary Permit Application the Council is satisfied that:
 - (A) The person making the Application is a Ward Member; and
 - (B) The maximum number of Category 5 Supplementary Permits which may be issued in relation to that Ward Member, calculated in accordance with Article 55, would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Category 5 Supplementary Permit as a result of the acceptance by that Ward Member of the Category 5 Supplementary Permit Offer; and
- (b) In respect of any Supplementary Permit Application that, taking into account:
 - (i) The number of Supplementary Permits previously issued in respect of an Eligible Property; and
 - (ii) The number of Parking Permits issued for use within the Parking Zone to which the Supplementary Permit would be a Valid Supplementary Permit,

the issue of the Supplementary Permit, or Book of Supplementary Permits, would not have an unacceptably detrimental effect on the availability of parking space for the holders of Resident Permits and Visitor Permits and Non-Residential Permits during the Charge Period.

- (3) A Supplementary Permit Offer shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which a Supplementary Permit (or Book of Supplementary Permits) is being offered;
 - (b) Specify the Parking Zone in which the Supplementary Permit would be a Valid Parking Permit; and
 - (c) Subject to Article 56, request the relevant Supplementary Permit Fee from the person making the Supplementary Permit Application.

55. Maximum Number of Supplementary Permits

- (1) The maximum number of Supplementary Permits which the Council will issue in respect of an Eligible Property shall be determined in accordance with this Article.
- (2) Subject to paragraph (3), the maximum number of:
 - (a) Category 1 Supplementary Permits which the Council will issue in respect of an Eligible Property shall be 60 per annum;
 - (b) Category 2 Supplementary Permits which the Council will issue in respect of an Eligible Property shall be 30 per annum;
 - (c) Category 3 Supplementary Permits which the Council will issue in respect of an Eligible Property shall be 30 per annum;
 - (d) Category 5 Supplementary Permits which the Council will issue shall be 60 per Ward Member;
- (3) In this Article and Article 56, the terms 'annum' and 'year' mean any 12 month period and in considering whether or not the maxima specified in paragraph (2) of this Article would be exceeded, and in calculating the Supplementary Permit Fee pursuant to Article 56, the Council shall consider a period commencing 12 months before the date of its receipt of the application for the Supplementary Permit in respect of which such consideration or calculation is being undertaken.

56. Calculation of the Supplementary Permit Fee

- (1) The relevant Supplementary Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) Subject to paragraph (3) of Article 55, the Supplementary Permit Fee in respect of:
 - (a) Category 1 Supplementary Permits shall:
 - (i) For a Book of Full Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits, be £5; or
 - (ii) For a Book Half Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits, be £2.50;
 - (b) Category 2 Supplementary Permits shall:
 - (i) For the first Book of Category 2 Supplementary Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property in any year, be £20;
 - (ii) For the second Book of Category 2 Supplementary Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property in any year, be £40;
 - (iii) For the third Book of Category 2 Supplementary Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property in any year, be £80;
 - (c) Category 3 Supplementary Permits shall:
 - (i) For a the first Book of Category 3 Supplementary Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property in any year, be £20;

- (ii) For a the second Book of Category 3 Supplementary Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property in any year, be £40;
- (iii) For a the third Book of Category 3 Supplementary Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property in any year, be £80;
- (d) Category 4 Supplementary Permits shall:
 - (i) For a Day Category 4 Supplementary Permit, be £7.50; or
 - (ii) For a Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit, be £30;
- (e) Category 5 Supplementary Permits shall:
 - (i) For a Book of Full Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits, be £20; or
 - (ii) For a Book Half Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits, be £10.
- (3) The Supplementary Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with the situation in existence when a Supplementary Permit Application is received by the Council, and shall take into account any Supplementary Permits previously issued and any discount previously applied.

57. Acceptance of the Supplementary Permit Offer

- (1) A person may accept a Supplementary Permit Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (1) are that:
 - (a) The person who made the Supplementary Permit Application, or, in the case of a Landlord, Management Agent, Business orTradesman, that person acting by a duly authorised officer, signs a copy of the Supplementary Permit Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the Supplementary Permit Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Supplementary Permit Fee as specified in the Supplementary Permit Offer.

58. Issue of Supplementary Permit

- (1) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Supplementary Permit Offer and the Supplementary Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 57 it may issue, as the case may be:
 - (a) A Book of Full Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits to the person who made the Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application relating to such permits; or
 - (b) A Book of Half Day Category 1 Supplementary Permits to the person who made the Category 1 Supplementary Permit Application relating to such permits; or
 - (c) A Book of 10 Category 2 Supplementary Permits to the person who made the Category 2 Supplementary Permit Application; or
 - (d) A Book of 10 Category 3 Supplementary Permits to the person who made the Category 3 Supplementary Permit Application; or
 - (e) A Day Category 4 Supplementary Permit to the person who made the Category 4 Supplementary Permit Application relating to such permits; or
 - (f) A Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit to the person who made the Category 4 Supplementary Permit Application relating to such permits; or

- (g) A Book of Full Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits to the person who made the Category 5 Supplementary Permit Application relating to such permits; or
- (h) A Book of Half Day Category 5 Supplementary Permits to the person who made the Category 5 Supplementary Permit Application relating to such permits.
- (2) A Supplementary Permit (or, as the case may be a Book of Supplementary Permits) shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Supplementary Permit Offer.
- (3) Each Supplementary Permit shall contain the Relevant Information.

Public Authority Permits

59. Public Authority Permit Applications

- (1) A Public Authority may make a Public Authority Permit Application.
- (2) A Public Authority Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect;
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the Public Authority making the Public Authority Permit Application;
 - (ii) The nature of business of the Public Authority; and
 - (iii) The operational reason (by reference to its powers and duties and the nature of its work) why the Public Authority would require a Public Authority Permit;
- (3) The Council may at any time require a Public Authority which has made a Public Authority Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Application as they may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Application.

60. Public Authority Permit Offer

- (1) In the event that the conditions set out in paragraph (2) are satisfied the Council may make a Public Authority Permit Offer.
- (2) The conditions referred to in paragraph (1) are that the Council is satisfied that:
 - (a) The person making the Public Authority Permit Application:
 - (i) Is a Public Authority; and
 - (ii) Has an operational reason (because of its powers and duties and the nature of its work) for a Public Authority Permit; and
 - (b) Taking into account the factors specified in paragraph (3):
 - (i) The issue of the Public Authority Permit would not have an unacceptably detrimental effect on the availability of parking space for the holders of Resident Permits and Visitor Permits and Non-Residential Permits during the Charge Period; and
 - (ii) It is reasonably necessary to issue a Public Authority Permit to facilitate the operations of the Public Authority.

- (3) The factors referred to in sub-paragraph (2)(b) are:
 - (a) The number of Public Authority Permits previously issued to that Public Authority; and
 - (b) The number of Parking Permits previously issued for the Parking Zones in which the Public Authority Permit would be a Valid Public Authority Permit.
- (4) A Public Authority Permit Offer shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which a Public Authority Permit is being offered;
 - (b) Specify the Parking Zone in which the Public Authority Permit would be a Valid Parking Permit; and
 - (c) Request the relevant Public Authority Permit Fee from the person making the Public Authority Permit Application.

61. Acceptance of Public Authority Permit Offer

- (1) A person may accept a Public Authority Permit Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (1) are that:
 - (a) The Public Authority who made the Public Authority Permit Application, acting by a duly authorised officer, signs a copy of the Public Authority Permit Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the Public Authority Permit Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Public Authority Permit Fee as specified in the Public Authority Permit Offer.

62. Issue of Public Authority Permit

- (1) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Public Authority Permit Offer and the Supplementary Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 61, it may issue a Public Authority Permit.
- (2) A Public Authority Permit shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Public Authority Permit Offer, and shall contain the Relevant Information.

Interim Permits

63. Interim Permit Offer

- (1) Paragraph (2) shall apply in circumstances where it appears to the Council that:
 - (a) A:
 - (i) Resident has made a Resident Permit Application;
 - (ii) Business has made a Business Permit Application; or
 - (iii) Charity has made a Charity Permit Application; and
 - (b) The Resident, Business or Charity referred to in sub-paragraph (a) (as the case may be):
 - (i) Does not, at the time of the said application, satisfy the relevant conditions specified in paragraph (2) of Articles 28, 38 or 44; or
 - (ii) Are unable at the time of the said application to produce to the Council the documents specified in paragraphs (3) or (4) of Article 27, 37, or 43.

- (2) Where the circumstances specified in sub-paragraph (1) apply to a Resident Permit Application, a Business Permit Application or a Charity Permit Application, the Council may make an Interim Permit Offer to that person if it is reasonably satisfied that the person who made the said application will in the near future:
 - (a) Satisfy the relevant conditions specified in paragraph (2) of Article 28, 38 or 44; or
 - (b) Be able to produce to the Council the documents specified in paragraphs (3) or (4) of Article 27, 37, or 43.
- (3) An Interim Permit Offer made pursuant to paragraph (2) of this Article, or paragraph (9) of Article 87, shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which an Interim Permit is being offered;
 - (b) Specify the Parking Zone in which the Interim Permit would be a Valid Parking Permit; and
 - (c) Specify the period for which an Interim Permit is being offered, being the period during which it would be valid.
 - (d) Subject to Article 64, request the relevant Interim Permit Fee from the person who made the Resident Permit Application, a Business Permit Application or a Charity Permit Application as the case may be.

64. Interim Permit Fee

- (1) The Interim Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) Subject to paragraph (3) the Interim Permit Fee:
 - (a) In respect of an Interim Permit Offer made pursuant to a Resident Permit Application, shall be an amount equal to the Resident Permit Fee; or
 - (b) In respect of an Interim Permit Offer made pursuant to a Business Permit Application, shall be the Business Permit Fee; or
 - (c) In respect of an Interim Permit Offer made pursuant to a Charity Permit Application, shall be the Charity Permit Fee,

which would be applicable if the Resident Permit Application, a Business Permit Application or a Charity Permit Application (as the case may be) was successful.

(3) The Interim Permit Fee in respect of an Interim Permit Offer made pursuant to paragraph (9) of Article 87 shall be £0.

65. Acceptance of Interim Permit Offer

- (1) A person who made a Resident Permit Application, a Business Permit Application, a Charity Permit Application, or a Change of Vehicle Application may accept an Interim Permit Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (2) are that the Resident, the Business acting by a duly authorised officer, the Charity acting by its Trustees or by some other person duly authorised to do so on their behalf, or person who made the Change of Vehicle Application (as the case may be):
 - (a) Signs a copy of the Interim Permit Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the Interim Permit Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Interim Permit Fee as specified in the Interim Permit Offer.

66. Issue of Interim Permit

- (1) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Interim Permit Offer and the Interim Permit Fee referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 65, it may issue an Interim Permit to either:
 - (a) The Resident who made the Resident Permit Application; or
 - (b) The Business which made the Business Permit Application; or
 - (c) The Charity which made the Charity Permit Application; or
 - (d) The person who made the Change of Vehicle Application, as the case may be.
- (2) An Interim Permit issued pursuant to paragraph (1) of this Article, or paragraph (9) of Article 87, shall be issued:
 - (a) In accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Interim Permit Offer:
 - (b) So as to contain the Relevant Information applicable to the type of Parking Permit for which application was made to the Council; and
 - (c) So as to be valid for such period, not exceeding 28 days, as appears to the Council to be reasonable in the circumstances.

67. Interim Permit Renewals

- (1) Subject to paragraph (2), following the issue of an Interim Permit the Council may at any time, issue a further Interim Permit in accordance with Article 66.
- (2) Paragraph (1) shall not apply in the event that:
 - (a) The Resident Permit Application, Business Permit Application or Charity Permit Application (as the case may be), pursuant to which the Interim Permit was issued, has been refused; or
 - (b) A Resident Permit, Business Permit, or Charity Permit (as the case may be) has been granted, pursuant to the Resident Permit Application, Business Permit Application or Charity Permit Application (as the case may be) in relation to which the Interim Permit was issued.

Reservation Permits

68. Reservation Permit Application

- (1) Where an Application to Suspend has been made pursuant to Article 26, requesting that a Parking Place or part of a Parking Place be suspended under Article 25, the person who made the Application to Suspend may also make a Reservation Permit Application.
- (2) A Reservation Permit Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council not less than three working days in advance of the first day when it is requested that the use of the Parking Place, or part of the Parking Place, be suspended, and which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect;
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a), contain the following information:
 - (i) The name and address of the person making the Reservation Permit Application;

- (ii) The information specified in sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) of Article 26; and
- (iii) Where the Reservation Permit is to relate to a specific vehicle, the make, model, colour and Registration Mark of that vehicle, or the name of the business operating the vehicle, or some other appropriate means of identifying the vehicle as may be approved by the Council; and
- (3) The Council may at any time require the person who has made a Reservation Permit Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Reservation Permit Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Reservation Permit Application.

69. Reservation Permit Offer

- (1) In the event that the Council suspends a Parking Place or part of a Parking Place under sub-paragraph (1)(d) or (1)(e) of Article 25, it may make a Reservation Permit offer in relation to any Suspended Parking Place, whether pursuant to Article 68 or otherwise.
- (2) A Reservation Permit Offer shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which a Reservation Permit is being offered;
 - (b) Specify the Suspended Parking Place in which the Reservation Permit would be a Valid Parking Permit; and
 - (c) Subject to Article 70, request the relevant Reservation Permit Fee from the person making the Reservation Permit Application.

70. Calculation of the Reservation Permit Fee

- (1) The Reservation Permit Fee shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) The Reservation Permit Fee in respect of each Reservation Permit issued shall be:
 - (a) the sum of £25; together with
 - (b) for each Parking Space to which the Reservation Permit is to apply or, if there are no Parking Spaces for each length of 6.6 metres of the Parking Bay to which the Reservation Permit is to apply, the sum of £15 per day for each day for which the Reservation Permit is to be a Valid Reservation Permit.

71. Acceptance of the Reservation Permit Offer

- (1) The person who made a Reservation Permit Application may accept a Reservation Permit Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (1) are that person who made a Reservation Permit Application (being, in the case of a Business which is not a sole trader or a Charity, a duly authorised officer):
 - (a) Signs a copy of the Reservation Permit Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the Reservation Permit Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Reservation Permit Fee as specified in the Reservation Permit Offer.

72. Issue of Reservation Permit

(1) Without prejudice to paragraph (2), once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Reservation Permit Offer and the Reservation Permit Fee referred to in

- paragraph (2) of Article 71, it may issue a Reservation Permit to the person who made a Reservation Permit Application.
- (2) The Council may issue a Reservation Permit, whether pursuant to a Reservation Permit Application or otherwise.
- (2) A Reservation Permit shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Reservation Permit Offer and shall contain the Relevant Information.

Season Tickets

73. Season Ticket Application

- (1) A Resident may at any time make a Season Ticket Application in respect of a Motor Car, Invalid Carriage or Motor Cycle.
- (2) A Season Ticket Application shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect; and
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a) shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The name of the Resident;
 - (ii) The City Centre Property which is his sole or principal place of residence;
 - (iii) The make, model, colour and Registration Mark of the vehicle in respect of which the Season Ticket is being requested; and
 - (iv) Where the Resident knows the date on which he will, or is reasonably likely to, cease to be a Resident, that date.
- (3) A Resident making a Season Ticket Application shall produce to the Council a copy of:
 - (a) A valid Registration Certificate in respect of the vehicle in respect of which the Season Ticket is being requested; and
 - (b) At least one of the following documents:
 - (i) A Tenancy Agreement naming the Resident as lessee or tenant of the City Centre Property for an unexpired term including the whole of the period for which they are asking that the Season Ticket be issued;
 - (ii) A Council Tax Statement addressed to the Resident at the City Centre Property;
 - (iii) A Bank Statement addressed to the Resident at the City Centre Property;
 - (iv) A Utility Bill addressed to the Resident at the City Centre Property; or
 - (v) Such other document as the Council may, at its absolute discretion, approve.
- (4) Where the vehicle in respect of which a Season Ticket Application has been made is a Work Vehicle, the Resident making the Application shall produce to the Council evidence that the Resident is precluded from registering the vehicle named in the Application in his name because the vehicle is a Work Vehicle.
- (5) Without prejudice to paragraphs (3) or (4), the Council may at any time require a Resident who has made a Season Ticket Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of

the particulars or information given in or with the Application, including, for the avoidance of doubt, the original of any document specified in paragraph (3).

74. Season Ticket Offer

- (1) In the event that the conditions set out in paragraph (2) are satisfied the Council may make a Season Ticket Offer.
- (2) The conditions referred to in paragraph (1) are that the Council is satisfied that:
 - (a) The person making the Season Ticket Application is:
 - A Resident of the City Centre Property specified in the Season Ticket Application who uses that City Centre Property as his sole or principal place of residence;
 - (ii) The City Centre Property referred to in sub-paragraph (i) is not an Eligible Property; and
 - (iii) Either:
 - (A) Both:
 - (I) The Registered Keeper of the vehicle named in the Season Ticket Application; and
 - (II) Specified on the Registration Certificate of that vehicle as residing at the City Centre Property specified in the Season Ticket Application; or
 - (B) Precluded from registering the vehicle named in the Season Ticket Application in his name because the vehicle is a Work Vehicle.
 - (b) The vehicle in respect of which the Season Ticket Application is made is of a type which may use the Parking Places with Parking Meters within the streets which are to be named on the Season Ticket; and
 - (c) The maximum number of Season Tickets which may be issued in relation to that City Centre Property, calculated in accordance with Article 75, would not be exceeded if the Council issued a Season Ticket as a result of the acceptance by the Resident of the Season Ticket Offer.
- (3) A Season Ticket Offer shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which a Season Ticket is being offered to the Resident;
 - (b) Specify the streets in which, in Parking Places with Parking Meters, the Season Ticket may be used; and
 - (c) Request the relevant Season Ticket Fee from the Resident.

75. Maximum Number of Season Tickets

- (1) Subject to paragraph (3) the maximum number of Season Tickets which the Council will issue in respect of a City Centre Property shall be two.
- (2) The Council shall keep a List of City Centre Streets.
- (3) The Council may, after consultation with the Councillors representing the Ward in which that street lies, include or remove a street within the City Centre from the List of City Centre Streets.
- (4) Where a street in the City Centre appears on the List of City Centre Streets:

- (a) Paragraph (1) shall not apply to that street; and
- (b) The maximum number of Season Tickets which the Council may issue in respect of an City Centre Property in that street shall be three.

76. Calculation of the Season Ticket Fee

- (1) The Season Ticket Fee shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) Subject to paragraphs (3) and (4) the Season Ticket Fee in respect of:
 - (a) A Season Ticket issued in respect of streets in City Centre Zone A shall be **£99** per annum;
 - (b) A Season Ticket issued in respect of streets in City Centre Zone B shall be £131 per annum; and
- (3) Subject to paragraph (4), where a Season Ticket is issued in respect of streets falling into both City Centre Zone A and City Centre Zone B, the Season Ticket Fee shall be £99 per annum.
- (4) Where the Council considers that the Low Emissions Discount Criteria apply to a vehicle in respect of which a Season Ticket Application has been made, the Season Ticket Fee specified in paragraph (2) shall be reduced by the Low Emissions Discount calculated in accordance with Article 86.
- (5) The Season Ticket Fee shall be calculated in accordance with the situation in existence when a Season Ticket Application is made, and shall take into account any Season Tickets previously issued and any discount previously applied.
- (6) Without prejudice to paragraphs (4) and (5), where a Season Ticket is issued for a period of less than 12 months the full Season Ticket Fee shall be payable.
- (7) Paragraph (8) applies where an Interim Season Ticket Fee has been paid to the Council pursuant to Article 71.
- (8) Where this paragraph applies:
 - (a) In the event that the Interim Season Ticket Fee exceeds the Season Ticket Fee, the Council shall refund the difference to the Resident who made payment and balance of the Interim Season Ticket Fee shall be deemed also to be the Season Ticket Fee:
 - (b) In the event that the Interim Season Ticket Fee is equal to the Season Ticket Fee, the Interim Season Ticket Fee shall be deemed also to be the Season Ticket Fee.
 - (c) In the event that the Season Ticket Fee exceeds Interim Season Ticket Fee, the Resident shall pay to the Council the difference between those two sums and, upon such payment, the Resident shall be deemed to have paid the whole of the Season Ticket Fee.
- (9) Nothing in paragraph (8) shall require the Council to refund to a Resident the Interim Season Ticket Fee in the event that it refuses a Season Ticket Application.

77. Acceptance of the Season Ticket Offer

- (1) A Resident may accept a Season Ticket Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (1) are that the Resident:
 - (a) Signs a copy of the Season Ticket Offer and returns it to the Council; and

(b) Submits with the Season Ticket Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Season Ticket Fee as specified in the Season Ticket Offer.

78. Issue of Season Ticket

- (1) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Season Ticket Offer and the Season Ticket Fee referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 77 it may issue a Season Ticket to the Resident who made the Season Ticket Application.
- (2) A Season Ticket shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Season Ticket Offer and shall contain the Relevant Information.
- (3) Where an Interim Season Ticket was issued in relation to the Season Ticket Application pursuant to which the Season Ticket was issued:
 - (a) The Season Ticket shall be treated as if it was issued on; and
 - (b) Unless issued for a period of less than 12 months, shall cease to be valid 12 months after.

the date when the Interim Season Ticket or, if more than one Interim Season Ticket was issued, the first Interim Season Ticket was issued.

(4) Notwithstanding sub-paragraph (3)(b), where an Interim Season Ticket was issued in relation to the Season Ticket Application pursuant to which a Season Ticket was issued for less than 12 months, the Season Ticket shall be treated as having been issued on the date when the Interim Season Ticket (or, if more than one Interim Season Ticket was issued, the first Interim Season Ticket) was issued.

79. Season Ticket Renewals

- (1) Subject to paragraph (3), where the Council has previously issued a Season Ticket to a Resident, the Council may issue a Season Ticket Renewal Notice to the Resident.
- (2) The Council will not issue Season Ticket Renewal Notice where either:
 - (a) The Resident has notified the Council in writing that he:
 - (i) Has ceased to be a Resident of the City Centre Property; or
 - (ii) Has ceased to be the Registered Keeper of the vehicle, to which the Season Ticket relates, or
 - (b) It is not satisfied that the conditions in paragraph (2) of Article 74 are satisfied.
- (3) Where sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) applies, the Council may require a person who has previously been issued with a Season Ticket to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the conditions in paragraph (2) of Article 74 as they may reasonably require to verify that those conditions are satisfied.
- (4) A Season Ticket Renewal Notice shall constitute a Season Ticket Offer and shall contain the information specified in paragraph (3) of Article 74.
- (5) Subject to paragraph (6) the Season Ticket Fee specified in a Season Ticket Renewal Notice shall be calculated in accordance with Article 76.
- (6) Where the Season Ticket Renewal Notice:
 - (a) Has been issued in respect of a Season Ticket which was issued for a period of less than 12 months; and
 - (b) Makes a Season Ticket Offer for a Season Ticket which is also to be valid for a period of less than 12 months,

- then, provided that the aggregate of the two periods referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) is not more than 12 months, the Season Ticket Fee shall be $\underline{\mathbf{£0}}$.
- (7) A Season Ticket Offer made by Season Ticket Renewal Notice pursuant to paragraph (4) shall be subject to the same provisions regarding its acceptance as are specified in Article 77.
- (8) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Season Ticket Offer made in the Season Ticket Renewal Notice, and the Season Ticket Fee referred to in paragraph (5), it may issue a Season Ticket to the Resident.
- (9) A Season Ticket issued pursuant to paragraph (8) shall be issued in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Season Ticket Offer contained in the Season Ticket Renewal Notice, and shall contain the Relevant Information.
- (10) Nothing in this Article shall prevent a Resident from making a Season Ticket Application pursuant to Article 73, whether to renew a Season Ticket or otherwise.

Interim Season Tickets

80. Interim Season Ticket Offer

- (1) Paragraph (2) shall apply in circumstances where it appears to the Council that:
 - (a) A Resident has made a Season Ticket Application; and
 - (b) The Resident referred to in paragraph (a):
 - (i) Does not, at the time of the said application, satisfy the relevant conditions specified in paragraph (2) of Article 74; or
 - (ii) Are unable at the time of the said application to produce to the Council the documents specified in paragraphs (3) or (4) of Article 73.
- (2) Where the circumstances specified in sub-paragraph (1) apply to a Season Ticket Application, the Council may make an Interim Season Ticket Offer to that Resident if it is reasonably satisfied that the person who made the said application will in the near future:
 - (a) Satisfy the relevant conditions specified in paragraph (2) of Article 74; or
 - (b) Be able to produce to the Council the documents specified in paragraphs (3) or (4) of paragraphs (3) or (4) of Article 73.
- (3) An Interim Season Ticket Offer made pursuant to paragraph (2) of this Article, or paragraph (9) of Article 87, shall:
 - (a) Set out the terms and conditions on which an Interim Season Ticket is being offered;
 - (b) Specify the streets in which, in Parking Places with Parking Meters, the Season Ticket may be used; and
 - (c) Specify the period for which an Interim Season Ticket is being offered, being the period during which it would be valid.
 - (d) Subject to Article 81, request the relevant Interim Season Ticket Fee from the person who made the Season Ticket Application.

81. Interim Season Ticket Fee

- (1) The Interim Season Ticket Fee shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) Subject to paragraph (3) the Interim Season Ticket Fee shall be an amount equal to the Season Ticket Fee which would be applicable if the Season Ticket Application was successful.

(3) The Interim Season Ticket Fee in respect of an Interim Season Ticket Offer made pursuant to paragraph (9) of Article 87 shall be £0.

82. Acceptance of the Interim Season Ticket Offer

- (1) A Resident who made a Season Ticket Application may accept a Season Ticket Offer by complying with the conditions specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The conditions specified in paragraph (2) are that the Resident:
 - (a) Signs a copy of the Interim Season Ticket Offer and returns it to the Council; and
 - (b) Submits with the Interim Season Ticket Offer referred to in sub-paragraph (a) the Interim Season Ticket Fee as specified in the Interim Season Ticket Offer.

83. Issue of Interim Season Ticket

- (1) Once the Council is in receipt of the signed copy of the Interim Season Ticket Offer and the Interim Season Ticket Fee referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 81, it may issue an Interim Season Ticket to the Resident who made the Season Ticket Application.
- (2) An Interim Season Ticket issued pursuant to paragraph (1) of this Article, or paragraph (9) of Article 87, shall be issued:
 - (a) In accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Interim Season Ticket Offer:
 - (b) Contain the Relevant Information applicable to a Season Ticket; and
 - (c) Shall be issued so as to be valid for such period, not exceeding 28 days, as appears to the Council to be reasonable in the circumstances.

84. Interim Season Ticket Renewals

- (1) Subject to paragraph (2), following the issue of an Interim Season Ticket the Council may at any time, issue a further Interim Season Ticket in accordance with Article 83.
- (2) Paragraph (1) shall not apply in the event that:
 - (a) The Season Ticket Application, pursuant to which the Interim Season Ticket was issued, has been refused; or
 - (b) A Season Ticket has been granted, pursuant to the Season Ticket Application, in relation to which the Interim Season Ticket was issued.

General

85. Aggregation of Business Permits and Charity Permits

No more than an aggregate of ten Non-Residential Permits shall be issued in respect of any Eligible Property.

86. Low Emissions Discount

- (1) Where Low Emissions Discount applies under this Part of the Order, it shall be calculated in accordance with this Article.
- (2) In respect of Resident Permits, the Low Emissions Discount shall:
 - (a) In respect of a Resident Permit Application relating to the first Resident Permit to be issued in respect of an Eligible Property, be £10.

- (b) In respect of a Resident Permit Application relating to the second Resident Permit to be issued in respect of an Eligible Property:
 - (i) If no reduction has been made to the Resident Permit Fee charged for the first Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (a), be £10; or
 - (ii) If a reduction has been made to the Resident Permit Fee charged for the first Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (a), be £20
- (c) In respect of a Resident Permit Application relating to the third Resident Permit to be issued in respect of an Eligible Property:
 - (i) If no reduction has been made to the Resident Permit Fee charged for:
 - (A) The first Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (a); and
 - (B) The second Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (b), be £10;
 - (ii) If:
 - (A) No reduction has been made to the Resident Permit Fee charged for the first Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (a); and
 - (B) A reduction has been made to the Resident Permit Fee charged for the second Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (b),

be **£20**;

- (iii) If:
 - (A) A reduction has been made to the Resident Permit Fee charged for the First Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (a), and
 - (B) No reduction has been made to the Resident Permit Fee charged for the second Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (b);

be **£20**; or

- (iv) If a reduction has been made to the Resident Permit Fee charged for:
 - (A) The first Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (a); and
 - (B) The second Resident Permit pursuant to sub-paragraph (b), by £35
- (3) In respect of Business Permits, the Low Emissions Discount shall be:
 - (a) In respect of the first and second Business Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property, and to which Low Emissions Discount is applied, a sum equal to 50% of the Lower Business Rate.
 - (b) In respect of the third, fourth and fifth Business Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property, and to which Low Emissions Discount is applied, a sum equal to 50% of the Medium Business Rate.
 - (c) In respect of the sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth and tenth Business Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property, and to which Low Emissions Discount is applied, a sum equal to 50% of the Higher Business Rate.
- (4) In respect of Charity Permits, the Low Emissions Discount shall be:
 - (a) In respect of the third, fourth and fifth Charity Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property, and to which Low Emissions Discount is applied, a sum equal to 50% of the Medium Charity Rate.

- (b) In respect of the sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth and tenth Charity Permits issued in respect of an Eligible Property, and to which Low Emissions Discount is applied, a sum equal to 50% of the Higher Charity Rate.
- (5) In respect of Season Tickets, the Low Emissions Discount shall be a sum equal to 50% of the Season Ticket Fee which would otherwise apply.
- (6) Low Emissions Discount shall be calculated in accordance with the situation in existence when an application for a Parking Permit or Season Ticket is made, and shall take into account any Parking Permits or Season Ticket previously issued and any discount previously applied.

87. Change of Vehicle

- (1) This Article applies to any Resident Permit, Business Permit, Charity Permit, Week Category 4 Supplementary Permit, or Season Ticket which includes, on its face when issued, as part of the Relevant Information, the Registration Mark of a vehicle, and is valid for a period exceeding one day.
- (2) Where the person to whom a Parking Permit or Season Ticket of a type described in paragraph (1) has been issued wishes to amend the Parking Permit or Season Ticket to include details of a different vehicle, he may make a Change of Vehicle Application to the Council.
- (3) A Change of Vehicle Application made pursuant to paragraph (2) shall:
 - (a) Be made in writing on a form issued by the Council which is returned to the Council completed in every material respect;
 - (b) Without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a), shall contain the following information:
 - (i) The Permit Number of the Parking Permit, or Serial Number of the Season Ticket, which is to be amended; and
 - (ii) The make, model, colour and registration number of the vehicle in respect of which the Amended Parking Permit or Amended Season Ticket is being requested.
- (4) The person making a Change of Vehicle Application shall produce to the Council a valid Registration Certificate in respect of the vehicle in respect of which the Change of Vehicle Application has been made.
- (5) Without prejudice to paragraph (4) the Council may at any time require a person who has made a Change of Vehicle Application to produce to the Council such evidence in respect of the Change of Vehicle Application as it may reasonably require to verify any of the particulars or information given in the Change of Vehicle Application.
- (6) Subject to paragraph (7), following receipt of a Change of Vehicle Application the Council shall make one of the following determinations:
 - (a) To issue an Amended Parking Permit or Amended Season Ticket; or
 - (b) To request further information; or
 - (c) To refuse to issue an Amended Parking Permit or Amended Season Ticket.
- (7) In considering its determination pursuant to paragraph (6) the Council shall have regard to the conditions which had to be fulfilled, as the case may be:
 - (i) Before it made the Parking Permit Offer relating to the Parking Permit; or
 - (ii) Before it made the Season Ticket Offer relating to the Season Ticket, in respect of which the Change of Vehicle Application has been made.

- (8) In the event that the Council makes the determination specified in paragraph (6)(a):
 - (a) The Council shall issue an Amended Parking Permit, or an Amended Season Ticket, to the person making the Change of Vehicle Application; and
 - (b) The person to whom the Council issues:
 - (i) An Amended Parking Permit, shall return the previous Parking Permit;
 - (ii) An Amended Season Ticket, shall return the previous Season Ticket, to the Council.
- (9) In the event that the Council makes the determination specified in paragraph (6)(b), the Council may make:
 - (a) An Interim Permit Offer, pursuant to paragraph (3) of Article 63, in respect of the vehicle which is the subject of the Change of Vehicle Application; or
 - (b) An Interim Season Ticket Offer, pursuant to paragraph (3) of Article80, in respect of the vehicle which is the subject of the Change of Vehicle Application.

88. Refunds

- (1) A Resident Permit, Business Permit, Charity Permit or Season Ticket may be surrendered to the Council by the person to whom it has been issued by returning it to the Council.
- (2) In the event that a Resident Permit surrendered to the Council pursuant to paragraph (1) is, on the date when it is received by the Council, still valid for a period in excess of six calendar months, the Council shall refund to the person from whom it received the Resident Permit Fee a sum equal to 50% of the Resident Permit Fee which it received, less an administration charge of £10.
- (3) In the event that a Business Permit surrendered to the Council pursuant to paragraph (1) is, on the date when it is received by the Council, still valid for a period in excess of six calendar months, the Council shall refund to the person who from whom it received the Business Permit Fee a sum equal to 50% of the Business Permit Fee which it received, less an administration charge of £10.
- (4) In the event that a Charity Permit surrendered to the Council pursuant to paragraph (1) is, on the date when it is received by the Council, still valid for a period in excess of six calendar months, the Council shall refund to the person who from whom it received the Charity Permit Fee a sum equal to 50% of the Charity Permit Fee which it received, less an administration charge of £10.
- (5) In the event that a Season Ticket surrendered to the Council pursuant to paragraph (1) is, on the date when it is received by the Council, still valid for a period in excess of six calendar months, the Council shall refund to the person who from whom it received the Season Ticket Fee a sum equal to 50% of the Season Ticket Fee which it received, less an administration charge of £10.
- (6) Save as specified above, the Council shall not be obliged to make any refund in respect of surrendered Parking Permits or surrendered Season Tickets whatsoever.

89. Lost or Stolen Permits and Season Tickets

(1) In the event that the Council is reasonably satisfied that a Resident Permit, Visitor Permit, Reservation Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device has been lost or stolen the Council may, upon payment of a £10 administration charge, issue a replacement Resident Permit, Visitor Permit,

Reservation Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device.

- (2) In the event that the Council is reasonably satisfied that a Business Permit has been lost or stolen the Council may:
 - (a) In respect of a Business Permit on which, as part of the Relevant Information, there is included the Registration Mark of a vehicle, upon payment of a £10 administration charge, issue a replacement Business Permit; or
 - (b) In respect of a Business Permit on which, as part of the Relevant Information, there is not included the Registration Mark of a vehicle, upon payment of a sum equal to the Lower Business Rate applicable to the Eligible Property in respect of which the Business Permit was issued, issue a replacement Business Permit.
- (3) In the event that the Council is reasonably satisfied that a Charity Permit has been lost or stolen the Council may:
 - (a) In respect of a Charity Permit on which, as part of the Relevant Information, there is included the Registration Mark of a vehicle, upon payment of a £10 administration charge, issue a replacement Charity Permit; or
 - (b) In respect of a Charity Permit on which, as part of the Relevant Information, there is not included the Registration Mark of a vehicle, upon payment of a sum equal to the Medium Charity Rate applicable to the Eligible Property in respect of which the Charity Permit was issued, issue a replacement Charity Permit.
- (4) Save as specified above, the Council will not issue any replacement Parking Permits, Season Tickets, Interim Season Tickets or Article 17 Parking Devices whatsoever.

90. Mutilated or Defaced Permits and Season Tickets

- (1) If, in the reasonable opinion of the Council, a Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device is mutilated or defaced, or the Relevant Information on it has become illegible, or the colour has become altered or faded by fading or otherwise, the Council shall, by giving 7 days' notice, be entitled to require the person to whom that Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device was issued to return the Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device, in order that it can be reissued and, upon receipt of the Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device may issue a replacement thereof.
- (2) An administration charge of £25 shall be payable to the Council in respect of the reissue of a Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device, pursuant to paragraph (1).
- (3) The Council may refuse to issue a replacement Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device, pursuant to paragraph (1), until such time as it has received the administration charge specified in paragraph (2).

91. Cancellation of Permits and Season Tickets

- (1) The Council may cancel a Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device by serving a notice in writing on the person to whom the Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device was issued, in the circumstances specified in paragraph (2).
- (2) The circumstances referred to in paragraph (1) are that:

- (a) The Council is reasonably satisfied, in respect of a Resident Permit, that any of the conditions referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 28 are no longer satisfied; or
- (b) The Council is reasonably satisfied, in respect of a Visitor Permit, that any of the conditions referred to in paragraph (6) of Article 34 are no longer satisfied; or
- (c) The Council is reasonably satisfied, in respect of a Business Permit, that any of the conditions referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 38 are no longer satisfied; or
- (d) The Council is reasonably satisfied, in respect of a Charity Permit, that any of the conditions referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 44 are no longer satisfied; or
- (e) The Council is reasonably satisfied, in respect of a Supplementary Permit, that any of the conditions referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 54 which apply to that Category of Supplementary Permit are no longer satisfied; or
- (f) The Council is reasonably satisfied, in respect of a Public Authority Permit, that any of the conditions referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 60 are no longer satisfied; or
- (g) The Council is reasonably satisfied, in respect of a Season Ticket, that any of the conditions referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 74 are no longer satisfied; or
- (h) A Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device is not returned to the Council pursuant to paragraph (1) of Article 90 before the end of the notice period specified in that paragraph; or
- (i) A Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device is returned to the Council pursuant to paragraph (1) of Article 90, in circumstances where the administration charge referred to in paragraph (2) of Article 90 has not been paid; or
- (j) The Council is reasonably satisfied that the person to whom a Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device has been issued:
 - (i) Has provided false, misleading or inaccurate information in any application which led to the issue of that Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device;
 - (ii) Has caused or permitted any term or condition on which the Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device was issued to be breached; or
 - (iii) Has caused or permitted the misuse of the Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device, whether pursuant to Article 92 or otherwise.
- (3) With effect from the date of service of the notice referred to in paragraph (1):
 - (a) If the notice relates to a Parking Permit, the Parking Permit to which the notice relates shall cease to be a Valid Parking Permit;
 - (b) If the notice relates to a Reservation Permit, the Reservation Permit to which the notice relates shall cease to be a Valid Reservation Permit
 - (c) If the notice relates to a Season Ticket, the Season Ticket to which the notice relates shall cease to be a Valid Season Ticket;

- (d) If the notice relates to an Interim Season Ticket, the Interim Season Ticket to which the notice relates shall cease to be a Valid Interim Season Ticket; and
- (e) If the notice relates to an Article 17 Parking Device the Article 17 Parking Device to which the notice relates shall cease to be a valid Article 17 Parking Device.
- (4) With effect from the date when an Amended Parking Permit or Amended Season Ticket is issued pursuant to Article 87(8)(a), the Parking Permit or Season Ticket which was the subject of the Change of Vehicle Application shall, without any further action by the Council, be cancelled and shall cease to be a Valid Parking Permit or a Valid Season Ticket.
- (5) With effect from the date when a replacement Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device is issued pursuant to paragraph (1) of Article 89, the Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device which was lost or stolen shall, without any further action by the Council, be cancelled and shall cease to be a Valid Parking Permit, Valid Reservation Permit, Valid Season Ticket, Valid Interim Season Ticket or valid Article 17 Parking Device.

(6) With effect from:

- (i) The date when a Valid Parking Permit (not being an Interim Permit) is issued pursuant to a Resident Permit Application, a Business Permit Application or a Charity Permit Application; or
- (ii) The date when a Season Ticket (not being an Interim Season Ticket) is issued pursuant to a Season Ticket Application,
- any Interim Permit or Interim Season Ticket issued as a result of that application shall, without any further action by the Council, be cancelled and shall cease to be a Valid Parking Permit or a Valid Season Ticket.
- (7) With effect from the date when a replacement Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device is issued pursuant to paragraph (1) of Article 90, the Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device which was returned to the Council shall, without any further action by the Council, be cancelled and shall cease to be a Valid Parking Permit, Valid Reservation Permit, Valid Season Ticket, Valid Interim Season Ticket or valid Article 17 Parking Device.
- (8) No refund shall be payable in respect of any unexpired term of a Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device which is cancelled pursuant to this Article.

92. Misuse of Permits

- (1) Where a Permit, Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device has been displayed on a vehicle in the Specified Position, no person, not being the driver of the vehicle, shall remove the Permit. Season Ticket, Interim Season Ticket or Article 17 Parking Device from the vehicle, unless authorised to do so by the driver of the vehicle.
- (2) No person shall cause or permit:
 - (a) A Resident Permit to be displayed on any vehicle which is not a vehicle specified in the Relevant Information on that Resident Permit;
 - (b) A Visitor Permit to be displayed on a vehicle which is not in use by a Visitor to the Eligible Property in respect of which the Visitor Permit was issued.

- (c) Where a Business Permit relates to specified vehicle, a Business Permit to be displayed on any vehicle which is not a vehicle specified in the Relevant Information on that Business Permit;
- (d) A Business Permit to be displayed on any vehicle which is not a vehicle which is in use by the Business to whom the Business Permit was issued or a visitor to that Business.
- (e) Where a Charity Permit relates to specified vehicle, a Charity Permit to be displayed on any vehicle which is not a vehicle specified in the Relevant Information on that Charity Permit;
- (f) A Charity Permit to be displayed on any vehicle which is not a vehicle which is in use by the Charity to whom the Charity Permit was issued or a visitor to that Charity.
- (g) A Category 1 Supplementary Permit to be displayed on a vehicle which is not in use by a Visitor to the Eligible Property in respect of which the Visitor Permit was issued;
- (h) A Category 2 Supplementary Permit to be displayed otherwise than on a vehicle which is in use by the Landlord of an Eligible Property or a Management Agent appointed by that Landlord to manage that Eligible Property to whom the Category 2 Supplementary Permit was issued.
- (i) A Category 3 Supplementary Permit to be displayed otherwise than on a vehicle which is in use by the Business to whom the Category 3 Supplementary Permit was issued, or a visitor to that Business.
- (j) A Category 4 Supplementary Permit to be displayed otherwise than on a vehicle which is in use by the Tradesman to whom the Category 4 Supplementary Permit was issued.
- (k) A Category 5 Supplementary Permit to be displayed otherwise than on a vehicle which is in use by the Ward Member to whom the Category 5 Supplementary Permit was issued.
- (I) A Public Authority Permit to be displayed otherwise than on a vehicle which is in use by a Public Authority;
- (m) Where an Interim Permit relates to specified vehicle, an Interim Permit to be displayed on any vehicle which is not a vehicle specified in the Relevant Information on that Interim Permit.
- (n) A Season Ticket to be displayed on any vehicle which is not a vehicle specified in the Relevant Information on that Season Ticket; or
- (o) An Interim Season Ticket to be displayed on any vehicle which is not a vehicle specified in the Relevant Information on that Interim Season Ticket.
- (3) No person shall make, or attempt to make, a copy of any Permit or Season Ticket, or write on, or otherwise tamper with it, or the Relevant Information shown on it.

93. Savings/Transitional Provisions

- (1) Subject to paragraph (8), any:
 - (a) Residents permit issued pursuant to the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001; or
 - (b) Residents exemption permit issued pursuant to the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001,

shall have effect as if it is a Valid Resident Permit issued pursuant to this Order and, for the purposes of paragraph (1) of Article 33 of this Order, that permit shall be treated as a Resident Permit previously issued to a Resident.

- (2) Subject to paragraph (8), a visitor's permit issued pursuant to the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001 or the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001 shall have effect as if it is a Valid Visitor Permit issued pursuant to this Order and, for the purposes of paragraph (1) of Article 36 of this Order, that permit shall be treated as Visitor Permit previously issued to a Resident.
- (3) Subject to paragraphs (4) and (8), a business exemption permit issued pursuant to the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001 or the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001 shall have effect as if it is a Valid Business Permit issued pursuant to this Order and, for the purposes of paragraph (1) of Article 42 of this Order, that permit shall be treated as Business Permit previously issued to a Business.
- (4) Subject to paragraph (8), paragraph (3) shall not apply to a business exemption permit issued pursuant to:
 - (a) Sub-paragraph (4)(c) of Article 23 of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001; or
 - (b) Sub-paragraph (4)(c)(i) of Article 18 of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001; or
 - (c) Sub-paragraph (4)(c)(i) of Article 31 of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001,

and such a permit shall instead have effect as if it is a Valid Charity Permit issued pursuant to this Order and, for the purposes of paragraph (1) of Article 48 of this Order, that permit shall be treated as Charity Permit previously issued to a Charity.

- (5) Subject to paragraph (8), a reservation permit issued pursuant to the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001 or the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001 shall have effect as if it is a Valid Reservation Permit issued pursuant to this Order.
- (6) Subject to paragraph (8), any:
 - (a) Residents exemption permit issued pursuant to the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001; or
 - (b) Resident's discount permit issued pursuant to the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2001,

shall have effect as if it is a Valid Season Ticket issued pursuant to this Order and, for the purposes of paragraph (1) of Article 79 of this Order, that permit shall be treated as Season Ticket previously issued to a Resident.

- (7) Articles 87 and 89 to 92 shall apply to a permit described in paragraphs (1) to (6) above, which has been issued under the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001, the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001, or the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2001, as if that permit is a Permit or Season Ticket issued pursuant to this Order.
- (8) Upon the date of expiry of a permit described in paragraphs (1) to (6) above, which has been issued under the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001, the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001, or the City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2001,

- that permit shall cease to be a Valid Parking Permit, or, as the case may be a Valid Reservation Permit or Valid Season Ticket, for the purposes of this Order.
- (9) The savings contained in Article shall cease to have effect one year after the date on which this Order is made.

PART 6

Contraventions

94. Penalty Charge

- (1) If a vehicle is left at any time in such a manner that there is a contravention of this Order, a Penalty Charge shall be payable.
- (2) Where a Penalty Charge is payable under the provisions of Part VI of the 2004 Act, the penalty charge shall be set at Band 2 as defined in the Civil Enforcement of Parking Contraventions (Guidelines on Levels of Charges) (England) Order 2007.

95. Penalty Charge Notice

- (1) In the case of a vehicle in respect of which a Penalty Charge is payable pursuant to Article 94, a Penalty Charge Notice may then be issued by a Civil Enforcement Officer.
- (2) The particulars given in a Penalty Charge Notice issued in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (2) shall be treated as evidence of those particulars in any proceedings arising as a result of the issue of that Penalty Charge Notice.

Evidence

96. Parking Meters, Tickets and Season Tickets

- (1) If, at any time during the Charge Period specified in Column 3 of Schedule 10 or 12, a vehicle is left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 or 12, where there is a Parking Meter which is not a Ticket Machine, in circumstances where the Parking Meter relating to the Parking Space in which the vehicle is left displays a series of figure zeros, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Charge specified in Column 4 of Schedules 10, or, as the case may be, Schedule 12 has not been duly paid.
- (2) If, at any time during the Charge Period specified in Column 3 of Schedule 10 or 12, a vehicle is left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 or 12, where there is a Parking Meter which is a Ticket Machine, in circumstances where no Ticket is displayed on that vehicle in the Specified Position, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Charge specified in Column 4 of Schedule 10, or, as the case may be, Schedule 12 has not been duly paid.
- (3) If, at any time during the Charge Period specified in Column 3 of Schedule 10 or 12, a vehicle is left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 or 12, where there is a Parking Meter which is a Ticket Machine, in circumstances where the time shown on the clock on the Parking Meter relating to the Parking Space in which the vehicle is left is later than the time of expiry of the period for which the Ticket was issued as specified in the Relevant Information shown on the Ticket displayed on the vehicle, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Charge specified Column 4 of Schedules 10, or, as the case may be, Schedule 12 has been duly paid and that the period for which payment was made has expired.
- (4) If, at any time during the Charge Period specified in Column 3 of Schedule 10 or 12, a vehicle is left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 or 12, in

- circumstances where there is not displayed on the vehicle in the Relevant Position a Valid Season Ticket, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Season Ticket Fee has not been duly paid.
- (5) If, at any time during the Charge Period specified in Column 3 of Schedule 10 or 12, a vehicle is left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 10 or 12, in circumstances where there is not displayed on the vehicle in the Relevant Position a Valid Interim Season Ticket, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Interim Season Ticket Fee has not been duly paid.

97. Permits

- (1) If, at any time during the Charge Period specified in Column 3 of Schedule 11, 12 or 13, a vehicle is left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 11, 12 or 13, in circumstances where there is not displayed on the vehicle in the Relevant Position:
 - (a) A Valid Resident Permit, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Resident Permit Fee has not been duly paid;
 - (b) A Valid Visitor Permit, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Visitor Permit Fee has not been duly paid;
 - (c) A Valid Business Permit, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Business Permit Fee has not been duly paid;
 - (d) A Valid Charity Permit, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Charity Permit Fee has not been duly paid;
 - (e) A Valid Supplementary Permit, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Supplementary Permit Fee has not been duly paid;
 - (f) A Valid Public Authority Permit, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Public Authority Permit Fee has not been duly paid;
 - (g) A Valid Interim Permit, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Interim Permit Fee has not been duly paid.
- (2) If, at any time during a period when a Parking Place or part of a Parking Place is a Suspended Parking Place, a vehicle is left in a Parking Place described in Column 2 of Schedule 11, 12 or 13, in circumstances where there is not displayed on the vehicle in the Relevant Position a Valid Reservation Permit, it shall be presumed, unless the contrary is proved, that the Reservation Permit Fee has not been duly paid.

Given under the Common Seal of the Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne this 23rd day of February 2009

THE COMMON SEAL of the)
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THE)
CITY OF NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE	ĺ
was hereunto affixed in the presence of:-)

Lord Mayor

SCHEDULE 1 REVOKED ORDERS

Part I

Orders Wholly Revoked

- 1. City of Newcastle upon Tyne (On Street Parking Places) Order 2001
- 2. City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 2001
- 3. City of Newcastle upon Tyne (Miscellaneous Parking Places) Order 1993

Part II

Orders Revoked in Part

Column 1
Title of Order

Parts Revoked

None

None

SCHEDULE 2

PARKING PLACES WITH LIMITED WAITING

Part 1 – GENERAL

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.1	ACORN ROAD – north side from a point 4 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Osborne Road to a point 7 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Sanderson Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.2	ACORN ROAD – north side, from a point 12.5 metres west of the western kerbline of Sanderson Road to a point 5 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Back St George's Terrace East	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.3	ACORN ROAD – north side, from a point 4 metres west of the western kerbline of Back St George's Terrace East to a point 12 metres east of its junction with St George's Terrace	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.4	ACORN ROAD – south side, from a point 1 metre east of its eastern kerbline with Back Osborne Road West eastwards for 9.5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.5	ACORN ROAD – south side, from a point 5 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Osborne Road West to a point 7 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Larkspur Terrace	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.6	ACORN ROAD – south side, from a point 12.5 metres west of the western kerbline of Larkspur Terrace to a point 5 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Back St George's Terrace East	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.7	ACORN ROAD – south side, from a point 4 metres west of the western kerbline of Back St George's Terrace East to a point 13 metres east of its junction with St George's Terrace	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.8	AINTHORPE GARDENS (pick up/drop off area to west of central island) - south east side, from a point 26 metres north east of its junction with Ainthorpe Gardens north eastwards for 14 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.9	AINTHORPE GARDENS (pick up/drop off area to east of central island) - north west side, from a point 26 metres north east of its junction with Ainthorpe Gardens north eastwards for 14 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.10	BACK OSBORNE ROAD WEST – east side, from a point 2.5 metres south of its junction with Acorn Road southwards for 11.5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.11	BACK OSBORNE ROAD WEST – west side, from a point 4 metres north of its junction with Acorn Road northwards for 5.5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.12	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE EAST – west side, from a point 2 metres north of its junction with Acorn Road northwards for 10.5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.13	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE EAST – east side, from a point 2 metres south of its junction with Acorn Road southwards for 8 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.14	BACK SHIELDS ROAD (NORTH) – north side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Molineux Street eastwards for 70 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	30 minutes	1 hour
2.15	BACK SHIELDS ROAD (NORTH) – north side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Molineux Street to a point 9 metres west of its junction with Flora Street.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.16	BACK SHIELDS ROAD (NORTH) – north side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Flora Street to a point 17 metres west of its junction with Edwin Street.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.17	BREAMISH STREET – layby on the south side of Breamish Street - south side, from a point 130 metres to the east of Crawhall Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 65 metres.	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	2 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.18	BREAMISH STREET/ST ANN'S CLOSE Parking Place on the north side of Breamish Street and to the south of Nos. 65-76 and 115 -130 St Ann's Close – the whole length of the parking place	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.19	BREAMISH STREET/ST ANN'S CLOSE Parking Place on the north side of Breamish Street and to the south of Nos. 53-64 and 203-218 St Ann's Close – the whole length of the parking place	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.20	BREAMISH STREET/ST ANN'S YARD - Unnamed access road to the east of Breamish Street and to the north of St Ann's Yard – north side, for its whole length.	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.21	BRIGHTON GROVE – east side, from its junction with Back Belsay Place North to its junction with Callerton Place	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.22	CHILLINGHAM ROAD - east side, from a point 17 metres south of its junction with Cartington Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 18 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.23	CHILLINGHAM ROAD - east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Tosson Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 40 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.24	CHILLINGHAM ROAD - east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Trewhitt Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 20 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.25	CHILLINGHAM ROAD - east side, from a point 15 metres south of its junction with Simonside Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 34 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.26	CHILLINGHAM ROAD - east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 30 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.27	CHILLINGHAM ROAD – west side, from a point 20 metres north of its junction with Rothbury Terrace in a northerly direction for a distance of 14 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.28	CHILLINGHAM ROAD – west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 23 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.29	CHILLINGHAM ROAD – west side, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Simonside Terrace to a point 5 metres south of its junction with Back Simonside Terrace North	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.30	CHILLINGHAM ROAD – west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Trewhitt Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 20 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.31	CHILLINGHAM ROAD – west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Trewhitt Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 40 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.32	CHILLINGHAM ROAD – west side, from a point 11 metres south of its junction with Cartington Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 37 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.33	CHURCHILL STREET - north side, from a point 47.5 metres east of its junction with St James Boulevard in an easterly direction for a distance of 14 metres	All days All times	30 minutes	1 hour
2.34	CLAYTON ROAD – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Brandling Park eastwards to a point 7 metres west of its junction with Clayton Park Square	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.35	CLAYTON ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres east of Clayton Park Square eastwards for 6 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.36	COQUET STREET/ST ANN'S CLOSE Parking place to the south of Coquet Street and to the north east of Nos. 23-31 and 155- 178 St Ann's Close - south west side, from a point 7 metres south east of Coquet Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 13 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	2 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.37	EDWIN STREET - both sides, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Shields Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.38	FLORA STREET - both sides, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Shields Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	30 minutes	1 hour
2.39	FLORA STREET – east side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Grafton Place to a point 9 metres north of its junction with Back Shields Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.40	GRAFTON STREET - both sides, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Shields Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.41	GRANGE ROAD, NEWBURN - north_east side, from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Station Road to a point 98 metres west of the said junction	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.42	HEADLAM STREET - both sides, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Shields Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.43	HEATON ROAD - west side, from a point 32 metres south of the south kerbline of North View southwards for a distance of 11 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am– 6.00pm	1 hour	1 hour
2.44	HEATON ROAD - west side, from a point 62 metres south of the south kerbline of North View southwards for a distance of 18 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am– 6.00pm	1 hour	1 hour
2.45	HEATON ROAD - west side, from a point 46 metres north of its junction with Shields Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 31 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.46	HEATON ROAD – west side, from a point 33 metres south of its junction with Tynemouth Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 55 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.47	HEATON ROAD – east side, from a point 27 metres south of its junction with Denmark Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 25 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.48	HEATON ROAD – east side, from a point 72 metres north of its junction with Shields Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.49	HEATON ROAD – east side, from a point 43 metres south of its junction with Tynemouth Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 13 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.50	HEATON ROAD – east side, from a point 69 metres south of its junction with Tynemouth Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.51	HEATON ROAD – east side, from a point 18 metres of the southern kerbline of Tynemouth Road southwards for 58 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	1 hour	1 hour
2.52	HOYLE AVENUE – east side, from a point 18 metres north of its junction with West Road to a point 8 metres south of its junction with Back West Road North	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.00pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.53	JESMOND ROAD – east side, from a point 13 metres south of its junction with Churchill Gardens in a southerly direction for a distance of 18 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.54	JESMOND ROAD – south east side, from a point 27 metres south west of its junction with Osborne Avenue in a south westerly direction for a distance of 60 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.55	JESMOND ROAD – west side, from a point 16 metres south of its junction with Shortridge Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 28 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.56	NUNS MOOR ROAD - south side, from a point 30 metres east of its junction with Wingrove Road to a point 8 metres west of its junction with Wingrove Avenue	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.57	OSBORNE ROAD - east side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Haldane Terrace in a northerly direction for a distance of 20 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.58	ROBINSON STREET - both sides, from a point 6 metres south of its junction with Shields Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
2.59	SHIELDS ROAD – north side, from a point 70 metres east of its junction with Heaton Road eastwards for 13 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	30 minutes	1 hour
2.60	SHIELDS ROAD – north side, from a point 18 metres west of its junction with Heaton Road westwards for 54 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	30 minutes	1 hour
2.61	SHIELDS ROAD – south side, from a point 20 metres east of its junction with Brinkburn Street eastwards for 28 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	30 minutes	1 hour
2.61A	SHIELDS ROAD – north side, from a point 102 metres west of its junction with Heaton Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 19 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.62	STARBECK AVENUE - north east side, from a point 20 metres south east of the junction with Sandyford Road in a south easterly direction for a distance of 31 metres	Monday to Friday except holidays 9.00am- 5.30pm	1 hour	4 hours
2.63	STARBECK AVENUE - north east side, from a point 71 metres south east of the junction with Sandyford Road in a south-easterly direction to the junction with Doncaster Road	Monday to Friday except holidays 9.00am- 5.30pm	1 hour	4 hours
2.64	STARBECK AVENUE - south west side, from a point 47 metres south east of the junction with Sandyford Road in a south-easterly direction to the junction with Doncaster Road	Monday to Friday except holidays 9.00am- 5.30pm	1 hour	4 hours
2.65	STARBECK AVENUE - both sides, from its junction with Doncaster Road in a southerly direction for 90 metres	Monday to Friday except holidays 9.00am- 5.30pm	1 hour	4 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.66	TYNEMOUTH ROAD - north side, extending from a point 12 metres east of the east kerbline of Heaton Road, eastwards to its junction with Back Heaton Road	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	1 hour	1 hour
2.67	TYNEMOUTH ROAD - south side, extending from a point 10 metres east of the east kerbline of Heaton Road, eastwards for a distance of 32 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	1 hour	1 hour
2.68	WARTON TERRACE – north side, from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Chillingham Road to a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Chillingham Road West	Monday to Saturday 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	6 hours
2.69	WEST ROAD – north side, from a point 12 metres west of the west kerbline of Hoyle Avenue westwards for 50 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.70	WEST ROAD – north side, from a point 12 metres east of the east kerbline of Hoyle Avenue eastwards for 53 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.71	WEST ROAD – north side, from a point 74 metres east of the east kerbline of Hoyle Avenue eastwards for 33 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.72	WEST ROAD – north side, from a point 40 metres west of the west kerbline of Gowland Avenue westwards for 36 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.73	WEST ROAD – north side, from a point 2 metres west of the east kerbline of Milvain Avenue to a point 17 metres east of the east kerbline of Milvain Avenue	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.74	WEST ROAD – north side, from a point 26 metres east of the east kerbline of Milvain Avenue eastwards for 35 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.75	WEST ROAD – south side, from the east kerbline of Ladykirk Road eastwards for 20 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.76	WEST ROAD - south side, from a point 28 metres east of the east kerbline of Hampstead Road eastwards for 15 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00.pm.	2 hours	2 hours
2.77	WEST ROAD – south side, from a point 29 metres west of the west kerbline of Hampstead Road westwards for 18 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.78	WEST ROAD – south side, from a point 58 metres west of the west kerbline of Hampstead Road westwards for 17 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.79	WEST ROAD – south side, from a point 10 metres east of the west kerbline of Farndale Road to a point 20 metres west of the west kerbline of Farndale Road	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.80	WEST ROAD – south side, from a point 38 metres east of the west kerbline of Strathmore Crescent to a point 24 metres west of the west kerbline of Strathmore Crescent	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.81	WEST ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres east of the east kerbline of Canning Street eastwards for 10 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.82	WEST ROAD – south side, from a point 10 metres west of the west kerbline of Canning Street westwards for 35 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.83	WEST ROAD – south side, from the west kerbline of its junction with Colston Street westwards for 15 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.84	WEST ROAD - south side, from a point 46 metres west of its junction with Fox and Hounds Lane in a westerly direction for a distance of 27 metres.	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00a.m-6.30pm	1 hour	2 hours
2.85	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 33 metres west of the west kerbline of Wingrove Road westwards for 75 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Days and Hours of Controlled Operation	Maximum Period of Stay	Return Prohibited Within
2.86	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from the west kerbline of Keldane Gardens westwards for 13 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.87	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 21 metres west of the west kerbline of Keldane Gardens westwards for 13 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.88	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 38 metres west of the west kerbline of Keldane Gardens westwards for 13 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.89	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 59 metres west of the west kerbline of Keldane Gardens westwards for 14 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.90	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from the west kerbline of Benwell Grove eastwards for 40 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.91	WESTGATE ROAD - north side, from a point 7 metres west of the west kerbline of Auden Grove westwards for 11 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.92	WESTGATE ROAD - north side, from a point 28 metres west of the west kerbline of Auden Grove westwards for 20 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.93	WESTGATE ROAD - north side, from the west kerbline of Lewis Drive westwards for 15 metres	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.00pm	2 hours	2 hours
2.94	WESTMORLAND ROAD - south side, from a point 55 metres east of its junction with George Street to a point 63 metres west of the west side of its junction with West Blandford Street	Monday to Saturday except holidays 8.00am- 6.30pm	1 hour	1 hour
2.95	WRETHAM PLACE, SHIELDFIELD - south side, in layby fronting Nos. 6 to 24	All days All times	30 minutes	1 hour

Part 2 - SHOPMOBILITY SCHEME

Column 1	Column 2
Number of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place
2.96	HANDYSIDE PLACE – east side, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Morden Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 35 metres.

Definition

In this Schedule, "holidays" means Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Good Friday and any Bank Holiday.

SCHEDULE 3 PARKING PLACES FOR DISABLED BADGE HOLDERS

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
3.1	ACORN ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres west of the western kerbline of Larkspur Terrace westwards for 6.5 metres	All days All times
3.2	ACORN ROAD – north side, from a point 6 metres west of the western kerbline of Sanderson Road westwards for 6.5 metres	All days All times
3.3	AKENSIDE HILL – north east side, from a point 11 metres north east of its junction with Queen Street in a north easterly direction for a distance of 12.5 metres.	All days All times
3.4	BACK BRANDLING PARK – east side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Back Clayton Road (South) in a northerly direction for a distance of 8 metres.	All days All times
3.5	BATH LANE – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Stowell Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.6	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 37 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	All days All times
3.7	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 158 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	All days All times
3.8	BIGG MARKET – south side, from a point 3.5 metres east of its junction with Pudding Chare in an easterly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	All days All times
3.9	BREAMISH STREET – south side, from a point 180 metres east of its junction with Crawhall Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	All days All times
3.10	BROAD CHARE – south west side, from a point 30.5 metres north west of its junction with Quayside in a north westerly direction for a distance of 13.5 metres.	8.00am – 6.30pm
3.11	BROOMFIELD ROAD - south east side, from a point 44 metres north east of its junction with North Avenue north eastwards for 6 metres	All days All times
3.12	BROOMFIELD ROAD - south east side, from a point 58.5 metres north east of its junction with North Avenue north eastwards for 11 metres	All days All times
3.13	BURDON TERRACE – north side, from a point 15 metres west of Tankerville Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	All days All times
3.14	CAMBRIDGE STREET – south side, from a point 120.5 metres north east of its junction with Essex Close in a north easterly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.15	CARLIOL SQUARE (WESTERN LENGTH) - east side from its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 7.5 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
3.16	CARLIOL SQUARE (EASTERN LENGTH) - west side, from a point 23.5 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern Length) in a southerly direction for distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.17	CASTLE GARTH – south west side, from a point 11.3 metres north of the south kerbline of Castle Garth northwards for 2.5 metres.	All days All times
3.18	CASTLE GARTH – north side, from a point 5.5 metres east of the west building line of the Castle Keep eastwards for 13.2 metres.	All days All times
3.19	CAUSEY STREET – north side, from a point 8.4 metres west of High Street (west kerbline) westwards for 6.1 metres.	All days All times
3.20	CAVENDISH PLACE - south side, from a point 38.7 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 5.7 metres	All days All times
3.21	CHILLINGHAM ROAD – east side, from a point 11 metres south of its junction with Cartington Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	All days All times
3.22	CLAYTON STREET – east side, from a point 41.5 metres north of its junction with Newgate Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.23	CLAYTON STREET WEST – east side, from a point 38.5 metres north of its junction with Bewick Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 6.5 metres.	All days All times
3.24	CLAYTON STREET WEST – east side, from a point 47 metres south of its junction with Bewick Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 11.5 metres.	All days All times
3.25	CROFT STREET – south west side, from a point 9.5 metres south east of its junction with Market Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	All days All times
3.26	CROFT STREET – east side, from the north kerbline of Carliol Square northwards for 7.9 metres.	All days All times
3.27	CROSS STREET – east side, from a point 7.5 metres north of its junction with Westgate Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 6 metres.	All days All times
3.28	DEVONSHIRE PLACE - south side, from a point 28.5 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 5.7 metres.	All days All times
3.31	EMBLETON AVENUE – north side, from a point 42 metres east of its junction with Craster Square in an easterly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	All days All times
3.32	ELMFIELD ROAD – north side, from a point 8 metres west of High Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 13.2 metres.	All days All times
3.33	FENKLE STREET – south side, from a point 11.5 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 6 metres	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	
3.34	FORTH STREET – south side, from a point 13 metres west of its junction with Clavering Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	All days All times
3.36	GOWAN TERRACE - east side, from a point 14.3 metres north of its junction with Holly Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 6.6 metres	All days All times
3.37	GOWAN TERRACE - west side, from a point 25.0 metres north of its junction with Holly Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 6.7 metres	All days All times
3.38	GOWAN TERRACE - east side, from a point 24.2 metres north of its junction with Fern Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 5.7 metres	All days All times
3.39	GRAFTON PLACE – north side, from a point 48 metres east of its junction with Molineux Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 8 metres.	All days All times
3.41	HAWTHORN ROAD – south side, from a point 17.1 metres west of High Street westwards for 13.2 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Saturday
3.43	HIGHAM PLACE – west side, from a point 40 metres north of the projected building line of Higham House northwards for 16.5 metres.	All days All times
3.44	HOLLY AVENUE - north side, from a point 3.1 metres east of its junction with Back Holly Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 6.9 metres	All days All times
3.45	HOLLY AVENUE - north side, from a point 19.2 metres east of its junction with Back Holly Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 6 metres	All days All times
3.46	HOLLY AVENUE - south side, from a point 94.2 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 5.7 metres	All days All times
3.47	HOOD STREET – south side, from a point 47.5 metres east of its junction with Pilgrim Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 31 metres.	All days All times
3.48	HORATIO STREET – north side, from a point 162 metres west of its junction with City Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 7 metres	All days All times
3.49	IVY ROAD – south side, from a point 10 metres west of High Street westwards for 13.2 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm
3.51	LEAZES CRESCENT – north west side, from a point 25 metres north of the north kerbline of Leazes Terrace northeastwards for 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.52	LEAZES TERRACE (EAST) – west side, from a point 54 metres north of its junction with the east end of Terrace Place in a northwesterly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
3.53	LEAZES TERRACE (EAST) – west side, from a point 143 metres north of its junction with Terrace Place in a northwesterly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.54	LEAZES TERRACE (NORTH) – south side, from a point 162 metres north of its junction with the west side of Terrace Place in a northeasterly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.55	LEAZES TERRACE (WEST) – east side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with the west side of Terrace Place in a northwesterly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	All days All times
3.56	LEAZES TERRACE (WEST) – east side, from a point 145 metres north of its junction with the west side of Terrace Place in a northeasterly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.57	LIBRARY SERVICE AREA, LISLE STREET – east side, from a point 7.4 metres south of the projected northern building line of the Central Library southwards for 9 metres.	All days All times
3.58	LYNDHURST AVENUE – west side – from a point 12 metres south of the southern kerbline of Back Sunbury Avenue North southwards for a distance of 16 metres.	All days All times
3.59	MAYFIELD ROAD – north west side, from a point 32 metres north east of its junction with North Avenue north eastwards for 7 metres	All days All times
3.60	MORDEN STREET – west side, from its junction with Handyside Place/Morden Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 23 metres.	All days All times
3.61	NEWTON ROAD – north east side, from a point 27.4 metres west of its northern junction with Holystone Crescent in a north westerly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.62	NORTH STREET – east side, from its junction with North Street (east/west leg) in a southerly direction for a distance of 39 metres.	All days All times
3.63	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD south side, from a point 71 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 44 metres.	All days All times
3.64	NUN STREET – south side, from a point 79 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	All days All times
3.65	NUN STREET – north side, from a point 78.5 metres west of its junction with Grainger Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	All days All times
3.66	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 62.5 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 6.5 metres	All days All times
3.67	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 23.6 metres east of its junction with Manor House Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 5.6 metres	All days All times
3.68	PARK TERRACE – south side, from a point 36 metres east of Kensington Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 15.3 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
3.69	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 13.5 metres east of its junction with King Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 28 metres.	
3.70	QUEENS ROAD - north side, from a point 24.4 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 5.7 metres	All days All times
3.71	RICHARDSON ROAD – north side, from a point 285.8 metres west of the west kerbline of Queen Victoria Road northwestwards for 39.6 metres.	All days All times
3.72	RICHARDSON ROAD – south side, from a point 39 metres west of the west kerbline of the access to the Leazes Wing of the RVI northwestwards for 52.8 metres.	All days All times
3.73	RIDLEY PLACE – south side, from a point 95 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	All days All times
3.74	RIDLEY PLACE – north side, from a point 78 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	All days All times
3.75	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE - north side, from a point 30.9 metres west of its junction with Farquhar Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 5.7 metres	All days All times
3.76	ST ANDREW'S STREET – south side, from a point 2.7 metres west of the west kerbline of Strawberry Lane westwards for 5.56 metres.	All days All times
3.77	ST ANDREW'S STREET – south side, from a point 18.1 metres west of the west kerbline of Newgate Street westwards for 5 metres.	All days All times
3.78	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Sunbury Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	All days All times
3.79	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Glenthorn Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	All days All times
3.80	ST NICHOLAS AVENUE – north side, from a point 13.5 metres east of High Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 18 metres.	All days All times
3.81	SALTERS ROAD – north side, from a point 50 metres east of its western junction with Back Salters Road (north), eastwards for 6 metres	All days All times
3.82	SHAKESPEARE STREET – north side, from a point 22.5 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 18 metres.	All days All times
3.83	SHIELDS ROAD – north side, from a point 100 metres west of its junction with Algernon Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 17 metres.	All days All times
3.84	SHIELDS ROAD – north side, from a point 89 metres west of Heaton Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	All days All times
3.85	SHIELDS ROAD – north side, from a point 3 metres east of its junction with Matthew Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	All days All times
3.86	ST. NICHOLAS STREET – west side, from a point 69 metres south of its junction with Collingwood Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 7.5 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
3.87	STOWELL STREET – west side, from a point 4.5 metres south of the south kerbline of St. Andrews Street southwards for 5.5 metres.	All days All times
3.88	SUNBURY AVENUE – south side, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with St George's Terrace westwards to a point 4 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West.	All days All times
3.89	SUNDERLAND STREET – north side, from a point 2.5 metres east of the east kerbline of Temple Street eastwards for 10.7 metres.	All days All times
3.90	THORNLEIGH ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres east of its junction with West Jesmond Avenue eastwards for 12 metres	All days All times
3.91	UNNAMED ACCESS ROAD SOUTH OF CRUDDAS PARK SHOPPING CENTRE – north side, from a point 60 metres east of its junction with Nesham Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	All days All times
3.92	WEST AVENUE – north side, from a point 13 metres west of High Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 13.2 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm
3.93	WEST AVENUE – south east side, from a point 29 metres south west of its junction with Linden Road south westwards for 11 metres.	All days All times
3.94	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 6.5 metres west of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 3 in a westerly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	All days All times
3.95	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 2 in an easterly direction for a distance of 6.5 metres.	All days All times
3.96	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres east of its junction with High Swinburne Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 6 metres.	All days All times
3.97	WESTMORLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 20.5 metres east of its junction with Belgrave Place eastwards for 5.7 metres.	All days All times
3.98	WESTMORLAND ROAD - north side, from a point 26.2 metres east of its junction with Belgrave Place eastwards for 5.7 metres.	All days All times
3.99	WOODBINE ROAD – south side, from a point 14.5 metres west of High Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 13.2 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm
3.100	WORSWICK STREET – north side, from a point 12.5 metres west of its junction with Erick Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 8.5 metres.	All days All times
3.101	WORSWICK STREET – north side, from a point 100 metres west of its junction with Erick Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 8 metres.	All days All times
3.102	WYCH ELM CRESCENT – west side, from a point 50 metres east then 30.5 metres north of its southern junction with Birchwood Avenue northwards for 6.7 metres.	All days All times

SCHEDULE 4 PARKING PLACES FOR BUSES

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation	Column 4 Maximum Period of Stay
4.1	JOHN DOBSON STREET – east side, from a point 50 metres south of its junction with Durant Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 27 metres (within the layby adjacent to the Laing Gallery and Blue Carpet).	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All Days	24 hours
4.2	NEVILLE STREET – north side, from its junction with Bewick Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 40 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All Days	24 hours
4.3	NEVILLE STREET – north side, from a point 56 metres west of the west kerbline of Bewick Street westwards for 50.6 metres.	All days All times	15 minutes
4.4	PRUDHOE STREET – north side, from its junction with Prudhoe Place in a north westerly direction. The area is an irregular shape of a maximum 21 metres width and with a varying length of between 2 metres minimum and 30 metres maximum.	All days All times	30 minutes

SCHEDULE 5 PARKING PLACES FOR SOLO MOTOR CYCLES

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
5.1	CARLIOL SQUARE (EASTERN LENGTH) - west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 6 metres.	All days All times
5.2	FENKLE STREET – south side, from a point 85.5 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	All days All times
5.3	HIGHAM PLACE – west side, from a point 56.5 metres north of the projected building line of Higham House northwards for 3 metres.	All days All times
5.4	HOOD STREET – south side, from a point 21 metres east of its junction with Pilgrim Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres	All days All times
5.5	HOOD STREET – north side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Pilgrim Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 6.5 metres.	All days All times
5.6	KENSINGTON TERRACE – east side, from a point 26 metres north of its junction with Devonshire Terrace in a northerly direction for a distance of 9.5 metres.	All days All times
5.7	LIBRARY SERVICE AREA – north side, from a point immediately west of the access to Princess Square area in a westerly direction for a distance of 6.1 metres.	All days All times
5.8	QUEEN STREET – north side, from a point 33 metres east of its junction with Akenside Hill in an easterly direction for a distance of 4.5 metres.	All days All times
5.9	ST. ANDREWS STREET north and west side, from a point 62.1 metres of the north kerbline of Gallowgate to a point 41.1 metres west of the west kerbline of Strawberry Lane.	All days All times
5.10	TOWER STREET – east side, from a point 3 metres south of the southern kerbline of Melbourne Street southwards for 7.6 metres.	All days All times
5.11	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 6 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 3 in an easterly direction for a distance of 5 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days
5.12	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 41 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No 4 in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm Saturdays and Sundays only
5.13	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 28 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 3 in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm Saturdays and Sundays only
5.14	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 40 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No 3 in an easterly direction for a distance of 6 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
5.15	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 17.5 metres west of its junction with Cross Villa Place No 4 in a westerly direction for a distance of 20 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days
5.16	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 11.5 metres west of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 3 in a westerly direction for a distance of 29 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days
5.17	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 43.5 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 2 in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm Saturdays and Sundays only
5.18	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 7 metres west of its junction with High Swinburne Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 9 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days
5.19	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with High Swinburne Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 20 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days
5.20	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 7.5 metres west of its junction with Swinburne Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 9 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days
5.21	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 7.5 metres east of its junction with Westgate Hill Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 5 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days
5.22	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres west of its junction with Greenfield Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 13 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm Saturdays and Sundays only
5.23	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 16.5 metres west of its junction with Swinburne Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm Saturdays and Sundays only
5.24	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 17 metres west of its junction with Westgate Hill Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm Saturdays and Sundays only
5.25	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 7 metres east of its junction with Greenfield Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 4.5 metres	8.00am - 6.30pm All days

SCHEDULE 6 PARKING PLACES FOR PEDAL CYCLES

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
6.1	BIGG MARKET – adjacent to the north side of the public convenience	All days All times
6.2	BLACKETT STREET – north footway to the rear of stairs to Monument Metro Station.	All days All times
6.3	ELDON SQUARE BUS CONCOURSE/PERCY STREET Junction – underneath escalator to shopping malls.	All days All times
6.4	HAYMARKET – on Metro paved area at south end of pedestrian guardrail on west side.	All days All times
6.5	HAYMARKET BUS STATION – 26 metres south of the unnamed access road from Percy Street to the service area for Marks and Spencer	All days All times
6.6	NEWGATE STREET – on footway approximately 8 metres south of Blackett Street back of footpath.	All days All times
6.7	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – on south footway adjacent to British Home Stores	All days All times
6.8	NORTHUMBERLAND STREET – on footway adjacent to the Haymarket Metro Station	All days All times
6.9	OLD ELDON SQUARE – on footway outside No. 7 Eldon Square.	All days All times

SCHEDULE 7

PARKING PLACES FOR POLICE VEHICLES

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Hours of Operation
7.1	MARKET STREET – south side, from a point 36 metres east of its junction with Pilgrim Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 41 metres.	All days All times

SCHEDULE 8

PARKING PLACES FOR TAXIS

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
8.1	BIGG MARKET – north side, from a point 29 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.2	BIGG MARKET – north side, from a point 77 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 17.5 metres	All days All times
8.3	BIGG MARKET – north side, from a point 60 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.4	BROAD CHARE – south west side, from a point 30.5 metres north west of its junction with Quayside in a north westerly direction for a distance of 13.5 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.5	CARLIOL SQUARE (WESTERN LENGTH) – east side, from a point 60 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.6	CARLIOL SQUARE (WESTERN LENGTH) – east side, from a point 30 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.7	CHURCHILL STREET – north side, from a point 37 metres east of its junction with St James' Boulevard in an easterly direction for a distance of 10.5 metres.	All days All times
8.8	CLAYTON STREET – west side, from a point 16 metres north of its junction with Newgate Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 35 metres	All days All times
8.9	CLOTH MARKET – south west side, from a point 9 metres south east of its junction with High Bridge in a south easterly direction for a distance of 51 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.10	CLOTH MARKET – south west side, from a point 82 metres south east of its junction with High Bridge in a south easterly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.11	DEAN STREET – west side, from a point 32 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.12	DEAN STREET – west side, from a point 132 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.13	GRAINGER PARK ROAD – west side, from a point 30 metres south of its junction with Westgate Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
8.14	GREY STREET – west side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Mosley Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 14.5 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.15	GREY STREET – west side, from a point 39.5 metres north of its junction with Mosley Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.16	GROAT MARKET – north east side, from a point 39 metres east of its junction with High Bridge in an easterly direction for a distance of 12.5 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.17	HOOD STREET – north side, from a point 16.5 metres west of its junction with Pilgrim Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 9.5 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.18	HOOD STREET – north side, from a point 67 metres west of its junction with Pilgrim Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 12 metres	All days All times
8.19	JOHN DOBSON STREET – west side, from a point 30.8 metres north of its junction with New Bridge Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 19.6 metres.	All days All times
8.20	LEAZES LANE – north east side, from a point 14 metres north west of its junction with Percy Street in a north westerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	All days All times
8.21	LIBRARY SERVICE AREA, LISLE STREET – east side, from a point 1.4 metres south of the projected northern building line of the Central Library southwards for 6 metres.	All days All times
8.22	LOMBARD STREET – west side, from a point 47 metres north of its junction with Quayside in a northerly direction for a distance of 11.5 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.23	MARKET STREET – north side, from a point 19.5 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 12.5 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.24	MARKET STREET – south side, from a point 20.5 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 22 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.25	MARKET STREET – north side, from a point 20 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.26	MARKET STREET— north side, from a point 75 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.27	MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT – west side, from a point 5.5 metres north of its junction with the unnamed link road to Newcastle Coach Station in a northerly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
8.28	MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT – west side, from a point 32 metres south of its junction with the unnamed link road to Newcastle Coach Station in a southerly direction for a distance of 38 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.29	MELBOURNE STREET – south side, from a point 31 metres east of its junction with Pandon Bank in an easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.30	NEVILLE STREET SECTION LEADING TO CENTRAL STATION – north side, from a point 16 metres west of its junction with Neville Street (main carriageway) in a westerly direction for a distance of 30 metres	All days All times
8.31	NEWGATE STREET – south side, from a point 25 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 55 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.32	NEWGATE STREET – north side, from a point 31 metres west of its junction with Grainger Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.33	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 65 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 36 metres.	All days All times
8.34	NORTHUMBERLAND STREET SERVICE ROAD - east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Northumberland Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	All days All times
8.35	NORTHUMBERLAND STREET SERVICE ROAD - east side, from a point 25 metres south of its junction with Northumberland Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 18 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.36	NORTHUMBERLAND STREET SERVICE ROAD - east side, from a point 43 metres south of its junction with Northumberland Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 23 metres	All days All times
8.37	ORCHARD STREET – west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Neville Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 20 metres	All days All times
8.38	ORCHARD STREET – east side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Forth Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 95 metres	All days All times
8.39	OSBORNE ROAD – east side, from a point 81 metres north of its junction with Market Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 19 metres	All days All times
8.40	OSBORNE ROAD – west side, from a point 20 metres north of its northern kerbline with Mistletoe Road northwards for 32 metres.	All days All times
8.41	OXFORD STREET – west side, from a point I15 metres north of its junction with Market Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 30 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
8.42	OXFORD STREET – east side, from a point 81 metres north of its junction with Market Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 19 metres.	All days All times
8.43	PARK TERRACE – north side, from a point 14.9 metres east of its junction with Claremont Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 11.9 metres.	All days All times
8.44	PILGRIM STREET –west side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Shakespeare Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 18 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.45	PILGRIM STREET –east side, from a point 26.5 metres south of its junction with Worswick Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.46	PILGRIM STREET – west side, from a point 10.5 metres south of its junction with High Bridge in a southerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.47	PRUDHOE PLACE – north side, from a point 20 metres east of its junction with Percy Street in an easterly direction for a distance 30 metres.	All days All times
8.48	PRUDHOE PLACE – south side, from a point 27.5 metres east of its junction with Percy Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 38.5 metres.	All days All times
8.49	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 11 metres south west of its junction with Sandhill in a south westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.50	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 20 metres east of its junction with Broad Chare in an easterly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	All days All times
8.51	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 26.5 metres east of its junction with Lombard Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 15.5 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.52	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 65.5 metres east of its junction with King Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 18 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am
8.53	ST ANDREWS STREET – east side, from a point 25 metres south of the south kerbline of the northern leg of St Andrews Street southwards for 29.5 metres.	All days All days All times
8.54	ST NICHOLAS AVENUE – south side, from a point 17 metres east of its junction with High Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
8.55	ST NICHOLAS STREET – west side, from a point 25 metres south of its junction with Collingwood Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 18.5 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.56	SHAKESPEARE STREET – south side, from a point 63 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 16.5 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.57	SHIELDS ROAD - south side, from a point 22 metres east of its junction with Potts Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 17 metres.	All days All times
8.58	STOWELL STREET - east side, from a point 68 metres south of its junction with St Andrews Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 28.5 metres	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.59	THE CLOSE - north side, from a point 18 metres west of its junction with Sandhill in a westerly direction for a distance of 32 metres.	6.30 pm – 8.00 am All days
8.60	WESTGATE ROAD - east side, from a point 5.2 metres north of its junction with Neville Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 13.3 metres.	All days All times
8.61	WESTGATE ROAD - west side, from a point 5.6 metres north of its junction with Neville Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 14.4 metres.	All days All times
8.62	WORSWICK STREET - south side, from a point 20 metres east of its junction with Pilgrim Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 8 metres.	All days All times

SCHEDULE 9 PARKING PLACES FOR LOADING ONLY

Column 1 Number of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
9.1	BARRACK ROAD SERVICE ROAD – west side, from a point 140.5 metres west of the entrance into Barrack Road Service Road westwards for 11.8 metres.	All days All times
9.2	BATH LANE – west side, from a point 22 metres north of its junction with Stowell Street in a northerly and westerly direction for a distance of 21.6 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.3	BIGG MARKET – north side, from a point 60 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.4	BIGG MARKET – north side, from a point 29 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	8.00 am to 6.30 pm All days
9.5	BIGG MARKET - south side, from a point 43 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.6	BIGG MARKET – south side, from a point 64 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00 am to 6.30 pm All days
9.7	CARLIOL SQUARE (Western length) - east side, from a point of 30 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.8	CARLIOL SQUARE (Western length) – east side, from a point 60 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.9	CHARLOTTE SQUARE (Northern length) - south side, from a point 27.5 metres west of its junction with Cross Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.10	CLAYTON STREET – east side, from a point 16 metres north of its junction with Newgate Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 25.5 metres.	All days All times
9.11	CLAYTON STREET - west side, from a point 12 metres south of its junction with Fenkle Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.12	CLAYTON STREET - west side, from a point 51 metres south of its junction with Newgate Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.13	CLAYTON STREET - west side, from a point 101 metres south of its junction with Newgate Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 14.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.14	CLAYTON STREET – west side, from a point 154 metres south of its junction with Newgate Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 26 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days

Column 1 Number of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
9.15	CLOTH MARKET – south west side, from a point 9 metres south east of its junction with High Bridge in a south easterly direction for a distance of 51 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.16	CLOTH MARKET – south west side, from a point 82 metres south east of its junction with High Bridge in a south easterly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.17	COLLEGE STREET - west side, from a point 50 metres north of its junction with Northumberland Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 7 metres	8.00am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
9.18	COLLINGWOOD STREET - south side, from a point 53 metres west of its junction with St Nicholas Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 9 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.19	COLLINGWOOD STREET – south side, from a point 101 metres west of its junction with St. Nicholas Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.20	CROFT STREET – south west side, from a point 30.5 metres south east of its junction with Market Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 5.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.21	CROSS MORPETH STREET – south side, from a point 13 metres north east of its junction with Sheraton Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	All days All times
9.22	DEAN STREET – west side, from a point 32 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.23	DEAN STREET - east side, from a point 47 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.24	DEAN STREET – west side, from a point 132 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.25	FENKLE STREET - south side, from a point 17.5 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 14 metres.	All days All times
9.26	FORTH BANKS - north east side, from a point 65.5 metres south east of its junction with Forth Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 11.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.27	GRAINGER PARK ROAD – west side, from a point 26.4 metres south of its junction with West Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	All days All times
9.28	GRAINGER STREET – west side, from a point 11.5 metres north of the projected building line of Nun Street northwards for 42 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 Number of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
9.29	GREY STREET – west side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Mosley Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 14.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.30	GREY STREET – west side, from a point 39.5 metres north of its junction with Mosley Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.31	GREY STREET – east side, from a point 66 metres south of its junction with High Bridge in a southerly direction for a distance of 9 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.32	GROAT MARKET – north side, from a point 39 metres east of its junction with High Bridge in an easterly direction for a distance of 12.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.33	HEATON ROAD – west side, from a point 28.6 metres south of its junction with North View in a southerly direction for a distance of 11.7 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.34	HIGHAM PLACE - east side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with the unnamed access road to the north of Higham Place in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.35	HOOD STREET – north side, from a point 16.5 metres east of its junction with Pilgrim Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 9.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.36	IRTON STREET – west side, from a point 33 metres north of its junction with Henry Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Saturday
9.37	IRTON STREET – west side, from a point 7 metres north of its junction with Henry Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 8 metres	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Saturday
9.38	KING STREET - east side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Queen Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.39	LOMBARD STREET – west side, from a point 47 metres north of its junction with Quayside in a northerly direction for a distance of 11.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.40	MARKET STREET – north side, from a point 20 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.41	MARKET STREET – north side, from a point 19.5 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 12.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.42	MARKET STREET – north side from a point 75 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days

Column 1 Number of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
9.43	MARKET STREET – south side, from a point 20.5 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.44	MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT - west side, from a point 11 metres south of its junction with the Unnamed link road to Newcastle Coach Station in a southerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.45	MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT – west side, from a point 5.5 metres north of its junction with the Unnamed link road to Newcastle Coach Station in a northerly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.46	MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT – west side, from a point 32 metres south of its junction with the Unnamed link road to Newcastle Coach Station in a southerly direction for a distance of 38 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.47	MELBOURNE STREET – south side, from a point 31 metres east of its junction with Pandon Bank in an easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.48	NEWGATE STREET – north side, from a point 31 metres west of its junction with Grainger Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.49	NORTH STREET - west side, from a point 28 metres south of its junction with North Street (east/west leg) in a southerly direction for a distance of 19 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.50	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 101 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.51	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 45 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.52	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 26 metres east of its junction with John Dobson Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 9 metres	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.53	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 180 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 7 metres	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.54	NORTHUMBERLAND STREET SERVICE ROAD – east side, from a point 25 metres south of its junction with Northumberland Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 18 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.55	NUN STREET - north side, from a point 28.5 metres west of its junction with Grainger Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 50 metres (vehicles displaying a valid Grainger Market permit are also permitted to use this parking place)	8.00am to 6.30pm All days

Column 1 Number of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
9.56	NUN STREET - south side, from a point 63 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 16 metres (vehicles displaying a valid Grainger Market permit are also permitted to use this parking place)	8.00am to 6.30pm All days
9.57	NUN STREET - south side, from a point 26 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 27 metres (vehicles displaying a valid Grainger Market permit are also permitted to use this parking place)	8.00am to 6.30pm All days
9.58	ORCHARD STREET – east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Neville Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	All days All times
9.59	PARK TERRACE - south side, from a point 66 metres east of its junction with Kensington Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.60	PILGRIM STREET – west side, from a point 10.5 metres south of its junction with High Bridge in a southerly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.61	PILGRIM STREET – west side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Shakespeare Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 18 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.62	PILGRIM STREET – east side, from a point 26.5 metres south of its junction with Worswick Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.63	PITT STREET – north side, from a point 28.5 metres east of its junction with Wellington Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 14 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.64	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 26.5 metres east of its junction with Lombard Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 15.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.65	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 65.5 metres east of its junction with King Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 18 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.66	QUEEN STREET - north side, from a point 17 metres east of its junction with Akenside Hill in an easterly direction for a distance of 8.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.67	QUEEN STREET – north side, from a point 17 metres west of its junction with King Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 9 metres	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days

Column 1 Number of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
9.68	RICHARDSON ROAD – north side, from a point 19 metres west of its junction with the access road to the University Halls of Residence in a westerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.69	RIDLEY PLACE - north side, from a point 100 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	All days All times
9.70	RIDLEY PLACE - south side, from a point 64 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 31 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.71	ST. ANDREWS STREET – south side, from a point 43 metres east of its junction with Stowell Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 21 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.72	ST ANDREW'S STREET – east side, from a point 20 metres south of its junction with Gallowgate in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	All days All times
9.73	ST. JOHN STREET – south side, from a point 47 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 6 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.74	ST. NICHOLAS STREET – west side, from a point 25 metres south of its junction with Collingwood Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 18.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.75	SAVILLE ROW – from a point 12.3 metres west of the west kerbline with John Dobson Street westwards for 3 metres. The southern edge of the bay shall be 1 metre north of the north boundary wall of 22 Saville Row, the length of the bay to be 5.5 metres.	All days All times
9.76	SCOTSWOOD ROAD – north side, from a point 50 metres west of its junction with Churchill Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.77	SCOTSWOOD ROAD – north side, from a point 77 metres west of its junction with Churchill Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 21 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.78	SCOTSWOOD ROAD – north side, from a point 128 metres west of its junction with Churchill Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 21 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.79	SHAKESPEARE STREET - south side, from a point 63 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 16.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.80	STOWELL STREET – east side, from a point 68 metres south of its junction with St. Andrew's Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 28.5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.81	SUNBURY AVENUE – north side, from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Lonsdale Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	All days All times

Column 1 Number of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Restricted Hours
9.82	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 51 metres west of its junction with Grainger Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.83	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 27.5 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street West in an easterly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.84	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 73 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street West in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.85	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres west of its junction with Greenfield Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Friday
9.86	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 16.5 metres west of its junction with Swinburne Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Friday
9.87	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 17 metres west of its junction with Westgate Hill Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Friday
9.88	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 28 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 3 in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Friday
9.89	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 5.5 metres west of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 4 in a westerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm All days
9.90	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 41 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 4 in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Friday
9.91	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 43.5 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 2 in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Friday

SCHEDULE 10 PARKING PLACES WITH PARKING METERS

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.1	AKENSIDE HILL – south east side, from a point 24 metres north east of its junction with Queen Street in a north easterly direction for a distance of 25.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	2 hours
10.2	ARCHBOLD TERRACE - west side, from a point of 4.5 metres south of the south paved line of the unnamed access road to the north of Archbold Terrace southwards for 43 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p for one hour	1 hour
10.3	BACK ESLINGTON ROAD (south of Lifton House) – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Eskdale Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	20p for each 1 hour	All day
10.4	BARRACK ROAD SERVICE ROAD – south west side, from a point 9 metres north west of its junction with Barrack Road in a north westerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	£4 all day or 40p per hour	All day
10.5	BATH LANE east side, from a point 15.5 metres north of its junction with Stowell Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 34.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p for one hour	1 hour
10.6	BATH LANE – west side, from a point 33.5 metres north of its junction with Stowell Street in a northerly and westerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p for one hour	1 hour
10.7	BIGG MARKET – south side, from a point 19 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	£2.00 for one hour	1 hour
10.8	BIGG MARKET – south side, from a point 48 metres east of its junction with Grainger Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 for one hour	1 hour
10.9	BLACKFRIARS COURT – east side, from a point 1 metre south of its junction with Friars Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 16.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.10	BLANDFORD SQUARE (EAST SIDE) – west side, from a point 110 metres north of its junction with Westmorland Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 52 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	50p per hour	All day

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.11	BLANDFORD SQUARE (EAST SIDE) – west side, from a point 39 metres north of its junction with Westmorland Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 52.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	All day
10.12	BLANDFORD SQUARE (EAST SIDE) – west side, from a point 6 metres south of its junction with Sunderland Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 52 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm Monday to Friday	40p per hour	All day
10.13	BRANDLING PARK west side, from a point 75 metres south of its junction with Lambton Road to a point 21 metres south of its junction with Clayton Road	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.14	BRANDLING PARK – south side, from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Back Brandling Park (East) in a westerly direction for a distance of 26 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.15	BRANDLING PARK – north side, from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Back Brandling Park (East) in a westerly direction for a distance of 23 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.16	BROAD CHARE – south west side, from a point 76 metres northwest of its junction with Quayside in a north westerly direction for a distance of 9.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.17	BROAD CHARE – south west side, from a point 22 metres north west of its junction with Quayside in a north westerly direction for a distance of 8.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.18	BROAD CHARE – south west side, from a point 44 metres northwest of its junction with Quayside in a north westerly direction for a distance of 17 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.19	BURDON TERRACE – north side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Abbotsford Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 62 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	4 Hours
10.20	BURDON TERRACE – north side, from a point 27 metres west of its junction with Tankerville Terrace in an westerly direction for a distance of 48 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	4 Hours
10.21	CARLIOL SQUARE (Eastern Length) – west side, from a point 29 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 45 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.22	carlol square (Eastern Length) – west side, from a point 14 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours
10.23	CARLIOL SQUARE (NORTHERN LENGTH) – south side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Carliol Square (Western length) in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.24	CARLIOL SQUARE (NORTHERN LENGTH) – south side, from a point 14 metres west of its junction with Carliol Square (Eastern length) in a westerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.25	CARLIOL SQUARE (NORTHERN LENGTH) – north side, from a point 9.5 metres west of its junction with Carliol Square (Western length) in a westerly direction for a distance of 19.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 per hour	2 hours
10.26	CARLIOL SQUARE (WESTERN LENGTH) – east side, from a point 45 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours
10.27	CARLIOL SQUARE (WESTERN LENGTH) – east side, from a point 72 metres south of its junction with Carliol Square (Northern length) in a southerly direction for a distance of 18 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours
10.28	CARLIOL SQUARE (SOUTHERN LENGTH) – south side, from a point 20 metres east of its junction with Carliol Square (Western length) in an easterly direction for a distance of 14 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours
10.29	CASTLE GARTH - north east side, from a point 7.6 metres south of the south face of the railway viaduct, southwards for 21.4 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	4 hours
10.30	CASTLE GARTH – south side, from a point 18.3 metres east of the east kerbline of St Nicholas Street, eastwards for 17.7 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	4 hours
10.31	CASTLE GARTH - south west side, from a point 1.3 metres north of the south kerbline of Castle Garth northwards for 10 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours
10.32	CASTLE GARTH - east side, from a point formed by the junction of the north and east kerbs of the Castle northwards for 19.7 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.33	CHARLOTTE SQUARE (WESTERN LENGTH) – east side, from its junction with the Northern length of Charlotte Square in a southerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days.	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.34	CHARLOTTE SQUARE (WESTERN LENGTH) – east side, from a point 17 metres south of its junction with the Northern Length of Charlotte Square in a southerly direction for a distance of 11.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.35	CHARLOTTE SQUARE (NORTHERN LENGTH) – south side, from a point 17 metres west of its junction with Cross Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 10.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.36	CITY ROAD - north side, from a point 14.9 metres west of its junction with Pandon Bank in a westerly direction for a distance of 32.3 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.37	CITY ROAD - north side, from a point 49.3 metres east of its junction with Pandon Bank in an easterly direction for a distance of 22.0 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.38	CITY ROAD - north side, from a point 84.3 metres east of the east kerbline of Pandon Bank eastwards for 5.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.39	CITY ROAD UPPER LEVEL - north side, from a point 55 metres east of its junction with Pandon Bank in an easterly direction for a distance of 21 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am– 6.30pm	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.40	CITY ROAD UPPER LEVEL - north side, from a point 87 metres east of its junction with Pandon Bank in an easterly direction for a distance of 6 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am– 6.30pm	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.41	CLAVERING ARCH – east side, from a point 5.4 metres south of the south kerbline of Westgate Road, southwards for 38.4 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours
10.42	CLAYTON STREET – west side, from a point 22 metres south of its junction with Newgate Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 29 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p – 1 hour	3 hours
10.43	CLAYTON STREET – west side, from a point 79 metres south of its junction with Newgate Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p - 1 hour	3 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.44	CLAYTON STREET – west side, from a point 141 metres south of its junction with Newgate Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p – 1 hour	3 hours
10.45	CLAYTON STREET WEST - east side, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Bewick Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 27 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.46	CLAYTON STREET WEST - east side, from a point 26 metres south of its junction with Bewick Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 21 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.47	CLAYTON STREET WEST – east side, from a point 67 metres south of its junction with Bewick Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 12.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.48	CLAYTON STREET WEST – west side, from a point 42 metres north of its junction with Forth Place in a northerly direction for a distance of 31 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.49	COLLEGE STREET – west side, from a point 17 metres south of its junction with Northumberland Road in southerly direction for a distance of 42 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.50	COLLEGE STREET – west side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Northumberland Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 36 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.51	COLLINGWOOD STREET - south side, from a point 26 metres west of its junction with St Nicholas Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 27 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20– 1 hour	1 hour
10.52	COLLINGWOOD STREET - south side, from a point 62 metres west of its junction with St Nicholas Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 39 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20– 1 hour	1 hour
10.53	CROFT STREET – south west side, from a point 14.5 metres south east of its junction with Market Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 1 hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.54	CROSS STREET – east side, from a point 13.5 metres north of its junction with Westgate Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 19.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.55	CROSS STREET – east side, from a point 39 metres north of its junction with Westgate Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 14.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.56	CROSS STREET - west side, from a point 18 metres north of its junction with Westgate Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 26 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.57	DEAN STREET - east side, from a point 26 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 21 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.58	DEAN STREET – east side, from a point 96 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 48 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.59	DEAN STREET – east side, from a point 57 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.60	DEAN STREET – west side, from a point 44 metres south of its junction with Mosley Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 88 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.61	DEVONSHIRE TERRACE - north side, from a point 3.6 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Kensington Terrace eastwards for 32.9 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.62	DEVONSHIRE TERRACE – north side, from a point 4.5 metres east of Back Kensington Terrace eastwards for 21.9 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.63	DEVONSHIRE TERRACE - south side, from a point 8.2 metres east of a point immediately south of and opposite the eastern kerbline of Kensington Terrace eastwards for 43.8 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.64	DURANT ROAD – north side, from a point 38 metres east of its junction with John Dobson Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours
10.65	DURANT ROAD - north side, from a point 130 metres east of its junction with John Dobson Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 52 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.66	DURANT ROAD – south side, from a point 162 metres east of its junction with John Dobson Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 33 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours
10.67	ESKDALE TERRACE - west side, from a point 12 metres south of its junction with Lambton Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 59 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.68	ESKDALE TERRACE – west side, from a point 69 metres south of its junction with Lambton Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 37 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	30p for each 1 hour	All day
10.69	ESKDALE TERRACE - east side, from a point 16 metres north of its junction with Back Eslington Road (south of Lifton House) in a northerly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	30p for each 1 hour	All day
10.70	ESLINGTON ROAD – east side, from a point 54 metres south west of its junction with Back Eslington Road (North) in a south westerly direction for a distance of 52 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	20p for each 1 hour	All day
10.71	ESLINGTON ROAD – east side, from its junction with Back Eslington Road (south of Lifton House) in a southerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	20p for each 1 hour	All day
10.72	ESLINGTON ROAD south side, from its junction with Eskdale Terrace in a south easterly direction for a distance of 60 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	20p for each 1 hour	All day
10.73	ESLINGTON TERRACE – east side, from a point 7 metres north of its junction with Clayton Road to its junction with Haldane Terrace	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	4 Hours
10.74	FENKLE STREET - south side, from a point 31.5 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 54 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.75	FORTH BANKS – north east side, from a point 30 metres southeast of its junction with Forth Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 35.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	20p per hour	All day
10.76	FORTH BANKS – north east side, from a point 77 metres south east of its junction with Forth Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	20p per hour	All day

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.77	FORTH STREET – south side, from a point 18 metres west of its junction with Clavering Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 16.5 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	2 hours
10.78	FORTH STREET – south side, from a point 38.5 metres west of its junction with Clavering Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 18 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	2 hours
10.79	FORTH STREET – south side, from a point 22 metres east of its junction with Orchard Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 16.5 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	2 hours
10.80	FORTH STREET – south side, from a point 70 metres east of its junction with Forth Banks in an easterly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	All day
10.81	FORTH STREET – north side, from a point 19.5 metres west of its junction with Orchard Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 132 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	2 hours
10.82	FORTH STREET – north side, from a point 80 metres east of its junction with Forth Banks in an easterly direction for a distance of 76 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	All day
10.83	FORTH STREET – north side, from a point 23 metres east of its junction with Forth Banks in an easterly direction for a distance of 35 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	All day
10.84	FRIARS STREET - south east side, from a point 4.5 metres east of the east kerbline of Blackfriars Court eastwards for 10.7 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.85	FRIARS STREET – south east side, from a point 21 metres east of the east kerbline of Blackfriars Court eastwards for 11 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.86	GREY STREET – east side, from a point 75 metres south of its junction with High Bridge in a southerly direction for a distance of 52 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.87	GREY STREET - east side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Shakespeare Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 32 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.88	GREY STREET - east side, from a point 7 metres south of its junction with High Bridge in a southerly direction for a distance of 59 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.89	GREY STREET - west side, from a point 28.5 metres north of its junction with Mosley Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.90	GREY STREET - west side, from a point 5.5 metres north of its junction with High Bridge in a northerly direction for a distance of 34 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.91	GREY STREET - west side, from a point 4.5 metres south of its junction with High Bridge in a southerly direction for a distance of 95 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.92	GROAT MARKET - north side, from a point 57 metres east of its junction with High Bridge in an easterly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.93	GROAT MARKET – north east side, from a point 28 metres east of its junction with High Bridge in an easterly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.94	HEATH COURT - east side, from a point 33 metres east of its junction with Tyne Bridge in a northerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	All day
10.95	HEATH COURT - east side, from a point 65 metres north east of its junction with Tyne Bridge in a north easterly direction for a distance of 32 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	All day
10.96	HIGH BRIDGE SQUARE – north east side, for its entire length.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.97	HIGHAM PLACE - east side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with the unnamed access road to the north of Higham Place in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours
10.98	HOOD STREET – north side, from a point 26 metres east of its junction with Pilgrim Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 41 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.99	HOOD STREET – south side, from a point 31 metres east of its junction with Pilgrim Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 16.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.100	HORATIO STREET – north side (in layby), from a point 43 metres west of its junction with City Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 33 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	20p per hour	5 hours
10.101	HORATIO STREET – north side (in layby), from a point 82 metres west of its junction with City Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 32 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	20p per hour	5 hours
10.102	HORATIO STREET – north side (in layby), from a point 128 metres west of its junction with City Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 34 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	20p per hour	5 hours
10.103	JUBILEE ROAD – west side, from a point 11.6 metres south of the south kerb line of Melbourne Street southwards for 43.8 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 - all day	All day
10.104	KENSINGTON TERRACE - west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Park Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 84 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.105	KENSINGTON TERRACE – east side, from a point 12 metres south of its junction with Park Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 86 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.106	KENSINGTON TERRACE – east side, from a point 4.5 metres north of Devonshire Terrace northwards for 16.4 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.107	KING STREET - west side, from a point 5.8 metres north of the north kerbline of Quayside northwards for 54.8 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.108	KING STREET – east side, from a point 5.8 metres north of the north kerbline of Quayside northwards for 55.1 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.109	LAMBTON ROAD - south side, from a point 22 metres east of its junction with Back Brandling Park in an easterly direction for a distance of 30 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.110	LAMBTON ROAD – south side, from a point 64 metres east of its junction with Back Brandling Park in an easterly direction for a distance of 41 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.111	LAMBTON ROAD – south side, from a point 88 metres west of its junction with Eskdale Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 33 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.112	LAMBTON ROAD – south side, from a point 48 metres west of its junction with Eskdale Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 30 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.113	LAMBTON ROAD – north side, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Eskdale Terrace in an westerly direction for a distance of 148 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.114	LEAZES CRESCENT - north-west side, from a point 4.1 metres north of the north kerbline of Leazes Terrace north eastwards for 20.9 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.115	LEAZES CRESCENT - north west side, from a point 36.6 metres north of the north kerbline of Leazes Terrace north eastwards for 16.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.116	LEAZES PARK ROAD - south-west side, from a point 58 metres northwest of its junction with Percy Street in a north westerly direction for a distance of 32 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.117	LIBRARY SERVICE AREA – west side, from a point 2.5 metres south of the south kerbline of Lisle Street, southwards for 15 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.118	LOMBARD STREET - west side, from a point 58.5 metres north of its junction with Quayside in a northerly direction for a distance of 15.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.119	LOMBARD STREET - east side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Quayside in a northerly direction for a distance of 13 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.120	LOMBARD STREET - east side, from a point 34 metres north of its junction with Quayside in a northerly direction for a distance of 29 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.121	MANOR CHARE – north side, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Heath Court in an easterly direction for a distance of 50 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	All day

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.122	MARKET STREET - north side, from a point 31 metres west of its junction with John Dobson in a westerly direction for a distance of 44 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 - 1 hour	1 hour
10.123	MARKET STREET – south side, from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Croft Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 26 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.124	MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT - west side, from a point 4 metres south of its junction with the unnamed link road to Newcastle Coach Station in a southerly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	50p per hour	2 hours
10.125	MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT – west side, from a point 22 metres south of its junction with the unnamed link road to Newcastle Coach Station in a southerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	50p per hour	2 hours
10.126	MELBOURNE STREET - south side, from a point 20.7 metres west of the west kerbline of Pandon Bank westwards for 46.9 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.127	MELBOURNE STREET - south side, from a point 12.5 metres east of the east kerbline of Jubilee Road eastwards for 137.2 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.128	NEW BRIDGE STREET – south side, from a point 52 metres east of its junction with Argyle Street in an easterly direction for a distance 59 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	2 hours	60p per hour
10.129	NORTH STREET - west side, from a point 3 metres south of its junction with North Street (East/West leg) in a southerly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.130	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 23 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.131	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 45 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 23 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.132	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 83 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 43 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p per hour	2 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.133	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 138 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 87 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p per hour	2 hours
10.134	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 24 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 21 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.135	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 16 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.136	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 83 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 43 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p per hour	2 hours
10.137	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 138 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 42 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p per hour	2 hours
10.138	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 231 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p per hour	2 hours
10.139	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 24 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.140	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 35 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 31 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hours	2 hours
10.141	NORTHUMBERLAND ROAD – south side, from a point 187 metres east of its junction with College Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 38 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours
10.142	NUN STREET – south side, from a point 77 metres west of the west kerbline of Grainger Street westwards for 11 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.143	NUN STREET - south side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 - 1 hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.144	NUN STREET - north side, from a point 17.5 metres west of its junction with Grainger Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 - 1 hour	1 hour
10.145	ORD STREET – west side, from a point 10.5 metres south of the south kerb line of Scotswood Road southwards for 41.4 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	30p per hour	All day
10.146	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 21.7 metres east of its junction with Gowan Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 98.5 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.147	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 123 metres east of its junction with Gowan Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 44.3 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All day
10.148	PARK TERRACE – north side, from a point 43.1 metres east of its junction with Claremont Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 184.2 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.149	PARK TERRACE - south side, from a point 77 metres east of its junction with Kensington Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.150	PARK TERRACE – south side, from a point 65.8 metres west of its junction with Kensington Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 10.9 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.151	PARK TERRACE – south side, from a point 32 metres west of its junction with Kensington Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 21.8 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.152	PARK TERRACE – south side, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Kensington Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 28.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.153	PARK TERRACE – south side, from a point 52 metres east of its junction with Kensington Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 14 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.154	PUDDING CHARE – east side, from a point 9.4 metres north of the north kerbline of Collingwood Street northwards for 20.7 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.155	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Lombard Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 15.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.156	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 41.5 metres east of its junction with King Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 24 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.157	QUAYSIDE (WEST) formerly known as "Fishquay" - south side, from a point 20.0 metres south of the south kerbline of Close eastwards for 63.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	All day
10.158	QUAYSIDE (WEST) formerly known as "Fishquay" - north side, from a point 17.5 metres south of the south kerbline of Close eastwards for 20.0 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	All day
10.159	QUAYSIDE (WEST) formerly known as "Fishquay" - north side, from a point 42.5 metres south and east of the south kerb line of Close eastwards for 20.0 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	All day
10.160	QUEEN STREET – north side, from a point 17 metres east of its junction with Akenside Hill in an easterly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.161	QUEEN STREET – north side, from a point 79.5 metres east of its junction with Akenside Hill in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.162	QUEEN STREET – north side, from a point 37.5 metres east of its junction with Akenside Hill in an easterly direction for a distance of 33.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	2 hours
10.163	QUEEN STREET – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Lombard Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 38 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.164	QUEEN STREET – south side, from a point 25 metres west of its junction with Lombard Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 23.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 – 2 hours	2 hours
10.165	QUEEN VICTORIA ROAD - west side, from a point 81 metres south of the south kerbline of Claremont Road southwards for 54.8 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.166	QUEEN VICTORIA ROAD - west side, from a point 101 metres north of the north kerbline of Richardson Road northwards for 121 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours
10.167	QUEENS ROAD - both sides, from a point 3.4 metres east of its junction with Back Grosvenor Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 29.8 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	All Day
10.168	RICHARDSON ROAD – north side, from a point 20 metres west of the west kerbline of Queen Victoria Road northwestwards for 265 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	70p per hour	All Day
10.169	RICHARDSON ROAD – north side, from a point 29 metres west of its junction with the University Halls of Residence in a north westerly direction for a distance of 267 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	60p per hour	All Day
10.170	RIDLEY PLACE - north side, from a point 19 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 59 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.171	RIDLEY PLACE - south side, from a point 22 metres west of its junction with John Dobson Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 42 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.172	RUTHERFORD STREET - north side, from a point 1.5 metres west of the west kerbline of Bath Lane westwards for 21.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.173	ST ANDREWS STREET - east side, from a point 5 metres south of the south kerbline of the northern leg of St. Andrews Street southwards for 20 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.174	ST ANDREWS STREET - west side, from a point 6.1 metres north of the north kerbline of Gallowgate northwards for 56 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	80p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.175	ST ANDREWS STREET - north side, from a point 7 metres west of the west kerbline of Strawberry Lane westwards for 34 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	80p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.176	ST ANDREWS STREET - south side, from a point 8.26 metres west of the west kerbline of Strawberry Lane westwards for 22.2 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	80p – 1 hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.177	ST ANDREWS STREET - south side, from a point 18 metres east of its junction with Stowell Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.178	ST. JAMES STREET - east side, from a point 7 metres south of its junction with Terrace Place in a southerly direction for a distance of 32 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	80p per hour	4 hours
10.179	ST. JOHN STREET - south side, from a point 10 metres east of the east kerbline of Grainger Street eastwards for 32.2 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.180	ST. JOHN STREET – north side, from a point 5.1 metres east of the east kerbline of Grainger Street eastwards for 20.7 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	£1.50 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.181	ST NICHOLAS AVENUE – north side, as extends from a point 31.5 metres east of its junction with High Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 22 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	20p - 1 hour	1 hour
10.182	ST NICHOLAS AVENUE – south side, from a point 40.5 metres east of its junction with High Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 22 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	20p - 1 hour	1 hour
10.183	ST. NICHOLAS STREET - west side, from a point 76.5 metres south of its junction with Collingwood Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.184	ST NICHOLAS STREET - west side, from a point 103 metres south of its junction with Collingwood Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 17 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.185	ST. THOMAS TERRACE – east side, from a point 13.1 metres north of the north kerbline of St. Thomas Crescent northwards for 33.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours
10.186	SANDYFORD ROAD - north west side, from a point 18 metres west of the west kerbline of Sandyford Road/Jesmond Road Link Road south westwards for 44.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.187	SCOTSWOOD ROAD – north side, from a point 98 metres west of its junction with Churchill Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 30 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.188	SCOTSWOOD ROAD – north side, from a point 57 metres west of its junction with Churchill Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p - hour	1 hour
10.189	SHAKESPEARE STREET - north side, from a point 22.5 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 60 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.190	SHAKESPEARE STREET - south side, from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Grey Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 50 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£2.00 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.191	SHIELD STREET - east side, from a point 15 metres south of the eastern kerbline of Portland Road southwards for 35 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	30p per hour	All day
10.192	SHIELD STREET from a point 50 metres south of the southern kerbline of Milton Close southwards for 25 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	30p per hour	All day
10.193	SIDE – east side, from a point 6 metres east of the east kerbline of St. Nicholas Street south eastwards for 37.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.194	SIDE – west side, from a point 24 metres south east of the east kerbline of St. Nicholas Street southwards for 15.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	1 hour
10.195	STOWELL STREET – east side, from a point 30 metres south of its junction with St Andrews Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p - hour	1 hour
10.196	STRAWBERRY PLACE - south side, from a point 11 metres west of its junction with Strawberry Lane in a westerly direction for a distance of 73 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p per hour	2 hours
10.197	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – west side, as extends from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Burdon Terrace in a northerly direction for a distance of 23 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	4 hours
10.198	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – west side, as extends from a point 34 metres north of its junction with Back Haldane Terrace (North) in a northerly direction for a distance of 123 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	4 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.199	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – west side, as extends from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Tankerville Place in a northerly direction for a distance of 128 metres	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	30p per hour	4 hours
10.200	THOMAS BEWICK SQUARE – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Bewick Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	1 hour
10.201	TOWER STREET – west side, from a point 6.4 metres south of the south kerbline of Melbourne Street southwards for 10.8 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.202	TOWER STREET – west side, from a point 29.1 metres south of the south kerbline of Melbourne Street southwards for 11.2 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.203	TOWER STREET - east side, from a point 22 metres south of the south kerbline of Melbourne Street southwards for 38 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	All day
10.205	WATERGATE - west side, from its junction with the Quayside Walkway in a northerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours
10.206	WATERGATE - west side, from a point 9.1 metres south of the north kerbline of that highway southwards for 7.1 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm	60p per hour	2 hours
10.207	WATERGATE - east side, from its junction with the Quayside Walkway in a northerly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	60p per hour	2 hours
10.208	WATERLOO STREET - east side, from a point 6.5 metres north of its junction with Forth Place in a northerly direction for a distance of 94 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.00 per hour	2 hours
10.209	WEST AVENUE – north west side, from a point 24.5 metres north east of its junction with North Avenue north eastwards for 99 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm Monday to Saturday	20p per hour	4 hours
10.210	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 82 metres east of its junction with Collingwood Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.211	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 80 metres west of its junction with Clavering Arch in a westerly direction for a distance of 32 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.212	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 23 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street West in an easterly direction for a distance of 4.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.213	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 32.5 metres east of its junction with Clayton Street West in an easterly direction for a distance of 40.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.214	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 18 metres west of its junction with Grainger Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 33 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.215	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 29 metres east of its junction with St James Boulevard in an easterly direction for distance of 26 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	All day
10.216	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 67 metres east of its junction with St James Boulevard in an easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	All day
10.217	WESTGATE ROAD – south side, from a point 11.5 metres east of its junction with Greenfield Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 21 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.218	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 6 metres east of its junction with Swinburne Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 15.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm	70p per hour	2 hours
10.219	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 6.5 metres west of its junction with Westgate Hill Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 10.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.220	WESTGATE ROAD - south side, from a point 12.5 metres east of its junction with Westgate Hill Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.221	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 17 metres west of its junction with St Nicholas Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 14 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.222	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 47 metres east of its junction with Collingwood Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 24 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.223	WESTGATE ROAD - north side, from a point 95 metres east of its junction with Collingwood Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	90p – 1 hour	1 hour
10.224	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 9.5 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 4 in an easterly direction for a distance of 31.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.225	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 9.5 metres west of its junction with Cross Villas Place No. 2 in a westerly direction for a distance of 31 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.226	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 11.5 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 2 in an easterly direction for a distance of 32 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	70p per hour	2 hours
10.227	WESTGATE ROAD – north side, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Cross Villa Place No. 3 in an easterly direction for a distance of 17 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	2 hours
10.228	WINDSOR TERRACE – north side, from a point 152 metres west of its junction with Windsor Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 28 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.229	WINDSOR TERRACE – north side, from its junction with Windsor Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 132 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.230	WINDSOR TERRACE - south side, from a point 11 metres west of its junction with unnamed access road to the south in a westerly direction for a distance of 17 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.231	WINDSOR TERRACE - south side, from a point 115 metres west of its junction with Windsor Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	40p per hour	5 hours
10.232	WORSWICK STREET – north side, from a point 21 metres west of its junction with Erick Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 23 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	2 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
10.233	WORSWICK STREET – north side, from a point 50 metres west of its junction with Erick Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 18.5 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	2 hours
10.234	WORSWICK STREET – north side, from a point 78 metres west of its junction with Erick Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 22 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	£1.20 – 1 hour	2 hours

SCHEDULE 11 PERMIT PARKING PLACES

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.1	ABBOTSFORD TERRACE - east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Burdon Terrace in a southerly direction for a distance of 50 metres	9:30am to 10:30am 2:00pm to 4:00pm Monday to Saturday
11.2	ACCESS LANE TO BACK WEST AVENUE (SOUTH) (west of Masonic Hall) – west side, from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Back West Avenue (South) in a northerly direction to a point 5 metres south of its junction with West Avenue.	All days All times
11.3	AINTHORPE GARDENS – both sides, from a point 22 metres west of its junction with Benton Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 27 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.6	AMBLE WAY – both sides, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Rothbury Avenue northwards for its full length	9.00 am – 11.00 am and 1.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.7	ANCRUM STREET – north-west side, from a point 5 metres north-east of the north-east kerbline of Fountains Row to a point 5 metres south-west of the south-west kerbline of Back Belle Grove West	All days All times
11.8	ANCRUM STREET – north-west side, from a point 5 metres north-east of the north-east kerbline of Back Belle Grove West in a north-easterly direction for 15 metres	All days All times
11.9	ANCRUM STREET – south-east side, from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Belle Grove West to a point 19 metres west of its junction with Back Belle Grove Terrace.	All days All times
11.10	ANCRUM STREET – south-east side, from a point 5 metres north-east of the north-east kerbline of Fountains Row to a point 5 metres south-west of the south-west kerbline of Oxnam Crescent	All days All times
11.11	ANCRUM STREET – south-east side, from a point 5 metres north-east of the north-east kerbline of Oxnam Crescent to a point 5 metres south-west of the south-west kerbline of Belle Grove West	All days All times
11.12	ANSCOMB GARDENS – north side, from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Jesmond Park West westwards for 22 metres	All days All times
11.13	ANSCOMB GARDENS – south side, from a point 13 metres west of its junction with Jesmond Park West, westwards for 21 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.14	ARCHIBALD STREET – east side, from a point 7 metres south of its junction with Regent Avenue southwards to a point 6 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Salters Road North	9.00 am – 11.00 am and 3.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.15	ARCHIBALD STREET – west side, from a point 7 metres south of its junction with Regent Avenue southwards for 100 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.16	BACK BAYSWATER ROAD NORTH – south side, from a point 3 metres east of its junction with Lyndhurst Avenue eastwards to a point 3 metres west of its western kerbline with Myrtle Grove	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.17	BACK BAYSWATER ROAD NORTH – south side, from a point 3 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Myrtle Grove eastwards to a point 3 metres west of its western kerbline with Lonsdale Terrace	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.18	BACK BRANDLING PARK – both sides, from its junction with Brandling Place South in a southerly direction for 6 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.19	BACK BRANDLING PARK – east side, from a point 5 metres south of Back Clayton Road (South) in a southerly direction for 5 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.20	BACK BRANDLING PARK – west side, from a point 17 metres south of Clayton Road in a southerly direction for 11 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.21	BACK BRANDLING PARK (south of Lambton Road) – both sides, for its whole length.	All days All times
11.22	BACK BRANDLING PLACE SOUTH – south side, from a point 7 metres east of Back Brandling Park in an easterly direction for 73 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.23	BACK CHESTER CRESCENT – both sides, for its whole length	8am – 6.30pm All days

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.24	BACK CLAYTON ROAD (NORTH) – north side, from a point 6 metres east of Burdon Terrace in an easterly direction to Back Eslington Terrace	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.25	BACK CLAYTON ROAD (NORTH) – south side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Burdon Terrace in an easterly direction to Back Eslington Terrace	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.26	BACK CLAYTON ROAD SOUTH – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Brandling Park eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its junction with Clayton Park Square	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.27	BACK ESLINGTON TERRACE (WEST) – both sides, from Back Clayton Road (North) to a point 6 metres south of Kingsland	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.28	BACK ESLINGTON TERRACE (WEST) – both sides, from Back Kingsland (North) to a point 8 metres north of Kingsland	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.29	BACK ESLINGTON TERRACE (WEST) – west side, from a point 16 metres north of Back Eslington Road (North) in a northerly direction for 132 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.30	BACK FRAMLINGTON PLACE – north side, from a point 4 metres east of its junction with the unnamed access road between Claremont Terrace and North Terrace eastwards for 23 metres.	All days All times
11.31	BACK FRAMLINGTON PLACE - north side, from a point 44.5 metres east of its junction with the unnamed access road between Claremont Terrace and North Terrace eastwards for 6 metres.	All days All times
11.32	BACK FRAMLINGTON PLACE - north side, from a point 17 metres west of its junction with the unnamed access road between Framlington Place and Claremont Road westwards for 30 metres.	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.33	BACK FRAMLINGTON PLACE - north side, from a point 59 metres west of its junction with the unnamed access road between Framlington Place and Claremont Road westwards for 4 metres.	All days All times
11.37	BACK GORDON AVENUE (EAST) – west side, between its junctions with Causey Street and Back Hawthorn Road (South)	All days All times
11.38	BACK GORDON AVENUE (WEST) - both sides, between its junctions with Causey Street and Back Hawthorn Road (South)	All days All times
11.40	BACK GROSVENOR AVENUE EAST - east side, from a point 4.7 metres south of its junction with Grosvenor Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 13.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.41	BACK GROSVENOR AVENUE EAST - east side, from a point 4.9 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 13.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.42	BACK GROSVENOR AVENUE WEST - east side, from a point 4 metres south of its junction with Grosvenor Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 16.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.43	BACK GROSVENOR AVENUE WEST - east side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 15.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.44	BACK HALDANE TERRACE (NORTH) – both sides, from a point 6 metres east of Otterburn Terrace in an easterly direction for 25 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.45	BACK HALDANE TERRACE (NORTH) – south side, from a point 6 metres east of Tankerville Terrace to a point 6 metres west of Otterburn Terrace	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.46	BACK HAWTHORN ROAD (NORTH), both sides, from a point 6 metres east of its junction with Back Linden Road (East) to a point 12 metres west of its junction with the the access lane to Back Hawthorn Road (North) (west of Hawthorn Court).	All days All times
11.47	BACK HAWTHORN ROAD (SOUTH) – both sides, fromn its junction with Back Gordon Avenue (West) to its junction with Gordon Avenue	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.48	BACK HAWTHORN ROAD (SOUTH) – north side, from a point 36 metres east of its junction with Gordon in an easterly direction for a distance of 55 metres	All days All times
11.49	BACK HAWTHORN ROAD WEST - south west and north west sides, from a point 46 metres north west of its junction with Hawthorn Road north westwards for 20 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.50	BACK HEDLEY STREET WEST - east side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Poplar Place South southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Laurel Walk South.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.51	BACK HEDLEY STREET WEST - east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Laurel Walk South southwards to a point 3 metres north of its junction with Back Salters Road North.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.52	BACK HENSHELWOOD TERRACE (NORTH) – both sides, from a point 4 metres south of Tankerville Terrace in an easterly direction for 27 metres	9.30am – 10.30am and 2.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.53	BACK HIGH STREET, east side, from a point 54 metres north of its junction with Hawthorn Road in a northerly direction to a point 4 metres south of its junction with West Avenue.	All days All times
11.54	BACK KINGSLAND (NORTH) – both sides, from a point 6 metres east of Burdon Terrace to its junction with Back Eslington Terrace (West)	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.55	BACK LANSDOWNE CRESCENT east side, from a point 16 metres north of its junction with Back Henry Street North in a northerly direction for a distance of 22 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.56	BACK LANSDOWNE CRESCENT from end of eastern hammerhead at northern end of street westwards for 5 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.57	BACK LANSDOWNE CRESCENT west side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Irton Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 28 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.58	BACK LANSDOWNE CRESENT from end of western hammerhead at northern end of street eastwards for 5 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.59	BACK LAUREL WALK SOUTH north side, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with Hedley Street westwards to a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Hedley Street West.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.60	BACK LAUREL WALK SOUTH south side, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with Hedley Street westwards to a point 4 metres east of its junction with Back Hedley Street West.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.61	BACK LINDEN ROAD east side, from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Hawthorn Road in a northerly direction to a point 4 metres south of Back Hawthorn Road (North)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.62	BACK LINDEN ROAD (EAST) , west side, from a point 45 metres north of its junction with Hawthorn Road in a northerly direction to a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back West Avenue.	All days All times
11.63	BACK OSBORNE ROAD SOUTH – both sides, from a point 4 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Lonsdale Terrace eastwards to a point 3 metres west of its junction with Back St George's Terrace West	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.64	BACK OSBORNE ROAD SOUTH – north side, from a point 3 metres east of its junction with Lyndhurst Avenue eastwards to a point 3 metres west of its western kerbline with Myrtle Grove	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.65	BACK OSBORNE ROAD SOUTH – north side, from a point 3 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Myrtle Grove eastwards to a point 3 metres west of its junction with Lonsdale Terrace	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.66	BACK OTTERBURN TERRACE (WEST) – both sides, from a point 6 metres north of Back Haldane Terrace (North) to a point 5 metres west of Otterburn Terrace.	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.67	BACK POPLAR PLACE SOUTH both sides, from a point 3 metres east of its junction with Back Hedley Street West eastwards to a point 3 metres west of its junction with Hedley Street.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.70	BACK TANKERVILLE PLACE (NORTH) – both sides, from a point 4 metres south of Tankerville Terrace in an easterly direction for 55 metres.	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.71	BACK TANKERVILLE PLACE (SOUTH) – both sides, for its entire length.	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.72	BACK WEST AVENUE (NORTH)/BACK WOODBINE ROAD (SOUTH) (linking Woodbine Avenue with West Avenue) - south side, from a point 45 metres east of its junction with Back Woodbine Avenue East in an easterly direction for a distance of 53 metres	All days All times
11.73	BACK WEST AVENUE (SOUTH) - south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Linden Road (East) in an easterly direction to the west side of the access lane along side of the Masonic Hall.	All days All times
11.74	BALLIOL GARDENS – north side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Benton Park Road in an easterly direction to a point 45 metres east of the eastern kerbline of its easternmost junction with Benton Park Road	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.75	BALLIOL GARDENS – south east side, from its junction with the eastern kerbline of its easternmost junction with Benton Park Road in a north easterly direction for 12 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.76	BALLIOL GARDENS – south side, from a point 32 metres east of its junction with the eastern kerbline of its easternmost junction with Benton Park Road in an easterly direction for 23 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.77	BALLIOL GARDENS – south side, from a point 5 metres west of its western kerbline of its easternmost junction with Benton Park Road in a westerly direction for 70 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.78	BALMORAL TERRACE – east side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Stoneyhurst Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 285 metres	8 am - 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.79	BARKER STREET – north side, from a point 75 metres east of its junction with Shield Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres	All days All times
11.80	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 1-3) both sides, from a point 12 metres from junction with main access road southwards for 8 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.81	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 16-22) west side, from a point 12 metres south of its junction with main access road southwards for 19 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.82	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 16-22) west side, from a point 53 metres south of its junction with main access road southwards and eastwards for 20 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.83	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 25-32 west side, from its southern kerbline of main access road northwards to a point 6 metres north of northern kerbline of main access road.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.84	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 25-32) west side, from a point 11 metres north of northern kerbline of main access road northwards to a point 29 metres north of northern kerbline of main access road.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.85	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 34-42) east side, from a point 18 metres north of its junction with main access road northwards and westwards for 8 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.86	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 34-42) east side, from a point 76 metres north of its junction with the main access road in a northerly direction for a distance of 7 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.87	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 34-42) west side, from a point 66 metres north of its junction with main access road northwards for 25 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.88	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 43-58) north east side, from a point 38 metres north of its junction with main access road northwards and westwards for 22 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.89	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 43-58) north east side, from a point 65 metres from its junction with main access road northwards and westwards for 9 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.90	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 5-10) east side, from a point 13 metres south of its junction with the main access road in a southerly direction for a distance of 22 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.91	BARONSWOOD (CUL-DE-SAC CONTAINING NUMBERS 5-10) west side, from a point 25 metres south of its junction with the main access road in a southerly direction for a distance of 13 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.92	BARONSWOOD (MAIN ACCESS ROAD) north side, from a point 14 metres west of its western kerbline with cul-de-sac containing numbers 34-42 westwards for 16 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.93	BARONSWOOD (MAIN ACCESS ROAD) north side, from a point 20 metres west of its western kerbline with cul-de-sac containing numbers 43-58 westwards for 17 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.94	BARONSWOOD (MAIN ACCESS ROAD) south side, from a point 35 metres west of its junction with the cul-de-sac containing numbers 17-23 in a westerly direction for a distance of 14 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.95	BARRACK ROAD SLIP ROAD ADJACENT TO QUEENS COURT - west side, from a point 22 metres south of its northern kerbline with its northern junction with Barrack Road southwards and eastwards for 40 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.96	BARRACK ROAD SLIP ROAD ADJACENT TO QUEENS COURT - west side, from a point 60 metres south of its northern kerbline with its northern junction with Barrack Road southwards and eastwards for 29 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.97	BARRACK ROAD SLIP ROAD ADJACENT TO QUEENS COURT - west side, from a point 100 metres south of its northern kerbline with its northern junction with Barrack Road southwards and eastwards for 67 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.98	BASSINGTON CLOSE , west side (in parking bay area) from a point 35 metres west of its junction with Jefferson Place westwards for 5 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.99	CUL-DE-SAC NORTH OF BASSINGTON CLOSE ADJACENT TO HARTFORD HOUSE, north side (in parking bay) from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Bassington Close northwards for 5 metres	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.100	BAYSWATER ROAD – both sides, from a point 4 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Lonsdale Terrace eastwards to a point 3 metres west of its western kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.101	BAYSWATER ROAD – north side, from a point 4 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Myrtle Grove eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its western kerbline with Lonsdale Terrace	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.102	BAYSWATER ROAD – north side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Lyndhurst Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 43 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.103	BAYSWATER ROAD – south side, from a point 4 metres east of its junction with Lyndhurst Avenue eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its western kerbline with Lonsdale Terrace	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.104	BEADNELL PLACE – both sides, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Copland Terrace in a northerly direction for its remaining length.	8 am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.105	BEADNELL WAY – both sides, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Jubilee Road northwards to a point 7 metres south of its junction with Embleton Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.106	BEAL WAY – east side, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Jubilee Road northwards to a point 7 metres south of its junction with Regent Farm Road.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.107	BEAL WAY – west side, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Jubilee Road northwards to a point 6 metres south of its junction with Embleton Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.108	BEAL WAY – west side, from a point 7 metres south of its junction with Regent Farm Road southwards to a point 5 metres north of its junction with Embleton Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.109	BEANLEY PLACE – both sides, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Newton Road eastwards for its remaining length.	11.00 am – 12.00 pm and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.110	BELLE GROVE TERRACE – west side, from a point 37 metres north of its junction with Belle Grove West to a point 25 metres south of the south kerbline of Ancrum Street and with a width throughout of 2 metres.	All days All times
11.111	BELLE GROVE VILLAS – north west side, from a point 8 metres north east of its junction with Oxnam Crescent to a point 7 metres south west of its junction with Back Belle Grove West	All days All times
11.112	BELLE GROVE VILLAS – north west side, from a point 6 metres north east of its junction with Back Belle Grove West to a point 9 metres south west of its junction with Belle Grove West	All days All times
11.113	BELLE GROVE VILLAS – south-east side, from a point 10 metres north-east of the south-west end in a north easterly direction for a distance of 24 metres	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.114	BELLE GROVE VILLAS – south-east side, from a point 42.5 metres north-east of the south-west end in a north easterly direction for a distance of 4.5 metres	All days All times
11.115	BELLE GROVE VILLAS – south-east side, from a point 53.5 metres north-east of the south-west end in a north easterly direction for a distance of 7 metres	All days All times
11.116	BELLE GROVE VILLAS – south-east side, from a point 66 metres north-east of the south-west end in a north easterly direction for 9 metres	All days All times
11.117	BELLE GROVE WEST – both sides, from a point 6 metres north-west of the north-west kerbline of Ancrum Street in a north-westerly direction for 18 metres	All days All times
11.118	BELLE GROVE WEST – north-east side, from a point 19 metres south-east of the south-east kerbline of Ancrum Street to a point 3 metres north east of the west kerbline of Back Belle Grove Terrace	All days All times
11.119	BELLE GROVE WEST – north-east side, from a point 3 metres south-east of the east kerbline of Back Belle Grove Terrace in a south easterly direction for 15 metres	All days All times
11.120	BELLE GROVE WEST – south-west side, from a point 3 metres south-east of the south-east kerbline of Back Ancrum Street to a point 5 metres north-west of the north-west kerbline of the unnamed street adjacent to Oxnam House	All days All times
11.121	BENTON CLOSE - both sides, from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Benton Lodge Avenue in a westerly direction for 96 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.122	BENTON LODGE AVENUE – east side, from a point 26 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction to a point 16 metres north of its junction with Swarland Avenue	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.123	BENTON LODGE AVENUE – west side, from a point 17 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 38 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.124	BENTON LODGE AVENUE – west side, from a point 17 metres south of its junction with Benton Close to a point 17 metres north of its junction with Swarland Avenue.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.125	BENTON LODGE AVENUE – west side, from a point 14 metres south of its junction with Parkside Avenue in a southerly direction for 30 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.126	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side, from a point 20 metres east of its junction with Glaisdale Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 94 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.127	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Vicars Lane in an easterly direction for a distance of 60 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.128	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side, from a point 165 metres east of its junction with Lealholm Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 154 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.129	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side, from a point 48 metres east of its junction with Trentham Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 210 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.130	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side, from a point 18 metres east of its western junction with Balliol Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 52 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.131	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side, from a point 15 metres west of its western junction with Balliol Gardens in a westerly direction for a distance of 102 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.132	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side, from a point 13 metres west of its junction with Vicars Lane in a westerly direction for a distance of 120 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.133	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side, from a point 36 metres east of its junction with the Access Road to Wickes/Sage in an easterly direction for a distance of 55 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.134	BENTON PARK ROAD – north side from a point 21 metres west of its junction with Lealholm Road in a westerly direction for 13 metres.	10.00 am – 12.00 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.135	BIRCHWOOD AVENUE – west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Cornel Road to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Buckthorne Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.136	BIRCHWOOD AVENUE - west side, from a point 12.5 metres north of its junction with Buckthorne Grove to a point 12.5 metres south of its junction with Ferndene Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.137	BIRCHWOOD AVENUE – east side, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Cornel Road to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Buckthorne Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.138	BIRCHWOOD AVENUE – east side, from a point 12.5 metres north of its junction with Buckthorne Grove to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Wych Elm Crescent.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday – Friday
11.139	BIRCHWOOD AVENUE – east side, from a point 11 metres north of its southern junction with Wych Elm Crescent to a point 12.5 metres south of its junction with Ferndene Grove/Wych Elm Crescent.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.140	BIRCHWOOD AVENUE – both sides, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Ferndene Grove/Wych Elm Crescent northwards for 11 metres.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.141	BIRKDALE CLOSE – both sides, from a point 20 metres south of the south kerbline of the south leg of Fairview Green in a southerly direction for its remaining length.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.142	BLACKTHORN PLACE – both sides, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Cambridge Street for the remainder of its length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.143	BLAGDON STREET – north side, from a point 14 metres west of Gibson Street westwards for 26 metres	All days All times
11.144	BOSTON AVENUE – north side, from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Trentham Avenue in an easterly direction for 130 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.145	BOSTON AVENUE – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Trentham Avenue in an easterly direction for 133 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.146	BOUNDARY GARDENS – east side, from a point 13 metres south of its junction with Cotswold Gardens in a southerly direction for a distance of 108 metres.	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.147	BOUNDARY GARDENS – west side, from a point 13 metres south of its junction with Cotswold Gardens to a point 16 metres north of its junction with Hambledon Gardens	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.148	BOUNDARY GARDENS – west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Hambledon Gardens to a point 10 metres north of its junction with Newton Road	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.149	BRANDLING PARK – east side, from a point 10 metres north of Lambton Road in a northerly direction for 33 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.150	BRANDLING PARK – east side, from a point 20 metres south of Clayton Road in a southerly direction for 40 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.151	BRANDLING PARK – east side, from a point 43 metres north of Lambton Road in a northerly direction for 53 metres	8 am - 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.152	BRANDLING PARK – east side, from a point 7 metres south of Lambton Road in a southerly direction for 43 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.153	BRANDLING PARK – east side, from a point 55 metres south of its junction with Lambton Road in a southwerly direction for a distance of 40 metres	8 am – 6.30 pm Monday to Saturday
11.154	BRANDLING PLACE SOUTH – north side, from a point 70 metres east of its junction with Back Brandling Park in an easterly direction for a distance of 17 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.155	BRANDLING PLACE SOUTH – south side, from a point 93 metres east of its junction with Back Brandling Park to a point 12 metres west of its junction with South Front	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.158	BRINKBURN AVENUE east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Avenue southwards to a point 9 metres north of its junction with Guyzance Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.159	BRINKBURN AVENUE west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Avenue southwards to a point 11 metres north of its junction with Guyzance Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.160	BROADWELL COURT – east side, from a point 4.5 metres northwest of its junction with Daylesford Drive northwestwards for 37 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.161	BROADWELL COURT – west, north and east sides of northern spur from a point 10 metres north of the junction with the western spur for a distance of 90.5 metres around turning head.	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.162	BROADWELL COURT – west, south and north sides including turning head of western spur from a point 3 metres northwest of its junction with Daylesford Drive for a distance of 149.5 metres around turning head	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.163	BROOMFIELD ROAD - both sides, from a point 9 metres south-west of its junction with Linden Road south-westwards for 14 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.164	BROOMFIELD ROAD - north-west side, from a point 3.5 metres south-west of its junction with Back Linden Road south-westwards for 95 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.165	BROOMFIELD ROAD - south-east side, from a point 3 metres south west of its junction with Back Linden Road south-westwards for 32 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.166	BROOMFIELD ROAD - south-east side, from a point 41 metres north-east of its junction with North Avenue north-eastwards for 8 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.167	BROOMFIELD ROAD - south-east side, from a point 8 metres north-east of its junction with North Avenue north-eastwards for 37 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.168	BUCKTHORNE GROVE - north side, from a point 16 metres east of its junction with Benton Road to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Ferndene Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.169	BUCKTHORNE GROVE – north side, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Ferndene Grove to a point 12.5 metres west of its junction with Guelder Road.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.170	BUCKTHORNE GROVE – south side, from a point 17 metres east of its junction with Benton Road to 12 metres west of its junction with Ferndene Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.171	BUCKTHORNE GROVE – north, south and east sides, commencing on the north side, from a point 11.5 metres east of its junction with Birchwood Avenue around the turning head and then proceeding on the south side to a point 11.5 metres east of its junction with Birchwood Avenue - (cul-desac including the turning head).	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.172	BUCKTHORNE GROVE – south side, from a point 10.5 metres east of its junction with Ferndene Grove to a point 12.5 metres west of its junction with Guelder Road.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.173	BUCKTHORNE GROVE – both sides, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Guelder Road to a point 11.5 metres west of its junction with Birchwood Avenue.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.174	BURDON TERRACE – east side, from a point 10 metres south of Haldane Terrace in a southerly direction for 13 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.175	BURDON TERRACE – east side, from a point 7 metres north of Kingsland in a northerly direction for 15 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.176	BURDON TERRACE – east side, from a point 7 metres south of Kingsland in a southerly direction for 12 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.177	BURDON TERRACE – east side, from a point 17 metres north of its junction with Clayton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 9 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.178	BURDON TERRACE – north side, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Tankerville Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 30 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.179	BURDON TERRACE – south side, from a point 5 metres east of Abbotsford Terrace to a point 7 metres west of Back Abbotsford Terrace	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.180	BURDON TERRACE – south side, from a point 5 metres east of Back Abbotsford Terrace in an easterly direction for 156 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.181	BURDON TERRACE – west side, from a point 6 metres south of Haldane Terrace in a southerly direction for 45 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.182	BURDON TERRACE – west side, from a point 17 metres north of its junction with Clayton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 39 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm and 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.183	BURFORD COURT – both sides including turning head from a point 7 metres southeast of its junction with Daylesford Drive (west side) to a point 6 metres southeast of its junction with Daylesford Drive (east side)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.184	BUSTON TERRACE - both sides, from a point 4 metres east of its junction with Manor House Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 23.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.185	BUSTON TERRACE - north side, from a point 2.6 metres east of its junction with Back Manor House Road East in an easterly direction for a distance of 44.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.186	BUSTON TERRACE - south side, from a point 2.7 metres west of its junction with Farquhar Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 92.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.187	BUSTON TERRACE - north side, from a point 7.5 metres east of its junction with Orchard Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 28.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.188	BUSTON TERRACE - south side, from a point 1.7 metres east of its junction with Farquhar Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 101 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.189	BUSTON TERRACE - north side, from a point 8.8 metres east of the entrance to Orchard House in an easterly direction for a distance of 62.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.190	BUSTON TERRACE - south side, from a point 16 metres west of its junction with Shortridge Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 13.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.191	BYRON STREET – the lay-by on its east side, situated 63 metres north of Camden Street northwards for 20 metres	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.192	CAMBRIDGE STREET – north side, from a point 16.5 metres north east of its junction with Park Road north eastwards for 42 metres.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.193	CAMBRIDGE STREET – north side, from a point 12 metres north east of its junction with Hawthorn Place north eastwards for 55.5 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.194	CAMBRIDGE STREET – north side, from a point 17 metres north east of its junction with Gloucester Way north eastwards for 15 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.195	CAMBRIDGE STREET – south side, from a point 26 metres east of its junction with Blackthorn Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 61 metres	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.196	CAMBRIDGE STREET – south side, from a point 13.5 metres north east of its junction with Essex Close north eastwards for 107.5 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.197	CAMBRIDGE STREET – south side, from a point 126.5 metres north east of its junction with Essex Close north eastwards for 45 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.198	CANNOCK DRIVE – both sides, from a point 7 metres east of its junction with Cleveland Gardens to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Jenifer Grove.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm and 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.199	CANNOCK DRIVE – north side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Jenifer Grove to a point 8 metres west of its junction with Mitcham Crescent.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm and 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.200	CANNOCK DRIVE – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Jenifer Grove to a point 16 metres west of its junction with Mitcham Crescent.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm and 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.201	CAROL GARDENS – east side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 46 metres	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.202	CAROL GARDENS – east side, from a point of 12 metres north of its junction with Ribbledale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 42 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.203	CAROL GARDENS – both sides, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Stanley Grove in a northerly direction for a distance of 40 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.204	CARNOUSTIE CLOSE – both sides, from a point 10 metres north of the north kerbline of the north leg of Fairville Crescent in a northerly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm and 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.205	CASTLES FARM ROAD – south side, from a point 7 metres east of its western junction with Castle Farm Mews in an easterly direction for a distance of 24 metres	10.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.206	CASTLES FARM ROAD – south side, from a point 50 metres east of its western junction with Castle Farm Mews in an easterly direction for a distance of 15 metres	10.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.207	CASTLEDENE COURT – south west side, from a point 17 metres north west of its junction with Daylesford Drive north westwards for 79 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.208	CASTLEDENE COURT – south west side, from a point 112 metres north west of its junction with Daylesford Drive northwards for its full length (in turning head area)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.209	CASTLEDENE COURT – north east side, from a point 17 metres north west of its junction with Daylesford Drive north westwards for 54 metres (in layby)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.210	CAUSEY STREET – north side, from the access to Back Causey Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 19 metres	All days All times
11.211	CAUSEY STREET – north side, from the access to Back Causey Street eastwards for approximately 10.7 metres	All days All times
11.212	CAVENDISH PLACE - south side, from a point 4.8 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 33.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.213	CAVENDISH PLACE - north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 153.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.214	CAVENDISH PLACE - south side, from a point 44.2 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 114.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.215	CAVENDISH ROAD - south side, from a point 5.7 metres east of its junction with Back Manor House Road East, in an easterly direction for a distance of 16.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.216	CAVENDISH ROAD - north side, from a point 2.3 metres east of its junction with Back Manor House Road East, in an easterly direction for a distance of 118.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.217	CAVENDISH ROAD - south side, from a point 6.9 metres east of its junction with Valley View in an easterly direction for a distance of 111.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.218	CAVENDISH ROAD - north side, from a point 9 metres west of its junction with Jesmond Dene Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.219	CHARLOTTE CLOSE – both sides, from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Essex Close in a westerly direction for its remaining length	10am -11am and 2.00pm - 3pm Monday to Friday
11.224	CLANFIELD COURT – both sides including turning head from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Daylesford Drive (west side) to a point 9 metres south of its junction with Daylesford Drive (east side)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.225	CLAREMONT STREET – east side, from a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Claremont Road South in a southerly direction for a distance of 38 metres	All days All times
11.226	CLAREMONT STREET – east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Claremont Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 18 metres	All days All times
11.227	CLAREMONT STREET – west side, from a point 17 metres south of its junction with Claremont Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 58 metres	All days All times
11.228	CLAYTON PARK SQUARE – north side, from a point 6 metres east of Back Brandling Park for 111 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.229	CLAYTON PARK SQUARE – south side, from a point 3 metres east of Back Brandling Park in an easterly direction for 132 metres then in a northerly direction to a point 7 metres south of Clayton Road	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.230	CLAYTON PARK SQUARE – west side, from a point 26 metres south of its junction with Clayton Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 8 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.231	CLAYTON ROAD – north side, from a point 13 metres east of Burdon Terrace to a point 8 metres west of Eslington Terrace	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.232	CLAYTON ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres east of Eskdale Terrace in a easterly direction for 29 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.233	CLAYTON ROAD – south side, from a point 7 metres east of Back Eslington Terrace in an easterly direction for 26 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.234	CLEVELAND GARDENS (cul-de-sac) – both sides, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Cleveland Gardens in an easterly direction for 35 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.235	CLEVELAND GARDENS – both sides, between its junctions with Melville Grove and Cannock Drive (includes the hardstanding verge with a width of 2.7 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres – but not where lighting columns and highway trees are located).	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.236	CLEVELAND GARDENS – both sides, from a point 11 metres south of its junction with Cannock Drive to a point 17 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens (includes the hardstanding verge with a width of 2.7 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres – but not where lighting columns and highway trees are located).	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.237	CLEVELAND GARDENS – east side, from a point 15 metres south of its junction with Dovedale Gardens to a point 12 metres north of its junction with Stanley Grove (includes the hardstanding verge with a width of 2.7 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres – but not where lighting columns and highway trees are located).	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.238	CLEVELAND GARDENS – west side, from a point 17 metres south of its junction with Cotswold Gardens in a southerly direction for a distance of 118 metres (includes the hardstanding verge with a width of 2.7 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres – but not where lighting columns and highway trees are located).	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.239	CLOVERDALE GARDENS – east side, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 223 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.240	CLOVERDALE GARDENS— west side, from a point 18 metres north of its junction with Patterdale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 200 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.241	COACH LANE – west side, from a point 26 metres south of its junction with Rosemount Way southwards for 33 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.242	COACH LANE – west side, from a point 40 metres north of its junction with Fairbairn Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 75 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.243	CONISTON AVENUE – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with West Jesmond Avenue eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its western kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.244	CONISTON AVENUE – south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with West Jesmond Avenue eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its western kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.245	CONWAY DRIVE – both sides, from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Cleveland Gardens to a point 9 metres east of its junction with Stokesley Grove	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.246	CONWAY DRIVE – both sides, from a point 9 metres west of its junction with Stokesley Grove for its remaining length	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.247	COPPICE WAY - both sides, from a point 16 metres east of its junction with Shield Street in an easterly then southerly direction for a distance of 85 metres	8.00am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.248	COPPICE WAY - both sides, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Wretham Place in a northerly direction for a distance of 26 metres	8.00am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.249	CORCHESTER WALK –east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Ainthorpe Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 69 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.250	CORCHESTER WALK – east side from a point 11 metres south of its junction with Ainthorpe Gardens in a southerly direction for a distance of 120 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.251	CORCHESTER WALK – south east side, from a point 9 metres south west of its southern kerbline with Ainthorpe Gardens south westwards for 18 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.252	CORCHESTER WALK – south east side, from a point 33 metres south west of its southern kerbline with Ainthorpe Gardens south westwards for 96 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.253	CORNEL ROAD – south side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Benton Road eastwards for 204 metres.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.254	CORNEL ROAD – north side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Benton Road to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Ferndene Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.255	CORNEL ROAD – north side, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Ferndene Grove to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Guelder Road.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.256	CORNEL ROAD – north side, from a point 16 metres east of its junction with Guelder Road to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Birchwood Avenue.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.257	CORNWELL COURT – both sides, including turning heads from a point 6 metres northwest of its junction with Daylesford Drive (southwest side) to a point 6 metres northwest of its junction with Daylesford Drive (northeast side)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.258	COTSWOLD GARDENS – both sides, from a point 22 metres east of its junction with Freeman Road to a point 13 metres west of its junction with Kirkstone Gardens	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.259	COTSWOLD GARDENS – north side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Winchcombe Place to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Leyburn Drive.	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.260	COTSWOLD GARDENS – north side, from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Leyburn Drive to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Stokesley Grove.	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.261	COTSWOLD GARDENS – north side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Stokesley Grove to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Cleveland Gardens	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.262	COTSWOLD GARDENS – south side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Kirkstone Gardens to a point 13 metres west of its junction with Boundary Gardens	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.263	COTSWOLD GARDENS – south side, from a point 18 metres east of its junction with Boundary Gardens to a point 17 metres west of its junction with Cleveland Gardens	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.264	CRAGSIDE – north side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Swaledale Gardens to a point 13 metres west of its junction with Teviotdale Gardens	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.265	CRAGSIDE – north side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Teesdale Gardens eastwards to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Swaledale Gardens	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.266	CRAGSIDE – north side, from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Carol Gardens to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Derwentdale Gardens	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.267	CRAGSIDE – north side, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Teviotdale Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 29 metres	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.268	CRAGSIDE – south side, from a point 101 metres east of its junction with Duxfield Road eastwards for 55 metres (including the hardstanding verge with a width of 2.7 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres)	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.269	CRAGSIDE – south side, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Duxfield Road westwards for 65 metres	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.270	CRAGSIDE – south side, from a point 15 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Teesdale Gardens eastwards for 80 metres	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.271	CRAGSIDE – south side, from a point 16 metres east of its junction with Duxfield Road eastwards for 85 metres	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.272	CRAGSIDE – south side, from a point 35 metres east of its junction with Cleveland Gardens eastwards for 40 metres	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.273	CRAGSIDE – south side, from a point 75 metres east of its junction with Cleveland Gardens eastwards for 65 metres (including the hardstanding verge with a width of 3.6 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres)	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.274	CRASTER SQUARE (NORTHERN LEG) - both sides, from a point 11 metres south of its junction with Regent Farm Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 46 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.275	CRASTER SQUARE (SOUTHERN LEG) - both sides, for its whole length of the square area at its southern end	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.276	CUMBERLAND WALK (CENTRAL LEG) – south side from a point 11 metres west of its junction with Teesdale Gardens in a westerly direction for a distance of 35 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.277	CUMBERLAND WALK (EAST LEG) – south side from a point 11 metres west of its junction with Teviotdale Gardens in a westerly direction for a distance of 35 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.278	CUMBERLAND WALK (WEST LEG) – south side, from a point 11 metres west of its junction with Cloverdale Gardens in a westerly direction for a distance of 36 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.279	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – east side, from a point 13.5 metres northeast of its junction with Burford Court to a point 9 metres south of its junction with Longborough Court	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.280	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – north east side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Daylesford Drive (eastbound) in a northwesterly direction for 70.5 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.281	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – north side, from a point 25 metres west of its junction with Westwell Court eastwards for 13.5 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.282	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – northeast and northwest sides, from a point 5 metres northeast of its junction with Longborough Court to a point 24.5 metres northeast of its junction with Cornwell Court	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.283	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – northwest side, from a point 27 metres northeast of its junction with Westwell Court northeastwards for 85.5 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.284	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – north west side, from a point 17 metres north east of its junction with Freeman Road north eastwards to a point 9 metres south west of its southern kerbline with Castledene Court.	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.285	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Clanfield Court to a point 4 metres west of its junction with Burford Court	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.286	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – south side, from a point 5.5 metres east of its junction with Finstock Court to a point 23 metres west of its junction with Clanfield Court	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.287	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – south side, from a point 5.5 metres west of its junction with Finstock Court westwards for 32 metres.	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.288	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – southwest and southeast sides, from a point 9 metres northwest of its junction with Kingham Court in a northwesterly and southwesterly direction for 182 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.289	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – southwest side, from a point 10 metres southeast of its junction with Kingham Court southwestwards for 39.5 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.290	DAYLESFORD DRIVE – west side, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Broadwell Court to a point 10 metres north of its junction with Daylesford Drive (eastbound)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.291	DENEWELL AVENUE – east side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Southlands northwards to a point 12 metres south of its junction with Eastlands	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.292	DENEWELL AVENUE – east side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Eastlands northwards for 42 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.293	DENEWELL AVENUE – west side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Southlands northwards to a point 12 metres south of its junction with Westlands	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.294	DENEWELL AVENUE – west side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Westlands northwards for 42 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.295	DERBY STREET - east side (lay-by), from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Stanhope Street northwards for 90 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.296	DERBY STREET - east side, from a point 115 metres north of its junction with Stanhope Street northwards for 35 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.297	DERBY STREET - north side (in parking bay area), from a point 44 metres north of its junction with Jefferson Place northwards for 7 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.298	DERBY STREET - west side (lay-by), from a point 67 metres north of its junction with Stanhope Street northwards for 24 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.299	DERBY STREET - west side (lay-by), from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Jefferson Place northwards for 21 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.300	CUL-DE-SAC WEST OF DERBY STREET ADJACENT TO NUMBER 24 DERBY STREET - east side, from a point 16 metres south and west of its southerly junction with Derby Street southwards for 18 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.301	CUL-DE-SAC WEST OF DERBY STREET ADJACENT TO NUMBER 24 DERBY STREET - west side, from a point 3 metres west of its junction with Derby Street southwards and westwards for 40 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.302	DERWENTDALE GARDENS – east side, from a point 47 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 143 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.303	DERWENTDALE GARDENS – east side, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 194 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.304	DERWENTDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 16 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 204 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.305	DERWENDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 47 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.306	DERWENTDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Ribbledale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 41 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.307	DERWENTDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Stanley Grove in a northerly direction for a distance of 40 metres.	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.308	DEUCHAR STREET – both sides, from a point 13 metres south of its junction with Osborne Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	All days All times
11.309	DEUCHAR STREET – east side, from a point 38 metres south of its junction with Osborne Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 45 metres	All days All times
11.310	DEUCHAR STREET – west side, from a point 38 metres south of its junction with Osborne Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 78 metres	All days All times
11.311	DEVONSHIRE PLACE - south side, from a point 2.4 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 24.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.312	DEVONSHIRE PLACE - north side, from a point 4.6 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 153.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.313	DEVONSHIRE PLACE - south side, from a point 33.9 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 124.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.314	DEVONSHIRE PLACE - both sides, from a point 2.9 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 19.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.324	DOBSON CLOSE – all sides, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Essex Close for the remainder of its length	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.331	DONNINGTON COURT – north east side, from a point 98 metres south east of its junction with Daylesford Drive south eastwards for its full length	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.332	DONNINGTON COURT – south west side, from a point 13 metres south east of its junction with Daylesford Drive south eastwards for 27 metres.	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.333	DONNINGTON COURT – south west side, from a point 57 metres south east of its junction with Daylesford Drive south eastwards for 13 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.334	DONNINGTON COURT (SOUTHERN CUL-DE-SAC ADJACENT TO NO. 23 DONNINGTON COURT) – east side, from its junction with Donnington Court southwards for its full length.	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.335	DOVEDALE GARDENS – north side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Swaledale Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 30 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.336	DOVEDALE GARDENS – north side from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Derwentdale Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 30 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.337	DOVEDALE GARDENS – north side, from a point 18 metres east of its junction with Cloverdale Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 32 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.338	DOVEDALE GARDENS – north side, from a point 22 metres east of its junction with Cleveland Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 23 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.339	DOVEDALE GARDENS – north side, from a point 19 metres east of its junction with Jenifer Grove to a point 18 metres west of its junction with Patterdale Gardens	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.340	DOVEDALE GARDENS – south side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Carol Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 110 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.341	DOVEDALE GARDENS – south side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Teesdale Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 27 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.342	DOVEDALE GARDENS – south side, from a point 20 metres east of its junction with Cleveland Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 120 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.343	DUNLOP CLOSE – both sides, from a point 7 metres north west of the west kerbline of Fairways Avenue in a north westerly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.344	DUNN'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Hunter's Place in a southerly direction for 12 metres	All days All times
11.345	DUNN'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 8 metres north west of its juntion with Hunter's Road in a north westerly direction for 10 metres (in parking bay area) with an overall width of 5 metres.	All days All times
11.346	DUNN'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Hunters Place in a northerly direction for a distance of 8 metres	All days All times
11.347	EARLS WAY SERVICE ROAD extending 6 metres from its junction with the northern kerbline of Eldon Square Bus Concourse in a northerly direction for 35 metres	All days All times
11.348	EAST BACK BELLE GROVE WEST – both sides, from a point 9 metres north-west of its junction with Ancrum Street in a north-westerly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	All days All times
11.349	EASTLANDS – east side and north side, from a point 12.5 metres north of its junction with Southlands northwards and westwards to a point 12 metres east of its junction with Denewell Avenue	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.350	EASTLANDS – south side, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Denewell Avenue eastwards for 53 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.351	EASTLANDS – west side, from a point 12.5 metres north of its junction with Southlands northwards for 188 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.352	EDGAR STREET – southwest side, from a point 9 metres southeast of its junction with Lartington Gardens south eastwards for 103 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.353	EDLINGHAM CLOSE – both sides, including spurs and turning heads from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Castle Farm Road	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.354	ELMFIELD ROAD - north-east side, from a point 12 metres south west of its junction with Linden Road south-westwards for 106 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.355	ELMFIELD ROAD - north-east side, from a point 12 metres south west of its junction with North Avenue south-westwards for a distance of 88 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.356	ELSDON ROAD both sides, from a point 6 metres south of its junction with Back Henry Street (South) to a point 9 metres north of its junction with Back Salters Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.357	ELSWICK EAST TERRACE – east side, from a point 58 metres south of its junction with Westmorland Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 20 metres	10am-11am and 2.00pm -3pm Monday to Friday
11.357A	ELY CLOSE - both sides for its entire length	11.00 am – noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.358	EMBLETON AVENUE north side, from a point 7 metres east of its junction with Craster Square in an easterly direction for a distance of 35 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday – Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.359	EMBLETON AVENUE – north side from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Beal Way in a westerly direction for a distance of 99 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.360	EMBLETON AVENUE south side, from a point 6 metres west of its junction with Beal Way westwards to a point 7 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Beadnell Way.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.361	EMBLETON AVENUE south side, from a point 6 metres west of its western kerbline with Beadnell Way westwards to a point 6 metres east of its western kerbline with Craster Square.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.362	ESKDALE TERRACE - east side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Back Eslington Road (North) in a southerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	9:30am to 10:30am 2:00pm to 4:00pm 7:00pm to 8:00pm Monday to Saturday
11.363	ESKDALE TERRACE – east side, from a point 54 metres south of Clayton Road in a southerly direction for 115 metres	9.30 am - 10.30 am, 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm - 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.364	ESKDALE TERRACE – east side, from a point 6 metres north of Back Eslington Terrace (North) in a northerly direction for 39 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.365	ESKDALE TERRACE – east side, from a point 6 metres south of Clayton Road in a southerly direction for 25 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.366	ESKDALE TERRACE – west side, from a point 21 metres south of Clayton Road southwards for 82 metres	8.00am - 6.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.367	ESKDALE TERRACE – west side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with East Front in a northerly direction for a distance of 27 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.368	ESKDALE TERRACE – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with East Front in a southerly direction for a distance of 29 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.369	ESLINGTON ROAD – north side, from a point 26 metres east of Eskdale Terrace in an easterly direction for 48 metres	8.00am – 6.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.370	ESLINGTON TERRACE – east side, from a point 21 metres south of Clayton Road to a point 12 metres south of Back Eslington Road (North)	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.371	ESLINGTON TERRACE – west side, from a point 44 metres north of its junction with Back Eslington Terrace (North) in a northerly direction for 114 metres	8.00am – 6.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.372	ESLINGTON TERRACE – west side, from a point 6 metres north of Kingsland in a northerly direction for 42 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.373	ESLINGTON TERRACE – west side, from a point 7 metres north of Clayton Road to a point 6 metres south of Kingsland	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.374	ESLINGTON TERRACE – west side, from a point 4 metres north of its junction with Back Eslington Road (North) in a northerly direction for a distance of 40 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.375	ESLINGTON TERRACE – west side, from a point 21 metres south of its junction with Clayton Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 75 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.376	ESSEX CLOSE – east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Dobson Close southwards for 52 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.377	ESSEX CLOSE – both sides, from a point 14 metres south of its junction with Cambridge Street in a southerly direction for its remaining length	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.378	ESSEX CLOSE – north, east, south and west sides, from a point 70.5 metres south then 15 metres east of its junction with Dobson Close eastwards, southwards, westwards, northwards then eastwards around turning head for a total distance of 220.5 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.379	ESSEX CLOSE – west side, from a point 6.5 metres south of its junction with Charlotte Close southwards for 60.5 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.380	FAIRBURN AVENUE – north side, from a point 11 metres north west of the north kerbline of Fairdale Avenue in a north westerly direction to a point 7 metres south east of the south kerbline of Fairways Avenue	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.381	FAIRBURN AVENUE – north side, from a point 16 metres west of its junction with Coach Lane to a point 10 metres east of its junction with Fairhill Close	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.382	FAIRBURN AVENUE – south side, from a point 1 metre east of the east kerbline of Fairhill Close in a westerly direction to a point 5 metres south east of the south kerbline of Fairdale Avenue	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.383	FAIRDALE AVENUE – both sides, from a point 8 metres south of the south kerbline of the south leg of Fairview Green in a southerly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.384	FAIRDALE AVENUE – west side, from a point 7 metres west of the south kerbline of Fairburn Avenue in a westerly and southerly direction to a point 6 metres north of the north kerbline of Fairmont Way	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.385	FAIRHILL CLOSE – both sides, from a point 8 metres north of the north kerbline of Fairburn Avenue in a northerly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.386	FAIRMONT WAY – south side, from a point 8 metres west of the west kerbline of Fairdale Avenue in a westerly direction to a point 6 metres east of the east kerbline of Fairways Avenue	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.387	FAIRVIEW GREEN (EAST LEG) – east side, from a point 14 metres north of the north kerbline of the south leg of Fairview Green in a northerly direction for 14 metres	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.388	FAIRVIEW GREEN (EAST LEG) – east side, from the kerbline of the south side of the south leg of Fairview Green in a southerly direction for 20 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.389	FAIRVIEW GREEN (EAST LEG) – west side, from a point 4 metres north of the north kerbline of the south leg of Fairview Green in a northerly and westerly direction to a point 6 metres east of the east kerbline of Fairdale Avenue	10.00 am - 11.00am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.390	FAIRVIEW GREEN (SOUTH LEG) – south side, from a point 7 metres east of the east kerbline of Fairdale Avenue in an easterly direction for 31 metres	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.391	FAIRVILLE CRESCENT (NORTH LEG) – north side, from a point 10 metres east of the east kerbline of Carnoustie Close in an easterly direction to a point 5 metres west of the west kerbline of Fairways Avenue	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.392	FAIRVILLE CRESCENT (SOUTH LEG) – south side, from a point 8 metres west of the west kerbline of Fairways Avenue in a westerly direction for 36 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.393	FAIRVILLE CRESCENT (WEST LEG) – east side, from a point 8 metres north of the north kerbline of the south leg of Fairville Crescent in a northerly direction to a point 9 metres south of the south kerbline of the north leg of Fairville Crescent.	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.394	FAIRWAYS AVENUE - east side, from a point 7 metres north east of the north east kerbline of Fairburn Avenue in a northerly direction to a point 7 metres south of the south kerbline of the unnamed service road between numbers 94 and 96 Fairways Avenue	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.395	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – east side, from a point 10 metres south of the south kerbline of Rosemont Way in a southerly direction to a point 9 metres north of the north kerbline of the unnamed service road between numbers 94 and 96 Fairways Avenue	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.396	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – east side, from a point 10 metres south west of the south kerbline of Fairburn Avenue in a southerly direction to a point 8 metres north of the north kerbline of Fairmont Way	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.397	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – north side, from a point 10 metres north east of the north east kerbline of Penfold Close in a northerly direction to a point 7 metres south of the south kerbline of Spalding Close	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.398	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – north side, from a point 17 metres east of the east kerbline of Benton Road in an easterly direction for 32 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.399	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – north side, from a point 8 metres north of the north east kerbline of Dunlop Close in a north easterly direction to a point 8 metres west of the south west kerbline of Penfold Close	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.400	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – south side, from a point 17 metres east of the east kerbline of Benton Road in an easterly and northerly direction to a point 7 metres south of the south kerbline of Fairmont Way	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.401	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – west side, from a point 10 metres north of the north kerbline of the south leg of Fairville Crescent in a northerly direction to a point 11 metres south of the south kerbline of the north leg of Fairville Crescent.	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.402	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – west side, from a point 12 metres north of the north kerbline of Spalding Close in a northerly direction to a point 12 metres south of the south kerbline of Rosemount Way	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.403	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – west side, from a point 4 metres north of the south kerbline of Fairmont Way in a northerly direction to a point 11 metres north of the north kerbline of Fairmont Way	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.404	FAIRWAYS AVENUE – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Dunlop Close to a point 11 metres north of its junction with the northern leg of Fairville Crescent	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.405	FARQUHAR STREET - both sides, from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Osborne Avenue northwards for 15.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.406	FARQUHAR STREET - east side, from a point 4 metres north of its junction with Back Osborne Road northwards for 17.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.407	FARQUHAR STREET - west side, from a point 2.3 metres north of its junction with Back Osborne Road northwards for 19.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.408	FARQUHAR STREET - both sides, from a point 5.4 metres north of its junction with Shortridge Terrace northwards for 16 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.409	FARQUHAR STREET - both sides, from a point 2.8 metres north of its junction with Back Shortridge Terrace northwards for 19.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.410	FERN AVENUE - north side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 6.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.411	FERN AVENUE - north side, from a point 21.7 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 69.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.412	FERN AVENUE - south side, from a point 8.9 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 263.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.413	FERN AVENUE - north side, from a point 5.9 metres east of its junction with Grosvenor Place eastwards for 10.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.414	FERN AVENUE - north side, from a point 29 metres east of its junction with Grosvenor Place eastwards for 7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.415	FERN AVENUE - north side, from a point 46.3 metres east of its junction with Grosvenor Place eastwards for 9.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.416	FERN AVENUE - north side, from a point 5.2 metres west of its junction with Gowan Terrace westwards for 105.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.417	FERN AVENUE - south side, from a point 4.9 metres east of its junction with Gowan Terrace eastwards for 16.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.418	FERN AVENUE - south side, from a point 37.8 metres east of its junction with Gowan Terrace eastwards for 25.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.419	FERN AVENUE - north side, from a point 5.1 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 44.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.420	FERN AVENUE - south side, from a point 4.4 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 13.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.421	FERNDENE GROVE - west side, from a point 15.5 metres north of its junction with Cornel Road to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Buckthorne Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.422	FERNDENE GROVE – east and south side, from a point 12.5 metres north of its junction with Buckthorne Grove to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Guelder Road.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.423	FERNDENE GROVE – east side, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Cornel Road to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Buckthorne Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.424	FERNDENE GROVE – south side from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Guelder Road to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Birchwood Avenue.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.425	FERNDENE GROVE – west and north side, from a point 12.5 metres north of its junction with Buckthorne Grove to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Birchwood Avenue.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.426	FINSTOCK COURT – both sides including turning head from a point 13 metres south of its junction with Daylesford Drive (west side) to a point 13 metres south of its junction with Daylesford Drive (east side)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.427	FONTBURN PLACE – north side, from its junction with Lealholm Road eastwards for its remaining length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.428	FOUNTAIN ROW – north-east side, from a point 2.5 metres south-east of the south-east kerbline of Back Ancrum Street to a point 2.5 metres north-east of the north-east kerbline of Ancrum Street.	All days All times
11.429	FREEMAN ROAD – north east side, from a point 11 metres north west of its junction with Hambledon Gardens to a point 16 metres south east of its junction with Cotswold Gardens	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.430	FREEMAN ROAD – north east side, from a point 24 metres north west of its junction with Cotswold Gardens to a point 10 metres south east of its junction with Melville Grove	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.431	FREEMAN ROAD – north east side, from a point 15 metres north west of its junction with Lilburn Gardens in a north westerly direction for a distance of 26 metres.	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.432	FREEMAN ROAD – north east side, from a point 12 metres south east of its junction with Lilburn Gardens in a south easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	8.00 am – 12 noon And 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.433	FREEMAN ROAD – south west side, from a point 45 metres north west of its junction with Lilburn Gardens in a north westerly direction for a distance of 76 metres.	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.434	GLADSTONE PLACE – both sides for its whole length	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.435	GLADSTONE TERRACE – both sides from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Chester Street to its junction with Gladstone Place	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.436	GLAISDALE ROAD – east side, from a point 19 metres north of its junction with Benton Park Road to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Lealholm Road.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.437	GLENTHORN ROAD – north side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Lyndhurst Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 78 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.438	GLENTHORN ROAD – north side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Lonsdale Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 142 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.439	GLENTHORN ROAD – south side, from a point 4 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Lonsdale Terrace eastwards to a point 3 metres west of its western kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.440	GLENTHORN ROAD – south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Lyndhurst Avenue eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its western kerbline with Lonsdale Terrace	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.441	GLOUCESTER WAY – east side, from a point 11.5 metres north of its junction with Cambridge Street northwards for 27 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.442	GLOUCESTER WAY – south side of the western turning head from a point 7 metres west of its junction with Gloucester Way westwards for 23 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.443	GLOUCESTER WAY – west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with the western turning head northwards for 30.5 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3
Parking Place	Description of Farking Flace	Charge Period
11.444	GLOUCESTER WAY – west, north, east and south sides of the eastern turning head from a point 10.5 metres south and 5 metres east of the extreme northern end of Gloucester Way in a northerly, easterly, southerly, westerly then northerly direction around the eastern turning head for a total distance of 42.5 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.454	GORDON AVENUE – east side, from a point 4.8 metres south of Hawthorn Road southwards for 18 metres.	All days All times
11.455	GOSFORTH STREET – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Coppice Way in an easterly direction for a distance of 30 metres	8am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.456	GOWAN TERRACE - west side, from a point 10.4 metres north of its junction with Osborne Avenue northwards for 24.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.457	GOWAN TERRACE - east side, from a point 9.6 metres north of its junction with Osborne Avenue northwards for 5.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.458	GOWAN TERRACE - east side, from a point 18.6 metres north of its junction with Osborne Avenue northwards for 7.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.459	GOWAN TERRACE - east side, from a point 4.8 metres south of its junction with Holly Avenue southwards for 35.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.460	GOWAN TERRACE - west side, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Holly Avenue southwards for 19.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.461	GOWAN TERRACE - west side, from a point 4.8 metres north of its junction with Holly Avenue northwards for 20 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.462	GOWAN TERRACE - east side, from a point 5.9 metres north of its junction with Holly Avenue northwards for 8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.463	GOWAN TERRACE - east side, from a point 5.1 metres south of its junction with Fern Avenue southwards for 49.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.464	GOWAN TERRACE - west side, from a point 5.2 metres south of its junction with Fern Avenue southwards for 30.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.465	GOWAN TERRACE - west side, from a point 5.3 metres north of its junction with Fern Avenue northwards for 19.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.466	GOWAN TERRACE - west side, from a point 2 metres south of its junction with Back Fern Avenue southwards for 6.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.467	GOWAN TERRACE - east side, from a point 2.9 metres south of its junction with Back Fern Avenue southwards for 30.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.468	GOWAN TERRACE - both sides, from a point 5.7 metres south of its junction with Queens Road southwards for 15.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.476	GRANVILLE ROAD – east side, from a point 10 metres north of Jesmond Road in a northerly and westerly direction for 105 metres.	All days All times
11.477	GRETTON PLACE – both sides, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Leyburn Drive for its remaining length	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.483	GROSVENOR AVENUE - south side, from a point 9.8 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 97.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.484	GROSVENOR AVENUE - north side, from a point 10.8 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 342.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.485	GROSVENOR AVENUE - south side, from a point 4.3 metres east of its junction with Back Grosvenor Avenue West, eastwards for 125.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.486	GROSVENOR AVENUE - south side, from a point 3 metres east of its junction with Back Grosvenor Avenue East, eastwards for 70.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.487	GROSVENOR AVENUE - south side, from a point 4.3 metres west of its junction with Jesmond Dene Road westwards for 14.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.488	GROSVENOR PLACE - west side, from a point 2.8 metres north of its junction with Back Fern Avenue northwards for 65.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.489	GROSVENOR PLACE - west side, from a point 5.9 metres south of its junction with Back Fern Avenue southwards for 19.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.490	GROSVENOR PLACE - east side, from a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Fern Avenue southwards for 39.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.491	GROSVENOR ROAD - south side, from a point 5.6 metres west of its junction with Grosvenor Place westwards for 14.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.492	GROSVENOR ROAD - south side, from a point 5.6 metres east of its junction with Grosvenor Place eastwards for 28.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.493	GROSVENOR ROAD - north side, from a point 54 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 25.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.494	GROSVENOR ROAD - north side, from a point 89.6 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 24.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.495	GROSVENOR ROAD - north side, from a point 14.8 metres west of its junction with Queens Terrace westwards for 11.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.496	GROSVENOR ROAD - south side, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with Queens Terrace westwards for 18.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.497	GROSVENOR ROAD - north side, from a point 10.5 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 104.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.498	GROSVENOR ROAD - south side, from a point 3.8 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 153.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.499	GROSVENOR ROAD - north side, from a point 3.3 metres east of its junction with Back Grosvenor Avenue West, eastwards for 115.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.500	GROSVENOR ROAD - south side, from a point 6.7 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 9.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.501	GROSVENOR ROAD - south side, from a point 6.6 metres east of its junction with Manor House Road eastwards for 158.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.502	GROSVENOR ROAD - north side, from a point 2.4 metres east of its junction with Back Grosvenor Avenue East, eastwards for 103.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.503	GUELDER ROAD – both sides, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Buckthorne Grove to a point 13 metres south of its junction with Ferndene Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.504	GUELDER ROAD – east side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Cornel Road to a point 11 metres south of its junction with Buckthorne Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.505	GUELDER ROAD – west side, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Cornel Road to a point 11 metres south of its junction with Buckthorne Grove.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.506	GUYZANCE AVENUE north side, from a point 12 metres west of its western kerbline with Brinkburn Avenue westwards to a point 10 metres east of its junction with Harbottle Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.507	GUYZANCE AVENUE north side, from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Weldon Way westwards to a point 10 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Brinkburn Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.508	GUYZANCE AVENUE south side, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Weldon Way westwards for 121 metres.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.509	HALDANE TERRACE – north side, from a point 5 metres east of Tankerville Terrace to a point 7 metres west of Otterburn Terrace	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.510	HALDANE TERRACE – north side, from a point 6 metres east of Otterburn Terrace to its junction with Eslington Terrace	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.511	HALDANE TERRACE – south side, from a point 12 metres east of Burdon Terrace in an easterly direction for 60 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.512	HALDANE TERRACE – south side, from a point 5 metres east of Tankerville Terrace in an easterly direction for 36 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.513	HAMBLEDON GARDENS – north side, from a point 23 metres east of its junction with Freeman Road to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Kirkstone Gardens.	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.514	HAMBLEDON GARDENS – north side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Kirkstone Gardens to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Boundary Gardens	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.515	HAMBLEDON GARDENS – south side, from a point 23 metres east of its junction with Freeman Road to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Boundary Gardens	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.516	HARBOTTLE AVENUE east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Guyzance Avenue northwards to a point 12 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm and 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.517	HARBOTTLE AVENUE – west side from a point 16 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 24 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.518	HARBOTTLE AVENUE – west side from a point 59 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 24 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.519	HARRISON PLACE – both sides, for its whole length.	8am – 6.30pm All days
11.520	HARTSIDE GARDENS - north side, from a point 8.5 metres east of its junction with Valley View eastwards for 122.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.521	HARTSIDE GARDENS - south side, from a point 7.9 metres east of its junction with Valley View eastwards for 137.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.522	HAVERSHAM CLOSE – east side, from a point 144 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 19 metres (in layby area)	10.00 am – 11.00am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.523	HAVERSHAM CLOSE – east side, from a point 186 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a south easterly direction for 12 metres	10.00 am – 11.00am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.524	HAVERSHAM CLOSE – east side, from a point 32 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 18 metres (in layby area)	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.525	HAVERSHAM CLOSE – east side, from a point 62 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 12 metres (in layby area)	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.526	HAVERSHAM CLOSE – west side, from a point 104 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 17 metres (in layby area)	10.00 am – 11.00am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.527	HAVERSHAM CLOSE – west side, from a point 167 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 13 metres (in layby area)	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.528	HAWTHORN PLACE – east side, from a point 12.5 metres north of its junction with Cambridge Street northwards for 121 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.529	HAWTHORN PLACE – south side of the northern turning head from a point 10.5 metres west of its junction with Hawthorn Place westwards for 24 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.530	HAWTHORN PLACE (SOUTHERN TURNING HEAD) - both sides, from a point 9 metres west of its junction with Hawthorn Place in a westerly direction for its remaining length	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.531	HAWTHORN PLACE – west side, from a point 8.5 metres north of its junction with the southern turning head northwards for 62 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.532	HAWTHORN ROAD – north side, from a point 7 metres east of its junction with Back Linden Road (East) to a point 5 metres west of its junction with the access lane to Back Hawthorn Road (North)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.533	HAWTHORN ROAD – south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Gordon Avenue in an easterly direction to a point 3 metres west of its junction with the access lane to Back Hawthorn Road (South) (Back High Street).	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.534	HAWTHORN ROAD – south side, from a point 5 metres west of its junction with Gordon Avenue in a westerly direction for 22 metres.	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.535	HAWTHORN ROAD WEST - north west side, from a point 12 metres south west of its junction with Linden Road southwestwards for 45 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.536	HAWTHORN ROAD WEST - north west side, from a point 13 metres north-east of its junction with North Avenue north-eastwards for 45 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.537	HAWTHORN ROAD WEST - south east side, from a point 12 metres from its junction with Linden Road southwestwards for 47 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.538	HAWTHORN ROAD WEST - south east side, from a point 13 metres north-east of its junction with North Avenue north-eastwards for 18 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.539	HAZELWOOD AVENUE – both sides, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Lonsdale Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 14.2 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.540	HEATHDALE GARDENS – north side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Jenifer Grove to a point 20 metres west of its junction with Patterdale Gardens	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.541	HEATHDALE GARDENS – south side, from a point 14 metres east of it junction with Jenifer Grove to a point 18 metres west of its junction with Patterdale Gardens	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.542	HEDLEY STREET east side, from a point 7 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Henry Street South, southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Salters Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.543	HEDLEY STREET west side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Poplar Place South, southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Laurel Walk South	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.544	HEDLEY STREET west side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Laurel Walk South, southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Salters Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.545	HEDLEY STREET west side, from a point 7 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Henry Street South, southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Poplar Place South	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.546	HEDLEY TERRACE both sides, from a point 4 metres south of its southern junction with Back Henry Street North, southwards to a point 4 metres north of its junction with Henry Street	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.547	HEDLEY TERRACE both sides, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Back Regent Farm Road South, southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Henry Street North	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.555	HENRY SQUARE – all sides, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Albert Street to a point 12 metres south of its junction with Copland Terrace	8am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.556	HENRY STREET south side, from a point 41 metres west of its western kerbline with Back Lansdowne Terrace eastwards to a point 7 metres west of its western kerbline with Back Lansdowne Terrace	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.557	HENRY STREET south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Regent Road eastwards to a point 6 metres west of its western kerbline with Hedley Street	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.558	HENRY STREET south side, from a point 8 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Hedley Street eastwards for 39 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.559	HENSHELWOOD TERRACE – both sides, from a point 4 metres south of Tankerville Terrace in an easterly direction for 35 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.560	HEPPLE WAY north side, from its junction with Thropton Crescent westwards for its full length	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.561	HIDDLESTON AVENUE – both sides, for its whole length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.562	HIGH FRIARS AND SIDGATE SERVICE ROAD – south side, (an irregular shaped area of highway formed by the supporting columns and building lines at the east side of the cul-de-sac) on the south side, adjacent to its eastern end, as extends for 5.5 metres westwards of its eastern building line (with a width throughout of 4.8 metres)	All days All times
11.563	HIGH FRIARS AND SIDGATE SERVICE ROAD – south side, from a point 0.9 metres east of the cul-de-sac area on its south side, adjacent to its eastern end, eastwards for 5.4 metres.	All days All times
11.564	HIGH FRIARS AND SIDGATE SERVICE ROAD – south side, from a point 3.3 metres west of the west kerb line of the cul-de-sac area on the south side, adjacent to its eastern end, westwards for 19.4 metres	All days All times
11.565	HIGH LAWS – both sides, including spurs and turning heads from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Castle Farm Road	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.566	HOLDERNESS ROAD – both sides, from a point 78 metres south of its junction with Stephenson Road in a southerly direction for 110 metres	6.30pm to midnight All days

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.567	HOLLY AVENUE - north side, from a point 10.1 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 21.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.568	HOLLY AVENUE - south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 84.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.569	HOLLY AVENUE - north side, from a point 9.7 metres east of its junction with Back Holly Avenue eastwards for 9.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.570	HOLLY AVENUE - north side, from a point 24.9 metres east of its junction with Back Holly Avenue eastwards for 208.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.571	HOLLY AVENUE - south side, from a point 5.1 metres west of its junction with Gowan Terrace westwards for 177.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.572	HOLLY AVENUE - south side, from a point 5 metres east from its junction with Gowan Terrace eastwards for 25.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.573	HOLLY AVENUE - north side, from a point 5.2 metres east from its junction with Gowan Terrace eastwards for 22.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.574	HOLLY AVENUE - south side, from a point 3.6 metres east of its junction with Back Osborne Avenue eastwards for 61 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.575	HOLLY AVENUE - north side, from a point 5.7 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 46.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.576	HOLYSTONE AVENUE – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Weldon Way eastwards to a point 13 metres west of its junction with Rothbury Avenue.	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.577	HOLYSTONE AVENUE north side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Weldon Way eastwards to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Rothbury Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.578	HOLYWELL CLOSE - east side (lay-by), from a point 5 metres south of its junction with New Mills southwards for 13 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.579	HOLYWELL CLOSE - south side (in parking bay area), from a point 27 metres south of its eastern junction with New Mills southwards for 10 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.580	HUNTER'S PLACE - north side, from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Dunn's Terrace in a westerly direction for 5 metres (in lay-by area).	All days All times
11.581	HUNTER'S PLACE – north side, from a point 5 metres south west of its junction with Hunter's Place (running in a north west to south east direction) in a south westerly direction for 5 metres (in parking bay area).	All days All times
11.582	HUNTER'S PLACE – west side, from its junction with Hunter's Place (running in an east/west direction) in a northerly direction for 5 metres.	All days All times
11.583	IVY CLOSE – both sides, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Maple Street in a westerly direction for its remaining length.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.584	IVY ROAD north side, from a point 12 metres south east of its junction with Woodbine Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 144 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.585	IVY ROAD south side, from a point 12 metres south east of its junction with Woodbine Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 154 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.586	JEFFERSON PLACE - east side, from a point 84 metres west of its junction with Bassington Close northwards for 15 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.587	JEFFERSON PLACE - south and west side, from a point 8 metres west of its junction with the cul-de-sac adjacent to number 21 Jefferson Place northwards and westwards for 47 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.588	JEFFERSON PLACE - south side, from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Derby Street westwards for 56 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.589	CUL-DE-SAC ADJACENT TO NUMBER 21 JEFFERSON PLACE - east side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Jefferson Place southwards for 16 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.590	CUL-DE-SAC ADJACENT TO NUMBER 21 JEFFERSON PLACE - west side, from a point 11 metres south of its junction with Jefferson Place southwards for 11 metres.	9.30am to 11.30am and 3.30pm to 8.30pm All days
11.591	JENIFER GROVE – both sides, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Cannock Drive in a northerly direction for a distance of 65 metres	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.592	JENIFER GROVE – east side, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Heathdale Gardens	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.593	JENIFER GROVE – east side, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Heathdale Gardens to a point 7 metres south of its junction with Mitcham Crescent	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.594	JENIFER GROVE – east side, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Mitcham Crescent to a point 8 metres south of its junction with Cannock Drive	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday - Friday
11.595	JENIFER GROVE – north side, from a point 9 metres west of its junction with the unnamed road (running south of Whitton Place) in a westerly direction for 67 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.596	JENIFER GROVE – north side, from a point 13 metres west of its junction with Patterdale Gardens to a point 9 metres east of its junction with the unnamed road (running south of Whitton Place).	10.00am – 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.597	JENIFER GROVE – south side, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Mitcham Crescent in a westerly direction for a distance of 83 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.598	JENIFER GROVE – south side, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Patterdale Gardens to a point 12 metres east of its junction with Mitcham Crescent.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.599	JENIFER GROVE – west side, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens to a point 11 metres south of its junction with Cannock Drive	10.00am - 11.00am and 2.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.600	JESMOND DENE ROAD - west side, from a point 12.8 metres north of its junction with Wellburn Park northwards for 62.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.601	JESMOND DENE ROAD - west side, from a point 8.3 metres north of its junction with Cavendish Road northwards for 47.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.602	JESMOND DENE ROAD - west side, from a point 3 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Road northwards for 44.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.603	JESMOND DENE ROAD - west side, from a point 14.6 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Avenue northwards for 10.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.604	JESMOND PARK WEST – east side, from a point 11.5 metres south of its junction with Southlands for 15.5 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.605	JESMOND PARK WEST – east side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Southlands northwards for 187 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.606	JESMOND PARK WEST – east side, from a point 25 metres south of its junction with Newton Road southwards for 25.5 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.607	JESMOND PARK WEST – west side, from a point 10 metres of its junction with Anscomb Gardens northwards for 16.5 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.608	JESMOND PARK WEST – west side, from a point 14 metres south of its junction with Anscomb Gardens southwards for 193.5 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.609	JESMOND PARK WEST – west side, from a point 231.5 metres south of its junction with Anscomb Gardens southwards for 67 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.610	JUBILEE ROAD – east side, from a point 47 metres south of Melbourne Street southwards for 9.2 metres with a width throughout of 4.8 metres	All days All times
11.611	JUBILEE ROAD – north side, from a point 1.5 metres west of Grenville Terrace westwards for 26 metres with a width throughout of 5.7 metres	All days All times
11.612	JUBILEE ROAD – north side, from a point 31 metres west of Grenville Terrace westwards for 14.3 metres with a width throughout of 5.7 metres	All days All times
11.613	JUBILEE ROAD - east side, from a point 46 metres north west of its junction with Back Salters Road North in a north westerly direction for a distance of 31 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.614	JUBILEE ROAD - east side, from its junction with Salters Road to a point 16 metres south east of its junction with Back Salters Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.615	JUBILEE ROAD north side, from a point 17 metres east of its junction with Beal Way in an easterly direction for a distance of 48 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.616	JUBILEE ROAD north side, from a point 25 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Beadnell Way to a point 13 metres west of its western kerbline with Beal Way	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.617	JUBILEE ROAD north side, from a point 40 metres east of its junction with Wansbeck Road South to a point 41 metres west of its junction with Beadnell Way	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.618	JUBILEE ROAD south side, from a point 11 metres east of its eastern kerbline of its western junction with Jubilee Crescent to a point 10 metres west of its western kerbline of its eastern junction with Jubilee Crescent	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.619	JUBILEE ROAD south side, from a point 14 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Welford Avenue eastwards for 115 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.620	JUBILEE ROAD south side, from a point 9 metres east of its eastern kerbline of its eastern junction with Jubilee Crescent to a point 15 metres west of its western kerbline with Welford Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.621	JUBILEE ROAD west side, from a point 15 metres north west of its junction with Salters Road north westwards for 36 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.622	JUBILEE ROAD west side, from a point 31 metres north west of its junction with Baronswood north westwards to a point 140 metres north west of its junction with Baronswood	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.623	KEELMANS HOSPITAL ACCESS ROAD – south side, from a point 8 metres west of the west side of Jubilee Road westwards for 11.5 metres	All days All times
11.624	KELDANE GARDENS – west side, from a point 15 metres south of West Road southwards for 53 metres	All days All times
11.629	KINGHAM COURT – both sides including turning head from a point 8.5 metres southwest of its junction with Daylesford Drive (east side) to a point 8.5 metres southwest of its junction with Daylesford Drive (west side)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.630	KINGSLAND – both sides, from a point 7 metres east of Burdon Terrace in an easterly direction for 51 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.631	KINGSLAND – both sides, from a point 11 metres west of its junction with Eslington Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.632	KINGSLAND – south side, from a point 9 metres west of its junction with Eslington Terrace in a westerly direction for a distance of 13 metres	9:30am to 10:30am 2:00pm to 4:00pm Monday to Saturday
11.633	KINGSTON PARK AND BANKFOOT AREA ZONE consisting of the whole of the streets listed below:- Aberdeen Court Abingdon Court Access road to Nos. 17, 19 and 21 Brunton Road Arundel Court Ascot Court Bromley Court Chichester Close Clifton Court Colnbrook Close Cosford Court Courtney Court Courtney Court Cowdray Court Cranbrook Court	During the specified period when traffic signs are displayed on-street in connection with any event

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3
No. of	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period
Parking	2 coonplion on tanking that	901011011
Place		
7 3000	Cranleigh Avenue	
	Cranwell Court	
	Ealing Court	
	Edinburgh Court	
	Elstree Court	
	Englefield Close	
	Epsom Court	
	Esher Court	
	Farn Court	
	Faversham Court	
	Fawdon Walk (Road)	
	Fetcham Court	
	Gatwick Court	
	Gloucester Court	
	Hastings Avenue	
	Hawkshead Court	
	Hereford Court	
	Hersham Close	
	Hesket Court	
	Huntington Close	
	Kent Court	
	Kirkham Avenue	
	Laleham Court	
	Lancaster Court	
	Lancing Court	
	Launceston Close	
	Lichfield Close	
	Ludlow Close	
	Marlborough Court	
	Ousby Court	
	Pelham Court	
	Pembroke Court	
	Pinewood Close	
	Ravensworth Court	
	Shannon Court	
	Shoreham Court	
	Skelton Court	
	Soulby Court Station Boad between a point 153 metres porth cost of	
	Station Road between a point 153 metres north east of	
	the A696 roundabout and Main Road (Ponteland Road B6918) – including the access road to Nos. 36 and 38	
	Station Road	
	Teddington Close	
	The Gables	
	Uldale Court	
	Wallington Court	
	Warcop Court	
	Warwick Court	
	Windsor Court	
L		<u> </u>

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
7 13300	Woodend Way Wraysbury Court Yeadon Court	
	AND the parts of those roads mentioned below:- Main Road (B6918), Kenton Bankfoot (south side), at the following locations:-	During the specified period when traffic signs are displayed on-street in connection with any event
	(a) from a point 26 metres northwest of the centre line of the junction with Station Road in a north westerly direction for 40 metres	
	(b) from a point 30 metres southeast of the centre line of the junction with Station Road in a south easterly direction for 67 metres	
	(c) from a point 20 metres southeast of the centre line of the junction with The Crescent in a south easterly direction for a distance of 50 metres	
	Brunton Road, Kenton Bankfoot (west side), at the following location:- (a) from a point 45 metres north of the north channel line of Main Road (B6918) in a northerly direction for distance of 100 metres	During the specified period when traffic signs are displayed on-street in connection with any event
11.634	KIRKSTONE GARDENS – both sides, from a point 13 metres south of its junction with Cotswold Gardens to a point 11 metres north of its junction with Hambledon Gardens	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.635	KYLE CLOSE – both sides, from a point 14 metres west of its junction with Maple Street in a westerly direction for its remaining length.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.636	LAMBTON ROAD – north side, from a point 8 metres east of Brandling Park in an easterly direction for 72 metres	9.30 am - 10.30 am, 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm - 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.637	LAMBTON ROAD – south side, from a point 28 metres east of its junction with Brandling Park in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am, 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.638	LARKSPUR TERRACE – east side, from a point 33 metres south of its junction with Acorn Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 162 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.639	LARKSPUR TERRACE – west side, from a point 43 metres south of its junction with Acorn Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 153 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.640	LARTINGTON GARDENS – both sides, from a point 6 metres northeast of its junction with Freeman Road north eastwards for 16 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.641	LARTINGTON GARDENS – both sides, from a point 36 metres northeast of its junction with Freeman Road north eastwards for 52 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.642	LEALHOLM ROAD GARAGE ACCESS ROAD – both sides, for its whole length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.643	LEALHOLM ROAD – south side, from a point 10 metres east of Vicars Lane to a point 10 metres west of Glaisdale Road	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.644	LEALHOLM ROAD – south side, from a point 10 metres east of Glaisdale Road eastwards for 70 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.645	LEALHOLM ROAD – north side, from a point 10 metres east of Vicars Lane to a point 18 metres west of Glaisdale Road	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.646	LEALHOLM ROAD – north side, from a point 22 metres east of its junction with Glaisdale Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 100 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.647	LEALHOLM ROAD – west side, from a point 22 metres north of Benton Park Road northwards for 11 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.648	LEYBURN DRIVE – west and north side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Cotswold Gardens to a point 8 metres west of its junction with Gretton Place	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.649	LEYBURN DRIVE – east side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Cotswold Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 35 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.650	LEYBURN DRIVE – south side, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Stokesley Grove to a point 26 metres west of its junction with Gretton Place	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.651	LEYBURN DRIVE – north side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Gretton Place to a point 7 metres west of its junction with Stanway Drive	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.652	LEYBURN DRIVE – north side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Stanway Drive to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Stokesley Grove	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.653	LILBURN GARDENS – northwest side, from a point 12 metres southwest of its junction with Edgar Street south westwards for 133 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.654	LILBURN GARDENS – northwest side, from a point 7 metres northeast of its junction with Freeman Road north eastwards for 16 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.655	LILBURN GARDENS – southeast side, from a point 7 metres northeast of its junction with Freeman Road north eastwards for 174 metres	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.656	LILY AVENUE – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Norham Place to a point 4 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Osborne Road West.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.657	LILY AVENUE – south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Lily Crescent to a point 3 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Lily Avenue.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.658	LILY AVENUE – south side, from a point 3 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Back Lily Avenue to a point 4 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Osborne Road West.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.659	LILY AVENUE – south side, from a point 4 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Back Osborne Road West to a point 4 metres west of its junction with Osborne Road.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.660	LILY CRESCENT – east side, from a point 6 metres south of its junction with Lily Avenue to a point 3 metres north of its junction with Holly Avenue West	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.661	LINDEN ROAD east side, from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Causey Street in a northerly direction to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Hawthorn Road	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.662	LINDEN ROAD east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Hawthorn Road in a northerly direction to a point 10 metres south of its junction with West Avenue	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.663	LINDEN ROAD east side, from a point 25 metres north of its junction with West Avenue in a northerly direction to a point 5 metres south of its junction with Back Woodbine Road (South)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.664	LINDEN ROAD east side, from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Back Woodbine Road (South) in a northerly direction to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Woodbine Road	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.665	LINDEN ROAD east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Woodbine Road in a northerly direction to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Salters Road	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.666	LINDEN ROAD west side, from a point 45 metres north of its junction with Elmfield Road in a northerly direction to a point 45 metres south of its junction with Hawthorn Road West	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.667	LINDEN ROAD west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Hawthorn Road West in a northerly direction to a point 10 metres south of its junction with West Avenue	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.668	LINDEN ROAD west side, from a point 16 metres north of its junction with Linden Avenue in a northerly direction to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Mayfield Road	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.669	LINDEN ROAD west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Mayfield Road in a northerly direction to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Broomfield Road	9.30am – 11.30am, and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.670	LINDEN ROAD west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Broomfield Road in a northerly direction to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Salters Road	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.671	LONGBOROUGH COURT – both sides including turning head from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Daylesford Drive (south side) to a point 11 metres east of its junction with Daylesford Drive (north side)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.672	LONSDALE TERRACE – east side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Osborne Road South, southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Tavistock Road	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.673	LONSDALE TERRACE – east side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Tavistock Road southwards to a point 3 metres north of Back Hazelwood Avenue North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.674	LONSDALE TERRACE – east side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Hazelwood Avenue North southwards to a point 4 metres north of Hazelwood Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.675	LONSDALE TERRACE – east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Hazelwood Avenue southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Bayswater Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.676	LONSDALE TERRACE – west side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Osborne Road South, southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Bayswater Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.677	LYNDHURST AVENUE – east side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Bayswater Road South, southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Bayswater Road	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.678	LYNDHURST AVENUE – east side, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Glenthorn Road North southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Glenthorn Road	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.679	LYNDHURST AVENUE – east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Osborne Road South, southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Bayswater Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.680	LYNDHURST AVENUE – east side, from a point 5 metres south of its southern kerbline with Bayswater Road southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Glenthorn Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.681	LYNDHURST AVENUE – east side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Osborne Road southwards to a point 5 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Osborne Road South	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.682	LYNNWOOD AVENUE – both sides, for its entire length	8.00 am 6.30 pm Monday to Friday.
11.683	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - east side, from a point 5.6 metres north of its junction with Osborne Road northwards for 58.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.684	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - west side, from a point 6.5 metres north of its junction with Osborne Road northwards for 30.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.685	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - west side, from a point 6.5 metres south of its junction with Holly Avenue southwards for 18.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.686	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - west side, from a point 4.3 metres north of its junction with Holly Avenue northwards for 76.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.687	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - east side, from a point 6.5 metres north of its junction with Holly Avenue northwards for 40.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.688	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - east side, from a point 3.1 metres north of its junction with Buston Terrace northwards for 61.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.689	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - west side, from a point 10.8 metres north of its junction with Fern Avenue northwards for 19.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.690	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - west side, from a point 3.8 metres north of its junction with Back Fern Avenue northwards for 15.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.691	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - east side, from a point 4.2 metres north of its junction with Back Fern Avenue northwards for 147.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.692	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - west side, from a point 3.5 metres north of its junction with Queens Road northwards for 53 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.693	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - west side, from a point 4.5 metres north of its junction with Devonshire Place northwards for 47.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.694	MAPLE STREET – west side, from a point 7.5 metres south east of its junction with Kyle Close south eastwards for 65 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.695	MAPLE STREET – west side, from a point 8 metres north west of its junction with Kyle Close north westwards for 27 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.696	MATHER ROAD – west side, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Cambridge Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 78 metres	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3pm Monday to Friday
11.697	MAYFIELD ROAD - both sides, from a point 8 metres southwest of its junction with Linden Road south-westwards for 13 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.698	MAYFIELD ROAD -north side, from a point 3.5 metres south-west of its junction with Back Linden Road south-westwards for 63 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.699	MAYFIELD ROAD - north side, from a point 4 metres north east of its junction with North Avenue north-eastwards for 28 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.700	MAYFIELD ROAD - south side, from a point 3 metres southwest of its junction with Back Linden Road south-westwards for 98 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.701	MELVILLE GROVE – south east side, from a point 11 metres north east of its junction with Stanway Drive to a point 11 metres south west of its junction with Saxton Grove (includes the hardstanding verge with a width of 2 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres).	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.702	MELVILLE GROVE – south east side, from a point 14 metres north east of its junction with Saxton Grove to a point 12 metres south west of its junction with Cleveland Gardens (includes the hardstanding verge with a width of 2 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres).	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.703	MELVILLE GROVE – south east side, from a point 19 metres north east of its junction with Freeman Road to a point 9 metres south west of its junction with Stanway Drive (includes the hardstanding verge with a width of 2 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres).	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.704	MILTON CLOSE - both sides, for its entire length.	8.00 am 6.30 pm Monday to Saturday
11.705	MILTON PLACE – both sides, for its entire length	8.00am-6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.706	MISTLETOE ROAD – south side, from a point 20 metres west of its western kerbline with Back Osborne Road West to a point 28 metres east of its junction with Norham Place	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.707	MITCHAM CRESCENT – both sides, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Jenifer Grove in an easterly direction for a distance of 64 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.708	MITCHAM CRESCENT – east side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Jenifer Grove in a southerly direction for a distance of 101 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.709	MITCHAM CRESCENT – west side, from a point 11 metres south of its junction with Cannock Drive in a southerly direction for a distance of 43 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.710	MITCHAM CRESCENT – west side, from a point 6 metres south of its junction with Jenifer Grove to a point 11 metres north of its junction with Cannock Drive	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.711	MORPETH STREET – north side, from a point 13 metres north-west of its junction with Wallace Street in a north-westerly direction for a distance of 70 metres	All days All times
11.712	MORPETH STREET – south side, from a point 10 metres north-west of its junction with Cross Morpeth Street in a north-westerly direction for 49.5 metres.	All days All times
11.713	MORPETH STREET – south side, from a point 13 metres south-east of its junction with Cross Morpeth Street in a south-easterly direction for a distance of 29 metres	All days All times
11.714	MORPETH STREET – south west side, from a point 13 metres north west of its junction with Wallace Street in a north westerly direction for a distance of 5 metres	All days All times
11.715	MULBERRY PLACE – all sides, for it entire length	10am -11am and 2.00pm -3pm Monday to Friday
11.716	MYRTLE GROVE – both sides, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Bayswater Road North, southwards to a point 4 metres north of its junction with Bayswater Road	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.717	MYRTLE GROVE – both sides, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Osborne Road South, southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Bayswater Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.718	MYRTLE GROVE – east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Osborne Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.719	NAPIER STREET – all sides, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Shield Street in a westerly and northerly direction for its remaining length	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.720	NEWBROUGH CRESCENT – east side, from a point 9 metres east of its northern junction with Osborne Road eastwards and southwards to a point 15 metres north of its southern junction with Osborne Road	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.721	NEWTON ROAD – north east side, from a point 13.6 metres north west of its junction with Beanley Place north westwards for 41 metres.	11.00 am – 12.00 pm and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.722	NEWTON ROAD - north east side, from a point 16.1 metres south east of its northern junction with Holystone Crescent south eastwards for 34 metres.	11.00 am – 12.00 pm and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.723	NEWTON ROAD – north east side, from a point 17.8 metres south east of its junction with Beanley Place south eastwards for 19.1 metres.	11.00 am – 12.00 pm and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.724	NEWTON ROAD – north east side, from a point 20 metres north west of its northern junction with Holystone Crescent north westwards for 7.4 metres.	11.00 am – 12.00 pm and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.725	NEWTON ROAD – north east side, from a point 21.6 metres south east of its northern junction with Weldon Crescent south eastwards for 22 metres	11.00 am – 12.00 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.726	NEWTON ROAD – north side, from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Boundary Gardens to a point 35 metres east of its junction with Freeman Road.	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.727	NEWTON ROAD – south side, from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Denewell Avenue to a point 40 metres east of its junction with Jesmond Park West.	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.728	NEWTON ROAD – south west side, from a point 13 metres north west of its junction with Southlands north westwards for 215 metres.	11.00 am – 12.00 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.729	NORHAM PLACE – east side, from a point 4 metres south of its junction with Mistletoe Road to a point 4 metres north of the northern kerbline of Back Mistletoe Road	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.730	NORHAM PLACE – east side, from a point 4 metres south of the southern kerbline of Back Mistletoe Road to a point 11 metres north of its junction with Lily Avenue.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.731	NORHAM PLACE – north side, from a point 4 metres west of the junction with Mistletoe Road and St George's Terrace westwards for 10 metres.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.732	NORHAM PLACE – west side, from a point 30 metres north of the northern kerbline of Back Mistletoe Road northwards for 5 metres.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.733	NORTH AVENUE - north east side, from a point 2 metres north east of its junction with Mayfield Road north-westwards for 17 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.734	NORTH AVENUE - north east side, from a point 2 metres north east of its junction with Back Broomfield Road northwestwards for 17 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.735	NORTH AVENUE - north east side, from a point 2 metres north east of its junction with Broomfield Road north-westwards for 17 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.736	NORTH AVENUE - north east side, from a point 2 metres north east of its junction with Back Salters Road north-westwards for 10 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.737	NORTH AVENUE - north east side, from a point 5 metres north east of its junction with Back Mayfield Road northwestwards for 17 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.738	NORTH AVENUE - north east side, from a point 5 metres north-west of its junction with Hawthorn Road West, north-westwards for 103 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.739	NORTH AVENUE - north east side, from a point 8 metres north west of its junction with West Avenue north-westwards for 87 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.740	NORTH AVENUE - north-east side, from a point 9 metres north west of its junction with Elmfield Road north-westwards for 120 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.741	NORTH AVENUE - south west side, from a point 21 metres north-west of its junction with Furzefield Road north-westwards for 219 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.742	NORTH AVENUE - south west side, from a point 6 metres north west of its junction with Beechfield Road northwestwards for 82 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.743	NORTH AVENUE - south-west side, from a point 9 metres north west of its junction with Elmfield Road north-westwards for 141 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.744	ORCHARD PLACE - east side, from a point 9.5 metres north of its junction with Buston Terrace north-westwards for 29.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.745	ORCHARD PLACE - east side, from a point 57 metres north of its junction with Buston Terrace north-eastwards for 9.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.746	ORCHARD PLACE -west side, from a point 40.5 metres north-west of its junction with Back Buston Terrace (adjacent to house number 5), north-westwards for 37.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.747	ORCHARD PLACE – north east corner, from a point 77.6 metres north-east of its junction with Back Orchard Terrace westwards for 80 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.748	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 19 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 43 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.749	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 66.1 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 21.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.750	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 69.1 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 209.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.751	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 99.8 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 27 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.752	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 133.2 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 33.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.753	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 181.8 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 28.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.754	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 217 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 14 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.755	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 239.7 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 12.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.756	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 258.5 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 15.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.757	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 282.8 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 14 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.758	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 306 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 10 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.759	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 5.9 metres east of its junction with Gowan Terrace eastwards for 18.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.760	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 6 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 95.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.761	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Manor House Road eastwards for 18 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.762	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 4.8 metres west of its junction with Farquhar Street westwards for 89.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.763	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 4.6 metres west of its junction with Deuchar Street westwards for 145.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.764	OSBORNE AVENUE - north side, from a point 5.4 metres east of its junction with Farquhar Street eastwards for 137.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.765	OSBORNE AVENUE - south side, from a point 3.1 metres east of its junction with Deuchar Street eastwards for 55.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.766	OSBORNE ROAD west side, from a point 15 metres north of its northern kerbline with Holly Avenue West, northwards for 88 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.767	OSBORNE ROAD west side, from a point 34 metres north of its northern kerbline with Acorn Road northwards for 102 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.768	OTTERBURN TERRACE – both sides, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Haldane Terrace in a northerly direction for a distance of 30 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.769	OTTERBURN TERRACE – east side, from a point 7 metres north of Back Haldane Terrace (North) northwards to Tankerville Place	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.770	OTTERBURN TERRACE – west side, from a point 5 metres north of Back Otterburn Terrace (West) northwards to Tankerville Place.	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.771	OTTERBURN TERRACE – west side, from a point 7 metres north of Back Haldane Terrace (North) to a point 6 metres south of Back Otterburn Terrace (West)	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.772	OXNAM CRESCENT – north-east side, from a point 3 metres south-east of the south-east kerbline of Back Ancrum Street to a point 5 metres north-west of the north-west kerbline of the unnamed street adjacent to Oxnam House	All days All times
11.773	OXNAM CRESCENT – north-east side, from a point 5 metres south-east of the south-east kerbline of Ancrum Street to a point 3 metres north-west of the north-west kerbline of Back Ancrum Street	All days All times
11.774	OXNAM CRESCENT – south-west side, from a point 5 metres from the south-east kerbline of Ancrum Street to a point 5 metres from the north-west kerbline of the unnamed street adjacent to Oxnam House	All days All times
11.775	PARKSIDE AVENUE – both sides, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Trentham Avenue to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Benton Lodge Avenue.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.776	PATTERDALE GARDENS – east side, from a point 21 metres north west of its junction with Cloverdale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 60 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.777	PATTERDALE GARDENS – east side, from a point 43 metres north of its junction with Heathdale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 156 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.778	PATTERDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Jenifer Grove in a northerly direction for a distance of 27 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.779	PATTERDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 15 metres north west of its junction with Heathdale Gardens in a north westerly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.780	PATTERDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 10 metres north west of its junction with Cloverdale Gardens to a point 9 metres south of its junction with Heathdale Gardens	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.781	PATTERDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 41 metres north of its junction with Heathdale Gardens to a point 9 metres south of its junction with Jenifer Grove	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.782	PAXFORD CLOSE – north side (lay-by) from a point 6 metres west of its western kerbline of Peldon Close westwards for 15 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.783	PAXFORD CLOSE – north side, from a point 52 metres west of its western kerbline with Peldon Close westwards for its full length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.784	PAXFORD CLOSE – north side, from a point 64 metres west of its junction with Peldon Close in a westerly direction for a distance of 8 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.785	PAXFORD CLOSE – south side (lay-by) from a point 14 metres west of its junction with Vicars Lane westwards for 15 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.786	PAXFORD CLOSE – south side (lay-by) from a point 54 metres west of its junction with Vicars Lane westwards for 10 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.787	PELDON CLOSE – east side (lay-by), from a point 96 metres north and west of its junction with Paxford Close northwards for 16 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.788	PELDON CLOSE – east side (lay-by), from its junction with Paxford Close northwards for 8 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.789	PELDON CLOSE – west side (lay-by), from a point 31 metres north of its junction with Paxford Close northwards for 16 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.790	PELDON CLOSE CUL-DE-SAC ADJACENT TO NO. 18 – north side, parking bay off main carriageway from a point 4 metres from its junction with Peldon Close eastwards for 8 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.791	PENFOLD CLOSE – both sides, from a point 8 metres north west of the north kerbline of Fairways Avenue in a north westerly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.792	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 20 metres west of its junction with Horatio Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 64 metres	All days All times
11.793	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Horatio Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 50 metres	All days All times
11.794	QUAYSIDE – north side, from a point 100 metres east of its junction with Horatio Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 75 metres	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.795	QUEENS ROAD - south side, from a point, 9.5 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 32.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.796	QUEENS ROAD - north side, from a point 15.8 metres east of its junction with Grosvenor Place eastwards for 18.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.797	QUEENS ROAD - south side, from a point 7.9 metres east of its junction with Grosvenor Place eastwards for 162.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.798	QUEENS ROAD - north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Grosvenor Place eastwards for 17.1 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.799	QUEENS ROAD - north side, from a point 3.9 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 19.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.800	QUEENS ROAD - north side, from a point 29.7 metres east of its junction with Queens Terrace eastwards for 126.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.801	QUEENS ROAD - south side, from a point 2.5 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 84.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.802	QUEENS ROAD - north side, from a point 2.2 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 20.2 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.803	QUEENS TERRACE - west side, from a point 9.9 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Road northwards for 98.3 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.804	QUEENS TERRACE - east side, from a point 10.9 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Avenue northwards for 28.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.805	QUEENS TERRACE - east side, from a point 9.6 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Road northwards for 37.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.806	QUEENS TERRACE - west side, from a point 7.8 metres south of its junction with Grosvenor Road southwards for 165.5 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.807	QUEENS TERRACE - east side, from a point 7.8 metres south of its junction with Grosvenor Road southwards for 18 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.808	QUEENS TERRACE - east side, from a point 4.9 metres south of its junction with Back Cavendish Place southwards for 16.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.809	QUEENS TERRACE - east side, from a point 5.5 metres south of its junction with Cavendish Place southwards for 15.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.810	QUEENS TERRACE - east side, from a point 4.9 metres south of its junction with Back Devonshire Place southwards for 15.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.811	QUEENS TERRACE - east side, from a point 5.4 metres south of its junction with Devonshire Place southwards for 14.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.812	QUEENS TERRACE - east side, from a point 3 metres south of its junction with Back Queens Road southwards for 17.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.813	REGENT AVENUE north side, from a point 11 metres west of its junction with Regent Road North westwards for 15 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.814	REGENT AVENUE south side, from a point 13 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Archibald Street eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its western kerbline with Back Archibald Street East	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.815	REGENT AVENUE south side, from a point 4 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Back Archibald Street eastwards to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Regent Road	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.816	REGENT FARM ROAD north side, from a point 13 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Weldon Way eastwards to a point 8 metres west of its western kerbline with Rothbury Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.817	REGENT FARM ROAD north side, from a point 52 metres east of its junction with Wansbeck Road South, eastwards to a point 12 metres west of its western kerbline with Weldon Way	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.818	REGENT FARM ROAD north side, from a point 9 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Rothbury Avenue eastwards for 55 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.819	REGENT FARM ROAD south side, from a point 10 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Craster Square eastwards to a point 7 metres west of its western kerbline with Beal Way	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.820	REGENT FARM ROAD south side, from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Wansbeck Road South, eastwards to a point 10 metres west of its western kerbline with Craster Square	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.821	REGENT FARM ROAD south side, from a point 8 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Beal Way eastwards for 294 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.822	REGENT ROAD east side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Henry Street southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Salters Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.823	REGENT ROAD west side, from a point 11 metres south of its junction with Regent Avenue southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Salters Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.824	REGENT ROAD NORTH east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Regent Farm Road southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Henry Street North	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.825	REGENT ROAD NORTH west side, from a point 14 metres north of its junction with Regent Avenue northwards for 122 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 3.00pm – 8.00pm Monday to Friday
11.826	RIBBLEDALE GARDENS – both sides, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Carol Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 84 metres	10am -11am and 2.00pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.827	ROCK TERRACE – both sides from a point 60 metres west of Shield Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	8.00am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.828	ROCK TERRACE – east side, the northern-most layby to the west side of Lort House	8am - 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.829	ROCK TERRACE - east side, lay-by to the north of Pandon Court	8.00am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.830	ROCK TERRACE - east side, lay-by to the south of Pandon Court	8.00am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.831	ROCK TERRACE - east side, lay-by to the west of Pandon Court	8.00am – 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.832	ROCK TERRACE – west side, from the northern boundary of No.52 Falconar Street southwards for 95 metres.	8am - 6.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.833	ROSEMOUNT WAY – north side, from a point 22 metres west of the west kerbline of Coach Lane in a westerly direction to a point 5 metres east of the east kerbline of Fairways Avenue	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.834	ROSEMOUNT WAY – south side, from a point 9 metres west of the west kerbline of Coach Lane in a westerly direction to a point 8 metres east of the east kerbline of Fairways Avenue	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.835	ROTHBURY AVENUE - CUL-DE-SAC TO NUMBER 34 Rothbury Avenue – both sides, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Rothbury Avenue northwards for its full length	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.836	ROTHBURY AVENUE - east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline of its northern junction with Warkworth Crescent southwards to a point 19 metres north of its northern kerbline of its southern junction with Warkworth Crescent	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.837	ROTHBURY AVENUE - east side, from a point 7 metres south of its southern kerbline of its southern junction with Warkworth Crescent southwards to a point 8 metres north of its junction with Regent Farm Road	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.838	ROTHBURY AVENUE - north side, from a point 12 metres east of its eastern kerbline of eastern junction with Thropton Crescent eastwards to a point 9 metres west of its western kerbline with Amble Way	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.839	ROTHBURY AVENUE - north side, from a point 60 metres east of its junction with Amble Way in an easterly direction for a distance of 27 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.840	ROTHBURY AVENUE - north side, from a point 9 metres east of its eastern kerbline of western junction with Thropton Crescent eastwards to a point 9 metres west of its western kerbline of eastern junction with Thropton Crescent	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.841	ROTHBURY AVENUE - north side, from a point 9 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Amble Way eastwards for 31 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.842	ROTHBURY AVENUE - south side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Weldon Way in easterly direction for a distance of 120 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.843	ROTHBURY AVENUE - south side, from a point 11 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Harbottle Avenue eastwards to a point 13 metres west of its western kerbline with Brinkburn Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.844	ROTHBURY AVENUE - south side, from a point 9 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Brinkburn Avenue eastwards to a point 9 metres west of Weldon Way	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.845	ROTHBURY AVENUE – south west side, from a point 14 metres south of its junction with Holystone Avenue in a south easterly direction for a distance of 8 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.846	ROTHBURY AVENUE - west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Whitton Way in a northerly direction for a distance of 30 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.847	ROTHBURY AVENUE - west side, from a point 8 metres south of its southern kerbline with Whitton Way southwards to a point 6 metres north of its northern kerbline with Holystone Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.848	ROTHBURY AVENUE – west side, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Regent Farm Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 25 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.849	ST ANNS CLOSE – both sides, from a point 17 metres east of its junction with Tarset Street in a westerly direction for its remaining length	All days All times
11.850	ST ANNS CLOSE – both sides, from a point 18 metres east of its junction with Crawhall Road in an easterly direction for its remaining length	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.850A	ST ASAPH CLOSE – both sides, for its entire length	11.00am – noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.851	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – east side, from a point 16 metres south of the southern kerbline of Acorn Road southwards for 16 metres.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.852	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – east side, from a point 4 metres north of the northern kerbline of Hazelwood Avenue to a point 41 metres north of the northern kerbline of Acorn Road	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.853	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – east side, from a point 45 metres south of the southern kerbline of Acorn Road to a point 4 metres north of its junction with Mistletoe Road	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.854	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 4 metres south of the southern kerbline of Thornleigh Road to a point 5 metres north of the northern kerbline of Back St. George's Terrace West.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.855	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 4 metres south of the southern kerbline of Back St. George's Terrace West to a point 15 metres north of its junction with Mistletoe Road.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.856	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 5 metres south of the southern kerbline of Glenthorn Road to a point 4 metres north of the northern kerbline of Sunbury Avenue.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.857	ST. THOMAS CRESCENT – north side, from a point 3 metres north west of the unnamed back street to the east of St. Thomas Terrace north westwards for 5.4 metres.	All days All times
11.858	ST. THOMAS CRESCENT – north side, from a point 4.5 metres north west of St. Thomas Square north westwards for 10.9 metres	All days All times
11.859	ST. THOMAS CRESCENT – north side, from a point 7.9 metres south west of St. Thomas Street south westwards to a point 9.1 metres east of St. Thomas Square.	All days All times
11.860	ST. THOMAS CRESCENT – south side, from a point 13 metres south west of St. Thomas Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 107 metres.	All days All times
11.861	ST. THOMAS SQUARE – east side, from a point 8.5 metres south of St. Thomas Street southwards for 44.8 metres	All days All times
11.862	ST. THOMAS SQUARE – west side, from a point 8.5 metres south of St. Thomas Street southwards for 44.8 metres	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.863	SALTERS ROAD - south east side, from a point 5 metres north-east of its junction with Brackenfield Road north-eastwards for 126 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.864	SALTERS ROAD - south east side, from a point 5 metres north-east of its junction with Briarfield Road north-eastwards for 40 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.865	SALTERS ROAD - south east side, from a point 6 metres north-east of its junction with Northfield Road north-eastwards for 36 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.866	SALTERS ROAD - south east side, from a point 2 metres north east of its junction with Back Linden Road north eastwards for 18 metres.	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.867	SALTERS ROAD - south east side, from a point 8 metres north-east of its junction with North Avenue north-eastwards for 91 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.868	SALTERS ROAD - north west side, from a point 1.5 metres north east of its western junction with Back Salters Road North, north-eastwards for 50 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.869	SALTERS ROAD – north west side, from a point 56 metres north east of its western junction with Back Salters Road North, north-eastwards for 45 metres	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.870	SANDERSON ROAD – both sides, from a point 14 metres south of its junction with Osborne Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 21 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.871	SANDERSON ROAD – east side, from a point 5 metres south of the southern kerbline of Back Osborne Road West to a point 28 metres north of its junction with Acorn Road.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.872	SANDERSON ROAD – west side, from a point 4 metres south of the southern kerbline of Back Osborne Road West to a point 28 metres north of its junction with Acorn Road.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.874	SAVILLE ROW – from a point 9.3 metres west of the west kerbline of John Dobson Street westwards for a distance of 3 metres. The southern edge of the bay shall be 1 metre north of the north boundary wall of 22 Saville Row, the length of the bay to be 5.5 metres.	All days All times
11.875	SAXTON GROVE – both sides, from a point 11 metres south east of its junction with Melville Grove to a point 9 metres west of its junction with Stokesley Grove	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.876	SHIELD STREET - west side, from a point 16 metres south of Portland Road southwards for 19 metres.	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.877	SHIELD STREET – west side, the layby situated 8 metres north of Simpson Terrace	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.878	SHIELD STREET – west side, from a point 68 metres south of its junction with Napier Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 23 metres	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.879	SHIELD STREET- west side, from a point 126 metres south of its junction with Napier Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 23 metres.	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.880	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE - north side, from a point 7 metres east of its junction with Manor House Road eastwards for 20.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.881	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE - south side, from a point 5.8 metres east of its junction with Manor House Road eastwards for 20.8 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.882	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE - north side, from a point 3.5 metres east of its junction with Back Osborne Avenue eastwards for 52.7 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.883	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE - south side, from a point 3.3 metres east of its junction with Back Osborne Avenue eastwards for 83.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.884	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE - north side, from a point 5 metres west of its junction with Farquhar Street westwards for 25.4 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.885	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE - north side, from a point 5.3 metres east of its junction with Farquhar Street eastwards for 114.9 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.886	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE - south side, from a point 4.9 metres east of its junction with Farquhar Street eastwards for 151.6 metres	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.886A	SHREWSBURY CLOSE – both sides for its entire length	11.00 am – noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.887	SOUTH FRONT – both sides, for its entire length	9.30 am – 10.30 am 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm – 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.888	SOUTHLANDS – north side, from a point 10 metres of its junction with Jesmond Park West eastwards to a point 13 metres west of its junction with Denewell Avenue	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.889	SOUTHLANDS – north side, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Denewell Avenue eastwards to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Eastlands	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.890	SOUTHLANDS – north side, from a point 13 metres of its junction with Jesmond Park West eastwards to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Westlands	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.891	SOUTHLANDS – north side, from a point 13.5 metres east of its junction with Eastlands eastwards for 41 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.892	SOUTHLANDS – south side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Jesmond Park West eastwards for 285 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.893	SPALDING CLOSE – both sides, from a point 12 metres north west of its junction with Fairways Avenue for its remaining length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.896	STANLEY GROVE – both sides, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Cleveland Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 132 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.897	STANLEY GROVE – both sides, from a point of 10 metres east of its junction with Carol Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 100 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.898	STANWAY DRIVE – both sides, from a point 10 metres south east of its junction with Melville Grove to a point 9 metres north of its junction with Leyburn Drive	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.901	STOKESLEY GROVE – both sides, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Conway Drive for its remaining length	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.902	STOKESLEY GROVE – east side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Cotswold Gardens to a point 9 metres south of its junction with Conway Drive	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.903	STOKESLEY GROVE – west side, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Cotswold Gardens to a point 12 metres south of its junction with Leyburn Drive	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.904	STOKESLEY GROVE – west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Leyburn Drive to a point 10 metres south of its junction with Saxton Grove	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.905	STOKESLEY GROVE – west side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Saxton Grove to a point 8 metres south of its junction with Conway Drive	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.906	SUMMERHILL SQUARE AREA ZONE	
	consisting of the following:-	
	 i) Back Blandford Square – both sides, from a point 60 metres north of the north kerbline of the unnamed access road. 	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
	ii) Houston Street –	
	a) east side, from a point 6 metres south of the south kerbline with its junction with Summerhill Grove to a point 3 metres south of the south kerbline of its junction with Victoria Street, including the entrance to St. Annes Court;	All days All times
	b) west side, from a point 6 metres south of the south kerbline with its junction with Summerhill Grove in a southerly direction for 54 metres.	All days All times
	iii) Lancaster Street – from its junction with Summerhill Street – both sides for its entire length.	All days All times
	iv) Back Lancaster Street – both sides for its entire length, entrance to Back Lancaster Street on the north side of Lancaster Street and 30 metres in a north westerly direction from its junction with Summerhill Street.	All days All times
	v) Summerhill Grove –	
	a) north side, from a point 13 metres west of the west kerbline of Summerhill Terrace to a point 8 metres east of the east kerbline of Winchester Terrace;	All days All times
	b) north side, from a point 8 metres west of the west kerbline of Winchester Terrace to its junction with the east kerbline of Summerhill Street.	All days All times
	c) south side, from a point 13 metres west of the west kerbline of Summerhill Terrace South to a point 8 metres east of the east kerbline of Houston Street.	All days All times
	d) south side, from a point 6 metres west of the west kerbline of Houston Street to its junction with the east kerbline of Summerhill Street.	All days All times
	vi) Summerhill Street – north and south of its junction with Summerhill Grove – both sides for its entire length, including lay-bys and hammerheads.	All days All times
	vii)Back Summerhill Street – both sides for its entire length.	All days All times
	viii) Summerhill Terrace	
	a) east side, from a point 85 metres south of the south kerbline of its junction with Westgate Road to a point 17 metres north of the north kerbline of the unnamed access road between Summerhill Terrace and Back Summerhill Terrace;	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
	b) west side, from a point 15 metres south of the south of the south kerbline of its junction with Swinburne Place to a point 7 metres north of the north kerbline of its junction with Summerhill Grove.	All days All times
	ix) Unnamed Access Road;	
	 a) north side, from a point 3 metres east of the east kerbline of Summerhill Terrace to a point 40 metres east of the east kerbline of Summerhill Terrace. 	All days All times
	b) south side, from a point 3 metres east of the east kerbline of Summerhill Terrace South to a point 40 metres east of the east kerbline of Summerhill Terrace South.	All days All times
	 v) Victoria Street – from its junction with Houston Street, both sides for its entire length, including hammerhead at the east end. 	All days All times
	xi) Back Westgate Hill Terrace	
	both sides, for its entire length, including hammerhead	All days All times
	xii) Winchester Terrace –	
	(a) east side, from a point 5 metres north of the north kerbline with its junction with Summerhill Grove for its entire length; and	All days All times
	(b) west side, from a point 5 metres north of the north kerbline with its junction with Summerhill Grove for its entire length.	All days All times
	xiii) York Street, from its junction with Summerhill Street, both sides for its entire length.	All days All times
	xiv) Back York Street, from its junction with Summerhill Street, both sides for its entire length.	All days All times
11.907	SUNBURY AVENUE – both sides, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Lonsdale Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 142 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.908	SWALEDALE GARDENS – both sides, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 169 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.909	SWALEDALE GARDENS – both sides, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 170 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.910	SWARLAND AVENUE – north side, from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Benton Lodge Avenue to its junction with The Crescent	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.911	SWARLAND AVENUE – north side, from a point 18 metres west of its junction with Benton Road to a point 20 metres east of its junction with Benton Lodge Avenue.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.912	SWARLAND AVENUE – south side, from a point 54 metres west of its junction with Benton Road to a point 10 metres east of its junction with The Crescent	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.913	SWARLAND AVENUE – southwest side, from a point 28 metres northwest of its junction with Benton Road in a northwesterly direction for a distance of 25 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.914	SYCAMORE CLOSE – its entire length	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.915	TANKERVILLE PLACE – both sides, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Tankerville Terrace to its junction with Otterburn Terrace	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.916	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – east side, from a point 12 metres north of Burdon Terrace in a northerly direction for 39 metres.	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.917	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – east side, from a point 4 metres north of Back Tankerville Place (North) in a northerly direction for 18 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.918	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – east side, from a point 4 metres north of Back Henshelwood Terrace (North) in a northerly direction for 42 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.919	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – east side, from a point 4 metres north of Henshelwood Terrace in a northerly direction for 20 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.920	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – east side, from a point 5 metres north of Back Haldane Terrace (North) to a point 6 metres south of Tankerville Terrace.	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.921	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – east side, from a point 5 metres north of Tankerville Place in a northerly direction for 20 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.922	TANKERVILLE TERRACE – east side, from a point 8 metres north of Haldane Terrace in an northerly direction for 28 metres	9.30 am – 10.30 am and 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.923	TARSET STREET – west side, from a point 17 metres north of its junction with Breamish Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 42 metres	All days All times
11.924	TAVISTOCK ROAD – both sides, from a point 4 metres east of its junction with Lonsdale Terrace eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its western kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.925	TEESDALE GARDENS – both sides, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 178 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.926	TEESDALE GARDENS – east side, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 171 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.927	TEESDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 33 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 152 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.928	TEVIOTDALE GARDENS – both sides, from a point 13 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 166 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.929	TEVIOTDALE GARDENS – east side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 170 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday – Friday
11.930	TEVIOTDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Dovedale Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 158 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.931	THE CLOISTERS – east side, from a point 45 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 15 metres (in layby area).	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.932	THE CLOISTERS – north side, from a point 117 metres east of its junction with Cloister Garth in an easterly direction for 8 metres (in layby area).	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.933	THE CLOISTERS – north side, from a point 43 metres east of its junction with Cloister Garth in an easterly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.934	THE CLOISTERS – north side, from its junction with The Cloisters (running in a north/south direction) in an easterly direction for 15 metres (in layby area).	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.935	THE CLOISTERS – south east side, from a point 33 metres north east of its junction with The Cloisters (running in an east/west direction) in a north easterly direction for 10 metres (in layby area adjacent to property number 28).	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.936	THE CLOISTERS – south side, from its junction with Cloister Garth in an easterly direction for 22 metres (in a layby area).	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.937	THE CLOISTERS – south side, from a point 74 metres east of its junction with Cloister Garth in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres.	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.938	THE CLOISTERS – south side, from a point 122 metres east of its junction with Cloister Garth in an easterly direction for a distance of 7 metres (in layby area).	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.939	THE CLOISTERS – west side, from a point 20 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 10 metres (in lay-by area)	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.940	THE CLOISTERS – west side, from a point 88 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly direction for 15 metres (in lay-by area).	11.00am – 12 noon and 3.00pm – 4.00pm Monday to Friday
11.941	THE CRESCENT – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with The Drive in a northerly direction for 56 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.942	THE CRESCENT – east side, from a point 12 metres south of its junction with Thropton Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 19 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.943	THE CRESCENT – east side, from its junction with the north kerbline of Swarland Avenue in a north westerly direction for 54 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.944	THE CRESCENT – south side, from its junction with The Drive in a south westerly direction for 25 metres then in a westerly direction for 33 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.945	THE CRESCENT – west side, from a point 12 metres south of its junction with Thropton Avenue to a point 40 metres south and west of its junction with The Drive	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.946	THE DRIVE – north side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with The Crescent to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Benton Road.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.947	THE DRIVE – south side, from its junction with The Crescent to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Benton Road.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.948	THORNLEIGH ROAD – north side, from a point 3 metres west of its western kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West, westwards for 16 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.949	THORNLEIGH ROAD – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with West Jesmond Avenue eastwards to a point 43 metres east of its junction with West Jesmond Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.950	THROPTON AVENUE – north side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Trentham Avenue in an easterly direction for 205 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.951	THROPTON AVENUE – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Trentham Avenue in an easterly direction for 30 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.952	THROPTON AVENUE – south side, from a point 65 metres east of its junction with Trentham Avenue in an easterly direction for 149 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.953	THROPTON CRESCENT – EASTERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 1 TO 3 – east side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Rothbury Avenue northwards for its full length	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.954	THROPTON CRESCENT – EASTERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 1 TO 3 – west side, from a point 11 metres north of its eastern junction with Rothbury Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance 38 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.955	THROPTON CRESCENT – NORTHERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 12 TO 34 – north side, for its full length	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.956	THROPTON CRESCENT – NORTHERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 12 TO 34 – south side, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with western section outside Church of St. Hugh eastwards to a point 10 metres west of its junction with eastern section outside numbers 1 to 3	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.957	TRENTHAM AVENUE – both sides, from a point 13 metres south of its junction with Benton Park Road in a southerly then westerly direction for its entire length.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.958	UNNAMED ACCESS ROAD FROM PERCY STREET TO THE SERVICE ROAD FOR MARKS AND SPENCER – both sides, from a point 6 metres south of Percy Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	All days All times
11.959	UNNAMED BACK LANE BETWEEN BACK BRANDLING PARK (EAST) AND EAST FRONT – east side, from a point 10 metres north of Brandling Place South in a northerly direction for 13 metres	9.30 am - 10.30 am 2.00 pm - 4.00 pm and 7.00 pm - 8.00 pm Monday to Saturday
11.960	UNNAMED ROAD BETWEEN WHITTON PLACE AND JENIFER GROVE – both sides, from a point 15 metres north of its junction with Jenifer Grove to a point 8 metres south of its junction with Whitton Place.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.961	UNNAMED SERVICE ROAD BETWEEN NO. 14 FAIRDALE AVENUE AND NO. 1 FAIRVIEW GREEN – from a point 7 metres east of the east kerbline of Fairdale Avenue in an easterly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.962	UNNAMED SERVICE ROAD BETWEEN NOS. 32 AND 34 FAIRDALE AVENUE – from a point 6 metres south of the south east kerbline of Fairdale Avenue in a southerly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.963	UNNAMED SERVICE ROAD BETWEEN NOS. 94 AND 96 FAIRWAYS AVENUE - from a point 6 metres east of the east kerbline of Fairways Avenue in an easterly and southerly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	
11.964	UNNAMED SERVICE ROAD SERVING NOS. 11 AND 13 COACH LANE - from a point 7 metres south of the south kerbline of Fairburn Avenue in a southerly direction for its remaining length	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday	
11.965	UNNAMED ROAD BETWEEN NAPIER STREET AND MILTON GREEN – both sides, for its whole length.	8am - 6.30pm All days	
11.966	UNNAMED ACCESS ROAD SOUTH OF COQUET STREET (north of 1-6 and 131-154 St. Ann's Close) – all sides, from a point 28 metres south of its junction with Coquet Street in a westerly direction for its remaining length.	All days All times	
11.967	UNNAMED ACCESS ROAD SOUTH OF COQUET STREET (north west of 23-31 and 155-178 St. Ann's Close) – all sides, from a point 22 metres south of its junction with Coquet Street in a south westerly direction for its remaining length.	All days All times	
11.968	UNNAMED ACCESS ROAD EAST OF CRAWHALL ROAD – within the 2 laybys to the north of 77-82 and 91-114 St. Ann's Close	All days All times	
11.969	UNNAMED ACCESS ROAD AND ABUTTING PARKING AREA (north side of BREAMISH STREET situated 158 metres east of Crawhall Road) – all sides, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Breamish Street in a northerly direction for its remaining length.	All days All times	
11.970	UNNAMED ACCESS ROAD AND ABUTTING PARKING AREA (north side of BREAMISH STREET situated 96 metres east of Crawhall Road) – all sides, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Breamish Street in a northerly direction for its remaining length.	All days All times	
11.971	UNNAMED ROAD and Turning area north of and fronting Nos. 20-30 SHIELDFIELD GREEN	8am - 6.30pm All days	
11.972	UNNAMED ROAD to the Street beneath and surrounding CLARENCE HOUSE	8am - 6.30pm All days	
11.973	UNNAMED ROAD LINKING CLAREMONT ROAD AND FRAMLINGTON PLACE – west side, from a point 5.5 metres south of the south kerbline of Claremont Road in a southerly direction for 15.5 metres	All days All times	
11.974	UNNAMED STREET TO THE NORTH OF MAGDALEN COURT – both sides, between its junctions with Sheraton Street and Hunters Road	All days All times	
11.975	VALLEY VIEW - west side, from a point 7.4 metres south of its junction with Cavendish Road southwards for 68.3 metres.	7.30 am – 9.30 am and 5.00 pm – 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday	

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.976	VICARS LANE – west side (in lay-by), from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Paxton Close northwards for 16 metres.	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.977	VICARS LANE – west side, from its junction with Benton Park Road northwards for 29 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.978	VICARS LANE – west side, from a point 41 metres north of Benton Park Road northwards for its remaining length	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.979	VICARS LANE – east side, from a point 18 metres north of its junction with Benton Park Road to a point 12 metres south of Lealholm Road	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.980	VICARS LANE – east side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Lealholm Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 59 metres	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.981	VICARS LANE – south side, from a point of 60 metres northwards and westwards of its junction with Paxton Close westwards for 5 metres.	10.00 am – 11.00 am and 2.00 pm – 3.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.982	VICTORIA SQUARE – east side, from a point 49.9 metres south of the north kerbline of Jesmond Road southwards for 17 metres	All days All times
11.983	VICTORIA SQUARE – east side, from a point 76.8 metres south of the north kerbline of Jesmond Road southwards for 17 metres	All days All times
11.984	VICTORIA SQUARE – east side, from a point 103.6 metres south of the north kerbline of Jesmond Road southwards for 17 metres	All days All times
11.985	VICTORIA SQUARE – west side, from a point 20 metres south of the southern kerbline of Jesmond Road southwards for 20 metres.	All days All times
11.986	WALLACE STREET – east side, from a point 12 metres south of its junction with Claremont Road in a southerly direction for 15 metres	All days All times
11.987	WALLACE STREET – east side, from a point 25 metres south of its junction with Windmill Court in a southerly direction for a distance of 20 metres	All days All times

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	
11.988	WALLACE STREET – west side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Claremont Road in a southerly direction for 20 metres	All days All times	
11.989	WALLACE STREET – west side, from a point 19 metres south of its junction with Morpeth Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 12 metres	All days All times	
11.990	WALLACE STREET – west side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Morpeth Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	All days All times	
11.991	WANSBECK ROAD SOUTH – CUL-DE-SAC OUTSIDE NUMBERS 25 TO 30 BAMBURGH WALK – south side, from a point 11 metres east of its junction with Wansbeck Road South, eastwards for its full length	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.992	WARKWORTH CRESCENT (NORTHERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 32 TO 48) – north side, from a point 10 metres east of its northern junction with Rothbury Avenue in an easterly direction for its remaining length	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.993	WARKWORTH CRESCENT (NORTHERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 32 TO 48) – south side, from a point 17 metres east of its northern junction with Rothbury Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 33 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.994	WARKWORTH CRESCENT (SOUTHERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 1 TO 5) – south side, from a point 15 metres east of its southern junction with Rothbury Avenue in an easterly direction for its remaining length	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.995	WARKWORTH CRESCENT (SOUTHERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 1 TO 5) – north side, from a point 15 metres east of its southern junction with Rothbury Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 19 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.996	WARKWORTH CRESCENT (EASTERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 8 TO 32) - east side, for its full length	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.997	WARKWORTH CRESCENT (EASTERN SECTION OUTSIDE NUMBERS 8 TO 32) – west side, from a point 50 metres north east of its southern junction with Rothbury Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 88 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.998	WAVERLEY ROAD – east, south, west and north sides of car park from a point 33 metres west then 10.5 metres south of its junction with Maple Terrace in a southerly, westerly, northerly then easterly direction for a total distance of 104 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00pm Monday to Friday	

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.999	WAVERLEY ROAD – south side, from a point 40.5 metres west then 5 metres south of its junction with Maple Terrace westwards for 29 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.1000	WAVERLEY ROAD – west side of southern turning head from a point 4.5 metres north of the extreme south western corner of the southern turning head northwards for 8 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.1001	WAVERLEY ROAD – north side of the northern turning head from a point 77 metres west then 39.5 metres north of its junction with Maple Terrace westwards for 16 metres.	10am-11am and 2.00pm-3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.1002	WELDON WAY – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Regent Farm Road northwards to a point 12 metres south of its junction with Holystone Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.1003	WELDON WAY – east side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Holystone Avenue northwards to a point 10 metres south of its southern kerbline with Whitton Way	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.1004	WELDON WAY – east side, from a point 8 metres north of its northern kerbline with Whitton Way northwards to a point 12 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.1005	WELDON WAY – west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Regent Farm Road northwards to a point 10 metres south of its southern kerbline with Guyzance Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.1006	WELDON WAY – west side, from a point 8 metres north of its northern kerbline with Guyzance Avenue northwards to a point 8 metres south of its junction with Rothbury Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday
11.1006A	WELLS CLOSE – both sides for its entire length	11.00 am – noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.1007	WEST AVENUE – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Linden Road in an easterly direction to a point 5 metres west of its junction with Woodbine Avenue	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1008	WEST AVENUE - north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Woodbine Avenue (East) to a point 7 metres west of its junction with the access lane to Back West Avenue (North)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.1009	WEST AVENUE - north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Woodbine Avenue in an easterly direction to a point 3 metres west of its junction with Back Woodbine Avenue (East)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1010	WEST AVENUE - south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Back Linden Road (East) in an easterly direction to a point 5 metres west of its junction with the access lane to Back West Avenue (South) (west of Masonic Hall)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1011	WEST BACK CHESTER STREET – both sides, for its whole length	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.1012	WEST JESMOND AVENUE – east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Coniston Avenue North southwards to a point 5 metres north of its northern kerbline with Coniston Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.1013	WEST JESMOND AVENUE – east side, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Sunbury Avenue southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Coniston Avenue North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.1014	WEST JESMOND AVENUE – east side, from a point 5 metres south of its southern kerbline with Coniston Avenue southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Thornleigh Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.1015	WEST JESMOND AVENUE – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Thornleigh Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.1016	WEST JESMOND AVENUE – west side, from a point 15 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Coniston Avenue North southwards to a point 7 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Thornleigh Road North	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.1017	WEST JESMOND AVENUE – west side, from a point 7 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Thornleigh Road North southwards for 36 metres	9.00am – 11.00am and 2.30pm – 4.30pm Monday to Saturday
11.1018	WESTERN LINK ROAD BETWEEN GROSVENOR ROAD AND GROSVENOR AVENUE – west side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 14 metres	7.30am – 9.30am and 5.00pm – 10.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1019	WESTERN LINK ROAD BETWEEN GROSVENOR ROAD AND GROSVENOR AVENUE – west side, from a point 6 metres south of its junction with Grosvenor Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	7.30am – 9.30am and 5.00pm – 10.00pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	
11.1020	WESTLANDS – east side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Southlands, northwards for 183 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday	
11.1021	WESTLANDS – south side, from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Denewell Avenue westwards for 49 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday	
11.1022	WESTLANDS – west side and north side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with Southlands northwards then eastwards to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Denewell Avenue	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday	
11.1022A	WESTMINSTER WAY – both sides from a point 8 metres east of the junction with Coach Lane, eastwards for its entire length	11.00am- 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday	
11.1023	WESTWELL COURT – both sides including turning head from a point 15 metres northwest of its junction with Daylesford Drive (southwest side) to a point 14.5 metres northwest of its junction with Daylesford Drive (northeast side)	8.00 am – 12 noon and 2.00 pm – 5.00 pm Monday to Friday	
11.1024	WHITTON PLACE – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its junction with the unnamed road (between Whitton Place and Jenifer Grove) in an easterly direction for 17 metres.	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday	
11.1025	WHITTON PLACE – south side, from a point 13 metres west of its junction with the unnamed road (between Whitton Place and Jenifer Grove) in a westerly direction for 101 metres.	10.00 am - 11.00 am and 2.00 pm - 3.00 pm Monday to Friday	
11.1026	WHITTON WAY – north side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Weldon Way eastwards to a point 11 metres west of its junction with Rothbury Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.1027	WHITTON WAY – south side, from a point 6 metres east of its junction with Weldon Way eastwards to a point 7 metres west of its junction with Rothbury Avenue	9.00am – 11.00am and 1.00pm – 3.00pm Monday to Friday	
11.1028	WINCHCOMBE PLACE - east side, from a point 17 metres north of its junction with Cotswold Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 34 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday	

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.1029	WINCHCOMBE PLACE – north side, for its entire length	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.1030	WINCHCOMBE PLACE – south side, for its entire length	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.1031	WINCHCOMBE PLACE - west side, from a point 17 metres north of its junction with Cotswold Gardens in a northerly direction for a distance of 40 metres	11.00 am – 12 noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.1032	WINDMILL COURT – south side, from a point 28 metres south-east of its junction with Wallace Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 23 metres	All days All times
11.1033	WINDSOR PLACE – west side, from a point 17 metres north of its junction with Jesmond Road West in a northerly direction for a distance of 18 metres	All days All times
11.1034	WINDSOR TERRACE – south side, from a point 40 metres west of its junction with Windsor Place in a westerly direction for a distance 46.5 metres	All days All times
11.1035	WINDSOR TERRACE – south side, from a point 96.5 metres west of its junction with Windsor Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 18.5 metres	All days All times
11.1036	WOODBINE AVENUE – both sides, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with West Avenue to a point 5 metres south of its junction with Back Woodbine Road (South)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1037	WOODBINE ROAD – north side, from a point 3 metres east of its junction with Back Linden Road in an easterly direction to a point 8 metres west of its junction with Ivy Road	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1038	WOODBINE ROAD – north side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Ivy Road in an easterly direction to the eastern boundary of number 2 Woodbine Road	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1039	WOODBINE ROAD – south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Woodbine Avenue in an easterly direction to a point 8 metres west of its junction with Ivy Road	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period
11.1040	WOODBINE ROAD – south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with the access lane to Back Ivy Road (North) in an easterly direction to a point 2.6 metres west of its junction with Back High Street (West)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1041	WOODBINE ROAD – south side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Linden Road in an easterly direction to a point 5 metres west of its junction with Woodbine Avenue	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1042	WOODBINE ROAD – south side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Ivy Road in an easterly direction to a point 5 metres west of its junction with the access lane to Back Ivy Road (North)	9.30am – 11.30am, 1.30pm – 3.30pm and 5.00pm – 7.00pm Monday to Saturday
11.1042A	WOODCHURCH CLOSE – both sides for its entire length	11.00 am – noon and 3.00 pm – 4.00 pm Monday to Friday
11.1043	WRETHAM PLACE – north side, between its junctions with Shield Street and Coppice Way	8am - 6.30pm All days
11.1044	WYCH ELM CRESCENT – north and north east sides, from a point 12 metres east of its northern junction with Birchwood Avenue in an easterly/south easterly direction for 58 metres.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.1045	WYCH ELM CRESCENT – north and west sides, from a point 28 metres east of its southern junction with Birchwood Avenue eastwards then northwards for a total distance of 52 metres.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.1046	WYCH ELM CRESCENT – south and west sides from a point 12 metres east of its northern junction with Birchwood Avenue eastwards then southwards for a total distance of 90 metres.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday
11.1047	WYCH ELM CRESCENT – south side, from a point 10 metres east of its southern junction with Birchwood Avenue eastwards for 44 metres.	10am – 11am and 2pm – 3pm Monday to Friday

SCHEDULE 12 PERMIT PARKING PLACES WITH PARKING METERS

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge (if payment is made via a Parking Meter)	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
12.1	ARCHIBALD STREET – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 12 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	20p per hour	2 hours
12.2	ARCHIBALD STREET – west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 8 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North	Monday to Friday 8.00 am to 6.30 pm	20p per hour	2 hours
12.3	CHESTER STREET - east side, from a point opposite the north kerbline of Gladstone Place northwards for 174.8 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	30p per hour	All day
12.4	CLAREMONT ROAD – north side, from a point 30.7 metres west of the west kerbline of Hunters Road westwards for 115.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	40p per hour	All day
12.5	CLAREMONT ROAD – north side, from a point 157.2 metres west of the west kerbline of Hunters Road westwards for 335.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	40p per hour	All day
12.6	CLAREMONT ROAD – south side, from a point 35 metres south east of its junction with Hunters Road in a south easterly direction for a distance of 143 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	40p per hour	2 hours
12.7	CLAREMONT ROAD – south side, from a point 27.0 metres south east of its junction with Wallace Street in a south easterly direction for a distance of 27.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	50p per hour	2 hours
12.8	CLAREMONT ROAD – south side, from a point 15.0 metres north west of its junction with North Terrace in a north westerly direction for a distance of 49.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	50p per hour	2 hours

Column	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge (if	Column 5 Maximum
No. of Parking Place	Description of Farking Flace	onarge i enou	payment is made via a Parking Meter)	Period of Stay
12.9	CLAREMONT ROAD – south side, from a point 35.0 metres north west of its junction with the unnamed access road east of North Terrace in a north westerly direction for a distance of 110 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	50p per hour	2 hours
12.10	CLAREMONT ROAD – south side, from a point 6 metres west of the west kerbline of Claremont Street to a point 6 metres east of the east kerbline of Windmill Court.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	50p per hour	2 hours
12.11	CLAREMONT ROAD – south side, from a point 7 metres west of its junction with Windmill Court in a westerly direction for a distance of 35 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	50p per hour	2 hours
12.12	ELMFIELD ROAD – north side, from a point 43.0 metres west of the western kerbline of Gosforth High Street to a point 5.0 metres from the eastern kerbline of Linden Road.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	10p per hour	2 hours
12.13	ELSDON ROAD – west side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30p per hour	2 hours
12.14	FALCONAR STREET - west side, from a point 38 metres south of its junction with Camden Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 234 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	30p per hour	All day
12.15	HEDLEY STREET – east side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30p per hour	2 hours
12.16	HENRY STREET – north side, from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Regent Road North to a point 7 metres west of its junction with Hedley Terrace.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	20p per hour	2 hours
12.17	HENRY STREET – north side, from a point 7 metres east of its junction with Hedley Terrace eastwards for 35 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	20p per hour	2 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge (if payment is made via a Parking Meter)	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
12.18	HENRY STREET – north side, from a point 6 metres west of its junction with Irton Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 46 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	20p per hour	2 hours
12.19	HUNTERS ROAD – southeast side, from a point 10 metres north east of the north east kerbline of Fountains Row in a north easterly direction for 105 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30p per hour	2 hours
12.20	JESMOND ROAD WEST - north side, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Windsor Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 28 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	50p per hour	2 hours
12.21	JESMOND ROAD WEST - north side, from a point 18 metres west of its junction with Windsor Place in a westerly direction for a distance of 153 metres.	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	50p per hour	2 hours
12.22	JESMOND ROAD WEST- south side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Jesmond Road Link Road to its junction with Victoria Square (Back).	8.00am- 6.30pm All days	50p per hour	2 hours
12.23	LEAZES TERRACE (EAST) – west side, from a point 60 metres north of its junction with the east side of Terrace Place northwestwards for 71.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	70p per hour	2 hours
12.24	LEAZES TERRACE (EAST) – west side, from a point 149 metres north of its junction with Terrace Place in a northwesterly direction for a distance of 27.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	70p per hour	2 hours
12.25	LEAZES TERRACE (NORTH) – south side, from a point 168 metres north of its junction with the west side of Terrace Place northeastwards for 44 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	70p per hour	2 hours
12.26	LEAZES TERRACE (WEST) – east side, from a point 19 metres north of its junction with the west side of Terrace Place northwestwards for 137.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	70p per hour	2 hours

Column 1 No. of Parking Place	Column 2 Description of Parking Place	Column 3 Charge Period	Column 4 Charge (if payment is made via a Parking Meter)	Column 5 Maximum Period of Stay
12.27	LYNDHURST AVENUE – west side from its northern kerbline with Bayswater Road southwards for 124 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	20p per hour	4 Hours
12.28	PORTLAND ROAD – south west side, from a point 80.0 metres south-east of its junction with Sandyford Road in a south easterly direction for a distance of 45 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30p per hour	All day
12.29	PORTLAND ROAD – north east side, from a point 45.0 metres south east of its junction with Helmsley Road in a south easterly direction for a distance of 45 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30p per hour	All day
12.30	REGENT AVENUE – north side, from a point 30 metres west of its junction with Regent Road North in a westerly direction for a distance of 19 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	20p per hour	All day
12.31	REGENT ROAD – east side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	20p per hour	2 hours
12.32	RICHARDSON ROAD – north east side, from a point 18 metres south east of the south east kerbline of Cross Morpeth Street in a south easterly direction for 54 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	60p per hour	2 hours
12.33	SHERATON STREET – north-east side, from a point 21 metres south east of the south east kerbline of Hunters Road in a south easterly direction for 36 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30p per hour	2 hours
12.34	SHERATON STREET – north-east side, from a point 76 metres south east of the south east kerbline of Hunters Road in a south easterly direction for 32 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30p per hour	2 hours
12.35	TERRACE PLACE – north side, from a point 6 metres east of its junction with Leazes Terrace (West) eastwards for 49.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	80p per hour	2 hours

SCHEDULE 13 PERMIT PARKING PLACES WITH LIMITED WAITING

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.1	ANCRUM STREET – north side, from a point 4 metres east of its junction with Back Belle Grove West in an easterly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	2 Hours	-
13.2	ANCRUM STREET – north-west side, from a point 9 metres north-east of the north-east kerbline of Belle Grove West to a point 3 metres south-west of the south-west kerbline of Back Belle Grove West.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	2 Hours	-
13.3	ANCRUM STREET – south side, from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Back Belle Grove Terrace in an easterly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	All hours	2 Hours	-
13.4	BACK ELSDON ROAD EAST – east side, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Lansdowne Place southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back High Street.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 Hours	-
13.10	BACK HIGH STREET – west side, from a point 6 metres south of its junction with Lansdowne Place in a southerly direction for a distance of 24 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 Hours	-
13.11	BACK HIGH STREET (WEST) (between Woodbine Road and Ivy Road) – west side, from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Ivy Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 26 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.12	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST - west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Sunbury Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.13	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Glenthorn Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.14	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST — west side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Coniston Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 12 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.15	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Glenthorn Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.16	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Sunbury Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.17	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Tavistock Road in southerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.18	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Hazelwood Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.19	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Bayswater Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.20	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Hazelwood Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.21	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Bayswater Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.22	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Thornleigh Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.23	BACK ST GEORGE'S TERRACE WEST – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Coniston Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am- 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.24	BAYSWATER ROAD – both sides, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with St George's Terrace to a point 3 metres east of its eastern junction with Back St George's Terrace West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 Hours	6 hours
13.25	BELLE GROVE TERRACE – west side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Ancrum Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 29 metres.	All hours	2 Hours	-
13.26	BELLE GROVE WEST – north-east side, from a point 7 metres south-east of the south-east kerbline of Ancrum Street in a south-easterly direction for 12 metres.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	2 Hours	-
13.27	BELLE GROVE WEST – south-west side, from a point 7 metres from the south-east kerbline of Ancrum Street to a point 3 metres north-west of the north-west kerbline of Back Ancrum Street.	8.00am– 6.30pm All days	2 hours	-
13.28	BENFIELD ROAD – west side, from a point 42 metres south of its junction with the westbound slip road of the A1058 Coast Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 104 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.29	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE - west side, from a point 24 metres west of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 6 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.30	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 92 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.31	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – east side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 90 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.32	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – east side, from a point 104 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 14 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.33	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – east side, from a point 124 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 16 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.34	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – south side, from a point 20 metres east of its junction with Benton Park Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.35	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 125 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.36	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 145 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 15 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.37	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 36 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.38	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 50 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.39	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 66 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.40	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 82 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.41	BENTON ROAD SERVICE LANE – west side, from a point 108 metres north of its junction with Benton Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 10 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.42	BOUNDARY GARDENS – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Newton Road to its junction with the southern kerbline of Hambledon Gardens.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.43	BREAMISH STREET – north side in lay-by, from a point 109 metres east of its junction with Crawhall Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 24 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.44	BREAMISH STREET – north side in layby, from a point 60 metres east of Crawhall Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.45	BREAMISH STREET – south side, from a point 52 metres east of its junction with Crawhall Road in a easterly direction for a distance of 35 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.46	BREAMISH STREET – south side, from a point 135 metres east of its junction with Crawhall Road in a easterly direction for a distance of 35 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.47	BUSTON TERRACE - north-east side, from a point 8.2 metres north of its junction with Shortridge Terrace north-westwards for 61.7 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.48	CAVENDISH PLACE - both sides, from a point 3 metres west of its junction with Manor House Road westwards for 21.5 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.49	CAVENDISH ROAD – both sides, from a point 5.4 metres east of its junction with Manor House Road eastwards for 21.2 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00am – 6.30pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.52	CLEVELAND GARDENS – east side, from a point 12 metres south of its junction with Stanley Grove in a southerly direction for a distance of 36 metres (includes the hardstanding verge with a width of 2.7 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres)	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30 minutes	-
13.53	CONISTON AVENUE – south side, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with St George's Terrace westwards to a point 4 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.54	CRAGSIDE – north side, from a point 13 metres west of its junction with Carol Gardens in a westerly direction for a distance of 49 metres (including the hardstanding verge with a width of 4 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres)	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.55	CRAGSIDE – north side, from a point 13 metres east of its junction with Derwentdale Gardens to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Teesdale Gardens	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.56	CRAGSIDE – north side, from a point 39 metres east of its junction with Cleveland Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 43 metres (including the hardstanding verge with a width of 4 metres and the carriageway to a width of 1.7 metres)	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.57	CROSS MORPETH STREET – north side, from a point 10 metres north east of its junction with Sheraton Street in a northeasterly direction for a distance of 33 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.58	CROSS MORPETH STREET – south side, from a point 10 metres south west of its junction with Morpeth Street in a south westerly direction for a distance of 11 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.59	CROSS MORPETH STREET – south side, from a point 13 metres north east of its junction with Sheraton Street in a north easterly direction for a distance of 6 metres.	All hours	2 hours	-
13.60	DERWENTDALE GARDENS – east side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 37 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.62	DOVEDALE GARDENS – south side, from a point 28 metres east of its junction with Teviotdale Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 7 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.63	EDWARD STREET – west side, from a point 21 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.64	EDWARD STREET – east side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 5 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	-

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.65	ELMFIELD ROAD - north west side, from a point 18 metres north east of its junction with Parker Avenue north eastwards for 53 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.66	ELSDON ROAD – east side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.67	ELSWICK EAST TERRACE – west side, from a point 15 metres south of its junction with George Way in a southerly direction for a distance of 132 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.68	ELSWICK EAST TERRACE – west side, from its junction with Palace Street to its junction with George Way	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.69	ELSWICK EAST TERRACE – east side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Palace Street in a southerly direction for a distance of 112 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.70	ELSWICK ROAD – north side, from a point 42 metres west of its junction with Elswick Row in a westerly direction for a distance of 30 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.71	ELSWICK ROAD – north side, from a point 52 metres west of its junction with Westgate Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 60 metres.,	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.72	GLENTHORN ROAD – both sides, from a point 3 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West eastwards to a point 4 metres west of its junction with St George's Terrace	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.84	HAWTHORN ROAD – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Linden Road to a point 5 metres west of its junction with Back Linden Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.85	HAWTHORN ROAD – south side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Linden Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.86	HAWTHORN ROAD WEST - south east side, from a point 31 metres north east of its junction with North Avenue north eastwards for 43 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.87	HAZELWOOD AVENUE – both sides, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with St George's Terrace to a point 4 metres east of its eastern junction with Back St George's Terrace West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.88	HEDLEY STREET – west side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.92	HEPPLE WAY – south side, from a point 6 metres west of its junction with Thropton Crescent westwards for its full length.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.93	HOLLY AVENUE WEST – north side, from a point 4 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Back Osborne Road West to a point 5 metres west of its junction with Osborne Road.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.94	HOLLY AVENUE WEST – north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Lily Crescent to a point 4 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Osborne Road West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.95	HOLLY AVENUE WEST – south side, from a point 3 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Osborne Road to a point 15 metres south east of its junction with Lily Crescent	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.96	HOLLY AVENUE WEST – south side, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with Osborne Road to a point 3 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Back Osborne Road West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.97	IRTON STREET – west side, from a point 19 metres north of its junction with Henry Street in a northerly direction for a distance of 17 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.98	IVY ROAD – both sides, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Salters Road to a point 2 metres north of its junction with Back Salters Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.99	IVY ROAD – both sides, from a point 2 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road to a point 5 metres north of its junction with Woodbine Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.100	IVY ROAD – south side, from a point 35.2 metres west of High Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 50 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.101	JESMOND DENE ROAD - east side, from a point 50.8 metres north of its junction with Grosvenor Road northwards for 26.4 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	4 hours	5 hours
13.102	JESMOND DENE ROAD - east side, from a point 57 metres north of its junction with Hartside Gardens northwards for 21.6 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	4 hours	5 hours
13.103	JESMOND DENE ROAD - east side, from a point 80.5 metres north of its junction with Wellburn Park southwards for 91.5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	4 hours	5 hours
13.104	JESMOND PARK WEST – east side, from a point 27 metres south of its junction with Southlands in a southerly direction for a distance of 109 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.105	JESMOND ROAD - west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Osborne Avenue northwards for 27 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.106	JESMOND ROAD - east side, from a point 7 metres south of its junction with Churchill Gardens southwards for 17 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.107	JUBILEE ROAD – north side, from a point 100 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Beal Way eastwards for 35 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.108	JUBILEE ROAD – south side, from a point 92 metres north west of its junction with St Nicholas' Hospital access road in a north westerly direction for a distance of 48 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.109	LANSDOWNE PLACE – north side, from a point 5 metres west of its junction with High Street to a point 16 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Back Lansdowne Terrace	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.110	LARKSPUR TERRACE – west side, from a point 9 metres south of its junction with Acorn Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 34 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.111	LARKSPUR TERRACE – east side, from a point 7 metres south of its junction with Acorn Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 26 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.112	LILY AVENUE – north side, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with Osborne Road to a point 4 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Back Osborne Road West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.113	LILY CRESCENT – west side, for its whole length	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.114	LINDEN ROAD – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Elmfield Road to a point 5 metres south of its junction with Causey Street	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.115	LINDEN ROAD – east side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with West Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 15 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.116	LINDEN ROAD – west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Elmfield Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 5 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.117	LINDEN ROAD – west side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction with West Avenue to a point 2 metres south of its junction with Linden Avenue	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.118	LINDEN ROAD – west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Hawthorn Road West in a southerly direction for a distance of 35 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.119	LINDEN ROAD – west side, from a point 2 metres north of its junction with Linden Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 14 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.120	LONSDALE TERRACE – both sides, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Bayswater Road North southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Bayswater Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.121	LONSDALE TERRACE – both sides, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Glenthorn Road North southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Glenthorn Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.122	LONSDALE TERRACE – both sides, from a point 3 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Sunbury Avenue North southwards to a point 4 metres north of its junction with Sunbury Avenue	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.123	LONSDALE TERRACE – both sides, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Bayswater Road southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Glenthorn Road North	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.124	LONSDALE TERRACE – both sides, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Glenthorn Road southwards to a point 3 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Sunbury Avenue North	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.125	LONSDALE TERRACE – west side, from a point 8 metres south of its junction with Osborne Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 17 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.126	LYNDHURST AVENUE – east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Glenthorn Road southwards to a point 4 metres north of its northern kerbline with Back Sunbury Avenue North	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.127	LYNDHURST AVENUE – east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Back Sunbury Avenue North, southwards to a point 5 metres north of its junction with Sunbury Avenue	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.128	LYNDHURST AVENUE – west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Osborne Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 128 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.129	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - east side, from a point 11.5 metres south of its junction with Grosvenor Road southwards for 23.6 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.130	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - west side, from a point 11.5 metres south of its junction with Grosvenor Road southwards for 47.8 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.131	MANOR HOUSE ROAD - east side, from a point 3.8 metres south of its junction with Cavendish Road southwards for 19.8 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.132	MAPLE TERRACE – west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Waverley Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 93 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.133	MISTLETOE ROAD – north side, from a point 10 metres west of the western kerbline of Larkspur Terrace to a point 4 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Back St George's Terrace East	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.134	MISTLETOE ROAD – north side, from a point 23 metres west of its junction with Osborne Road to a point 4 metres east of the eastern kerbline with Back Osborne Road West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.135	MISTLETOE ROAD – north side, from a point 4 metres west of the western kerbline of Back St George's Terrace East to a point 15 metres east of the eastern kerbline of St George's Terrace	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.136	MISTLETOE ROAD – north side, from a point 6 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Osborne Road West to a point 10 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Larkspur Terrace.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.137	MISTLETOE ROAD – south side, from a point 5 metres west of the western kerbline of Back Osborne Road West westwards for 15 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.138	MYRTLE GROVE – west side, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Osborne Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 16 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	4 hours
13.139	NEWTON ROAD – north side, from a point 17 metres east of its junction with Boundary Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 51 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	1 hour	-
13.140	NEWTON ROAD – north side, from a point 117 metres east of its junction with Boundary Gardens in an easterly direction for a distance of 25 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	1 hour	-
13.141	NEWTON ROAD – north east side, from a point 49 metres south east of its junction with Weldon Crescent in a south easterly direction for a distance of 40.4 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	1 hour	6 hours
13.142	NEWTON ROAD – south side, from a point 31 metres east of its junction with Denewell Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 85 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	1 hour	-
13.143	NORHAM PLACE – west side, for its entire length	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.144	OSBORNE AVENUE – south side, from a point 17.7 metres east of its junction with Osborne Road eastwards for 27.2 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.145	OSBORNE ROAD – east side, from a point 8 metres north of its junction with Haldane Terrace in a northerly direction for a distance of 20 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.146	REGENT AVENUE – north side, from a point 64 metres east of its junction with Jubilee Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 90 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.147	REGENT AVENUE – north side, from a point 100 metres west of its junction with Regent Road North in a westerly direction for a distance of 43 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.148	REGENT ROAD – west side, from a point 6 metres north of its junction with Salters Road to a point 4 metres south of its junction with Back Salters Road North	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.149	ROTHBURY AVENUE – north side, from a point 33 metres east of its junction with Wansbeck Road South to a point 12 metres west of its junction with Thropton Crescent.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.150	SALTERS ROAD – south east side, from a point 2 metres north east of its junction with Back Linden Road north eastwards for 18 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	30 minutes	2 hours
13.151	SANDERSON ROAD – both sides, from a point 4 metres north of its junction with Acorn Road in a northerly direction for a distance of 24 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.152	SHORTRIDGE TERRACE – north side, from a point 15.4 metres west of its junction with Jesmond Road westwards for 36.1 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.153	ST ANNS CLOSE – north side from a point 10 metres east of its junction with Crawhall Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 8 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.154	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 19 metres north of the northern kerbline of Hazelwood Avenue to a point 3 metres north of the northern kerbline of Hazelwood Avenue	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.155	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 31 metres north of the northern kerbline of Hazelwood Avenue northwards for 23 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.156	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 4 metres south of the southern kerbline of Hazelwood Avenue to a point 4 metres north of the northern kerbline of Bayswater Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.157	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 4 metres south of the southern kerbline of Bayswater Road to a point 17 metres north of the northern kerbline of Glenthorn Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.158	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 5 metres north of the northern kerbline of Coniston Avenue to a point 18 metres south of the southern kerbline of Sunbury Avenue	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.159	ST GEORGE'S TERRACE – west side, from a point 5 metres south of the southern kerbline of Coniston Avenue to a point 15 metres north of the northern kerbline of Thornleigh Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.174	STEPNEY BANK – north side, from a point 25 metres east of its junction with Crawhall Road in an easterly direction for a distance of 23 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	1 hour	6 hours
13.175	SUNBURY AVENUE – north side, from a point 4 metres west of its junction with St George's Terrace to a point 4 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.176	SUNBURY AVENUE – north side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Lyndhurst Avenue in an easterly direction for a distance of 12 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.177	SWARLAND AVENUE – north side, from a point 14 metres west of its junction with Benton Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 7 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.178	TAVISTOCK ROAD – both sides, from a point 8 metres west of its junction with Osborne Road westwards to a point 3 metres east of its eastern kerbline with Back St George's Terrace West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.179	TEESDALE GARDENS – west side, from a point 9 metres north of its junction with Cragside in a northerly direction for a distance of 23 metres	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.180	THORNLEIGH ROAD – south side, from a point 7 metres west of its junction with Forsyth Road in a westerly direction for a distance of 32 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.181	THROPTON CRESCENT – WESTERN SECTION OUTSIDE CHURCH OF ST HUGH - east side, from a point 11 metres north of its junction with Rothbury Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 35 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.182	TWO BALL LONNEN - west side, from a point 28 metres north of the north kerbline of Alder Avenue in a northerly direction for 60 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.00 pm	30 minutes	-
13.183	UNNAMED ACCESS TO LIME SQUARE, north side, from a point 5 metres east of its junction with Tarset Street in a easterly direction for its entire length.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.00 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.184	WARTON TERRACE - both sides, between its junctions with Chillingham Road and Back Chillingham Road West	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.186	WEST AVENUE – north side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Linden Road to a point 5 metres west of its junction with Back Linden Road (East)	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.187	WEST AVENUE – north side, from a point 32 metres west of its junction with High Street in a westerly direction for a distance of 36 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.30 am – 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.188	WEST AVENUE – south side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Linden Road to a point 5 metres west of its junction with Back Linden Road (East)	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours

Column	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
1 No. of Parking Place	Description of Parking Place	Charge Period	Maximum Period of Stay (for Limited Waiting)	Return Prohibited Within (for Limited Waiting)
13.189	WEST AVENUE - south east side, from a point 24 metres north east of its junction with North Avenue north eastwards for 46 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.190	WEST AVENUE - south east side, from a point 9 metres south west of its junction with Linden Road south westwards for 20 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.191	WEST JESMOND AVENUE – east side, from a point 4 metres south of its southern kerbline with Thornleigh Road southwards for 20 metres	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.192	WESTMORLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 6 metres east of its junction with Hawthorn Place in an easterly direction for a distance of 99 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.193	WESTMORLAND ROAD – north side, from a point 31.5 metres east of its junction with Belgrave Parade in an easterly direction for a distance of 42 metres.	Monday to Friday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	5 hours
13.194	WINDMILL COURT – east side, from a point of 5 metres south of its junction with Claremont Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 48 metres.	8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	-
13.195	WOODBINE AVENUE – both sides, from a point 5 metres south of its junction with Woodbine Road to a point 3 metres north of its junction with Back Woodbine Road (South)	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.196	WOODBINE ROAD – north side, from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Linden Road to a point 3 metres west of its junction with Back Linden Road	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	2 hours	6 hours
13.197	WRETHAM PLACE – south side (in layby) from 39 metres east of Shield Street in an easterly direction for a distance of 46 metres.	Monday to Saturday 8.00 am - 6.30 pm	1 hour	6 hours

SCHEDULE 14 PROPERTIES ELIGIBLE FOR PARKING PERMITS

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Abbotsford Terrace	All	J1
Aberdeen Court	Nos. 1-12 (all)	KP1
Abingdon Court	Nos. 1-23 (all)	KP1
Acorn Road	All	J2
Ainthorpe Gardens	All (excluding Benton Park Primary School)	D4
Amble Way	All	G4
Ancrum Street	All	WN1
Anscomb Gardens	All	H1
Archibald Street, Gosforth	All	G3
Arundel Court	Nos. 1-13 (all) and 15-31 (odd)	KP1
Ascot Court	Nos. 1-12 (all) and 14-44 (even)	KP1
Ascot Walk	Nos. 1-23(all) and	KP1
	25-115 (odd)	
Back Framlington Place	Nos. 1 – 23 Framlington Place (inclusive)	WN1
	and 1-29 (inclusive) North	
	Terrace (Claremont Road), and Framlington House	
Back Hawthorn Road West	All	G2
Back High Street, Gosforth (between Ivy Road and Woodbine Road)	All	G2
Back Salters Road (South) (also known as Back Woodbine Road)	No. 88 Back Woodbine Road	G2

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Back West Avenue (North)/Back Woodbine Road (South)	Nos 2-12 even (including the Coach Houses at Nos. 8, 10,12, 14 and 14A)	G2
Back West Avenue (South)	No. 1	G2
Back Woodbine Road (South) (also known as Back Ivy Road)	All	G2
Balliol Gardens	All Residential	D2
Balmoral Terrace	All	G1
Bamburgh Walk	All	G4
Barker Street	All	OB1
Baronswood, Gosforth	All	G3
Bassington Close	All	WG1
Bayswater Road	All	J2
Beadnell Place	All	OB1
Beadnell Way	All	G4
Beal Way	All	G4
Beanley Place	All	H1
Belle Grove Terrace	All	WN1
Belle Grove West	All	WN1
Benfield Road	Nos. 51-89 (odd)	H4
Benton Close	All Residential	D2
Benton Lodge Avenue	All Residential	D2
Benton Park Road	Nos. 6-1	D1
Benton Park Road	Nos. 20-86 (even) and 9-169 (odd)	D2
Benton Road	Nos. 203-253 (odd)	D4
	Nos. 255 and 259	D4
	No. 313	D2
	Nos 24 – 130 (even)	D6
	Nos. 325-391 (odd)	D2
Benton Road (cont'd)	(Business premises only)	
Bewick Court	3 permits will be issued to the Management Team of Bewick Court for use by residents of Bewick Court when carrying out loading/unloading	WG4
Birchwood Avenue	All	D6

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Birkdale Close	All	D3
Blackthorn Place	All	E1
Blagdon Close	All	OB3
Boston Avenue	All Residential	D2
Boundary Gardens	All	D5
Brandling Park	All	J1
Brandling Place South	All Residential	J1
Brinkburn Avenue	All	G4
Broadwell Court	All	D7
Bromley Court	Nos. 1-16 (all)	KP1
Broomfield Road	All	G5
Brunton Road, Kenton Bankfoot	Nos. 1-5 (all) and 7-21 (odd)	KP1
Brunton Walk	Nos. 202-232 (even)	KP1
Buckthorne Grove	All	D6
Bulman House	-	G3
Burdon Terrace	All Residential	J1
Burford Court	All	D7
Buston Terrace	All	J3
Byron Street	All	OB1
Cambridge Street	All	E1
Cannock Drive	All	D5
Carnoustie Close	All	D3
Carol Gardens	All	D5
Castle Farm Road	All properties within Castle Farm Mews	D8
Castledene Court	All	D7
Causey Street, Gosforth	All	G2
Cavendish Place	All	J3
Cavendish Road	All	J3
Charlotte Close	All	E1
Chester Crescent	All	OB1
Chester Street	All	OB1
Chichester Close	Nos. 1-61 (all) and 63, 65, 67	KP1

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Chillingham Road	Nos. 209, 217, 219, 241-247 (odd), 267, 287	H3
Clanfield Court	All	D7
Claremont Place	All	WN1
Claremont Road	All	WN1
Claremont Street	All	WN1
Clayton Park Square	All Residential	J1
Clayton Road	All Residential	J1
Cleveland Gardens	Nos. 11-57 (odd) and 2-36 (even)	D5
Cleveland Gardens (and cul-de-sac)	Nos. 38-64 (even) and 69-95 (odd)	D5
Clifton Court	Nos. 1-30 (all)	KP1
Cloverdale Gardens	All	D5
Coach Lane	Nos. 11 and 13 Nos. 15-61 (odd)	D3
Colnbrook Close	Nos. 1-39 (all), 40 and 42	KP1
Coniston Avenue	All	J2
Conway Drive	All	D5
Copland Terrace	Nos. 2-42 (even) and 1-15 (odd)	OB1
Coppice Way	All	OB1
Cornel Road	All	D6
Corchester Walk	All (excluding Benton Park Primary School)	D4
Cornwell Court	All	D7
Cosford Court	Nos. 1-28 (all)	KP1
Cotswold Gardens	All	D5
Courtney Court	Nos. 1-22 (all) and 24-64 (even)	KP1
Cowdray Court	Nos. 1-54 (all) and 56-66 (even)	KP1
Cragside	All	D5
Cranbrook Court	Nos. 1-27 (all)	KP1
Cranwell Court	Nos. 1-29 (all)	KP1

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Craster Square	All	G4
Cross Morpeth Street	All	WN1
Cumberland Walk	All	D5
Daylesford Drive	Nos. 1-9 (odd),	D7
	Nos. 15-97 (odd), 2-26 (even) and 38-86 (even)	
Denewell Avenue	All	H1
Derby Street	All	WG1
Derwentdale Gardens	Nos. 34-72 inclusive (even)	D5
	Nos. 2-32 (even) and	
	Nos. 3-15 (odd)	
Deuchar Street	All	J3
Devonshire Place	All	J3
Dobson Close	All	E1
Donnington Court	All	D7
Dovedale Gardens	All	D5
Dudley House	All	WG1
Dunlop Close	All	D3
Dunns Terrace	All	WN1
Eagle Star House	-	G3
Ealing Court	Nos. 1-19 (all)	KP1
Eastlands	All	H1
Edgar Street	All	D7
Edinburgh Court	Nos. 1-17 (all), 19 and 20	KP1
Edlingham Close	All	D8
Edward Street, Gosforth	All	G3
Elmfield Road	Nos. 1-35 (odd) and 2-16 (even)	G2
	Nos. 35-49 (odds) and 18-36 (Even)	G5
Elsdon Road, Gosforth	All	G3
Elstree Court	Nos. 1-24 (all)	KP1
Elswick East Terrace	All	E1
Elswick Road	Nos 46-62 (even) and 5-33 (odd)	E4
Ely Close	All	D9
Embleton Avenue	All	G4

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Englefield Close	Nos. 1-77 (all)	KP1
Epsom Court	Nos. 1-33 (all) and 35-49 (odd)	KP1
Esher Court	Nos. 1-24, 26, 28 and 30	KP1
Eskdale Terrace	All	J1
Eslington Road	All	J1
Eslington Terrace	All	J1
Essex Close	All	E1
Fairburn Avenue	All	D3
Fairdale Avenue	All	D3
Fairhill Close	All	D3
Fairmont Way	All	D3
Fairview Green	All	D3
Fairville Crescent	All	D3
Fairways Avenue	All	D3
Falconar Street	All	OB1
Farn Court	Nos. 1-17 (all) and 19-61 (odd)	KP1
Farquhar Street	All	J3
Faversham Court	Nos. 1-16 (all) and 18-28 (even)	KP1
Fawdon Walk	Nos. 1-11 (odd) and 15-23 (odd)	KP1
Fenwick Close	All	J3
Fern Avenue	All	J3
Fetcham Court	Nos. 1-20 (all) and 22-30 (even)	KP1
Ferndene Grove	All	D6
Finstock Court	All	D7
Fontburn Place	Nos. 1-13 (consecutive) and 15-21 (odd)	D1
Fountain Row	All	WN1
Freeman Road	Nos. 2-40 (even)	D5
	Nos. 42-56 (even) and 3-9 (odd) including South Gosforth Methodist Church	D7
Gatwick Court	Nos. 1-21 (all) and 23-29 (odd)	KP1
George Street	Odd numbers higher than 55	E1
Gladstone Place	All	OB1
Gladstone Terrace	All	OB1

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Glaisdale Road	Nos. 1-8 (consecutive)	D1
Glenthorn Road	All	J2
Gloucester Court	Nos. 1-12 (all), 14 and 15	KP1
Gloucester Way	All	E1
Gordon Avenue, Gosforth	All	G2
Gosforth Civic Hall	-	G3
Gosforth Library	-	G3
Gosforth Street	All	OB1
Gosforth Swimming Pool	-	G3
Gowan Terrace	All	J3
Granville Road	All	J4
Grenville Terrace	All	OB3
Gretton Place	All	D5
Grosvenor Avenue	All	J3
Grosvenor Place	All	J3
Grosvenor Road	All	J3
Grosvenor Villas	All	J3
Guelder Road	All	D6
Guyzance Avenue	All	G4
Haldane Terrace	All	J1
Hambledon Gardens	All	D5
Harbottle Avenue	All	G4
Harrison Place	All	OB1
Hartford House	All	WG1
Hartside Gardens	All	J3
Hastings Avenue	Nos. 1-7 (odd)	KP1
Haversham Close	Nos. 1-40 inclusive	D1
Hawkshead Court	Nos. 1-29 (all)	KP1
Hawthorn Mews	Nos. 1-12 (consecutive)	G2
Hawthorn Place	All	E1
Hawthorn Road, Gosforth	All (including Hawthorn Court)	G2
Hawthorn Road West	All	G 5

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Hawthorn Walk	All	E1
Hazelwood Avenue	All	J2
Heathdale Gardens	No. 17-57 inclusive (odd)	D5
Hedley Cottage	-	G3
Hedley Street, Gosforth	All	G3
Hedley Terrace, Gosforth	All	G3
Henry Square	All	OB1
Henry Street, Gosforth	All	G3
Henshelwood Terrace	All Residential	J1
Hepple Way	All	G4
Hereford Court	Nos. 1-22 (all) and 25-35 (odd)	KP1
Hersham Close	Nos. 1-61 (all), 63, 65 and 67	KP1
Hesket Court	Nos. 1-6 (all), 8, 10 12 and 14	KP1
Hiddleston Avenue	Nos. 2-34 (consecutive) and 36	D2
High Friars and Sidgate Service Road	All	
High Laws	All	D8
High Street, Gosforth	Nos. 39-201 (odd) (west side)	G2
	Nos. 205-235 (odd)	G3
Hobart Gardens	Nos. 1-8 (consecutive)	D1
Holderness Road	Nos. 16-40 (even) and 15-35 (odd)	H2
Holly Avenue	All	J3
Holly Avenue West	All	J2
Holystone Avenue	All	J4
Holywell Close	All	WG1
Howard Place	All	G3
Hunters Place	All	WN1
Hunters Road	All	WN1
Huntington Close	Nos. 1-52 (all), 54, 56, 58, 60	KP1
Irton Street	All	G3
Ivy Close	All	E1
Ivy Road	All - including Nos. 2-6 Back Ivy Road	G2

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Jefferson Place	All	WG1
Jenifer Grove	All	D5
Jesmond Dene Road	Nos. 180 - 240 (even nos. only)	J3
Jesmond Dene Terrace	All	J3
Jesmond Park West	Nos. 16-74 (even) and 59-109 (odd)	H1
Jesmond Road	Nos. 199 -143 (odds) only Nos. 240 – 259 Nos. 240, 242-255 (consecutive) 257-271 (odd nos. only)	J3
Jesmond Road (West)	All	J7
Jubilee Mews	All	G3
Jubilee Road, Gosforth	Nos. 1-5 (odd) and 2-20 (even)	G3
Jubilee Road, Gosforth (cont'd)	Nos. 24-66 (even) and 23-97 (odd) (including The Coxlodge and Gosforth Social Club)	G4
Keldane Gardens	All	E3
Kent Court	Nos. 1-16 (all) and 18-40 (even)	KP1
Kingham Court	All	D7
Kingsland	All Residential	J1
Kirkstone Gardens	All	D5
Kyle Close	All	E1
Laleham Court	Nos. 1-28 (all)	KP1
Lambton Road	All Residential	J1
Lancaster Court	1-19 (all)	KP1
Lancaster Street	Nos. 1, 2, 4-16 inclusive and 18-32 inclusive	WG2
Lansdowne Crescent	Nos. 1-12 (consecutive)	G3
Lansdowne Place	All	G3
Lansdowne Terrace	Nos. 1-27 (consecutive)	G3
Larkspur Terrace	All	J2
Lartington Gardens	All	D7
Laurel Walk	All	G3
Launceston Close	Nos. 1-40 (all) and 42-76 (even)	KP1
Lealholm Road	Nos. 1-17 (consecutive) and 19	KP1

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Leazes Crescent	All	WG6
Leazes Terrace	All	WG6
Leyburn Drive	All	D5
Lichfield Close	Nos. 1-17 (all) and 19-25 (odd)	KP1
Lilburn Gardens	All	D7
Lily Avenue	All	J2
Lily Crescent	All	J2
Linden Avenue	Nos. 1-5 (consecutive) - also known as Farnes, Greenside, Abbotsford, Beaulieu and Ingleside respectively	G2 G5
Linden Road	All (including All Saints Church)	G2
Longborough Court	All	D7
Lonsdale Terrace	All	J2
Ludlow Court	Nos. 1-15 (all)	KP1
Lyndhurst Avenue	All	J2
Lynnwood Avenue	All Residential	E2
Main Road, Kenton Bankfoot	Nos. 1-11 (all), 13, 14, 15, 17, 19, 21, 22 and 23-41 (odd)	KP1
Manor House Road	All	J3
Maple Street	All	E1
Marlborough Court	Nos. 1-50 (all)	KP1
Mather Road	All	E1
Mayfield Road	All	G5
Melville Grove	All	D5
Milton Close	All	OB1
Milton Place	All	OB1
Mistletoe Road	All	J2
Mitcham Crescent	All	D5
Morpeth Street	All	WN1
Mulberry Place	All	E1
Myrtle Grove	All	J2
Napier Street	All	OB1

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Newton Road	Nos. 160-182 (even) and 59-77 (odd)	D5/H1
	Nos. 79-101 (odd) and 184-208 (even)	D5/H1 H1
	Nos. 5-57 (odd)	
Norham Place	All	J2
North Avenue, Gosforth	All	G5
Orchard Place	All	J3
Osborne Avenue	All	J3
Osborne Road	Nos. 9-139 (odd)	J2
	Nos. 105-117 (odd)	J3
	Nos. 11-51 (odd)	J2
	Nos. 20-36 (even)	J3
	Nos. 147-223 (odd)	J2
	Nos 18 a, b, c	J3
	Nos. 20 - 92 (even nos. only)	J3
Otterburn Terrace	All Residential	J1
Ousby Court	Nos. 1-6 (all) and 8-22 (even)	KP1
Oxnam Crescent	All	WN1
Palace Street	All	E1
Parkside Avenue	All Residential	D2
Patterdale Gardens	All	D5
Paxford Close	Nos. 1-12 and 14-17	D1
Peldon Close	Nos. 1-12 and 14-31	D1
Pelham Court	Nos. 1-16 (all)	KP1
Pembroke Court	Nos. 1-24 (all)	KP1
Penfold Close	All	D3
Pinewood Close	Nos. 1-39 (all)	KP1
Poplar Place	All	G3
Portland Road	All	J5
Quayside	Nos 1-83 (incl.) Mariners Wharf flats	OB4
Queens Court	All	WG1
Queens Road	All	J3
Queens Terrace	All	J3

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Ravensworth Court	Nos. 1-22 (all)	KP1
Regent Avenue	All (NOT Northern Rock)	G3
Regent Farm Court	All	G3
Regent Farm Road	Nos. 58-122 (even) and 83-173 (odd)	G4
Regent Road North	All	G3
Ribbledale Gardens	All	D5
Richardson Road	All	WN1
Ridley House	-	G3
Rock Terrace	All	OB1
Rosemount Way	All	D3
Rothbury Avenue	All	G4
Rye Hill	All	E1
Shortridge Terrace	All	J3
St. Ann's Close	All	OB2
St Asaph Close	All	D9
St. Georges Terrace	All	J2
St. Thomas Crescent	All	WG3
St. Thomas Square	All	WG3
St. Thomas Street	All	WG3
St. Thomas Terrace	All	WG3
Salters Road	No. 2-84 (even)	G3
	Nos. 1-151 (odd) (south side)	
	(including Cobblers Shop opposite public car park)	
	Nos 94 – 138 (evens)	
	Nos 151 – 211 (odds)	
Sanderson Road	All	J2
Saxton Grove	All	D5
Shannon Court	1-23 (all) and 25-31 (odd)	KP1
Sheraton Street	All	WN1
Shield Street	All	OB1
Shoreham Court	1-20 (all) and 22-28 (even)	KP1
Shrewsbury Close	All	D9

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Skelton Court	1-15 (all) and 17-29 (odd)	KP1
Soulby Court	1-6 (all) and 8-56 (even)	KP1
South Front	All Residential	J1
Southlands	All	H1
Spalding Close	All	D3
Stanhope Way	Nos 2-40 (even)	WG1
Stanley Grove	All	D5
Stanway Drive	All	D5
Station Road, Kenton Bankfoot	1, 2, 2A, 3-14 (all), 16, 19, 20, 21, 22-30 (even) and 31-39 (all)	KP1
Stepney Bank	All	OB2
Stokesley Grove	All	D5
Summerhill Grove	The Coach House, 3a-3h inclusive, 4a-4f inclusive, 5, 6, 7-8, 10, 1-14 St. Annes Court	WG2
	No. 1-2 Our Lady of Lourdes, Deaf Club NE4 6EE	
Summerhill Street	Nos. 1,2,4,6,8,10 , 11-25 (inclusive), 27, 29, 31 and 34	WG2
	No. 33	
Summerhill Terrace	Nos. 1-8 inclusive and 11	WG2
	Nos. 9, 10 and 12	
Sunbury Avenue	All	J2
Swaledale Gardens	Nos. 2-38 (even) and 1-39 (odd)	D5
	No. 39 and Nos. 40-74 inclusive (even)	
Swarland Avenue	All Residential	D2
Sycamore Close	Nos. 2-16	J3
	(even only)	
Tankerville Place	All Residential	J1
Tankerville Terrace	All Residential	J1
Tarset Street	All	OB2
Tavistock Road	All	J2
Teesdale Gardens	No. 40	D5
	Nos. 2-40 (even) and 7-39 (odd)	
	Nos. 42-78 (even) and 41-77 (odd)	

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Teviotdale Gardens	Nos. 39-73 (odd) and 40-76 (even)	D5
	Nos.1-37 (odd) and 2-38 (even)	
The Cloisters	All Residential	D1
The Crescent	All	D2
The Crescent, Kenton Bankfoot	Nos. 1-12 (all)	KP1
The Drive	All	D2
The Gables	Nos. 1-17 (all)	KP1
Thornleigh Road	All	J2
Thropton Avenue	All Residential	D2
Thropton Crescent	All	G4
Trentham Avenue	Nos. 1-41 (consecutive) and 43-57 (odd)	D2
Uldale Court	Nos. 1-12 (all) and 14-20 (even)	KP1
Valley View	All	J3
Vicars Lane	No. 1-26	D1
Victoria Square	All	J7
Victoria Street	Nos. 1-4 inclusive (including No. 2 Lower Flat and No. 2 Upper Flat), 5- 29 inclusive, 31, 33 and 35	WG2
Wallace Street	All	WN1
Wallington Court	Nos. 1-22 (all)	KP1
Warcop Court	Nos. 1-8 (all) and 10	KP1
Warkworth Crescent	All	G4
Warton Terrace	Nos. 2-24 (even) and 1-21 (odd)	H3
Waverley Road	All	E1
Warwick Court	Nos. 1-12 (all), 12A and 14-26 (all)	KP1
Weldon Way	All	G4
Wellburn Park	All	J3
Wells Close	All	D9

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
West Avenue	All located between Linden Road and High Street (including No. 10A Back West Avenue (North) and No. 1 Back West Avenue (South)	G2
	All Saints Church and Gosforth Bowling Club	G5
West Jesmond Avenue	All	J2
Westgate Hill Terrace	Nos. 1, 3, 4a-4h inclusive, 4j-4m inclusive, 5, 7, 8A, 8B, 9, 11, 13, 15, 17,19	WG2
Westlands	All	H1
Westminster Way	All	D9
Westwell Court	All	D7
Whitton Place	All	D5
Whitton Way	All	G4
Winchcombe Place	All	D5
Winchester Terrace	Nos. 1a-1d inclusive and 2-10 inclusive	WG2
Windmill Court	All	WN1
Windsor Court	Nos. 1-23 (all)	KP1
Windsor Place	All	J7
Windsor Terrace	All	J7
Windsor Walk	Nos. 201-247 (odd)	KP1
Windsor Way	1 The Windsor	KP1
	2 Residential	
	2 Kingston Park Post Office	
	2 VG Foodstore	
Wiseton Court	Nos. 1-17 (odd) and 2-18 (even)	D1
Woodbine Avenue	All	G2
Woodbine Road	All	G2
Woodchurch Close	All	D9
Woodend Way	Nos. 1-4 (all), 6-11 (all), 11A, 12- 19(all) and 21-27 (all)	KP1
Wraysbury Court	Nos. 1-14 (all) and 16-38 (even)	KP1
Wretham Place	All	OB1
Wych Elm Crescent	All	D6

Column 1 Name of Street	Column 2 Eligible Properties (Numbers)	Column 3 Parking Zone for which a Parking Permit may be issued
Yeadon Court	1-39 (all)	KP1
York Street	Nos. 1, 3, 4-13 inclusive, 15-30 inclusive and 32	WG2

SCHEDULE 15

PARKING PLACES CONTAINED IN EACH PARKING ZONE

Column 1 Name of Parking Zone	Column 2 Parking Places falling within the Parking Zone
B1	13.182
D1	11.126, 11.127, 11.132, 11.133, 11.134, 11.427, 11.436, 11.522, 11.523, 11.524, 11.525, 11.526, 11.527, 11.642, 11.643, 11.644, 11.645, 11.646, 11.647, 11.782, 11.783, 11.784, 11.785, 11.786, 11.787, 11.788, 11.789, 11.790, 11.931, 11.932, 11.933, 11.934, 11.935, 11.936, 11.937, 11.938, 11.939, 11.940, 11.976, 11.977, 11.978, 11.979, 11.980, 11.981
D2	11.74, 11.75, 11.76, 11.77, 11.121, 11.122, 11.123, 11.124, 11.125, 11.128, 11.129, 11.130, 11.131, 11.144, 11.145, 11.561, 11.775, 11.910, 11.911, 11.912, 11.913, 11.941, 11.942, 11.943, 11.944, 11.945, 11.946, 11.947, 11.950, 11.951, 11.952, 11.957, 13.29, 13.30, 13.31, 13.32, 13.33, 13.34, 13.35, 13.36, 13.37, 13.38, 13.39, 13.40, 13.41, 13.177
D3	11.141, 11.204, 11.241, 11.242, 11.343, 11.380, 11.381, 11.382, 11.383, 11.384, 11.385, 11.386, 11.387, 11.388, 11.389, 11.390, 11.391, 11.392, 11.393, 11.394, 11.395, 11.396, 11.397, 11.398, 11.399, 11.400, 11.401, 11.402, 11.403, 11.404, 11.791, 11.833, 11.834, 11.893, 11.961, 11.962, 11.963, 11.964
D4	11.3, 11.249, 11.250, 11.251, 11.252
D5	11.146, 11.147, 11.148, 11.198, 11.199, 11.200, 11.201, 11.202, 11.203, 11.234, 11.235, 11.236, 11.237, 11.238, 11.239, 11.240, 11.245, 11.246, 11.258, 11.259, 11.260, 11.261, 11.262, 11.263, 11.264, 11.265, 11.266, 11.267, 11.268, 11.269, 11.270, 11.271, 11.272, 11.273, 11.276, 11.277, 11.278, 11.302, 11.303, 11.304, 11.305, 11.306, 11.307, 11.335, 11.336, 11.337, 11.338, 11.339, 11.340, 11.341, 11.342, 11.429, 11.430, 11.477, 11.513, 11.514, 11.515, 11.540, 11.541, 11.591, 11.592, 11.593, 11.594, 11.595, 11.596, 11.597, 11.598, 11.599, 11.634, 11.648, 11.649, 11.650, 11.651, 11.652, 11.701, 11.702, 11.703, 11.707, 11.708, 11.709, 11.710, 11.776, 11.777, 11.778, 11.779, 11.780, 11.781, 11.826, 11.875, 11.896, 11.897, 11.898, 11.901, 11.902, 11.903, 11.904, 11.905, 11.908, 11.909, 11.925, 11.926, 11.927, 11.928, 11.929, 11.930, 11.960, 11.1024, 11.1025, 11.1028, 11.1029, 11.1030, 11.1031, 13.42, 13.52, 13.54, 13.55, 13.56, 13.60, 13.62, 13.139, 13.140, 13.142, 13.179

Column 1 Name of Parking Zone	Column 2 Parking Places falling within the Parking Zone
D6	11.135, 11.136, 11.137, 11.138, 11.139, 11.140, 11.168, 11.169, 11.170, 11.171, 11.172, 11.173, 11.253, 11.254, 11.255, 11.256, 11.421, 11.422, 11.423, 11.424, 11.425, 11.503, 11.504, 11.505, 11.1044, 11.1045, 11.1046,11.1047
D7	11.160, 11.161, 11.162, 11.183, 11.207, 11.208, 11.209, 11.224, 11.257, 11.279, 11.280, 11.281, 11.282, 11.283, 11.284, 11.285, 11.286, 11.287, 11.288, 11.289, 11.290, 11.331, 11.332, 11.333, 11.334, 11.352, 11.426, 11.431, 11.432, 11.433, 11.629, 11.640, 11.641, 11.653, 11.654, 11.655, 11.671, 11.1023
D8	11.205, 11.206, 11.353, 11.565
D9	11.357A, 11.850A, 11.886A, 11.1006A, 11.1022A, 11.1042A
E1	11.142, 11.192, 11.193, 11.194, 11.195, 11.196, 11.197, 11.219, 11.357, 11.324, 11.376, 11.377, 11.378, 11.379, 11.441, 11.442, 11.443, 11.444, 11.528, 11.529, 11.530, 11.531, 11.583, 11.635, 11.694, 11.695, 11.696, 11.715, 11.998, 11.999, 11.1000, 11.1001, 13.67, 13.68, 13.69, 13.132, 13.192, 13.193
E2	11.682
E3	11.624
E4	13.70, 13.71
G1	11.78
G2	11.2, 11.37, 11.38, 11.46, 11.47, 11.48, 11.49, 11.53, 11.61, 11.62, 11.72, 11.73, 11.210, 11.211, 11.454, 11.532, 11.533, 11.534, 11.584, 11.585, 11.661, 11.662, 11.663, 11.664, 11.665, 11.666, 11.667, 11.668, 11.669, 11.670, 11.1007, 11.1008, 11.1009, 11.1010, 11.1036, 11.1037, 11.1038, 11.1039, 11.1040, 11.1041, 11.1042, 12.12, 13.11, 13.84, 13.85, 13.98, 13.99, 13.100, 13.114, 13.115, 13.116, 13.117, 13.118, 13.119, 13.150, 13.186, 13.187, 13.188, 13.195, 13.196
G3	11.14, 11.15, 11.50, 11.51, 11.55, 11.56, 11.57, 11.58, 11.59, 11.60, 11.67, 11.80, 11.81, 11.82, 11.83, 11.84, 11.85, 11.86, 11.87, 11.88, 11.89, 11.90, 11.91, 11.92, 11.93, 11.94, 11.356, 11.542, 11.543, 11.544, 11.545, 11.546, 11.547, 11.556, 11.557, 11.558, 11.613, 11.614, 11.621, 11.622, 11.813, 11.814, 11.815, 11.822, 11.823, 11.824, 11.825, 11.863, 11.864, 11.865, 11.866, 11.867, 11.868, 11.869, 12.1, 12.2, 12.13, 12.15, 12.16, 12.17, 12.18, 12.30, 12.31, 13.4, 13.10, 13.63, 13.64, 13.66, 13.88, 13.97, 13.109, 13.146, 13.147, 13.148

Column 1 Name of Parking Zone	Column 2 Parking Places falling within the Parking Zone
G4	11.6, 11.105, 11.106, 11.107, 11.108, 11.158, 11.159, 11.274, 11.275, 11.358, 11.359, 11.360, 11.361, 11.506, 11.507, 11.508, 11.516, 11.517, 11.518, 11.560, 11.576, 11.577, 11.615, 11.616, 11.617, 11.618, 11.619, 11.620, 11.816, 11.817, 11.818, 11.819, 11.820, 11.821, 11.835, 11.836, 11.837, 11.838, 11.839, 11.840, 11.841, 11.842, 11.843, 11.844, 11.845, 11.846, 11.847, 11.848, 11.953, 11.954, 11.955, 11.956, 11.991, 11.992, 11.993, 11.994, 11.995, 11.996, 11.997, 11.1002, 11.1003, 11.1004, 11.1005, 11.1006, 11.1026, 11.1027, 13.92, 13.107, 13.108, 13.149, 13.181
G5	11.39, 11.163, 11.164, 11.165, 11.166, 11.167, 11.354, 11.355, 11.535, 11.536, 11.537, 11.538, 11.697, 11.698, 11.699, 11.700, 11.733, 11.734, 11.735, 11.736, 11.737, 11.738, 11.739, 11.740, 11.741, 11.742, 11.743, 11.1007, 11.1008, 11.1009, 11.1010, 13.65, 13.86, 13.189, 13.190
H1	11.12, 11.13, 11.109, 11.291, 11.292, 11.293, 11.294, 11.349, 11.350, 11.351, 11.604, 11.605, 11.606, 11.607, 11.608, 11.609, 11.721, 11.722, 11.723, 11.724, 11.725, 11.726, 11.727, 11.728, 11.888, 11.889, 11.890, 11.891, 11.892, 11.1020, 11.1021, 11.1022, 13.104, 13.141
H2	11.566
H3	13.184
H4	13.28
J1	11.1, 11.18, 11.19, 11.20, 11.21, 11.22, 11.24, 11.25, 11.26, 11.27, 11.28, 11.29, 11.44, 11.45, 11.52, 11.54, 11.66, 11.70, 11.71, 11.149, 11.150, 11.151, 11.152, 11.153, 11.154, 11.155, 11.174, 11.175, 11.176, 11.177, 11.178, 11.179, 11.180, 11.181, 11.182, 11.228, 11.229, 11.230, 11.231, 11.232, 11.233, 11.362, 11.363, 11.364, 11.365, 11.366, 11.367, 11.368, 11.369, 11.370, 11.371, 11.372, 11.373, 11.374, 11.375, 11.509, 11.510, 11.511, 11.512, 11.559, 11.630, 11.631, 11.632, 11.636, 11.637, 11.768, 11.769, 11.770, 11.771, 11.887, 11.915, 11.916, 11.917, 11.918, 11.919, 11.920, 11.921, 11.922, 11.959, 13.145

Column 1 Name of Parking Zone	Column 2 Parking Places falling within the Parking Zone
J2	11.16, 11.17, 11.63, 11.64, 11.65, 11.100, 11.101, 11.102, 11.103, 11.243, 11.244, 11.437, 11.438, 11.439, 11.440, 11.539, 11.638, 11.639, 11.656, 11.657, 11.658, 11.659, 11.660, 11.672, 11.673, 11.674, 11.675, 11.676, 11.677, 11.678, 11.679, 11.680, 11.681, 11.706, 11.716, 11.717, 11.718, 11.720, 11.729, 11.730, 11.731, 11.732, 11.766, 11.767, 11.851, 11.852, 11.853, 11.854, 11.855, 11.856, 11.870, 11.871, 11.872, 11.907, 11.924, 11.948, 11.949, 11.1012, 11.1013, 11.1014, 11.1015, 11.1016, 11.1017, 12.27, 13.12, 13.13, 13.14, 13.15, 13.16, 13.17, 13.18, 13.19, 13.20, 13.21, 13.22, 13.23, 13.24, 13.53, 13.72, 13.87, 13.93, 13.94, 13.95, 13.96, 13.110, 13.111, 13.112, 13.113, 13.120, 13.121, 13.122, 13.123, 13.124, 13.125, 13.126, 13.127, 13.128, 13.133, 13.134, 13.135, 13.136, 13.137, 13.138, 13.143, 13.151, 13.154, 13.155, 13.156, 13.157, 13.158, 13.159, 13.175, 13.176, 13.178, 13.180, 13.191
J3	11.40, 11.41, 11.42, 11.43, 11.184, 11.185, 11.186, 11.187, 11.188, 11.189, 11.190, 11.212, 11.213, 11.214, 11.215, 11.216, 11.217, 11.218, 11.308, 11.309, 11.310, 11.311, 11.312, 11.313, 11.314, 11.405, 11.406, 11.407, 11.408, 11.409, 11.410, 11.411, 11.412, 11.413, 11.414, 11.415, 11.416, 11.417, 11.418, 11.419, 11.420, 11.456, 11.457, 11.458, 11.459, 11.460, 11.461, 11.462, 11.463, 11.464, 11.465, 11.466, 11.467, 11.468, 11.483, 11.484, 11.485, 11.486, 11.487, 11.488, 11.499, 11.490, 11.491, 11.492, 11.493, 11.494, 11.495, 11.496, 11.497, 11.498, 11.499, 11.500, 11.501, 11.502, 11.520, 11.521, 11.567, 11.568, 11.569, 11.570, 11.571, 11.572, 11.573, 11.574, 11.575, 11.600, 11.601, 11.602, 11.603, 11.683, 11.684, 11.685, 11.686, 11.687, 11.688, 11.689, 11.690, 11.691, 11.692, 11.693, 11.744, 11.745, 11.746, 11.747, 11.748, 11.749, 11.750, 11.751, 11.752, 11.753, 11.754, 11.755, 11.764, 11.757, 11.758, 11.759, 11.760, 11.761, 11.762, 11.763, 11.764, 11.765, 11.795, 11.796, 11.797, 11.798, 11.799, 11.800, 11.801, 11.802, 11.803, 11.804, 11.805, 11.806, 11.807, 11.808, 11.809, 11.810, 11.811, 11.812, 11.880, 11.881, 11.882, 11.883, 11.884, 11.885, 11.886, 11.914, 11.975, 11.1018, 11.1019, 13.47, 13.48, 13.49, 13.101, 13.102, 13.103, 13.105, 13.106, 13.129, 13.130, 13.131, 13.144, 13.152
J4	11.476
J5	12.28, 12.29
J7	11.982, 11.983, 11.984, 11.985, 11.1033, 11.1034, 11.1035, 12.20, 12.21, 12.22
KP1	11.633

Column 1 Name of Parking Zone	Column 2 Parking Places falling within the Parking Zone
OB1	11.23, 11.79, 11.104, 11.191, 11.247, 11.248, 11.434, 11.435, 11.455, 11.519, 11.555, 11.704, 11.705, 11.719, 11.827, 11.828, 11.829, 11.830, 11.831, 11.832, 11.876, 11.877, 11.878, 11.879, 11.965, 11.971, 11.972, 11.1011, 11.1043, 12.3, 12.14, 13.197
OB2	11.849, 11.850, 11.923, 11.966, 11.967, 11.968, 11.969, 11.970, 13.43, 13.44, 13.45, 13.46, 13.153, 13.174, 13.183
OB3	11.143, 11.610, 11.611, 11.612, 11.623
OB4	11.792, 11.793, 11.794
WG1	11.95, 11.96, 11.97, 11.98, 11.99, 11.295, 11.296, 11.297, 11.298, 11.299, 11.300, 11.301, 11.578, 11.579, 11.586, 11.587, 11.588, 11.589, 11.590
WG2	11.906
WG3	11.857, 11.858, 11.859, 11.860, 11.861, 11.862
WG4	11.874
WG6	12.23, 12.24, 12.25, 12.26, 12.35
WN1	11.7, 11.8, 11.9, 11.10, 11.11, 11.30, 11.31, 11.32, 11.33, 11.110, 11.111, 11.112, 11.113, 11.114, 11.115, 11.116, 11.117, 11.118, 11.119, 11.120, 11.225, 11.226, 11.227, 11.344, 11.345, 11.346, 11.348, 11.428, 11.580, 11.581, 11.582, 11.711, 11.712, 11.713, 11.714, 11.772, 11.773, 11.774, 11.973, 11.974, 11.986, 11.987, 11.988, 11.989, 11.990, 11.1032, 12.4, 12.5, 12.6, 12.7, 12.8, 12.9, 12.10, 12.11, 12.19, 12.32, 12.33, 12.34, 13.1, 13.2, 13.3, 13.25, 13.26, 13.27, 13.57, 13.58, 13.59, 13.194

SCHEDULE 16

BUSINESS AND CHARITY PERMIT FEE AREAS

Part I

Area A Eligible Properties

Eligible Properties as detailed in Schedule 14 falling within the following Parking Zones shall be Area A Eligible Properties:

D1, D2, D3, D5, D7, E2, G2, G3, G4, H1, J2, KP1 and OB2

Part II

Area B Eligible Properties

Eligible Properties as detailed in Schedule 14 falling within the following Parking Zones shall be Area B Eligible Properties:

J1, J5, J6, J7, OB1, OB3, WG1, WG2 and WN1

Part III

Area C Eligible Properties

Eligible Properties as detailed in Schedule 14 falling within the following Parking Zones shall be Area C Eligible Properties:

J7 and WG3

SCHEDULE 17

CITY CENTRE ZONES

Part I

City Centre Zone A

The following streets shall comprise City Centre Zone A:

Part II

City Centre Zone B

The following streets shall comprise City Centre Zone B:

City Road	
Clayton Street West	
Melbourne Street	
Rutherford Street	
Temple Street	
Thornton Street	
Waterloo Street	
Westgate Road	